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NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING ill

ORDERS OF REFERENCE
House of Commons,

Ottawa, Wednesday, June 4, 1924.

Resolved,—That Rule 10 of the House of Commons relating to the appoint­
ment of the Select Standing Committee of the House be amended by adding to 
the Select Standing Committees of the House for the present session a Select 
Standing Committee on Railways and Shipping owned, operated and controlled 
by the Government, to which will be referred the Estimates of the Canadian 
National Railway and the Canadian Merchant Marine for the present session 
for consideration and for report to the House : Provided, however, that nothing 
in this resolution shall be construed to curtail in any way the full right of dis­
cussion in Committee of Supply.

Attest.
W. B. NORTHRUP,

Clerk of the House of Commons.

Tuesday, June 10, 1924.
Ordered,—That the said Committee be composed of the following Mem­

bers, viz: Messieurs Drummond, Euler, Gauvreau, Graham, Harris, Jelliff, 
Jones, Kyte, Ladner, Mackinnon, Milne, Rinfret, Robichaud, Stewart (Hum­
boldt), and Stork.

Attest.
W. B. NORTHRUP,

Clerk of the House of Commons.

Thursday, June 12, 1924.
Ordered,—That the name of Sir Henry Drayton be substituted for that of 

Mr. Ladner on the said Committee.
Attest.

W. B. NORTHRUP,
Clerk of the House of Commons.

Thursday, June 26, 1924.
Ordered,—That the said Committee be granted leave to sit while the House 

is in session.
Attest.

W. B. NORTHRUP,
Clerk of the House of Commons.

Monday, June 30, 1924.
Ordered, That 500 copies of the proceedings and evidence of the said Com­

mittee be printed, and that Rule 74 be suspended- in connection therewith.
Attest.
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W. B. NORTHRUP,
Clerk of the House of Commons.



IV SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

REPORTS OF THE COMMITTEE
First Report

Thursday, June 19, 1924.
The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping beg 

leave to present the following as their First Report:—
Your Committee have considered Item No. 138 of the Estimates for the 

Fiscal Year ending March 31, 1925, viz., “ Loan to Canadian Government Mer­
chant Marine, Limited, $900,000,” and approve of the said item.

All which is respectfully submitted.

W. D. EULER,
Chairman.

Second Report

Thursday, June 26, 1924.
The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping beg 

leave to present the following as their Second Report:—
Your Committee recommend that leave be granted them to sit while the 

House is in session.
All which is respectfully submitted.

W. D. EULER,
Chairman.

Third Report

. Monday, June 30, 1924.
The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping beg 

leave to present the following as their Third Report:—
Your Committee have considered Item 137 of the Estimates for the Fiscal 

Year ending March 31, 1925, viz., “ Loans to Canadian National Railway Com­
pany, $56,000,000,” and have approved of the said item.

Your Committee recommend that 500 copies of the proceedings and evidence 
taken should be printed, and that Rule 74 should be suspended in connection 
therewith.

All which is respectfully submitted.

W. D. EULER,
Chairman.
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NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING I V

MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING
Room 424, House of Commons,

Friday, 13th June, 1924.
The Committee met at 11 a.m. for organization.
Present: Messrs.. Drayton, Drummond, Euler, Gauvreau, Graham, Harris, 

Jelliff, Kyte, Mackinnon, Stewart (Humboldt), Stork.—11.
The Clerk read the Orders of Reference.
On motion of Mr. Kyte, seconded by Mr. Mackinnon, Mr. Euler was 

elected Chairman.
The Chairman thanked the Committee for the honour they had conferred 

upon him. '
Hon. Mr. Graham, Minister of Railways and Canals, addressed the Com­

mittee and was followed by Sir Henry Thornton, President of Canadian National 
Railways.

General discussion followed, after which it was decided to take up the 
Canadian Government Merchant Marine at the next meeting.

The Committee adjourned at 11.50 a.m. until Tuesday, 17th June, at 11
a.m.



VI SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING
Room 268, House of Commons,

Tuesday, 17th June, 1924.
The Committee met at 11 a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding.
Present: Messrs. Drayton, Drummond, Euler, Gauvreau, Graham, ^Harris, 

Jelliff, Kyte, Mackinnon, Milne, Stewart (Humboldt), Stork.—12.
Sir Henry Thornton, President of the Canadian National Railways and of 

the Canadian Government Merchant Marine Limited, distributed copies of the 
Fifth Annual Report of the Canadian Government Merchant Marine Limited, 
and addressed the Committee thereon.

In the course of Sir Henry Thornton’s remarks, Hon. Mr. Graham sug­
gested that a stenographic report should be taken. The Clerk, accordingly, 
was instructed to procure the services of a reporter immediately. Thereafter a 
stenographic report of the proceedings was taken.

Sir Henry Thornton was questioned. Comparisons were drawn of Cana­
dian—United Kingdom and South American—United Kingdom steamer services 
in the matters of refrigerator facilities, railway hauls, steamship rates and dis­
tances, with special reference to the building up of a chilled meat industry in 
Canada.

Sir Henry Thornton referred to the great possibilities in the Canadian-West 
Indian service.

The Committee adjourned at 12.55 p.m. until to-morrow at 10.30 a.m.
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MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING
Room 231, House of Commons,

Wednesday, 18th June, 1924.
The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding.
Present: Messrs. Drayton, Euler, Gauvreau, Graham, Harris, Jelliff. Kyte, 

Mackinnon, Milne, Stewart (Humboldt), Stork.—11.
On motion of Mr. Graham,—
Ordered,—That 25 typewritten copies of yesterday’s stenographic report be 

procured, and that 25 typewritten copies of all future stenographic reports of 
the proceedings be struck off for the use of the Committee, and for distribution 
as they think fit.

Sir Henry Thornton answered questions asked yesterday regarding the 
Canadian Merchant Marine.

Sir Henry stated that the lack of westbound traffic on the Canadian-United 
Kingdom steamship service crippled that line. . The Pacific Coastal service was 
alluded to as being a paying one and worthy of development, while the route 
from Vancouver through the Panama Canal to Eastern Canadian ports was 
favourably commented upon. Sir Henry thought that the West Indian trade 
should be cultivated, and that four ships might well be added to that service.

By permission of the Committee, Mr. Logan made some observations 
respecting the West Indian service, in the course of which he referred to the 
agents for the Canadian Merchant Marine throughout the West Indies being 
actually competitors for the business sought by Canada; to the bad coal used 
on boats and to the lack, so far as passengers were concerned, of daily informa­
tion by wireless telegraphy on these boats. Mr. Logan suggested that trading 
possibilities with Argentine and Brazil should be investigated.

The Committee adjourned at 12.40 p.m. until to-morraw at 10.30 a.m.
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MINUTES
Room 231, House of Commons'

Thursday, 19th June, 1924.
The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding.
Present: Messrs. Drayton, Drummond, Euler, Gauvreau, Graham, Harris, 

Jelliff, Kyte, Mackinnon, Milne, Stewart (Humboldt), Stork—12.
Consequent on yesterday’s order of"the Committee for 25 typewritten 

copies of the proceedings of the Committee, the Chairman intimated that these 
could not be supplied until the end of the week, and that a charge would be 
incurred for typing. Sir Henry Thornton offered to have 25 copies of all pro­
ceedings struck off, and this was agreed to.

Sir Henry Thornton was questioned in reference to the West Indies service 
and to its possibilities, to the shipment of grain on the Great Lakes, to the 
matter of transporting Nova Scotia coal by water to Ontario, and to the 
Oriental service.

Discussion ensued as to what should be incorporated in the Report of the 
Committee to the House, mention being made of

(a) a United Kingdom chilled meat trade;
(b) augmentation of the West India service;
(c) augmentation of the Pacific Coastal service ;
(d) Pacific to Atlantic service, via Panama Canal.

Sir Henry Drayton suggested that the Management should bring their 
recommendations before the Committee for consideration.

On motion of Mr. Mackinnon,—
Resolved,—That Item No. 138 of the Estimates for the Year ending March 

31, 1925, viz. “Loan to Canadian Government Merchant Marine, Limited, 
$900,000.00” be approved.

Consideration was given to Item No. 137 of the Estimates, viz. “Loans to 
Canadian National Railway Company, $56,000,000.00”, Sir Henry Thornton 
making a statement regarding the purchase of the Scribe Hotel, Paris.

On motion of Mr. Stork,—
Resolved,—That Major Bell, Deputy Minister of Railways and Canals, be 

heard regarding the Scribe Hotel purchase.
Major Bell was called and heard.
On the completion of Major Bell’s remarks, Sir Henry Thornton was cross- 

examined by Sir Henry Drayton.
The Committee adjourned at 1.10 p.m. until tomorrow at 1030 a.m.
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MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING
Room 231, House of Commons,

Friday, 20th June, 1924.
The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding. 
Present: Messrs. Drayton, Drummond, Euler, Gauvreau, Harris, Jelliff, 

Kyte, Mackinnon, Milne, Stewart (Humboldt), Stork—11.

Hotel Scribe, Paris
Sir Henry Thornton was further examined respecting the purchase of this 

building. The principal questioners were Sir Henry Drayton, Mr. Harris, Mr. 
Kyte and Mr. Stewart (Humboldt).

The Committee adjourned at 12.55 p.m. until Monday next at 10.30 a.m.
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MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING
Room 231, House of Commons,

Monday, 23rd June, 1924.
The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding.
Present: Messrs, Drayton, Drummond, Euler, Gauvreau, Graham, Kyte, 

Mackinnon, Milne, Stewart (Humboldt), and Stork—10.

Hotel Scribe, Paris
Major Bell, Deputy Minister of Railways and Canals, was recalled and 

examined. Witness retired.

Canadian National Railway System—Annual Report
This report for the year ending December 31, 1923, was considered as to 

the items appearing on page 5 thereof, viz: Mileage, Revenue Expenses. Sir 
Henry Thornton was heard. The decrease of revenue for mail service was attrib­
uted to a re-arrangement of rates. In considering “ Maintenance of Way and 
Structures,” Sir Henry Thornton outlined the steps taken to effect the indicated 
decrease in cost.

The Committee adjourned at 1 p.m., until tomorrow at 10.30 a.m.
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MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING
Room 231, House of Commons,

Tuesday, 24th June, 1924.
The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding. 
Present: Messrs. Drayton, Drummond, Euler, Gauvreau, Graham, Harris, 

Jelliff, Kyte, Mackinnon, Milne, Stewart (Humboldt), Stork—12.

Hotel Scribe, Paris
Major Bell was recalled and questioned, after which he retired.
Mr. Gerald Ruel, Vice-President and General Counsel for Canadian National 

Railways, was called and heard. He was questioned by Sir Henry Drayton, 
and subsequently by Mr. Kyte and Mr. Mackinnon. In the course of Sir Henry 
Drayton’s questioning of the witness, reference was made to the Home Bank, 
which, Mr. Kyte taking exception, was ruled out of order.

Prince Rupert B.C. Lots
Mr. Ruel was questioned by Mr. Kyte respecting the sale of Prince Rupert 

lots owned by Canadian National Railways.
Mr. Ruel retired.

Conservative Caucus
At 12.12 p.m. Sir Henry Drayton reminded the Committee that a Conser­

vative caucus was scheduled for 11.30 a.m. today. The Committee, accordingly, 
adjourned until tomorrow at 10.30 a.m.
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MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING
Room 429, House of Commons,

Wednesday, 25th June, 1924.
The Committee met at 10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, pre­

siding.
Present: Messrs. Drayton, Drummond, Euler, Jones, Gauvreau, Graham, 

Harris, Jelliff, Kyte, Mackinnon, Milne, Robichaud, Stewart (Humboldt), 
Stork—14.

Railway Operating Expenses
Two officials of the Canadian National Railways, Mr. R. A. C. Henry, 

Director Bureau of Economics, and Mr. C. B. Brown, Chief Engineer Operation 
Department were called and questioned.

Witnesses stood aside.
Hotel Scribe, Paris

Sir Henry Drayton having arrived, Mr. Pratt, of Paris, France, was, on 
motion of Mr. Kyte, called and examined.

Mr. Pratt retired.
Senator Wilson, on motion of Mr. Mackinnon, was called and examined.
Senator Wilson retired.

Railway Operating Expenses
Messrs. Henry and Brown were recalled. Further examination was made 

of the Annual Report for the year ending December 31st, 1923, after which the 
witnesses retired.

Report oj the Committee
A discussion took place respecting the recommendations which should be 

included in the Committee’s report to the House. It was suggested that the 
executive officers of the Canadian National Railways should first submit to 
the Committee a draft report of recommendations, which might assist the 
Committee in arriving at conclusions.

The Committee adjourned at 1 p.m. until tomorrow at 10.30 a m.
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MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING
Room 116, House of Commons,

Thursday, 26th June, 1924.
The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding.
Present'. Messrs. Euler, Gauvreau, Graham, Harris, Jelliff, Kyte, Mackinnon, 

Milne, Stewart (Humboldt), Stork—10.

Routing of Canadian Mail Traffic
Consequent on the President of the Canadian National Railways having 

stated at a previous meeting of the Committee that that company was not 
receiving a fair share of postal transportation business, and on motion of Mr. 
Graham,—

Mr. R. L. Fairbairn, Manager of the Postal Service Bureau, was called and 
examined.

Mr. Fairbairn showed that the routes served by the Canadian National 
Railways would have an improved mail service if some of the existing postal 
transportation agreements with the Canadian Pacific Railway were transferred 
to the Canadian National Railways. Financially, the unfairness of the present 
arrangements towards the Canadian National Railways was also demonstrated.

The witness submited a statement containing' observations regarding the 
existing mail service and recommendations for the improvement thereof.

Mr. Fairbairn retired.

Canadian National Railways—Annual Report
Major Bell and Messrs. Brown, Henry and Cooper were in attendance, 

and answered questions relative to Railway Operating Revenues, Railway 
Operating Expenses, Maintenance of Way and Structures, Traffic Expenses and 
Transportation Rail Line, also Miscellaneous Operations, as embodied in pages 
18 to 22.

Motion for Leave to Sit while House Sitting
On motion of Mr. Stork,—
Resolved,—That leave be asked to sit while the House is in session.
The Committee adjourned at 1 p.m. until tomorrow at 10.30 a.m.



XIV SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING
Room 231, House of Commons,

Friday, June 27, 1924.
' The Committee met at 10.30 a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding.

Present: Messrs. Drayton, Drummond, Euler, Harris, Kvte, Jelliff, Jones, 
Mackinnon, Milne, Stewart (Humboldt).—10.

Radio Equipment
Mr. W. D. Robb, Vice-President of Insurance, Colonization, etc., Cana­

dian National Railways, was called, heard and questioned regarding radio equip­
ment.

Immigration
Mr. W. D. Robb was questioned with respect to immigration activities.
Mr. C. Price-Green, Commissioner of Colonization, under Mr. Robb, was 

called and questioned regarding immigration.
Group settlement of immigrants was discussed, also the financial advantage 

to be derived by co-ordination of effort on the part of the Government, the 
Canadian National Railways, the Canadian Pacific Railway, the British Gov­
ernment and the Bankers’ Association, in the matter of securing and helping 
immigrants.

Messrs. Robb and Price-Green retired.
The Committee adjourned at 1 p.m. until 3.30 p.m. to-day.

The Committee reassembled at 3.30 p.m.

Electrified Lines

Mr. R. A. C. Henry was recalled and indicated the ramifications of elec­
trified lines owned by the. Canadian National Railways after which he was 
questioned.

Sir Henry Thornton made some observations in furtherance of Mr. Henry’s 
remarks.

Mr. Henry retired.
Salaries of Officials

Mr. Stewart (Humboldt) as|ked Sir Henry Thornton for a statement 
respecting Items Nos. 451 and 452, viz. salaries and expenses of general officers 
and of clerks and attendants, the figures against these items seeming to indi­
cate that increases in salaries given to high paid officials were greater pro­
portionately than those given to the lower grades. A satisfactory explanation 
was made.

Law Expenses (Item No. 454) Pensions (Item No. 457) and Insurance 
(Item No. 455) were discussed and explained.

The Committee adjourned at 5.45 p.m. until Monday next, at 11 a.m.
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MINUTES
SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND

SHIPPING

Room 231,,House of Commons,
Monday, June 30, 1924.

The Committee met at 11 a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding. 
Present: Messrs. Drayton, Drummond, Euler, Graham, Jones, Kyte, Milne, 

Stewart (Humboldt), Stork—9.

Canadian National Railways—Annual Report 
Advertising

Sir Henry Thornton reviewed the expenses incurred and commented thereon.

Estimates
The following items were considered:—110—Branch Lines, $97,125; 116— 

Fort Nelson Terminals, Hudson Bay, Revote, $10,000; 137—Loans to Canadian 
National Railway Company, $56,000,000.

Sir Henry Thornton and Messrs. Brown and Henry answered Questions 
On motion of Mr. Kyte,
Resolved, That Item No. 137 be approved.

Printing of Evidence
Discussion took place as to which parts of the evidence taken should be

printed.
Mr. Kyte moved that the evidence respecting the Hotel Scribe, Paris, be

printed.
Mr. Stork moved that the evidence respecting the Hudson Bay Railway 

(Item 116), taken to-day, be printed.
Sir Henry Drayton moved in amendment that all the evidence taken be 

printed.
Hon. Mr. Graham thought the action of the Committee might be miscon­

strued if only parts of the evidence were printed.
Mr. Kyte withdrew his motion.
Mr. Stork withdrew his motion.
Sir Henry Drayton’s motion carried.

Report of the Committee 
On motion of Hon. Mr. Graham,—
Resolved, That the Chairman appoint a sub-committee to confer with 

officials of the Canadian National Railways respecting the drafting of a report 
for presentation to the House, said sub-committee to report back to the Com­
mittee.

Sir Henry Thornton expressed his appreciation for the assistance received 
as a result of the sittings of the Committee. The Chairman reciprocated, 
thanking Sir Henry and his officials for their frankness.

The Committee adjourned at 1 p.m. to meet again at the call of the Chair.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE
Committee Room 268,

House of Commons,
Tuesday, June 17, 1924.

The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping met 
at 11.00 o’clock a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding.

Sir Henry Thornton called, and examined.
By the Chairman:

Q. Sir Henry, what is the amount of the charter No. 157?—A. These are 
what you might call earnings of vessels leasing them for service to others.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. It would be on the Great Lakes?—A. Yes, or for odd trips, or anything 

of that sort, that is not a specific route. That would include the Great Lake 
service.

By the Chairman:
Q. Did that pay? Was that remunerative?------A. Well, it is part of this

larger proposition, and was profitable.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. What other points did these charters go to, Sir Henry?—A. Well, pulp- 
wood from the St. Lawrence points, for instance.

By Mr. Stewart (Humboldt) :
Q. Could you just distinguish, Sir Henry, in your figures of profit and loss 

from the grain trade on the Great Lakes and any other charters?—A. I do not 
believe we can separate those. I have not that with me, but perhaps it could 
be separated.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. That is, separate the pulpwood from the grain trade and the balance 

would be miscellaneous?—A. I can get that in a few minutes, if you will let 
that question stand.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Will you just give again the figures you have just given to us?—A. 

Yes, sir.
Voyages Completed During the Year 

Atlantic
e Voyages

United Kingdom and Continent..................... 514,000 65
West Indies Freight........................................ 68,000 30
West Indies Passenger...................................... 153,000 18
Newfoundland...........................-...................... 40,000 18
Australia............................................................... 91,600 14

Charters
1

145
128,000 157

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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2 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

Pacific
Australia...........................................................  330,000 16
Orient................................................................ 173,000 14
India.................................................................. 73,000 1
Coastal..............................................^.............. 54.600 51

82
By Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. Do those charters include any charters for the carrying of potatoes to 
Prince Edward Island and New Brunswick?—A. No, there was one voyage—

Q. How did you come out on that?—A. I cgnnot tell you offhand.
' By Mr. Harris:

Q. Just take up the first item for a moment. Can you distinguish the 
United Kingdom and the Continent as between the Atlantic portion and the 
Pacific portion?—A. Well, we established a route from Vancouver through the 
Panama Canal late last year largely for grain. That is a route from Van­
couver to Liverpool or United Kingdom points, but none of these voyages were 
completed within the year. While mention is made of •these services, the 
financial result from .these voyages are not included in last year’s report, 
but there is no reason why we could not give you a statement of how these 
voyages worked out, although it is not in last year’s report. Generally speak­
ing, they were pretty satisfactory. I cannot give you the exact figures, but the r" 
service is a service of considerable promise.

Q. Then the 65 voyages are purely Atlantic?—A. Yes.
Q. How many of them went from Montreal, how many from Quebec and 

how many from Halifax?—A. There are two classes of services; in the services 
to the United Kingdom there were services to London, Antwerp, and to Cardiff 
and Swansea and to Liverpool. These were the three. Now, I cannot tell you 
offhand the segregation of each one of those services, but if a mt it we 
can get it.

Q. Where did they originate? Montreal?—A. Well, I suppose most of 
them did originate in Montreal. Of course, it was Montreal in the summer, 
although some called at Quebec and some at St. Johns and Halifax. I have 
not that data with me, but it can be obtained

Q. Generally speaking, it was Montreal when the season was opened?—A. 
Yes, that is right.

Q. There is no real change in the policy of the Canadian Merchant Marine 
to try to make full cargoes in Quebec?—A. Try to make full cargoes?

Q. Yes?—A. We try to make a full cargo from any place. Any place 
we can get one, it is profitable to do it. I do not think there has been any 
effort to single out any particular port and force a full cargo from that port. 
We have taken traffic where we could find it, and if, of course, we could get ' 
a full cargo from any particular port, that would be the thing we would go 
after, because that is obviously the. most profitable.

Q. Then the calls at Quebec would not be very profitable?—A. No, you 
lose a certain amount of time, you know, and it would not be very profitable, 
no.

Q. Practically every one of these voyages in the summer had to come to 
Montreal to get the cargo?—A. That is the ultimate port, yes.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. I think Mr. Harris and I are perhaps thinking along the same line. Is an 

effort being made or wmuld it be successful, or has it been tried, to bring cattle 
directly from the west to Quebec and ship them from there instead of from

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING 3

Montreal?—A. That, of course, is a very profitable proposition and one which 
enables us to put more traffic on the Transcontinental, where it is badly needed, 
and gives us a full cargo from Quebec.

By the Chairman:
Q. Could you carry wheat in the same way in the winter months?— 

A. There were four sets of voyages of cattle from Quebec,
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. I wonder if we could get an analysis of those voyages?—A. A financial
aspect?

Q. Yes?—A. Yes.
By Mr. Stewart (Humboldt) :

Q. You were speaking of full cargoes?—A. You cannot load the space up 
entirely with cattle, because the boat fittings do not permit, but all the cattle­
carrying space available on these vessels was filled with cattle, and then there 
was other cargo put in the ship at points where you could not put cattle.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Do I understand that these four vessels loaded their full cargo at 

Quebec, and did not go to Montreal?—A. They went to Montreal and picked 
up a general cargo, and then picked up a cattle cargo at Quebec.

Q. That would not be a very profitable business?—A. You cannot answer 
that question by saying it would not be profitable. I think, taking it as a 
whole, and considering the interest of the railway and the interest of the 
Merchant Marine, it would be a desirable thing to do.

By Mr. Stewart (Humboldt) :
Q. You would say, Sir Henry, that it would be more profitable if the 

cargo of cattle could be obtained at Quebec?—A. Obviously. You do not 
want to travel any more miles with your ship than you have to, and you want 
to get as much of your cargo at one spot as you can. If you can get a full 
cargo at one port it is the thing to do.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Would your records show how many cargoes of cattle were loaded at

Montreal?—A. Six.
By Mr. Stork:

Q. What is the last shipment of cattle from Quebec to England?—A. That 
was in October.

By Mr. Stewart (Humboldt) :
Q. What cargo can the Merchant Marine vessels carry besides cattle?— 

A. Grain, lumber, grain-products, automobiles and accessories, dairy products, 
hay, iron and steel, bricks, slag, sand—practically anything.

By the Chairman:
Q. Do you carry any grain from Quebec which comes via the National to 

Quebec?—A. For the United Kingdom?
Q. Yes?—A. No, not from Quebec, we do not. Grain that we carry comes

entirely from Montreal.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. I think it would save discussion if you prepared a financial return
.from these cattle voyages----- A. If I might make a suggestion; what you
would probably like to do is to pick out a typical voyage with respect to cattle, 
or with respect to grain, or something of that sort?

81695— H
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Q. But suppose we had these four from Quebec?—A. If you would not 
mind limiting your requests, as far as possible, to those for specific informa­
tion in regard to typical cases, it will simplify the work a great deal. What 
you want to particularly know is how this cattle proposition works out ?

Q Yes?—A. We can take these four voyages from Quebec and give you 
the consist of the vessels, the number of head of cattle and other commodities, 
the gross revenue for each one of these commodities, and the operating expenses 
for each voyage, and depreciation and capital charge, and anything of that 
sort, so you can see how that particular voyage relative to cattle works out, 
and that will be an important thing, because you cannot load your vessel 
entirely with cattle ; you have to fill in with other commodities, and that would 
give you a pretty good idea of how the cattle proposition works out, although, 
in general, I can tell you the expense of handling cattle per head on the voyage.

Q. What would your average be—
By Mr. Harris:

Q. Before you reach that point there is one important thing in that 
summary. Is it possible to also give us the point of origin of thé different 
commodities? For instance, you mentioned hay—?—A. I think I could.

Q. Not necessarily the exact point, but approximately ; say, Central Quebec ? 
—A. I think we could as regards the grain and cattle, but there might be some 
miscellaneous shipments that would not be worth while hunting down. You 
might get a package from Hamilton, or one from Toronto, which would not 
amount to anything.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. You could pick out a voyage where the cargo consisted very largely 

of grain and cattle—the two combined—and give us some figures on that?— 
A. I think these voyages we are talking about will do that.

Q. If there is one, it will be satisfactory—if there is one where the balance 
of the cargo over cattle is grain, it would be satisfactory?—A. In other words, 
you would like a voyage in which, say, 75 per cent of the cargo was cattle and 
grain?

Q. Were the full complement of cattle?—A. These voyages were all with 
a full complement of cattle.

Q. And as large a percentage of grain as you ever carried?—A. It may be 
that it will work out—that one or more of these voyages will work out and 
give you what you want, but if we have not got it, we cannot produce it; if we 
have not a voyage in which there is a large amount of grain plus the cattle, we 
cannot get it, but these were the only voyages made of that character, and 
we ought to be able to reveal the information you want.

Q. You mean there were only voyages from Montreal in which a full 
complement of cattle—A. I think there were six.

Q. I think it more probable that the grain complement would be added 
at Montreal rather than at Quebec?—A. Yes. Let us investigate these four 
voyages from Quebec and the six from Montreal. That will surely give you 
what you want, because there is not anything else.

By Mr. Jelliff:
Q. In that statement you indicate the cost of fitting the vessel for carry­

ing cattle, Sir Henry?—A. Yes—
Q. I understand that is quite an item of expense?—A. This, perhaps, will 

interest you. I think I have got that. I can give you the total cost of handling 
cattle. I think you will find this interesting. The following statement 
indicates what it costs to carry cattle. Erection of fittings; that is, you have 
to'put in special fittings for handling cattle; you have to have a turkish bath

(Sir Henry Thornton.)
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and manicures and things of that kind according to the various boards of 
Agriculture, so you have to have special fittings. That amounts to $7,000 per 
ship.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Is that a permanent fitting?—A. No, it is permanent as long as it lasts, 

but it is not an integral part of the ship.
Q. You will likely use it for more than one voyage?—A. Yes. It costs 

$7,000, and if you capitalize that at b\ per cent interest, that amounts to $385, 
and we had six voyages with this particular ship, which brings it down to 
$64 per voyage for that item. We assume the fittings would last ten years 
unless removed or destroyed, and it works down to $117 per voyage. Then 
there are certain small repairs which have to be made from time to time to 
the fittings, and that runs about $50. Part of the fittings might be carried 
away by heavy seas, and have to be renewed. Then we are obliged to provide 
cattie attendants, victualling, and so forth ; we have one veterinary, and a 
foreman and nine men. That works down to $330 per voyage. Then there 
are certain losses to equipment, dishes and so forth, which are used for the 
attendants. That is a small item ; only $25 per voyage. On the average it 
costs $325 to load the cattle per voyage—

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Does that include the unloading?—A. No, that is only the loading. 

There is an extra expense incurred in discharging cattle at Cardiff, that is, 
pilotage, dock dues, towage, boating, cleaning ship and things of that sort, 
which works down to $427 per voyage. T will give you the details of that—

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. With regard to that loading charge; at Montreal I understand there is 

a double loading; you have to load into the cars, unload the cars at the docks, 
and reload into the vessel?—A. That includes everything in the way of loading. 
At Cardiff and United Kingdom ports it takes about a day to disinfect and 
clean out a ship after arrival, therefore you have to wait after you discharge 
the cargo. That is an additional $400. Then, we have to carry cattle feed, 
which comes to about 10,000 cubic feet. This means there is that much cargo 
space which is not occupied for cargo, and upon which there is no charge. If 
we did not use that cargo space for that purpose we could use it for other 
cargo, so you have to charge up the loss against that, which is $700 per voyage. 
This is an interesting point, If we did not carry cattle on these ships we could 
use that space for more remunerative traffic, traffic which would pay us more 
than the cattle; therefore, we are justified in charging against the cost of 
carrying the cattle, the loss of revenue which we would receive had we handled 
more remunerative traffic. That comes to $1,485 net loss per cargo.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Would lumber be more remunerative?—A. The average rate we would 

get would be $8 per ton for general cargo as compiCred with the revenue from 
cattle, which is considerably less.

By the Chairman:
Q. You have no difficulty, have you, in securing a more remunerative 

business?—A. No. I was doubtful about that myself. When I examined this 
1 thought at first it would not be fair to include this item precisely as it is put 
down there, but on going into the matter, I found that without doubt the same 
space would invariably have been occupied by traffic cargo which would have 
paid us at the rate of $8 per ton, and be a more remunerative cargo because 
it would not have to be fed. and attended and looked after on the way over.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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That is really a large item of expense in handling cattle. When you put a 
general cargo shipment aboard a boat it is there, and you do not have to bother 
about it until you get to its destination, but when you have cattle, they require 
constant attention all. the way over; they have to be fed and watered, and, if 
sick, have to be cared for, and all that- sort of thing.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. What is the general cost of loading and unloading a general cargo as 

against a cattle cargo?—A. Well, it is somewhat more expensive, because a 
steer has his own means of propulsion.

Q. Is there any credit in that statement on that score?—A. We have 
made a credit of $875.

By the Chairman:
Q. Why not carry the more remunerative cargo?—A. The answer is this; 

if you are in the transportation business you cannot refuse to handle certain 
classes of traffic. In other ' words, a transportation company, whether it be a 
steamship company or a railway company, cannot entirely pick and choose 
the most remunerative traffic. You perform a general transportation service, 
and while, within certain limitations, you may be able to pick and choose with 
respect to the remunerative qualities of the traffic, you have got to take more 
or less what comes.

Q. You have to give a service to everbody?—A. YTes. It is like a man 
running a department store. You go in there and expect to buy pins and are 
irritated and annoyed if you do not get pins. Maybe he does not make a penny 
on pins, but he has to carry pins in his stock for the benefit of his clientele, 
and what he loses on pins he makes up on silks and neckties and things of that 
sort, so you cannot entirely choose the most remunerative traffic and reject 
the other, particularly in our case in handling a traffic like cattle which is so 
important, not only to the western farmers, but also to the Dominion as a 
whole. We cannot refuse to handle that traffic in preference to some more 
remunerative traffic.

Q. You take all that is offered—A. Well, substantially so. Of course, on 
the other hand, you have to consider this. Our ships are not particularly well 
adapted for the handling of cattle ; they were not built for that purpose. This 
is not in criticism of the ships, but when they were built the traffic was not 
anticipated. Probably, if we were going to build new ships which would be 
exclusively used for the handling of cattle, we could build a more profitable 
ship, a ship that would enable us to carry more cattle at less expense, and 
handle it better.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. For example, the Atlantic Transport makes more money on their cattle 

than we do?—A. I suppose they do. A very outstanding example of special 
types of ships for special cargoes is in the carrying of coal on the Great Lakes. 
They are specially designed for the purpose, and nowhere in the world is such 
a large tonnage handled, loaded and discharged, at such low cost, than is coal 
on the Great Lakes. It is almost phenomenal what can be done.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Is it not a fact that cattle can be loaded at Quebec easier than at 

Montreal?—A. There is practically no difference.
Q. Perhaps you can amplify that a little. As I understand it. cattle have 

to be loaded on to cars at Montreal and then reloaded again—a double handling; 
whereas, in Quebec we know the car is put right alongside of the loading dock'' 
—A. That is a detail, and I would not care to take the responsibility for 
answering that. Perhaps Mr. Doherty can answer that better than I can

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. J. P. Doherty: In saying that Quebec and Montreal are practically 
the same, I am speaking solely from the steamship standpoint, where the cattle 
are delivered alongside the steamer. If you take into consideration the reload­
ing at the stockyards in Point St. Charles, and the switching to the railroad 
and discharging again, the cost -is more.

Mr. Stewart: I was asking if that transfer is charged in this $325?
Mr. Doherty: I think Sir Henry was speaking from the steamship angle 

of the situation only, and did not have in mind the operation of the railway to 
bring these cattle on to the docks at Montreal.

Mr. Stewart: You think his answer should be modified?
The Witness: It depends on what you mean by “ loading.” If you mean 

simply the operation of putting the cattle aboard from the dock, it is one 
thing, but if you mean getting the cattle from the stockyards on to the ship, 
that is another thing.

By Mr. Forrester:
Q. The charge is lower from the cattle yard to the dock?—A. I was draw­

ing a sharp line of demarkation right at the dock. I did not mean to lead you 
astray.

Sir Henry Drayton : You were dealing with steamships, of course.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. With regard to this cargo which you say could be placed in the space 
occupied by cattle; do you mean that is a loss to the Merchant Marine, or is 
all that is offered carried by another boat?—A. What I mean to say is this: 
If the cattle were not carried on a particular vessel, that space would be used 
and could be used for a more remunerative traffic. Have I made that clear.

Q. That does not quite answer the question. Do you sacrifice that cargo 
or carry it in another vessel?—A. That I think is asking me to go rather far 
afield. We might lose on account of carrying cattle, let us say, a certain number 
of tons of more remunerative traffic. I cannot answer as to whether that would 
move in some other vessel, or whether it would not.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. It would depend whether the owner wanted to get it across or not?:—A. 

I suppose so.
Q. If he were altruistic enough and wanted to keep everything for the 

Merchant Marine, he would hold it—A. The chances are he would.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. The point is, if it goes to some other vessel you do not lose the profit— 
A. In the aggregate you are right in that, but the only way I could answer your 
question is by saying that we lose that much cargo.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. You have to take each ship by itself?—A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Stork:
Q. When did the last cargo of cattle leave Quebec?—A. Last October.
Q. What is the reason the shipments have been discontinued?—A. They 

were discontinued during the winter time on account of navigation being closed. 
We have resumed now. There has been one shipment this spring.

Q. The Quebec people expected a great deal from that service. There was 
a large parliamentary delegation went down about a year ago to attend the 
loading of the first ship. They were interested because it meant traffic for our

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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own ships and for our own railway?-—A. From the railway point of view that 
is useful traffic, because it provides tonnage at points where we need it, that 
is to say, the Transcontinental from Winnipeg to Quebec. That is sparse in 
traffic, and it ,is a part of the railroad upon which I would like to build up 
traffic x

Q. Is the cattle disease which has been prevalent in England, a cause of the 
interruption of the shipment of cattle from Canada to the Old Country ?—A. 
I suppose to a certain extent, it was.

Hon. Mr. Graham : It closed some of the ports last year. '
The Witness: I think all of the ports were closed for a time, excepting 

Dundee.
By Mr. Harris:

Q. One further question in regard to these fittings. You mentioned $7,000 
being the capital required to pay for fitting up a vessel?—A. Yes.

Q. Did that include the whole cost of changing them into vessels suitable 
for carrying cattle?—A. That includes the entire amount of money which we 
had to spend on the ships to make them suitable and available for handling 
cattle.

By the Chairman:
Q, You mean $7,000 capitalized?—A. No, it cost $7,000 per ship. We 

charged an item into our expenses of 54 per cent per annum on $7,000.
Q. That is the capital charge?—A. The capital charge if $7,000 but only 

5-j. per cent per annum enters into the item.
The Chairman : I think Mr. Harris was under the impression that $7,000 

was the interest—
Mr. Harris: No, Mr. Chairman—
Sir Henry Drayton : No, that is the capital amount.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. You made a depreciation over 10 years?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Milne:
Q. It is generally thought by the public that the cattle carried on the upper 

deck is using space that would not be used in any other way. That is not 
right, is it?—A. In preparing this statement we only charged against this cattle 
proposition that part of the spqce which would be available for other cargo. I 
do not know how much of that—

Mr. Doherty : Just the under-decks.
By Mr. Jelliff:

Q. What do you do with the fittings on the return trip? Do you have to 
tear out any of this stuff?—A. No.

Q. That does not cause you any additional expense?—A. No. Now, to go 
on with these various items of expense. Simmered down it amounts to this • 
it makes the cost of carriage per head $17.48. and the revenue per head at thé 
present rate is $20, leaving a profit to the company of $2.52 per head.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Does that include all the items you have mentioned?—A. Yes.
Q. And does that include a fair proportion of the fuel and other expenses 

of the voyage?—A. No, it is the bare cost of handling the cattle. We have 
not charged anything for operating the ships against these cattle. Perhaps wc
should.

[Sir Henry Thornton.)
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It really puts itself in this position, that the difference between I17.4S 
and $20 will apply on the general cost of running the boat?—A\That is it.

Q. And you find out afterwards whether you have made a profit or a loss? 
—A. It does not require a very wide flight of the imagination to see what 
happens, especially if you charged in interest on the cost of the vessel. While 
I do not want anything that I say to be misinterpreted as an effort in the 
direction of propaganda for increasing cattle receipts, at^the same time, gener­
ally speaking, $20 per head on cattle to the United Kingdom is not considered 
a high charge in the shipping world.

Q. Have you any idea, Sir Henry, what it would really mean if we had 
boats of the type of the Atlantic Transport—special cattle boats?—A. I cannot 
say.

Q. That has been one of the most remunerative lines of the International? 
—A. I think the best way to get at that would be to see if we could not get 
their figures.

Q. Whgt do they carry cattle for?—A. The rate has been practically the 
same as ours during the past-year. There has been one or two instances where 
lower rates have been taken in times of stress, but the rate has usually been 
the same as our own—$20.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. What is the tonnage of these vessels of this cattle transport?—A. 8,400 

tons, and those would be the only ones that would be at all suitable for this class 
of traffic.

By Mr. Forrester:
Q. How many 4iead of cattle do you carry on a boat?—A. 233.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I suppose that type of boat is the most successful in the cattle trade? 

—A. I think there is no doubt about that.
Q. This runs from 13,000 to 15,000 tons?—A. I don’t think they are going 

over that. You see, there is not much difference between water transport and 
rail transport. The maximum of economy in rail transport comek when you 
have the maximum number df tons of revenue freight behind a locomotive; 
the maximum economy in ocean transport comes when you have the maximum 
of cargo per horse power of engine capacity. It is a simple problem of filling 
your vehicle to its maximum. Your maximum economy in passenger traffic 
comes when you fill the train.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Have you finished on the cattle business?—A. Yes.
Q. Well, while we are on that, I may say that Mr. Sales brmlght up in the 

House the question ef chilled meat. What position is the company in with 
respect to chilled meat?

Mr. Doherty: We have, at the present time, in the United Kingdom 
service four steamers fitted with refrigerators capable of carrying approximately 
10,500 cubic feet of cargo, and we would be in a position to carry chilled meat 
just as we are in a position to carry frozen meat or cool-air meats if chilled beef 
should be offered to us for transportation.

Sir Henry Drayton : How frequent service could you give?
Mr. Doherty : We have two steamers in the London service, which would 

make one sailing each month, at the present time.
Sir Henry Drayton : What would it really mean if you were asked to give 

a weekly service for chilled meat? What extra equipment would you have to 
have?

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. Doherty: It would require the transfer of two additional refrigerated 
steamers to the London route, and the withdrawal of them from other routes, 
to which they have been allotted.

The Witness: What two are they?
Mr. Doherty : Two in the Cardiff and Swansea service, and two in the 

Australasian trade.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Are they profitable now?—A. At times we get reasonable cargoes, and at 
other times we do not.

Q. What is the rate?—A. The rate would be quoted in cents per cwt., $1.50 
or lie. per pound.

Q. $1.50?—A. Per cwt.
Q. IIow would that work out in relation to the rate on the live animal? 

How docs it compare? What does the average beast weigh dressed?—A. I am 
afraid I am not sufficiently experienced— >J13j

Q. Well, take one weighing about 700 pounds, that would be the average 
beast. What did you say the rate was?—A. $1.50 per cwt.

Q. That would be'a rate of $10.50?—A. Yes.
Q. So that you would get over practically two carcasses for the cost of one 

steer?- A That is correct.
Q. On the other hand, it is also proven that your rate of $1.50 would be far 

more remunerative to you than your present rate on live stock?—A. T don’t 
think there is any doubt but what chilled beef would be more remunerative 
traffic than cattle on the hoof, for the reason you lose a good deal of space—

Q. Put it another way. That rate of $1.50 per 100 pounds is almost the 
maximum rate—that $10.50 for a 700-pound carcass?—A. What do you mean 
by the maximum rate, Sir Henry?

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That would be highly remunerative freight traffic?—A. It would be 

very good.
Q. Highly remunerative?—A. No, I would not cause the thought to be out­

standing in your mind, because we are getting to-day for frozen boxed meats, 
which would stow 33-J per cent more in our chambers, $1.15 per 10Ù pounds.

Q. Against $1.50?—A. That is true. But we can carry about 50 tons more 
frozen boxes than we could chilled carcasses in the same place.

Q. A larger tonnage?—A. We will say 100 tons chilled against 150 frozen.
Q. You would have 50 per cent better loading capacity?—A. It makes the 

rate for either commodity practically the same.
Q. Can you compare that rate with lumber—A. Oh, there is no com­

parison with lumber.
(.). Meat is more profitable?—A. Without question. •
Q. So, if this chilled meat business at the present rate—if you could get 

enough of it, it would be highly remunerative freight?—A. Without question, if 
moving in large quantities.

Q. Then you could decrease the rate?—A. No, 1 would rather think we 
would increase the refrigerating capacity. There you get into a question of 
policy and a question of economics. There is no rule I have ever discovered, 
or no formula for determining any freight rate other than how much the traffic 
will bear.

Q. No, it is not quite that?—A. Well, it is pretty much that. What really 
determines the rate, is what you can get for it.

Q. What you can make the other fellow pay, and then it is not what you 
make them pay, but what the North Atlantic Conferencè makes them pay?

(ISir Henry Thornton.]
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—A. No. In determining what you are going to make the other fellow pay, 
you have to take into consideration his condition. It would be folly to charge 
a rate which would seriously interfere with the development of his business 
Sometime you make an almost unremunerative rate for what is called “Infant 
industries.”

Q. Do you look on this chilled meat industry as an “infant industry?”
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. Have you any figures of what you actually carried in chilled meats last 
year?

Mr. Doherty : No.
Sir Henry Drayton : None whatever.
Mr. Doherty: None whatever.
Sir Henry Drayton: Have the United States a monopoly on that?
Mr. Doherty : As far as I know there is very little going from the North 

American Continent. I think they arc running it more in frozen carcasses.
Mr. Stewart : This space you are quoting on at this rate is sufficient to 

carry it without crowding? I have understood that is an important condition— 
it must not be packed or crowded?

Mr. Doherty: It would be hung.
The Witness: Here is something that may interest you. With the ex­

ception of 568 quarters for Canada, the whole of the chilled beef for Great 
Britain was imported from the Argentine, Brazil gnd Uruguay. The value of 
the contributions to Great Britain were £30,000,000 and represent more than 40 
per cent of the, total importations for the year, and Canada, supplied a very 
small part, almost a negligible part in the contributions of chilled meats to the 
United Kingdom.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Our chief competitors would be the Argentine and Brazil? What is the 

distance in miles from the Argentine to London?—A. I should say roughly 
about 6,000 miles.

Mr. Doherty: The fast steamers are making the voyage in approximately 
30 to 35 days.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Is that Argentine or Brazil?-—A. That is Buenos Ayres.
Q. That is a trip of 35 days against a trip of about eight days?
Mr. Doherty: Yes, approximately.
Sir Henry Drayton : Do you have eight as against thirty-five?
Mr. Doherty : Yes.
Mr. Forrester: Is that 35 days for the round trip?
Mr. Doherty : No, one way.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. So we have that geographical advantage in connection with a large 

business which we know is carried on profitably, by the farmers of this country ? 
We have a geographical advantage of eight to 32, to cut it down a little bit. That 
means we should occupy a position of very great advantage so far as transport 
is concerned?—A. Yes.

Mr. Kyte: What is the relative railway haul?
Sir Henry Drayton : Let us get one thing at a time.
Mr. Stewart: Where are you getting this “eight” from?

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Sir Henry Drayton : I am speaking of boats properly equipped.
The Witness: Sir Henry is taking a hypothetical service.
Sir Henry Drayton : I am taking the same boats they have in Brazil. 

You cannot do business without the proper tools to do business with.
The Witness: You cannot putt with a brassie.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I have known some people to try it.
Sir Henry Drayton : What rate would it take from Buenos Ayres?
Mr. Doherty : I don’t know that.
Sir Henry Drayton : Could you find that out?
Mr. Doherty: I don't know if we could find that out.
The Witness: I think I could find that out.
Sir Henry Drayton: You might also find out the particulars as to the 

class of boats.
By Mr. Milne:

Q. I think the statement was made that you could not ship chilled meat 
from the Argentine, that what is called chilled, is really frozen?—A. Chilled. 
I should think you could ship chilled beef from any place to any place, as 
long as you kept it chilled; it would not deteriorate.

Sir Henry Drayton : I have a fancy that some was frozen—
Mr. Stewart: Our information is that what is called chilled is actually 

frozen.
The Witness: In whatever way it is handled whether it is chilled or 

frozen would depend upon the character of the vessel—
Mr. Stew’Rt: If it is frozen, the space required would be much less 

than if chilled. Chilled meat has to be given lots of room so it wHl not be 
pressed.

Hon. Mr. Graham : What is the difference?
The Witnesss This (indicating) would seem to throw a little light on it:—

“ The importations into Great Britain for 1923 consisted of 4*600,000 
quarters of chilled beef and 2,637,000 quarters of frozen beef, and with 
the exception of 568 quarters from Canada the whole of the chilled beef 
was imported from the Argentine, Brazil and Uruguay.”

That would indicate that chilled beef was shipped from South America to 
the United Kingdom.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Has anybody in Canada seriously tried to do business 
in importing chilled meat?

Sir Henry Drayton : Yes; the experiment was made by one of the Toronto 
packers. He lost money on it because he did not keep it up long enough ; he 
did not get the market. He had to sell practically at frozen meat prices, and as 
it is more expensive to handle chilled meat than frozen meat he could not 
continue doing business in that way. He could not get the Old Country 
butchers educated. The only possible way to make a success is to stay in the 
market, and have very, very regular shipments.

Hon. Mr. Graham: I think New Zealand has its own distributors in Great 
Britain—its own stores.

Sir Henry Drayton: Both New Zealand and Australia.
Hon. Mr. Graham: They tell me they not only sent their own meat, but 

their own people to sell it.

ftSir Henry Thornton. 1
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Sir Henry Drayton : They opened up a couple of retail stores for the 
purpose of getting the English people into the habit of knowing what they had, 
and knowing they could get it regularly.

The Witness: What they tried to do—and I happened to be there more 
or less at the time, so I know something about it—was to try to educate the 
English people to eat chilled or frozen beef as compared with the home-grown 
article, and it was a terribly hard business. I think the War taught them a 
great deal. I will tell you what I found in buying meats for our hotels on 
the Great Eastern Railway. We bought Armour’s chilled and frozen meat at 
materially less prices than the home-grown article; so much so, that as a 
measure of economy I abandoned the use of the home-grown article and bought 
the chilled .article. There were certain individuals—among others, my old 
Chairman—who said they could tell the difference between home-grown beef 
and chilled beef, but I don't believe they could. I doubt if anyone could, 
but there was considerable reluctance on the part of the population of the 
United Kingdom to use chilled and frozen meat as compared with their, home­
grown article.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. There is a marked distinction between chilled and frozen beef—A. I 

am referring to the way it tastes to the palate. I cannot tell the difference. I 
take it that what we are really shooting at is that if proper facilities wenei 
provided and we addressed ourselves to the effort of properly transporting chilled 
or frozen meats from Canada to the United Kingdom, we could develop an 
industry profitable to the people of Canada.

Hon. Mr. Graham: And also for the Merchant Marine?
The Witness: It is the same thing. It affects the people of Canada either 

way. They can pay money for the deficits in the form of taxes, or give us a 
remunerative rate. I think the sensible thing to do in any traffic is to allow the 
transportation instrument a reasonable profit, so it can stand on its own feet.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. On the other hand you do not want to take out the Treasury of Canada 

a sum to help reduce the deficit?—A. When you get to that point, the thing) 
is probably no more important in point of view, because you can do it in two 
ways; you can make the people of Canada pay more taxes to make up the 
deficit, or allow the Merchant Marine or railways a reasonable profit, it ought 
to be possible to avoid both of these difficulties, if there is anything in this 
proposition to develop the transportation instrumentality which will stand on 
its own feet, and at the same time enable the raiser of cattle and makers of 
chilled beef to make a reasonable profit as well. That is the objective we want 
to reach. We do not want to “soak” either one.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. We want that business to grow. We do not want to rolj anybody. I 

am sure a very much lower rate could be put in if we had the volume.—A. What 
the transportation companies could do as the volume of business increased, or 
the profits mounted—

Q. The first thing would be a commodity rate?
By Hon. Mr. Graham,:

Q. Both ends would be to start small.—A. You have to pay certain estab­
lishing expenses to get a thing going.

Sir Henry Drayton : Mr. Kyte wanted some information—
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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By Mr. Kyte:
Q. HoW far does that chilled meat have to be hauled to points of shipment in 

the Argentine—how much farther than in Canada?—A. I have not looked it 
up lately, but there lingers in my mind a suspicion, having looked it up once, 
that the rail haul on dressed beef in the Argentine, the haul of the raw material, 
or the rail charge which enters into it, either directly or indirectly, would be less 
in the Argentine, than in Canada.

By Mr. Milne:
Q. Alive or dead?—A. You would have to take it both ways, because it 

must be hauled alive, before it can be hauled dead.
Sir Henry Drayton : It is my recollection that as agairfst the average haul 

in this country, or probably 2,400 miles, there would be the haul in South 
America of probably not more than 800 miles.

The Witness : I think probably that is about right.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is a misty recollection. On the other hand, the 

mileage rate on the railroads is very much less here than it is there.
The Witness: That is true, and as evidence of that, the Argentine railways 

have paid quite handsomely.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. The Canadian farmer could export a greater mileage at the same rate? 
—A. The same rate in Canada would carry him much further inland.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Is it possible for these 8,400 ton freighters to go to the Great Lakes?— 

A. No, they cannot go through the locks.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. To me transit being an important factor in this chilled meat trade, it 
would seem in our Merchant Marine at the present time we have not the number 
of vessels which would really compete?—A. I should say, generally, we have no 
really first-class implements in thcjvay of vessels for handling a business of this 
character. We have something, but it is not like the Transport Company.

Q. Bearing in mind the 35 days from Buenos Ayres to London, of which 
you spoke, how many days would it take our boats fitted for this service, to 
go from here?

Mr. Doherty : From 12 to 14 days,
Sir Henry Drayton : So even with a slow boat we have a considerable 

advantage in time.
The Witness: Excepting this: only a percentage of our boats are equipped 

for this character of service, while the vessels which ply this trade regularly 
are fully refrigerated. I doubt whether the question of speed makes a lot 
of difference.

Sir Henry Drayton : I think it does. It is very important in chilled 
meat; not in frozen, but in chilled it is important. The thing to do with chilled 
meat, Sir Henry, is to try to get your product to the English butcher in the 
same condition, as nearly as possible, with his own meats. You know, in 
England they hang their beef for a pretty long time. The reason they do that 
is because they like it tender, and they have not a very great fluctuation in 
temperature, and that means you cannot have the meat too cold_

The Witness: I presume that is so.
Sir Henry Drayton: I presume, Mr. Chairman, if we can get something 

worked out in connection with the chilled meat, we would be doing more to
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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put the farmers on their feet in this country than anything else, and the 
addition of one or two boats, or three or four boats, with a real effort to see 
that chilled meat service is continuously available right from the farmers’ 
nearest shipping point—

The Witness: You will have to bring the packers into that too. The 
farmer produces the raw material, and the packer is really the manufacturer.

Sir Henry Drayton : They would be glad to come into that.
The Witness: Does it not come down to this? We have gotten on the 

scent of something that has an economic aspect in its relation to the western 
farmer, in this chilled and frozen meat proposition. That involves rail trans­
port and ocean transport, production on this side, marketing on the other 
side, and a whole lot of things. Would it be worth while to help to crystallize any 
conclusions which this Committee may express, if we undertook at once an 
economic study of the thing, not only from the steamship point of view, but 
from the point of view of considering competition, markets, etc., because it is 
quite possible this Committee may wish to make some very definite recom­
mendations with respect to policy, and I ,do not see how you can do that unless 
some one makes an economic study of the whole position, probably the various 
points which have been touched upofl here.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Transportation would, of course, be a great factor 
insofar as an investigation of the trade is concerned. Do you not think that 
between the Agricultural Committee and the Department of Trade and Com­
merce, they ought to work that out?

Sir Henry Drayton: I would like to see something done. I believe in 
having all your eggs together, in a thing like this, and I think any proper 
traffic man ought to know everything about every business in the country. 
I think that can be done.

The Witness: I do not want to be so imprudent as to suggest to this 
Committee what they should do or should not do. It was simply a suggestion 
to let me assist you in arriving at some conclusion.

Sir Henry Drayton : My idea is that you can do it very easily.
By the Chairman:

Q. Sir Henry, would that imply that if you find it advisable to assist 
the western farmer in the chilled meat business, you would have to construct 
new vessels for that purpose?—A. I think—

Sir Henry Drayton : I don’t think you could .say that at all, because you 
have a movement already of 14 days against 35.

The Witness: I am only expressing a suspicion.
Sir Henry Drayton : You are certainly getting a rate whicji is remunera­

tive, with small exceptions.
The Witness: There is no use discussing a transportation subject if there 

are to be external influences which would kill it.
Sir Henry Drayton : We have the Government control, and it should be 

an easy thing to put in a system which would assure our handling this traffic.
The Witness: We would look at it from two points of view; what could 

be done with what we have, and what more could we do with something 
additional.

Hon. Mr. Graham : And what would it cost to transfer what we have 
into something more adaptable?

The Witness: I think the West India field is the best field we have got.
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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By the Chairman:
Q. I notice that practically all of your long distance voyages result in 

losses—A. That is generally explained by the fact that on the long-distance 
hauls we do not get full tonnage both ways ; we get it outbound or inbound, 
but not both ways. i ' £

Q. Why are these nine vessels laid up at Halifax and six at Montreal? 
—A. Those "are the small vessels, for which we have no traffic. We have sent 
some of these vessels up to the Lakes.

Hon. Mr. Graham : I think the Committee would like to know if there 
was some way we could serve the public by utilizing these small boats. Even 
if we did not make any profit, if we kept even, we would be giving a service 
to the public, and would be performing a function which we are not doing now.

The Witness: We have done the best we could with these small boats, 
but they are not fundamentally profitable boats.

By the Chairman:
Q. Do they entail a heavy waste when they are tied up?—A. No; except 

to keep them in condition.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. How large a crew do you have to leave on them?—A. Only a watchman.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I was going to suggest that we are getting along to 

a time when we are trying to do business as rapidly as possible. We have had 
a very instructive open discussion this morning. I have learned a lot of things 
this morning, as I think we all have. If you do not mind, I would suggest we 
meet just as quickly as possible. We do not want to keep Sir Henry here 
when his time is so valuable, and he ought to be out doing our business.

The witness retired.
The Committee adjourned.

Committee Room 231,
House of Commons,

Wednesday, June 18, 1924.
The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping met 

at 10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. Euler, the Chairman, presiding.
The Chairman : Gentlemen, we have a quorum. I presume we will con­

tinue with the evidence of Sir Henry Thornton, which was commenced yester­
day.

Sir Henry Thornton, recalled.
By the Chairman:

Q. I presume that when you refer questions to Mr. Doherty, his answers 
are to the same effect as if coming from you?—A. Yes, that is right. Mr. 
Doherty is connected with the Marine Department and probably knows more 
about some of these things than I do.

Hon. Mr. Graham : I think it is only fair to say that Mr. Teakle. the 
Manager, is in Europe or he would have been here.

The Witness: Yes. We had to send him to Europe to look after some 
shipping matters there of considerable importance. That is the reason he is not. 
here.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. Chairman: I think perhaps the first thing the Committee would like 
to have me do would he to answer the questions which were asked yesterday 
for particular information on certain subjects. The Committee will remember 
that yesterday it was requested that statements showing the results of voyages 
of the steamers carrying cattle from Montreal and Quebec for the season of 
1923, be furnished, showing the total earnings and expenses, earnings from 
cattle and other principal commodities separately, and earnings on basis of cargo 
consisting of grain and cattle alone; secondly, statement showing details of 
receipts from and estimated out-of-pocket costs chargeable to handling of cattle 
based upon capacity of 233 head; third, results of operation of steamers carry­
ing grain on Great Lakes and pulpwood from gulf ports; fourth, ocean rates on 
chilled beef 1923, Argentine to United Kingdom, including the type of vessel in 
the trade, speed of vessel, average rail raul in Argentine to ports of export, rail 
rates, and comparative data for Canada. This information is only available 
in parts; fifth, number of Merchant Marine personnel, and, lastly, a descrip­
tion of the West Indian trade.

Now, taking the first one. This is a statement showing the result of a 
voyage of a steamer carrying cattle from Montreal for the season of 1923. 
Voyage-No. 14, steamship “ Commander,” sailing July 27th—

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Have you any copies of that statement?—A. No, but we would be glad 

to furnish them.
Hon. Mr. Graham: The Committee should have a full copy.
The Witness: I might say that our time was pretty short to get these up, 

and it necessitated telephoning to Montreal, and scratching about considerably.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Will not a copy of the proceedings contain this state­

ment?
The Witness: I will give the copy of this to the reporter, who will dupli­

cate it, and that will give you what you want.
Hon. Mr. Graham: I think we should have it done. We ought to have 

copies of this.
The Chairman : There are only three copies of yesterday’s proceedings 

here this morning. I wall direct the reporter to get out additional copies, one 
for each member of the Committee —

Hon. Mr. Graham: I would suggest when we are making these that we 
will have to make a few copies extra so as to give a copy to the Prime Minister, 
to Mr. Meighen, and to Mr. Forke.

The Witness: I would like to have a copy also, in order to be able to 
check these figures.

The Chairman : There are 15.members of the Committee ; will 20 copies 
be enough—or 25?

Hon. Mr. Graham : We will have 25, I think, and then there can be no 
question about it.

The Chairman : (To the reporter) : Make 25 copies of the proceedings.
The Vitness: I will give a copy of all this to the reporter so ft can be 

incorporated in to-day’s proceedings accurately.
The first was Voyage 14, sailing on July 27th; destination Cardiff ; the 

cargo consisted of 216 head of cattle, 167 tons of cheese, 285,788 bushels of- 
grain, 215 tons of provisions, and 104 tons of cereals. The gross earnings east- 
bound amounted to $30,554.37, of which $4,320 was earnings from cattle. The 
balance was from all the rest. The financial aspect of that trip was as follows—

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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let me go back a minute ; the figure I gave you of $30,555.37. was for the east 
bound trip. Now, the earnings on the westbound trip amounted to $3.314.94. 
That is to say, they were about TV of the earnings of the eastbound trip, making 
the total earnings for the round trip voyage $33,869.31, because we reckon the 
voyage in round trips. The expenses of the round trip amounted to $38,450.63, 
or a deficit on the round trip voyage of $4,581.32.

By the Chairman:
Q. Does that include everything?—A. No; that includes simply the run­

ning expenses, nothing for depreciation or capital charges. It included insur­
ance. It included what you might call the out-of-pocket expenses. That would 
be for a mixed cargo of cattle and general commodities—fairly typical.

Voyage No. 15: Steamship “Commander” sailing September 24th, also 
dfstined to Cardiff. That ship carried 150 head of cattle, from which the 
revenue was $2,700. The total revenue eastbound was $20,336.98; westbound 
the cargo only brought in a revenue of $266.59; the total revenue of the round 
trip voyage were $20,603.57, and the expenses $33,175.91, leaving a deficit of 
$12,572.34. It is only proper to say in this connection that on that voyage 
there was nothing like a full cargo ; we could not get a full cargo eastbound 
and there was practically nothing westbound.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Was cattle carried at less than the regular rate?—A. There were some 

cattle that were carried at 10 per cent less than the going rate.
Mr. Doherty: Fat cattle weighing in excess of 1,000 pounds was carried 

at the $20 rate; cattle weighing less than 1,000 pounds, which we call “stockers” 
took a rate 10 per cent less than $20, which was $18.

The Witness: Stockers are cattle to be fattened on the other side.
Mr. Doherty: We can stow five stockers in space provided for four ordin­

ary cattle.
The Witness: You cannot draw a fair conclusion from that voyage 

because the circumstances were such that there was a partial cargo eastbound. 
and practically nothing westbound.

Voyage No. 16. the steamship “Commander,” sailing November 17th, des­
tination Dundee. That ship carried 272 head of cattle on which the earnings 
were $6,800, and, like the other voyages, various other commodities consisting 
of grain, lumber and .provisions, and some nickel oxide. The gross earnings 
eastbound were $38.132.74, and westbound $1,061.38, or a total of $39,194.12. 
The total expenses were $37,841.97, leaving a surplus on that vovage of 
$1,352.15. '

By Mr. MacKinnon:
Q. Was that to Scotland? A. I hat was to Dundee. I suppose we made 

money because it went to Scotland.
By Mr. Stork:

Q. Is that the only voyage in 1923 which showed a surplus?—A. No, there 
was a better one than that.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Did it have a larger westbound cargo?—A. No. The earnings eastbound 

were $38,132.74, and the westbound earnings were $1,061.38. You see the dis­
tinguishing feature of all these voyages is the very small westbound cargo.

By Mr. MacKinnon:
Q. What was the nature of the freight westbound?—A. Tin-plate as a 

rule, from Bristol Channel points. ’
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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By Mr. Harris:
Q. Did that have its full complement of cattle?—A. I should say, yes. 

That is as many as you could get on—272. You ordinarily figure on about 235.
Mr. Doherty: That is for fat cattle; for stockers we can accomodate 270

to 275.
The Witness: That would be a full cargo of cattle.
Voyage No. 13; steamship “Mariner,” sailing July 13th, destined to Cardiff 

with 2Î6 head of cattle, which brought us $4,320; the gross earnings for the 
round trip voyage were $37,222.81, and the expenses were $39,516.33, leaving 
a deficit of $2,293,52.

Here is the best voyage we had, the steamship “Mariner” again, sailing on 
November 9th, destined again to Dundee. The ship on that voyage carried 271 
head of cattle, from which the enarings were $6,775; the total earnings for the 
round trip voyage were $41,512.98, and the expenses were $38,796.27, leaving 
a surplus of $2,716.71. We considered that a very good voyage?

Mr. Doherty : That was a reasonably good voyage, sir.
Mr. Stewart : The rate there must have been over $20.
Mr. Doherty-: $25; a special rate made for the carriage of cattle to 

Dundee.
Mr. Stewart : Where does the rate of $20 apply to?
Mr. Doherty: To the west coast ports, Liverpool, Glasgow and Exmouth.
The Witness : Dundee is on the North Sea side, which involves going 

around through the Channel and is a longer voyage.
Those represent the particulars of the four voyages to which reference 

was made yesterday, as from Montreal.
By Mr. MacKinnon:

Q. There was a question asked in regard to chilled beef?—:A. I have some 
particulars here of voyages from Quebec. There were four, I think, from Quebec.

The steamer Leader, Voyage No. 8, with 210 head of cattle. The earn­
ings on the cattle were $4,200. The destination of the steamer was Cardiff. 
The gross earnings for the round trip voyage were $35,780.03, and the expenses, 
$40,260.27, leaving a deficit of $4,480.24.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. That is at the $20 rate?—A. I suppose it would be about that.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Was there any grain in that"cargo?—A. Yes, 220,294 bushels of grain; 

86 tons of lumber, 132 tons of nickel oxide, 161 tons of provisions and 46 tons 
of phosphorous.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. How near a full cargo was that?—A. That would be within 10 per cent 

of a ful' cargo.
Mr. Doherty : Absolutely a full cargo.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is a bad result for a full cargo.
The Witness: There are two things to be considered in that. It is diffi­

cult to draw conclusions from those voyages unless you know all the details in 
connection with them. That voyage took 55 days, as against an average of 
somewhere around 41 days. (To Mr. Doherty) Why did it take so long?

Mr. Doherty: The strike conditions in Cardiff.

81695—2i
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By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. You had to include the strike expenses in that?—A. Yes, and the 

expenses of the crew, delays, and all that.
By Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. What I do not understand, Sir Henry, is this: Is not the cargo that 
you take to Cardiff stockcrs?

Mr. Harris : Not with 210 cattle.
Mr. Doherty : Not always; it is, sometimes ; sometimes not; sometimes 

one, sometimes the other, and sometimes a combination of the two.
By Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. Can you get an analysis of this particular trip?—A. Yes. I was explain­
ing that we had to add to that the expenses for the delay at Cardiff first, and 
the other was that again there was nothing like a full cargo westbound. The 
earnings westbound were only $8,826.62, as compared with earnings of $26,953.41, 
eastbound. The expenses would include a delay of about 15 days at Cardiff 
on account of the strike.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. And the rate there, I gather, is the same rate as applies from Montreal? 

—A. Yes.
Q. No different in the rate from Quebec than from Montreal?—A. The 

same rate, yes.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. You have no figures that would show us what difference it would have 
made on the voyage had a full cargo been taken on at Quebec? I take it all 
of the cargo excepting cattle was taken on at Montreal?—A. Those steamers 
started at Montreal and stopped at Quebec for cattle. It would be pretty 
difficult to set at that.

Mr. Harris : There would be one day, practically, would there not?
Mr. Doherty: We cannot get the general cargo at Quebec. The shippers 

are not prepared to pay the extra costs. Our grain is at Montreal in the ordin­
ary course, and so is the general cargo. It is shipped via Montreal ; there are 
lower railway rates to Montreal than to Quebec, and the ships must go to Mont­
real for grain and a general cargo.

By Mr. Stewart: ' ■

Q. What disadvantage is there in a vessel having to call at Quebec for 
cattle? Looking at it wholly from the vessel’s standpoint, if it were loaded at 
Montreal with cattle how much would be saved?

Mr. Doherty: There would be saved approximately six to eight hours 
in time. That is the length of time consumed in docking the steamer at 
Quebec, rigging the steamer, loading the cattle, unrigging and taking the ship 
out.

Mr. Stewart: Would six to eight hours cover that?
Mr. Doherty: Yes. We have done it in four hours.

1 he X\ itness i 1 o Mr. Doherty): Could you make an approximation of 
what that would amount to in a lump sum by way of expenses?

Mr. Doherty: Probably about $500.
The Y itness. I think, Mr. Stewart, that is the real answer you are after.
Mr. Stewart: Yes, that is what I wanted to get at.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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The Witness: Voyage No. 9, the steamer Leader, sailing August 16th ; 
destination Cardiff. It carried 229 head of cattle, with gross earnings of 
$4,580. The total gross earnings from that round trip voyage amounted to 
$38,213.29; expenses were $33,814.90, or a profit of $4,398.39. That ship made 
the round trip voyage in 41 days as compared with 55.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. What figure do ’ you take into account for this delay?—A. Roughly, 

about $500, but that is pretty difficult to do, I should think.
By Mr. MacKinnon:

Q. What was the destination of that voyage?—A. Cardiff.
By Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. I think it is very important that we ascertain every time from what 
port in Canada the voyage was made?—A. These voyages are all from Quebec. 
The other lot I gave you just ahead of this were from Montreal.

By Mr. MacKinnon:
Q. Why should not cattle be sent from Montreal instead of Quebec?— 

A. Well, generally speaking, I think the rail rate to Quebec is preferred by 
the cattle shippers.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. By the western shippers?—A. Yes. I understand they prefer sending 

the cattle to Quebec. It is a preferable arrangement. They come straight 
through on the Transcontinental, and in many ways we prefer it, because, 
as I explained yesterday, it is bringing increased traffic to that part of the 
railway which is sorely in need of traffic.

Mr. Stewart: The point I was trying to make with regard to the extra 
expense to the vessel was whether that was an offset to the additional revenue 
to the railway—

The Witness : There is not a great deal in that for the railroad.
By Mr. Milne:

Q. The shippers made a statement here last year that it meant a loss of 
18 hours going to Quebe, rather than Montreal. One shipper reckoned he saved 
20 per cent shrinkage by going to Quebec.—A. Shrinkage on the stock?

Q. Yes, that he would save 20 per cent by shipping from Quebec rather 
than Montreal.—A. 20 per cent would strike me as being pretty high—

Mr. Harris: 20 per cent of the shrinkage.
The Witness: Oh yes; that might be. I think that is probably true.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. In the extra 20 hours of rail haul they would shrink pretty heavily? 

—A. He would save shrinkage by taking the cattle on at Quebec. Is that it?
Q. Yes. That point was raised by Mr. Graham that the inspectors in 

Great Britain did not all agree on the definition of “stockers” or “fat cattle”. 
Do you accept their recommendations ?

Mr. Doherty: The declaration of the shippers on this side.
Mr. Stewart: ' In taking your figure, they have no guarantee that 

when the cattle arrive in great Britain they will accept your classification 
here.

Mr. Doherty: No, I cannot say that.
The Witness : Oh, I should think they would have to agree then.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. Milne: Is it not the size of the cattle, irrespective of whether they 
are fat or lean?

Mr. Dohebty: Absolutely, I do not know whether we use the proper terms 
in the steamship business, but we call a steer which weighs in excess of 1,000 
pounds a fat animal, and those under 1,000 pounds, we class as stockers, and it 
is true that stockers will stow five in four ordinary spaces.

The Witness': (To Mr. Doherty) : Do*you think there would be much 
difference between the classification of the inspectors in the United Kingdom as 
compared with our shippers here—

Mr. Doherty: I have heard considerable discussion on that point, but I 
do not think, Sir Henry, that I am sufficiently conversant with the actual results 
to answer that question, but there has been considerable dissatisfaction 
expressed.

Mr. Stewart: Let me ask Mr. Graham this question. Was it not a fact 
that last year a shipment was divided in Montreal, consisting of the same cattle, 
and sent to two different ports for the purpose of testing it, and one lot of 
inspectors called them “fat” and required them to be slaughtered there, and the 
other called them “stockers” and permitted them to land?

Hon. Mr. Graham : The same shipment of the same quality of cattle was 
sent to two ports; at one port they were condemned as too fat, and the other 
they were classed as stockers. I had photographs of the cattle which were 
rejected because they were too poor.

The Witness : I think that finishes Voyage No. 9. Now, Voyage No. 12, 
the steamship Victor, sailing July 5th ; destination Cardiff, with 229 head of 
cattle, earnings $4,580. The gross earnings for the total voyage were $33,873.73; 
the expenses $37,917.52; a deficit of $4,043.79. Now, that was a long voyage too. 
That took 49 days, and that was about the time of this dockers’ strike, and I 
expect the same reason applies there. That vessel was probably delayed nine 
or 10 days on account of the dockers’ strike.

Voyage No. 10, Steamship Leader, sailing October 5th, with 242 head of 
cattle ; earnings $4,760; total gross earnings $40,920.23 ; expenses $38,281.66, 
leaving a surplus of $2,638.57. That shipment was destined to Glasgow.

That is the information with respect to the various voyages from Montreal 
and Quebec upon which you yesterday asked for details.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Did all of these vessels from Quebec carry a grain cargo?—A. I think 

they did. They all carried grain running from 200,000 bushels to, well, you 
might say, from 220,000 to 225,000 bushels.

Q. Here is a point I wanted to make. Can you come to any conclusion from 
the figures you have here as to whether a grain cargo with a complement of 
cattle is any more profitable, or would show a profit, or come nearer paying 
expenses than cattle with any other cargo?—A. Let me say this. This represents 
the gross earnings for a 8,400-ton type of steamer, carrying a full capacity cargo 
of grain and 233 head of cattle, or practically a full cargo of cattle. The gross 
earnings work out this way ; the grain would bring gross earnings of $20,925, and 
the 233 head of cattle at $20 per head would bring a gross earning of $4,660, or 
a total gross earning of $25,585. Now, the expenses would work out in the 
neighborhood of $35,000?

Mr. Doherty: It would not be any better.
The Witness: On such a cargo there would be a deficit of approximately

$10,000?
Mr. Dohkrity: Positvely, unless we could get a large westbound cargo, 

which is doubtful.
e [Sir Henry Thornton.]
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The Witness: This whole thing is considerably involved with the possibility 
of westbound cargo. Obviously if you run a vessel full every day in the year 
eastbound, but can only get 20 per cent or 25 per cent or perhaps only even 10 
per cent of the cargo capacity westbound, the voyage is bound to show a loss. 
The profits hinge very largely upon the extent to which we can secure westbound 
cargoes, and that applies not only to the steamship business but to practically 
every transportation activity. The deduction to be drawn from that is that we 
ought to address our efforts not only insofar as the railway and the steamship 
company is concerned, but so far as the Government can assist us in getting 
westbound cargoes. There is where the shoe pinches, and these figures point 
very emphatically to the necessity of getting more westbound cargoes in order to 
meet the deficit.

By Sir Henry Drayton: 1
Q. Do you carry coal on the westbound trips?—A. I do not think we have. 

There is very little coal westbound. We did once or twice, but there is not 
much in it. You get a very low rate on coal, and I doubt if the Welsh coal can 
compete with the ordinary coal here.

The Chairman : I see there will be a good deal of it come in this year.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. What prospect is there of any heavy loading?—A. Westbound?
Q. Yes?—A. I suppose it would have to be manufactured articles.
Mr. Doherty : The prospect of immediate improvement is not too bright.
Sir Henry Drayton : It takes a lot of manufactured articles to make a 

full cargo.
The Witness: Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Is it not a fact that under present conditions shipping all over the world 

is not in a prosperous condition?—A. It is so hard to tell about this shipping 
business. It is like a lot of the shippers. You never find anybody who is 
making any money. I remember I had a talk with Mr. Franklin, the President 
of the White Star Line, about three months ago. I know him very intimately 
and he, I am sure, told me what he thought. He said he never had seen the 
time when the shipping business was in such bad shape as it has been for the 
last two months ; that nobody was making any money out of it and The whole 
situation was very discouraging. That, he said, was partly due. to over-building, 
too much tonnage, and also due to the dislocation of international traffic, and 
general depressed business condition everywhere, and I think the judgment of 
most people will be that the shipping trade, generally speaking, has been in 
worse shape for the last two months than it has been for many years.

By the Chairman:
Q. Any prospect for improvement?—A. The answer would seem to be that 

thé improvement will depend on how soon we can restore international trade 
conditions to something like normal. Russia is substantially out of business 
from almost every point of view. They are beginning to produce a little wheat 
for export, but not much ; generally speaking, Russia, as a factor in international 
trade, has disappeared. Germany, of course, is beginning to export now, taking 
advantage of her depreciated currency and low rates of wages, and so on, but 
still Germany is far from the factor in international trade which it was before 
the war. Business conditions in Egland are bad; costs of production have gone 
up, due to increase in wages, and nearly everywhere you go you find a dislocated 
business condition either directly or indirectly growing out of the war.
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By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. You have given us typical .trips-------A. No, these are actual trips.
Q. Where we have our loading very promptly. Have you anything typical 

in connection with mixed merchandise?—A. These were all mixed merchandise.
Q. Have you any without cattle, for example?—A. No, because as I recall 

the request of the Committee, they asked for that. I can get that for you.
Q. These returns are not very encouraging. You must have something 

to offset them?—A. Probably not to the United Kingdom because, if I remem­
ber the figures rightly, our total United Kingdom trade showed a deficit of 
about half a million dollars.

Q. I think you gave us a “plus” in one instance?—A. Y'es, that is right.
Mr. MacKinnon : Has the Government a Trade Commissioner at Dundee?
The Chairman: I don’t know.
Mr. MacKinnon: Or Cardiff?
The Chairman : I cannot say.
The Witness : We do not show any profit to the United Kingdom, and we 

can charge all of that to the wretched condition of the westbound movement.
By the Chairman:

Q. These voyages show quite a loss?—A. Yes.
Q. As a straight business proposition, do you consider it advisable, and if 

so, for what reason, to continue to do a losing business?—A. That is a pretty 
difficult question to answer. In the first place, we have got the ships, and there 
has been a considerable amount of money invested in those ships. If we un­
dertook to get rid of them, it is doubtful if we would realize, under present 
conditions, more than a percentage—a relatively small percentage—of their 
cost. In the second place, there is some value—just how much it would be 
difficult to say offhand, but there is some value in the fact that the railway 
company has these ships which can be used for overseas traffic in conjunction 
with the railway. Most railways, and notably the Canadian Pacific Railway 
have found it advantageous to develop a very efficient and' elaborate steam­
ship service which they operate in connection with their railway, and out of 
which they are making a fair amount of money. That service has been in 
existence for many years. They have built up their trade; they have estab­
lished their foreign connections and their foreign agencies, but probably when 
they started they had a certain amount of difficulty and expense in the estab­
lishment of the service, but the fact that they have succeeded in establishing 
that service, after a period of years, and have made it profitable, indicates that 
it must be of value to them.

Q. Would you say this particular.fleet we have now, of 60 vessels—has it 
any possibility of ever arriving at that condition? You spoke of the C.P.R.? 
They have different kind of vessels?—A. Yes.

• Q. Is it possible to secure success, in your opinion, with vessels we have 
now, or will it be a continual loss from year to year?—A. I would not like to 
make a positive assertion, but I will say this, somewhat tentatively; that, 
considering our Merchant Marine as a whole, we have to go either forward or 
backward. If we feel that the Merchant Marine Service has a value to the 
people of Canada in all of their industrial activities, and to the railway itself, 
I think I should answer that question in the affirmative. Then we have to 
face up to, I think, putting these vessels, these implements in such shape as to 
get the maximum efficiency out of them. For instance, we have already seen 
with respect to our fruit traffic and some other traffics that we are not as well 
equipped in the way of refrigeration as we should be, and we think probably 
if wc had such vessels as the United Fruit Company have—
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By Hon . Mr. Graham:
Q. For the West Indian trade?—A. For the West Indian trade, and per­

haps, the Pacific trade as well—we could do very well with it. There is the 
further fact, and it is growing on nay mind, that the Argentine ship enormous 
quantities of meat to England. Why cannot we do the same thing in Canada? 
Why should we not? I Cahot see any reason why we should not, that is, as far 
as a mere cursory examination goes.

By the Chairman:
Q. You think these 60 vessels could be made successful in that way?—A. 

I think we can do better in the future than perhaps we have done in the past, 
but I do not think we will ever get the maximum efficiency out of our ships, 
nor shall we be able to perform with efficient service to the industries of 
Canada, until we put ourselves in the same position as other shipping com­
panies.

Q. My point is this: I can see your point, and I agree with you absolutely, 
but we might have an equipment of vessels that would be operated in con­
nection with the National Railways somewhat similar to the C.P.R. What I 
want to get at is this, whether the fleet we own now can ever be made to work 
into a scheme of that kind, or is it a losing proposition, and should be dealt 
with from that point of view?—A. I think it is going to be a pretty hard matter 
to take this Merchant Marine fleet just as it stands and break even on it, but 
I think there is a fighting chance.

Q. I am looking at the statement here which shows a net loss for the 
year of $9,368,000. If that fleet were entirely tied up, the loss would be re­
duced only by the amount of the operating loss. You would still have to assume 
the interest payments?—A. You could not get rid of the capital payments.

Mr. Stork : There is more involved in this than that, because while the 
Merchant Marine did operate at a loss of $9,000,000, yet, it seems to me, it 
induced a certain amount of traffic over the other utility, and that must be 
taken into account.

The Witness : And you must take this into consideration. There are cer­
tain sendees that are promising, and I think the West Indian service is dis­
tinctly promising. Our Pacific Coastwise Service showed a profit of $84,000 
last year. That is a very tillable field, that Pacific Coastal traffic, and should 
be pushed. I think we can show improvement in respect to our Oriental traffic.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Is it not a question of getting the boats on the routes where they will 

pay?—A. Yes, that is true, but there are certain services you cannot entirely 
ignore, but, broadly speaking, that is a correct statement.

Q. I. think those cargoes—A. Take this new service we have established 
from Vancouver, through the Panama Canal, to England. That is promising. 
We are putting on a service between Halifax and Vancouver, via the Panama 
Canal, competing with our own railway, but it is an essential service, and we 
felt if we were going to have competition it was better for us to do our own 
competing.

Q. It is a big problem to get our products moving as cheaply as possible? 
—A. Somebody will do it.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. You have the traffic by rail from Halifax inland, in the east, and in 

the west, from Vancouver inland?—A. Perhaps I could answer the Chairman’s 
question this way. If I were asked directly, “Will you or will you not abandon 
the Merchant Marine,” I should say, “No,” very positively, and one of the 
reasons for .saying that is this; that it is only in comparatively recent months
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we have been getting some ginger into the Merchant Marine proposition, and 
we are reaching out every day with our European and Continental connections, 
and in the Orient and the West Indies, and elsewhere. Now, 1 would not like 
to abandon that service because I feel there is a fair fighting chance, by put­
ting some brains and intelligence and a lot of ginger into the thing that we can 
make something out of it. I would not like to abandon the service until we 
had tried that experiment and had an opportunity of putting forth our full 
effort.

By the Chairman:
Q. Is there a possibility of making it go?—A. I refuse to admit that any­

thing cannot be done. I am quite willing to take a shot at it, and I believe 
there is enough promising to justify the shot.

Q. Has the Board thought wise to make recommendations as to further 
acquisitions?-—A. Only in this way; I think there are two things wre ought to 
do. I think we ought to make further acquisition w'ith respect to the West 
Indian Service. I am fully convinced that is a very tillable field. I think we 
ought to have additional vessels for our Pacific Coastal traffic, which is show­
ing a profit, so we are not sending good money after bad.

By Hon. Mr. Graham
Q. You think you need another boat?—A. I think we need another boat, 

and we have the money with which to build it. WTe sold two or three ships 
some time ago and that money was set aside for renewal purposes, and that 
could very properly be used, with a couple of hundred thousand dollars—a 
small amount-—additional. This is for the coastal service to Alaska.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. And how many do you need for the West Indies?—A. Four. I think 

these four ships could be built for $4,000,000. I know' I can finance $2,500,000 
of that in debentures or bonds on the ships, so that w'ould only leave $1,500,000 
of ready money to be provided, and that could be provided on some kind of a 
Government guarantee. We would not be taking money out of the Dominion 
Treasury for that purpose.

Sir Henry Drayton : No, w'e would say, “You are adding to the debt of 
the country,” and Mr. Graham would say, “we are not.”

The Witness: Put it any way you like, there is $1,500,000 to come anyway. 
Now, if you continue the same subsidy that you are paying to the Royal Packet 
Line, and if the West Indian Government pays us the same subsidy that they 
are bound by treaty to provide us with, that business then becomes highly pro­
fitable, because the subsidies we would get would practically pay the capital 
carrying charges, and I estimate that within 15 years we could not only pay 
for the whole cost of operating the service, but we could get enough money to 
amortize the total investment, so the best shipping proposition we have is the 
West Indian proposition w-ith four new' ships, and all w'e would ask for is to get 
the same subsidies.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. The company is obligated to give a certain service?—A. Yes.
Q. Are they doing that?—A. We are not living up to our obligations.
1 he At itness. I have lour new boats in mind which w'ould give the service 

you arc speaking of; they would give first class service.
By Mr. Stew'art (Humboldt) :
Q. Wbuld these new boats be of a different type from what you have now? 

—A. ^ es. they would be equipped with adequate passenger accommodation. 
They would be ships that could hold up their heads in any class.
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Q. How about the boats you refer to as needed in the Pacific coastal trade ; 
are they of the same type?—A. No, they would be 3,000 ton passenger and cargo 
steamers, running, out of Prince Rupert and up to Alaska.

The Chairman: Had you completed that particular branch of your state­
ment? Let us go on now.

The Witness: I said all I had to say about the voyages from Quebec 
and Montreal, about which I was asked yesterday.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Am I right in this conclusion, that from the results of the typical voyage 

you have given, it must be a fact that in the carriage of grain, the boats would 
have to have practically a complete full return cargo to make it profitable?—A. 
I would not say a complete cargo; but at least a 50 per cent cargo. I do not 
think we would have to have a full cargo westbound.

Mr. Doherty: About $10,000 to $12,000 would allow us to break even, 
I think.

The Witness: About a 50 per cent cargo?
Mr. Doherty: Yes, about.
The Witness : If we could get a 50 per cent cargo westbound we could 

break even and do a little better.
By Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. That would not pay your overhead?—A. No.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. That would not take depreciation into account?—A. No.
By Mr. Kyte:

Q. What other lines are competing with you?
Mr. Doherty: We are the only lines operating to Cardiff and Swansea, but 

to the other ports, Liverpool, Glasgow, Aberdeen, and London, we have the 
Cunard Line out of Montreal, the Donaldson Line, the Thompson-Cairn Line, 
the Canadian Pacific, Inter-continental Transports, Furness-Withy, and the 
White Star.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. They carry cattle and grain to these other points?—A. Some of them 

do and some of them do not.
Q. How do the ships of the Canadian Government Merchant Marine com­

pare with those competing ships in point of speed and carrying capacity, and cost 
of operating?—A. As far as speed is concerned we compare favourably with 
some. There are others that are more speedy. As far as operating expenses are 
concerned, I do not know that I would be capable to answer that question, as 
I am not aware as to just what the others have to do in that respect.

Q. Needless to say, these steamships that are owned by private companies 
are not operating at a loss, or they would not continue very long?—A. They 
are, positively.

Q. I mean, over a continued period?—A. They all say they are operating 
at a loss. I read from the report of some speech of the Chairman of the 
Thompson-Cairn Line, in which he painted a very depressing picture.

Q. That would be for a short period? I cannot imagine that they would 
stay in business very long, in a losing undertaking.—A. That is quite true, 
but I think you must admit, if you take the statements of ship owners as correct 
you can only conclude that they are hanging on, hoping for better times.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]



28 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

The Chairman: Mr. Black, who is not a member of this committee, would 
like to ask a few questions. Is it the desire of the committee that he be 
permitted to do so?

Some Hon. Members: Yes.
By Mr. Black (Halifax):

Q. You were speaking just now of the four ships. You admit that of the 
present fleet, none of them are suitable for the West Indies trade?—A. Not 
for the character of trade we would like to get, and such service as we would 
like to give. We have performed a character of service with our present ships, 
but we feel that if we had these four new ones we could entirely fulfil our 
obligations to the West Indies, which Sir Henry Drayton pointed out we are 
not fulfilling to-day.

Q. What Islands would they touch?
Mr. Doherty : The four steamers would be used—
The Witness: The same islands as we do now.
Mr. Doherty: The Windward Islands, that is, Demerara and so on.
The Witness: Barbardoes, Trinidad, Nassau, and Kingston. I think if 

we had these four new ships we would be able to reconsider the whole West 
Indies proposition. We would have to send these ships to certain of the larger 
islands where there is considerable traffic, and then establish some sort of a 
pickup service in the West Indies.

By Mr. Black:
Q. An inter-island service, such as the Royal Mail had a few years ago and 

abandoned?—A. I think the United Fruit Service have a service of that kind.
The Chairman: I was told the other day that was one of their strong­

holds, that the United Fruit Company had the larger ships for calling at the 
larger ports, but also had the inter-island service.

Mr. Black: They have two or three small crafts?
The Chairman : Yes. We have certain duties to perform, I think, under 

our treaty. I am told that this service could be performed by smaller ships 
than we need for the other service.

The Witness: We are making a study of that now, to see what the 
prospects are, and how it ought to be organized.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. I would like to speak about these smaller ships. In that connection 

when you are investigating, do you not think it would be wise to ascertain 
.clearly if the service we want to perform under our treaty could not be per­
formed by two, or a lesser number than four of the larger ships, with an addi­
tional small boat. The reason I say this is because a gentleman, a friend of 
mine and well acquainted with you too, made quite a study of business down 
there, and discussed the matter with me the other night and said that he be­
lieved that two of these newer ships, perhaps, could perform the service we had 
in mind.—A. That is something worth considering. /

Q. With the use of the smaller ships between the islands?—A. Yes.
By Mr. Black:

Q. What do you mean by that?—A. I would include everything that would 
give us a paying cargo and assist in fulfilling even beyond the terms of the 
treaty we have there.
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By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I would just call the attention of the President to what was developed 

in the Agricultural Committee last year and what we all know to be more or 
less the fact, and that is that there is a preference given by American boats to 
American grain and flour going to the Mother Country, and that our rates are 
considerably higher than the rates for which the American lines carry grain and 
flour. I would like to find out how that situation stands to-day.—A. You 
mean to say whether we are giving a preferential steamship rate to Canadian 
shippers?

Q. You are not of course, or at least I presume not.—A. No, we are not.
Q. I presume that would be impossible; I do not think any Canadian boat 

sailing out of a Canadian port would be justified in doing that, but we are very 
much interested in seeing that our grain and flour at least is not penalized in 
getting to England as against our chief competitors.—A. Your question is, are 
the boats of the United States Shipping Board giving preferential rates to 
American products?

Mr. Doherty : No, that situation has been fully cleaned up.
The Witness: So far as I know, they are not. We are on all fours with 

the American situation. Mr. Doherty, do you know whether the United States 
Shipping Board is giving preferential ocean rates to American producers?

Mr. Doherty : No, sir.
Sir Henry Drayton : There is no preference?
Mr. Doherty : All the lines from American ports are on all fours. That 

question of last year is no longer in force.
Sir Henry Drayton : What is the present American rate on flour from 

United States ports?
Mr. Doherty: It has ranged from 19 cents to 23 cents.
Sir Henry Drayton : And what is ours?
Mr. Doherty : Ours has ranged from 19 cents to 22 cents and 23 cents.
Mr. Kyte: Is the rate from Halifax to England the same as from New 

York?
Mr. Doherty: The rate from Halifax would ordinarily be the same as 

from Montreal, and our rates from Montreal at the present time are the same 
as from New York.

Sir Henry Drayton : What is the present split between the flour rate and 
the grain rate?

Mr. Doherty : The grain rate is such a peculiar situation to-day that it is 
very hard to determine. In Montreal in the early part of May grain went as 
high as four shillings. When I left Montreal the other day it was impossible to 
get grain at a rate of two shillings, sixpence.

Sir Henry Drayton : I was chiefly, concerned in seeing what the spread was 
between the grain rate and the flour rate.

The Witness: What rate are we charging on the average for grain, and 
what rate on the average for flour?

Mr. Doherty : Perhaps 7 cents would be a maximum.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. There is one thing, Sir Henry ; if you get it on a steady basis it is a 
great thing for the country. We used to have spreads as low as a cent and a 
cent and a half, and then it worked up to three cents, and then to five cents. The 
7 cents spread is a direct detriment to the Canadian farmer ; it affects the sup­
ply of shorts and bran very materially.—A. I suppose the most advantageous
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business would be to fabricate our wheat into flour in this country and export 
the flour rather than the wheat.

Q. We admit that is the proper thing to do, but you see if there is a 
spread of 7 cents, it is a pretty hard thing. That movement, that ideal posi­
tion is penalized to the extent of 7 cents on the value. That is a thing that has 
been a sore spot for years, and every now and again we are able to get conces­
sions, but 7 cents looks very bad.—A. What is your opinion on it? What do 
you think we ought to do, having regard to the position of the Merchant Marine 
and the farmer, and for the welfare of all? What is your idea ?

Q. I would certainly like to see a spread very much smaller. I admit you 
have to have some spread, flour is harder to load and is subject to contamina­
tion, and is not as easily carried.—A. Could we lay down this axiom, that the 
spread should only represent the difference, having regard to all the circum­
stances, in handling?

Sir Henry Drayton : That depends so much on different conditions; I 
suppose 7 cents to-day would be looked on in some places as absolutely neces­
sary.

Hon. Mr. Graham : How would that affect the farmer? I get the point, 
that we retain in this country all the shorts and byproducts. ,

Sir Henry Drayton : That is what the farmer is interested in, and the 
dairying industry is very vitally interested also.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Would the farmer, then, have the price of wheat affected 
in any way?

Sir ^Henry Drayton : It is possible. The idea is not to advatiee the price 
of the carriage of grain merely to make a smaller spread. In other words, 
you cannot affect the price of wheat in Liverpool, which depends entirely upon 
the question of consumption and supply, by changing the form of supply ; you 
cannot do it.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. I would like to ask two or three questions now. What is the time con­

sumed in hauling cattle from Winnipeg to Montreal?—A. I should think that 
would average—I will have that looked up.

Q. Will you, at the same time, look up the figures for the hauling of cattle 
to Quebec?—A. You want the average time taken to haul cattle from Winnipeg 
to Montreal and Quebec?

Q. Yes, and the time consumed in taking cattle down the river from Mont­
real to Quebec?—A. By rail?

Q.” No; you take them down by water when you load from Montreal. The 
point is this, that there is a very heavy shrinkage in handling cattle, especially 
after a certain number of days. I was trying to arrive at some conclusion as 
to whether a study was being made of the possibility of handling cattle from 
Quebec. If it is absolutely necessary to have the cargo, as you intimate it is, 
perhaps it is not within the realm of possibility that Quebec can be used for 
that particular purpose. Is it or is it not within the realm of possibility that a 
full cargo could be made up at Quebec with the present type of steamers you 
have on the service now?—A. I think the answer would be no, that you cannot 
make up a full cargo at Quebec, because the vessels have to come to Montreal 
for general cargo purposes.

Q. The cattle boats upon the Atlantic transport do not carry any general 
cargo, do they? They are purely cattle boats?—A. I think so.

Q. If you had cattle boats on the service, which were doing nothing else 
but carrying cattle, would it then be feasible to export from Montreal?—A. 
I do not believe there would be any money in building vessels exclusively for 
the purpose of carrying cattle, because then you would certainly limit, very 
largely, your cargo to an eastbound movement.
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Q. I think you intimated to the committee yesterday that it was possible 
that you could get the figures in regard to' the present cattle boats on the 
Atlantic transport line.—A. Yes. They operate out of New York.

Q. They are not carrying any westbound traffic, are they?
Mr. Doherty: They get a better run of general cargo than we do in 

Canada, on account of the larger market in the United States. The lines oper­
ating into New York, as a rule, will find larger westbound cargoes.

Mr. Harris: Do they actually find a westbound cargo?
Mr. Doherty: Yes. You understand, a cattle steamer carries a very 

large proportion of grain and general cargo, because cattle are only carried on 
the top deck, and in some instances in two decks, but the holds are utilized 
wholly for the carrying of general cargo.

The Witness: Here are the times you asked for. Winnipeg to Toronto, 
71 hours ; Winnipeg to Montreal, 83 hours ; Winnipeg to Quebec, 81 hours; 
Winnipeg to St. John, 120 hours ; Winnipeg to Halifax, 126 hours.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. And down the river from Montreal to Quebec?—A. Approximately 12 

hours.
Hon. Mr. Graham : You cannot compare the whole distance from Winni­

peg to Quebec via Montreal with the distance to Quebec via the rail haul.
Mr. Harris : You can compare the hours.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Yes, but if I understand the figures right, the dis­

tance from Winnipeg to Quebec by rail is much shorter than the distance to 
Quebec by Montreal.

The Witness: I am not taking into the equation at all the rail haul 
between Montreal and Quebec.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. There is one other question. Have you any figures as to the total 

number of cattle that our ships carry?—A. Yes, we can give you that. It is 
2,856 detailed as follows: loaded at Montreal, 1,395; loaded at Quebec, 1,192; 
loaded at St. John, 269.

By Mr. Jelliffe:
Q. I cannot quite reconcile the statement as to the cost of fitting up cattle 

boats with what was stated last year. Mr. Motherwell stated in the course 
of a speech last year, quoting Mr. Thornton, that the cost of fitting up a cattle 
boat was $32,000.—A. I think that might be explained in this way. I do not 
remember myself just exactly the circumstances that forced the statement, 
but probably what Mr. Motherwell had in mind was that he asked me how 
much it would cost to permanently equip one of our vessels for cattle traffic, 
and the answer was perhaps $32,000. That is, permanent equipment.

By the Chairman:
Q. A different type?—A. Quite a different type of equipment; it would be 

steel. This $7,000 refers to a comparatively temporary character of fitting. I 
suppose that is the explanation, I do not know.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, Mr. Logan, who is not a member of the 
committee, would like to ask a few questions Is it the wish of the committee 
that he should do so?

Some Hon. Members: Yes.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Before Mr. Logan begins, I would like Sir Henry to say something 
.about this 7 cent spread on flour.—A. I would not like to make any positive
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statement as to what we could or could not do. I have your point, and I would 
like to have time to examine it and give you an answer later on.

By Mr. Milne:
Q. Do these steamers come in what they call the liner class, or are they 

tramps, the steamers running to the United Kingdom?—A. 'i ou would not call 
them liners, as one understands that word. It is rather a vague word, but 
liner generally means a vessel of more than 10,000 tons, I should say, or more 
than 15,000 tons capacity. Our vessels, our largest vessels, are about 8,400 
tons, and they would correspond in capacity to the usual type of what is called 
a tramp steamer. I think that is about as nearly as I can answer that 
question.

Q. Do they all comply with the conferences that the steamship people hold 
regularly, so far as rates are concerned?—A. There is what is called the 
North Atlantic Conference which, as I understand it, is a conference of vessel 
owners and shipping companies operating in the North Atlantic, and that con­
ference is for the purpose of determining conditions and rates and all that sort 
of thing. Broadly speaking, we comply with the general arrangements that 
have been reached. ij

Q. That is with all the vessels of the service?—A. Yes. I am not altogether 
sure that I really understand your question, but I think I have answered it.

Q. I understand there are certain companies that attend these conferences 
and fix their rates. There are certain other companies that have steamers plying 
between certain ports that apparently do not attend the conferences.

Mr. Doherty: There are occasional steamers coming into berth that do 
not quote conference rates. The lines operating out of Montreal ate quoting . 
the same rates, and the rates quoted from Montreal are the same rates as quoted 
from the ports on the North Atlantic coast of the United States.

By Mr. Milne:
Q. There are a number of liners giving rebates on freight, I understand. 

Does the Merchant Marine carry on the same practice?
Mr. Doherty : We do not make rebates. '• '■
The Witness: Is that a practice?
Mr. Doherty: I have never heard of it.
Sir Henry Drayton : It used to be, but I think it was stopped.
The Witness: I think it was something like the old rebates that used to | 

be paid in the railway business some 30 or 40 years ago.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. There is just one statement I would like Sir Henry to make before 
going into these other matters. Sir Henry has intimated it might be wise to 
increase the fleet. Our statement shows there are at least two of our services 
that arc accountable for very large losses last year, to England and to Australia.
I think he might make a statement to show the necessity of keeping on those 
services and at the same time adding further services where he thinks they will 
be profitable. Will you just make a further statement? You have already 
answered one question, and that is that you have not ships which would be 
suitable for the development of the West Indies Trade? I think we should be 
sure that the boats we have are not suitable for other work, and whether they 
could not be taken off the services they are on without adding new boats.—A. ;(
I think our vessels are probably, in some respects, more satisfactory for the 
Pacific trade than might be the case in the Atlantic trade. For instance, with 
respect to the Atlantic trade, if we should ever get into the frozen meat and 
chilled meat business, we are insufficiently equipped for that, because we have
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not enough vessels with refrigerating apparatus, and refrigerator space. The 
same thing does not apply on the Pacific coast, although I think we could 
advantageously use vessels with more refrigerator space on the Pacific. For 
example, we have up with the Fiji Government now the question of developing 
a banana trade from the Fiji Islands to Vancouver, and the Fiji Government 
has intimated their willingness to pay a substantial subsidy annually to us 
if we would equip our vessels, or some of them, for that trade. That is about 
the only trade that I know offhand on the Pacific coast which would require 
further facilities than we have at the moment, but if we got that started and 
it proved profitable, it might still further develop and we might develop a 
fairly good trade in fruits and things of that sort from Australasia and that 
part of the south seas.

Q. You are not in favour of going to the Fijis?—A. From what I have heard 
of the Fijis, it is a very alluring country.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. You maintain that it would not be wise to interfere with our service 

to the United Kingdom—A. I have covered that, by the general statement I 
made a little while ago, that if anybody should put the question to me to-day, 
“ Will you or will you not abandon the Canadian Merchant Marine?” I would 
say, “No”. I would not abandon it; I would rather have a few more shots 
at it.

By the Chairman:
Q. You mean that would practically mean the abandonment of the Mer­

chant Marine?—A. But part of it is true. A service that has shown a con­
siderable loss—but I will not say that loss could not be considerably reduced ; 
in other words, I do not want to abandon the body as long as there is a spark 
of life in it, because we have too much money invested in those ships. I would 
rather make an earnest and conscientious effort to see if something could not 
be done with them.

Q. You have your recommendation by the Board with regard to the 
interest on the capital charge? I know that would not reduce the net loss to 
this country, but is your proposition so that the Merchant Marine will not be 
loaded up with a deficit, and be more encouraging to the Directors?—A. You 
might say this about that: These vessels represent a capital charge which, for 
various reasons is, I think, beyond the possibilities of the earning capacities of 
the Merchant Marine. The vessels were built, as I understand it, at a time 
when costs were pretty high under the pressure of war conditions, and for cer­
tain reasons which at that time seemed sound. Now, the aspect of the whole 
shipping trade has changed since that time; costs are materially less, and I 
doubt very much if we can earn enough to pay the full capital charges on the 
original capitalization of these vessels. Now, it is for Parliament, it seems 
to me, to decide whether they should either write down the capital so as to 
give the Merchant Marine, under present conditions, a reasonable chance—-

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Write down to what? $60 a ton?—A. I wrould not like to give a pre­

cise figure, but something that is reasonable. What I thought would perhaps 
be preferred instead of wiping out the capital would be to transfer the capital 
from an annual interest-bearing security to some form of preference stock on 
which dividends could be paid as and when and if there were ever profits. In 
other words, I would not like to close the door to paying something on that if, 
say 25 years hence, something could be earned ; but that is a matter of policy, 
and opinions might differ with respect to it.
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Q. In the meantime, leave it as a charge against the ships?—A. I don’t 
think you ought to load the camel down to the breaking point. Give it a chance 
to see what it can do.

Mr. Black (Halifax) : Unfortunately you have not your own camel.
The Witness: Just a minute. One moment there. I want to say this 

quite positively that any recommendation I make, or anything that I say, is 
made or said sincerely and I would exercise the same care in making that state­
ment as though it were my own money. I do not want this committee, or any­
one else, to think that I am making any recommendation, or making any other 
statement than that which is sincere, and to the best of my judgment in the 
interest of the enterprise.

The Chairman : I think that remark was quite out of order.
Mr. Stork : I would like to say a word in connection with the item raised 

by Mr. Stewart in regard to the Pacific. The report shows the Coastal Service 
last year made a profit of $84,650, and I am sure, in connection with that it was 
largely due to the equipment which the Canadian National Railways have on 
the Pacific. They had four boats there. The Prince Rupert and the Prince 
George are the “ crack ” steamers of the Pacifific ; they are operating between 
Vancouver and Prince Rupert; they are the best boats on the Pacific Ocean, and 
that' is why we are getting such a great traffic out there. They had two smaller 
boats, the Prince Albert and the Prince John. They were smaller combination 
boats, passenger and freight. The Prince Albert has been sold, but now there 
is a territory in the north there, which is, I think, the fertile field of north­
western Canada. There are mines at Stewart, and at Any ox, which are the 
greatest mines in Western Canada. I think the Premier Mine is perhaps the 
richest mine in the world to-day. There is tremendous traffic to be obtained 
there. Two years ago the Grand Trunk boats went as far as Alaska, but the 
service was so erratic that they could not keep that up. Our railroad runs 
through the southeastern corner of Alaska, and the whole Alaskan territory is 
tributary to the Canadian National Railways, and the trade to be developed 
depends entirely on the equipment which we offer. I am very glad indeed to hear 
Sir Henry state that he has in contemplation the placing of another steamer 
on that route. I am thoroughly satisfied that is a field which should be 
developed. That is the field which will pay interest on the investment. The 
boats we have are doing well, because they are especially adapted for that 
particular trade, and there is a wonderful field of development to be worked up 
there, and this condition will be improved, and I am satisfied, improved very 
materially by the increase in the fleet with proper class of boats.

By the Chairman:
Q. Do you care to make any statement in regard to that, Sir Henry?—A. 

Nothing, except in a general way, to endorse what has been said. The Pacific 
Coast trade is a very profitable trade and can be made more so, and I am 
very much in hopes we will be able to provide this additional vessel, which I 
think will very materially add to the net results of the Pacific Coastal traffic, 
and also give us an opportunity of getting a great deal of the Alaskan trade, 
which we do not enjoy at the present time.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Supposing you now jump over to the West Indies.
1 he ! HAiRMAN. Perhaps Mr. Logan will not object to his making a pre­

liminary statement in regard to that. Sir Henry has a few remarks to make 
regarding it.

1 By the Chairman:
Q. Are you ready to go on with the West Indies?_A. Yes.
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By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Have you not made all the preliminary statements to the Committee 

you want to, concerning the West Indies?—A. I think I have. I would rather 
profit from the questions which the members of the Committee might wish 
to ask.

The Chairman : Is it the wish of the Committee that Mr. Logan be 
heard?

Agreed.
Mr. Logan: Mr. Chairman, I would like to submit a statement to Sir 

Henry, in order to get this on the record, to show the improvement in the earn­
ing capacity of this West India Line. I would like to ask if this statement is 
correct. It is from the Department. It shows that in regard to passenger ser­
vice in 1921 the receipts were $269,547.08, while the expenses of that year were 
$580,536.62; a net loss of $310,989.54. The next year, 1922, the receipts were 
$344,559.53; the expenses $599,880.49, a net loss of $255,320.96. In 1923 the 
receipts were $474,497.93, the expenses $649,799.72, a net loss of $175,281.79. 
That was a betterment in two years of about $135,000 in the passenger service. 
The total loss in the passenger service in three years was $741,592.29. Now, 
take the freight service. In 1921 the receipts were $1,442,848.62; the expenses 
$1,561,897.64; a net loss of $119,049.02. In 1922 the receipts were $855,947.20, 
the expenses $744,526.52, a net loss of $111,420.68. No, that is a profit that 
year, a profit of $111,420.68. In 1923 the receipts were $1,402,880.98; the 
expenses were $1,449,951.50, a net loss of $47,070.52. To recapitulate, the losses 
on freight service in the three years amounted to $54,698.86; the net losses, all 
services, $796,291.15.

By Mr. Logan:
Q. May I ask, Sir Henry, if this agrees with your statement as you have it 

before you?—A, Let us check that statement, Mr. Logan, and then I will answer.
Mr. Logan : 1 will not take up much time of the Committee, but I want to 

ask a few questions upon which I think we should get some information.
By Mr. Logan:

Q. In the first place, Sir Henry, are you aware that the agents in your West 
India Line are almost invariably agents of your chief competitors? That seems 
to be a complaint. I heard that myself, and I saw it myself in one or two cases, 
and other people have brought it to my attention, that all through these islands 
the agents of the Canadian Government Merchant Marine are, in most cases, 
agents of competing lines, which compete to Boston, New York, and important 
American points. There is another thing to which I want to call your attention— 
A. I will take notes of these various points and answer you later on.

Q. I am anxious to get information. Everybody is thinking seriously about 
these matters. I wish to call your attention to the trade agreement of 1920 with 
these islands. You will find in Article 10, sub-section 2, that we undertook to 
provide for the Barbadoes end of the service, ships which would have a speed of 
12 knots, and provide accommodation for 100 first-class passengers, 30 second- 
class, and 100 steerage deck passengers. We are not providing any accommoda­
tion for passengers, except maybe deck passengers, in that service. Turn over 
to the contract with the Western group, that is Jamaica, or rather, Nassau and 
Belize. We undertook in this agreement, in Article 15, to give on this service 
a fortnightly freight service. Now, they claim, of course, in this country that 
we are not giving a fortnightly service, and I call attention to the fact that in 
your own report you rather make out these people’s case; because you do use 
the expression “West Indies” for instance, referring to this service, “three-weekly
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sailing to Bermuda, and Jamaica, Nassau and Belize,” whereas this treaty calls 
for a fortnightly service. We receive from these people in case of loss a 
maximum from all the Islands of £40,000, which is somewhat important, I think, 
to consider. I want to call your attention to the fact we are giving our case 
absolutely away in your own report.

May I ask you another question? Will you tell me if you have any inspection 
for coal for use in these ships?

The Chairman: Sir Henry will answer all your questions together.
Mr. Doherty : The inspection of coal is handled by the Engineering Depart­

ment.
Mr. Logan : When we were down on the beautiful sunny seas, going between 

six and seven knots an hour, I naturally enquired what was the matter and was 
told repeatedly from the engine room that it was the bad coal, and I want to call 
your attention to the fact, that if that be true, we had better get some better 
inspection and some better coal.

The Witness: I hope this coal does not come from any mine in the Maritime 
Provinces.

Mr. Logan : No, I particularly enquired, Mr. Chairman, as to whether any 
of this coal came from Cumberland County, and they said no. Now, one or two 
other questions.

By Mr. Logan:
Q. In the first place, what contract have you with the Marconi Company 

for wireless service on these passenger ships? I ask that question because while 
we were out for four or five days, from one land to another, and there were two 
very nice-looking young officers in uniform who admitted they were receiving 
all the news of the world, the passengers could not find out whether the King or 
Sir Henry Thornton were in ill-health.

The Witness : I suppose no news was good news?
Mr. Logan: I would like to know what the contract is with the wireless 

people, and why it is that passengers cannot receive some news of the world in 
travelling such long distances. I think that is about the only ship sailing 
today on the seas of the world on a trip involving four or five days of straight 
sailing in which no one can get any news from any part of the world.

Another question I would like to ask is this: In view of improved service, 
and the requirements of that service, have you or your officers made any estimate 
of how much tonnage would actually be required to transport all the tropical 
products grown in these Islands if the same came direct to Canada, that goes 
to the very basis of what we propose to do.

The Witness : I don’t quite “ get ” that question.
Mr. Logan : We imported nearly $100,000,000 of tropical products from the 

United States, according to our Bureau of Statistics. We estimate that a very 
great quantity of that could be grown in the West Indies, and, in fact, a large 
quantity of it is grown there and brought to the United States by the United 
Fruit Company. Supposing we made a readjustment of the tariff in this 
country whereby we shut out these goods coming through the United Stàtes, 
forcing it all to Canadian ports, have you estimated how much tonnage would 
be required to handle that immense trade?

The AVitness: (To Mr. Doherty) Have we a regular service to Brazil 
and the Argentine?

Mr. Doherty : No, we have not, sir.
Mr. Logan : I think it would be well in considering the service to the eastern 

group of the AV est Indies, also to consider the service to the Argentine and 
Brazil. I only wish to make one further statement, and that is, I am told by
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shippers that while they looked forward with a great deal of pleasant anticipa­
tion to the conveying of goods between the Maritime Provinces, or Eastern 
Canada, and British Columbia, the rates established by the Canadian Govern­
ment Merchant Marine are prohibitive, and I would suggest to this Commit­
tee they could call one gentleman in this building who would be a very good 
witness in the person of Senator Macdonell, who is President ol a large piano 
works, who informs me the rate he can get from New \ork to \ ancouver, as 
compared with the rate from here, is very low indeed, in fact, he makes the 
statement that he cannot ship his goods from the Maritime Provinces to Van­
couver at the rate which is being charged. I know nothing whatever about 
the rates. I only call your attention to this, so that these matters may be 
investigated when you are considering the enlarged and improved service. 
Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I thank you.

By the Chairman:
Q. Do you wish to answer all of these questions now?—A. I can answer 

some of them now. In answer "to various questions which Mr. Logan has been 
good enough to put to me: No, I am not satisfied with the position of our 
agents in the West Indies. We have a representative in the West Indies now 
who is somewhat stealthily investigating that aspect of it. I think there is 
need for some alteration, with respect to our agents, and eliminating the com­
petitive feature to which you have referred. Now, how far we should go, or just 
what the position is, I do not know, but I have a pronounced suspicion with 
respect to the character of the service we are getting.

Mr. Logan: May I suggest the consideration of sending out our own agents 
from Canada? Although they would not be familiar with conditions at first, 
they would be interested in Canada and Canada alone.

The Witness: I cannot say what we ought to do, but our attention has 
been drawn to that, and we arc going into it.

With respect to the insufficiency of the service to the Barbadoes and the 
Western Islands, it is a fact, as has already been pointed out here to-day, that 
we are not fulfilling our obligation with respect to the frequency of service, nor 
the passenger accommodations are not such as to invite increases in the passen­
ger business. I can only say in connection with that, that we did the best we 
could with what we had to do with. Some of these vessels which are carrying 
passengers to the West Indies were not designed for that service ; that ser­
vice was an afterthought, after the vessels were built, and we had to furnish 
passengers’ quarters as best we could, but they are not satisfactory. The 
promenade decks are insufficient, the lavatory facilities are so insufficient, so 
are the bathrooms, and, while you can get along with them, they are not what 
we would call first-class, modern facilities, such as would incite increased 
travel.

Mr. Logan : You give a splendid dining-saloon service.
The Witness: That is only a question of buying food and having good 

cooks. That is in our own hands to regulate, but, broadly speaking, I do not 
think the character of the service we are providing is in fulfilment of treaty 
obligations, and as a result of that we have been talking about additional 
vessels of a more modern type.

In respect to the coal; I presume our coal is inspected, and we presume it 
ought to be good coal. (To Mr. Doherty) Have you had any complaints 
about the coal?

- Mr, Doherty : It so often happens, Sir Henry, that if an engineer is making 
slow time, he will blame his coal. He does not hesitate to do that. I know, 
while it is not my own department, that our Engineering Department is paying 
special attention to coal.
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The Witness: Of course, we all know that the easiest thing for an engine- 
driver to complain about is the character of the coal he has got. However, I 
have made a note of that and I will see what we are doing, but just offhand, I 
would say the coal is bought under proper inspection.

(To Mr. Doherty) : What arrangement have we, if any, with the Marconi 
Company ? What is the situation regarding our wireless?

Mr. Doherty: I have not the details, but it is the usual marine contract.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the trouble with it. On the United Fruit 

boats all you get is the United States and the American Stock Market, and the 
American baseball results, and perhaps the racing reports.

Mr. Logan : That is something.
Sir Henry Drayton : You are better off without them.
The Witness: Yes, especially the racing results.
Sir Henry Drayton : It amounts to nothing.
The Witness: I do not know offhand, Mr. Logan, but we will have that 

looked into.
The question of how much tonnage we would require if we had to handle, 

or could handle, all of the tropical fruit traffic between the West Indies and 
Canada, I cannot answer offhand.

As to the Argentine and Brazil : We might have a look at that, but I doubt 
very much whether there would be sufficient business to justify the establish­
ment of an ocean route to the Argentine and Brazil.

Mr. Dohertty: We have already had one experience there.
The Witness: We tried it and abandoned it. There was insufficient traffic. 

You see most of the traffic between the Argentine and Brazil goes to the United 
Kingdom—at least, to some extent—and that in turn I think is due to the fact 
that English capital is very largely invested in the Argentine railways, and 
for that reason those who have their capital so invested have brought pressure 
to bear on English shipping companies to establish routes between the Argen­
tine and England, and the trade relations which exist between the Argentine 
and England, as I say, is fundamentally due to the large capital interests which 
are invested in the Argentine railways.

Mr. Logan : I may say in addition to that, that one of the fundamental 
reasons we have not secured proper trade is that we have not been properly 
represented there.

The Witness: If you have a large amount of English capital invested in 
the Argentine, and have a number of important and outstanding business people 
in the industrial and the financial world interested in the Argentine, naturally 
they address their efforts to promoting trade between the Argentine and their 
own country. There is no Canadian capital invested in the Argentine, broadly 
speaking, nor in the Argentine railways, and that is the condition to which you 
refer. That has grown out of this fact I have mentioned, and that is something 
which is beyond the control of the Merchant Marine, and largely beyond the 
control of the people of Canada.

As to the present rates, the high rates which are charged : I am not quite 
sure whether I understand your question. To what rates do you refer, Mr. 
Logan?

Mr. Logan : The rates between Eastern Canada and Vancouver via the 
Panama Canal. How do they compare with New York?

The Witness: We have lately established a service from Halifax, through 
the Panama Canal, to Vancouver; from Montreal in the summertime.

Mr. Doherta . At the present time the rates are exactly the same as from 
New York. I will say, however, in connection with the first sailing, that we had
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to get out a tariff in very short order, when we decided to inaugurate the Inter- 
Coastal Service, and we'found we had some rates somewhat out of line, but we 
had several discussions with the trade in the east, and also on the Pacific Coast, 
and I think that the trade now is quite satisfied that our rates have been put 
on a proper basis by the new tariff which has been issued within the last few 
days, so I think there will be no further difficulty on that score. At the present 
time, the Canadian ships are under no disability with respect to rates to Van­
couver as compared with New York. As a matter of fact in so far as British 
Columbia is concerned, it will be a definite advantage in rates, because as a 
rule there is a differential rate charged by American lines from Seattle, which 
would make the rate to New York even higher than our rate to Montreal.

The Witness: In other words, the rate position is satisfactory?
Mr. Doherty: I have assurances from the greater part of the companies.
Mr. Logan: I think that is a very cheerful statement, and should be made 

public. A man told me that the rates from New York to the Pacific were only 
about one-third of what they were in Canada. Of course, that is six months 
ago, and the position may have changed. I think this statement clears it up.

The Chairman : Does that complete that part of your programme?
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. I would just like a little information, Sir Henry, in connection with the 
services to the West Indies; I suppose the idea is to have a dual service.—A. I 
do not know what that would be.

Mr. Doherty : No, I think the gênerai idea was to have a service to 
one or two of the large islands, and have a separate service to the Westward
group.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That is two separate services. I would very much like to see a large 

addition to the West Indies trade, but there are difficulties in the way. Has the 
question been at all considered in connection with the United Fruit Company? 
It is not merely a matter of competition, but that company practically controls 
production.—A. Yes, they have their own banana farms and all that sort of thing.

Q. Yes, and the independant producer is almost out of business. Has any­
thing been done, or could anything be done ? It seems to me to be the logical way 
of proceeding to make an arrangement with the United Fruit Company, under 
which a certain amount of that banana traffic would be diverted to Canada, either 
by your boats or by their own. Our great effort is to get a trade with Canada, 
and when your competitors not only have the boats but control the trade, we 
have a dual thing to look into in considering the question.—A. We have in the 
West Indies today a representative who was sent down there to make an 
exhaustive study of the whole position and one of the things to which his atten­
tion was called was that very fact, that perhaps some of our possible competitors 
controlled the production, and we should have to go to the bottom of it to reach 
any conclusion.

Q. I know personally that in Jamaica the United Fruit Company is the 
whole thing, and the Atlantic Fruit Company which has started there is, I 
think, controlled by this company and is only a subsidiary. They only allow it 
to do business there so they will not be accused of having a monopoly.—A. What 
you mean is that it is no good going into the trade and building vessels if we 
cannot get the traffic?

Q. Yes, we certainly should not put on boats unless we are sure of getting 
cargoes. I have had all kinds of figures given me as to the possible movement 
into Canada. I have had figures given me all the way from two million sticks 
to nine million sticks of bananas. Has your Department accurate information
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about what our banana consumption is?—A. Our banana consumption in 
Canada?

Q. Yes.—A. I have that in the office, but I cannot tell you offhand what 
it is. It is very considerable.

Mr. Logan : Really, it seems to me you can get almost any statement as 
to the amount of bananas we use in Canada. I got a statement which I put 
on Hansard the other day from the Customs Department, I think, of some 
2,100,000 stems. On the other hand, I see it stated in trade papers and other 
papers which would seem to speak with authority that it amounts to anywhere 
up to 9,000,000. I would like to get the thing correctly.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, the committee has not a quorum now, so I 
do not see much purpose in continuing.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I would like Sir Henry Thornton to go into that.—A. Perhaps I could 

answer it partly by saying that we have a representative there now who is going 
into the question of the whole possibilities of our trade in the West Indies.

Q. It occurred to me that the United Fruit Company, with all its ressources, 
would not welcome our going into the field, and that it might be that a proper 
working arrangement can be made under which their properly equipped boats 
would collect bananas for you under terms to be mutually agreed on so we could 
get our bananas and our other fruits in direct.—A. Yes, I think that is quite an 
important thing.

Q. They have a pickup service, and there is no use our spending money if 
we can get the results without. It would be a good deal better to let them 
have some profit on the collection of the fruit, and get bananas and other fruits 
in directly.

Mr. Logan : May I suggest one thing? I would suggest to Sir Henry the 
cutting out of sending a large ship such as the Canadian Fisher or the Canadian 
Forester away on to Belize. It seems to me—and I think the general opinion 
of everyone with whom I have discussed the matter—that when you get to 
Kingston, to go on to the little port of Belize, you have to travel anywhere 
from three to four days of straight sailing without getting very much cargo. 
It seems to me that that could be arranged as a sort of side line trip.

The Witness: What draught of water do these pickup boats have? Would 
it be about 10 or 12 feet?

Sir Henry Drayton: At the outside, I should say from looking at them. 
They run around 1,200 tons.

The witness retired.
The Committee adjourned.

Statement showing Results of Voyages of Steamers carrying Cattle from Montreal, Season 1923
S. S. C ommander, Voyage 14 

Sailing date July 27.
Destination.......................
Duration Voyage.............
Earnings, Eastbound.......

" Westbound......

216 cattle $ 4,320 00

Cardiff 
47 days 

30,554 37 
3,314 94

Expenses..............................................................

Deficit...........................................
.....................................i'

Principal Commodities—

Cheese.......................................
Grain...................................................
Provisions.........................................................
Cereals......................................................................
[Sir Henry Thornton.]

33,869 31 
38,450 63

Quantity 
167 tons $ 

285,788 bushels , 
215 tons 
104 tons

4,581 32

Earnings 
2,244 40 

19,072 17 
2,174 665 

840 60
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Statement showing Results of Voyages of Steamers carrying Cattle from Montreal, Season, 1923—Con.

S. S. Commander, Voyage 15 
Sailing date September 24
Destination........................
Duration Voyage..............
Earnings, Eastbound........

“ Westbound.........

Expense

Deficit.............

Principal Commodities—
Butter....................................
Cheese...................................
Grain.....................................
Lumber.................................
Phosphorus...........................
Zinc Dross............................
Provisions.............................

S. S. Commander, Voyage 16 _ . 
Sailing date, November 17.
Destination..........................
Duration Voyage................
Earnings, Eastbound...........

“ Westbound.............

Expense

Surplus

150 cattle $ 2,700 00

Cardiff 
44 days 
20,336 98 

266.59

20,603 57 
33,175 91

Quantity 
40 tons 

243 tons 
160,000 bushels 
106,603s. ft.

22 tons 
52 tons 

101 tons

272 cattle

Dundee 
51 days 
38,132 74 

1,061 38

39,194 12 
37,841 97

12,572 34

Earnings
1.264 69
3.265 50 

10,080 00
1,048 07 

491 84 
334 40 

1,098 49

S 6,800 00

1,352 15

QuantityPrincipal Commodities—   248,648 bushels
Grain.................................................     271,519 s. ft.
Lumber...............................................................................................  190 tons
Provisions.......................................................................................   106 tons
Nickel Oxide..........................................................................................

216 cattleS. S. Mariner, Voyage 13...........................................................................
Sailing date, July 13. ................. Cardiff
Destination.................................................................................................... 55 days
Duration Voyage................................................................................. 28,753 78
Earnings, Eastbound...................................................................... 8,469 03

“ Westbound...............................................................................

37,222 81
Expenses......................................................................................................... 39,516 33

f Deficit

Principal Commodities —
Nickel Oxide............
Flour..........................
Grain...........................
Lumber.......................
Phosphorus...............
Provisions..................
Miscellaneous............

271 cattleS.S. Mariner, Voyage 15...... ....................................................................
Sailing date, November 9. Dundee
Destination................................................................................. 49 days
Duration Voyage....................................................................... ......... 36,133 90
Earnings, Eastbound................................................. .... 5,379 08

“ Westbound...............................................................................

41,512 98
Expenses......................................................................................................... 38,796 27

Surplus...................................................................................................................

Principal Commiodities— Quantity
Grain..............................................................................................................  276,568 bushels
Lumber..........................................................................................................  216,324 s. ft.
Nickle oxide.................................................................................................. 132 tons
Provisions...................................................................................................... 153 tons

Quantity 
132 tons 
219 tons

. 265,803 bushels 
61,850 s. ft.

43 tons 
145 tons

Earnings 
25,067 71 
2,495 63 
1,746 49 
1,420 02

$ 4,320 00

3,293 52

Earnings 
1,781 11 

931 00 
17,641 68 

591 99 
964 70 

1,294 80 
1,228 50

6,775 00

2,716 71

Earnings 
24,216 22 

1,920 11 
1,778 61 
1,409 25

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Statement shôwing Results of Voyages of Steamers carrying Cattle from Quebec, Season

S.S. Leader, Voyage 8. 
Sailing date, June 15.
Destination...............
Duration Voyage.. 
Earnings, Eastbound 

“ Westbound

210 cattle $

Cardiff'
55 days 
26,953 41 

8,826 62

Expenses
35,780 03 
40,260 27

Deficit......

Principal Commodities—

Hour................................
Grain...............................
Lumber...........................
Nickel Oxide..................
Provisions.......................
Phosphorus.....................

S, S. Leader, Voyage 9........
Sailing date, August 16.
Destination...... ...........
Duration Voy age...........
Earnings, Eastbound...

“ Westbound...

Quantity 
226 tons 

220,294 bushels 
86 tons 

132 tons 
161 tons 
46 tons

229 cattle $

Cardiff 
41 days 
32,279 20 
5,934 09

Expenses..........................

Surplus.......

Principal Commodities....—
Cheese.............................
Grain...............................
Provisions.......................
Phosphorus.....................

S. S. Leader, Voyage 10......
Sailing date, October 5.
Destination.....................
Duration Voyage...........
Earnings Eastbound ...

“ Westbound

Expenses.

Surplus.

Principal Commodities
Cheese......................
Butter......................
Grain........................
Zinc Ashes...............
Nickel Oxide...........
Provisions........

S. S. Victor Voyage 12.. 
Sailing date, July 5.
Destination.............
Duration Voyage... 
Earnings Eastbound 

“ Westbound

Expenses

Deficit..

Principal Commodities—

Cheese.......................
Grain..........................
Lumber......................
Provisions..................
Nickel Oxide............
Phosphorus...............
[Sir Henry Thornton.]

38,213 29 
33,814 90

Quantity 
236 tons 

270,369 bushels 
235 tons 

43 tons

242 cattle $

Glasgow 
43 days 

30,544 25 
10,375 68

40,920 23 
38,281 66

Quantity 
131 tons 
29 “

228,745 bushels 
135 tons 
264 “

61 “

229 cattle $

Cardiff 
49 days 

31,566 49 
2,307 24

33,873 73 
37,917 52

Quantity 
121 tons

234,215 bushels 
272,571 s. ft. 

257 tons 
265 “
43 “

1923

4.200 00

4,480 24

Earnings 
957 60 

15,542 93 
485 45 

1,778 96 
1,436 78 
1,160 19

4,580 00

4,398 39

Earnings 
3,851 90 

19,448 77 
2,211 79 

960 87

4,760 00

2,638 57

Earnings
1 761 13 

912 06 
17,200 63 

942 50 
3,551 71 

548 33

4,580 00

4,043 79

Earnings 
1,630 64 

15,755 86 
2,660 73 
1,993 38 
3,565 57 

966 45
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Statement showing results of voyages of Steamers Carrying Cattle from Quebec, season 1923 ( oncluded

Canadian National Railways

Gross Earnings for 8,400 ton type Steamer Carrying full capacity Grain Cargo and 233 Head of Cattle

31 Loads Wheat = 248,000 bushels=31,000 quarters at 3/- per quarter = £4,650 at 34 50= $20,925 00
233 Cattle at $20 00 per head................................................................................................................... ........4’()b0 ou

$25,585 00

Com mitee1 Room 231,
House of Commons,

Thursday, June 19, 1924.

The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping met at 
10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. W. D. Euler, M.P., Chairman, presiding.

The Chairman : Gentlemen, we have a quorum although the Minister is 
not here. Yesterday we had practically completed our consideration of the 
Merchant Marine with the exception of the estimates. I think we had almost 
finished the West Indies.

Before we proceed, I would like to say that we have had a little difficulty 
in getting the typewritten reports. The Committee yesterday decided we should 
have 25 typewritten copies. The Editor of Debates of the Hansard tells me that 
it is practically impossible to get more than about seven reports each day. We 
can have seven each day, but the balance may not be delivered until early next 
week. That does not give each member of the Committee a copy nor provide 
for the extra copies which may be required. If the report were printed this 
difficulty would be eliminated, but I do not know whether the Committee cares 
to go to the expense of printing. If it is satisfactory to the Committee to con­
tinue in that way, it is quite all right. Does the Committee think it worth while 
to incur additional expense?

Mr. Stewart (Humboldt) : I would like to have the evidence.
Mr. Mackinnon: We will eventually get it?
The Chairman : It will come out, but you will not get it immediately. 

Naturally the Committee would like to have the complete copies.
Mr. Mackinnon: We can have them afterwards.
The Chairman : If you do not want it every day, well and good.
Mr. Stewart: I do not think all of us can carry this matter in our heads. 

I would like to check up the statements, to see if we require any further infor­
mation than that which, perhaps, Sir Henry Thornton can give us.

Sir Henry Thornton : As a possible makeshift, if the reporter could give 
us one carbon copy, could it not be sent to the Department of the Interior and 
blueprinted? We often do that in the Railways.

Mr. Milne: Perhaps they would want some remuneration too.
Sir Henry Thornton : No; it is a very trifling thing. Perhaps that sug­

gestion would help.
The Chairman : I suppose we would have to get authority to incur any 

expense.
•Sir Henry Thornton: We have a duplicating machine in Montreal, and, 

if you like, we can have it sent down here, and if the reporter will furnish us 
with a copy of the proceedings, we can reproduce them this evening.

The Chairman : • Gentlemen, what do you think of that?
Mr. Kyte: You mean to reproduce the copies of the evidence?

i
. [Sir Henry Thornton.]
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The Chairman: Yes. We are not getting a sufficient number of copies, 
and I think each member of the Committee should have a copy. Would this 
be worth while? Possibly there is a good deal of evidence that is not as import­
ant as other parts. Would it be worth while to appoint a small committee to 
review the evidence, pick out what we want, and have it reproduced?

Hon Mr. Graham : For all the difference in it, I think it would be better 
for the members to have a complete copy, in making our report to the House. 
Surely to Heaven we have some device in this building by which we can produce 
copies of this.

Sir Henry Thornton : We can do it, if you want it, by having our machine 
sent down from Montreal.

The Chairman: I think that is a good idea, so, Sir Henry, if you will have 
that machine sent down, we will proceed that way

Sir Henry Thornton, recalled
The Chairman: Gentleman, I think we have practically completed the con­

sideration of the West Indian end of the business, excepting that I believe Mr. 
Mackinnon has a question or two he wants to ask.

Mr. Mackinnon.: There is just one remark I would like to make. I believe 
in getting these new steamers, if possible, on that trade, but my impression was 
that the United States had control of the products there, and it did not look as 
if we would be justified in putting on additional equipment. So I would like to 
ask Sir Henry Thornton about the exports from Canada to the West Indies. 
That was not taken into consideration until yesterday. Also, if his answer is, 
“Yes, we have no bananas” what other products have we that we can handle, 
sugar, molasses, fruit of different kinds-----

Mr. Kyte: Rum?
Mr. Mackinnon: The impression which the Committee got yesterday was 

that bananas were the main thing, but that that business had received a black 
eye because United States were growing the fruit and handling it themselves.

The Witness: I think perhaps there may have been a wrong impression 
given as a result of the discussion yesterday. It was pointed out as a warning, 
I understand, that we might possibly find that the bananas and other fruits, and 
things of that sort, which would constitute the northbound cargoes, were so 
much in the hands of our steamship competitors, notably, the United Fruit 
Company, that even if we went to the expense of putting on our ships, and 
building new ships, we might find ourselves pushed out of the market for the 
reasons I have just given. I do not understand that that was a positive assertion 
of fact, but it was a point to which Sir Henry Drayton called attention, as I 
remember it, and one which we should carefully consider before there was any 
commitment, and my reply to that, as it would be also to your question, Mr. 
Mackinnon, is that we have a responsible officer in the West Indies investigating 
that and various other things, with a view of getting first-hand information on 
the ground, with respect to this prospective business, before we commit anyone, 
or anyone is committed to any large capital investment. The question was raised, 
with respect to the possibilities of northbound cargoes, such as bananas, fruits, 
and so on, being in the hands of the United Fruit Company, or other competitors, 
and we might find ourselves going into a business with the ground cut from under 
us. I said, Sir Henry, that you did not make that as a positive assertion, but gave 
that as a warning, and as a thing which ought to be carefully investigated before 
any investment was made. Did I get the right slant on it?'

Sir Henry Drayton : Quite right.
The Witness: So that is being gone into before anything definite is done.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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As to the possibilities of southbound traffic: That, at present, consists of 
grain products, iron and steel goods, cement, provisions, fertilizer, hay, lumber, 
and a certain amount of miscellaneous freight. The northbound cargoes would 
consists of sugar, molasses, cocoa, cocoanuts, and general traffic. I think there 
also would be a prospective field—although it may be included under miscella­
neous articles—for manufactured articles, and textiles. That is in answer to your 
question of what fthe southbound cargoes would be.

Mr. Mackinnon : Could you give us any idea of the value of it?
The Witness: (To Mr. Doherty) Do the north and southbound cargoes 

balance to the West Indies, or which traffic predominates?
Mr. Doherty: The southbound.
The Witness: What percentage of difference is there?
Mr. Doherty: Perhaps 60 and 40.
The Witness: It runs on that basis. The northbound traffic represents 

about one-third of the total traffic; that is, they divide it, two-thirds southbound 
and one-third northbound on that basis, indicating, of course, that this traffic is 
carrying more of our goods south than the products of the West Indies north.

By Mr. Mackinnon:
Q. Well, is there any passenger traffic?—A. There is a certain amount of 

passenger traffic, but it is rather negligible. That is, it is not a factor under 
present conditions. As I think I explained yesterday, these boats were not built 
primarily for the passenger traffic, and the passenger accommodations are not 
such as to excite a large volume of that character of traffic. In the new boats, 
should they be built, there would of course be much more passenger accommoda­
tion, and much better facilities for the care of passengers.

(At this point Chairman Euler left the Chair; Mr. Stork acting as Vice 
Chairman.)

Hon. Mr. Graham: As a matter of fact, Sir Henry, I think it can be relied 
upon that during this recess the Government will make a thorough investigation 
as to the possibilities of trade, whether within the treaty or outside of it, but 
it might be well to have an investigation for the Canadian Merchant Marine, 
because the whole thing will be linked up.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. There are other steamship companies that are promoting trade among the 

West Indies, besides the United Fruit Company—British steamers?—A Yes.
Q. The Furness-Withy Company?—A. Yes.
Q. The Royal Mail Packet Company?—A. Yes.
Q. When I was down there last fall there was considerable agitation in 

Jamaica, particularly, over the report that the Furness-Withy Company, which 
owned large plantations in South Africa, were carrying fruit from South Africa 
and dropping out of the fruit-carrying trade from the West Indies. The people 
were extremely anxious that the Canadian Merchant Marine should be in a 
position to carry larger quantities of fruit than heretofore, because they needed 
,a market for it—A. Was there any reason given for the Furness-Withy Com­
pany dropping out of the trade?

Q. The only reason they gave was that this Company was interested per­
sonally in fruit plantations in South Africa?—A. It was not due to lack of con­
fidence in the West Indian trade?

Q. Not at all?—A. It was for personal reasons?
Q. Yes. I happen to have some West Indian newspapers in my apart­

ment, in which is set forth the fact that the people are very much alarmed 
lest their export of fruit be very much curtailed next year?—A. In connection
many in iiniEiir iii iloihii m Thomtonj
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with the whole thing, there ought to be considered, and would be considered 
the possibility of coming to some kind of an arrangement with some company 
already in the business. I think Sir Henry Drayton referred to the United 
Fruit Company, but the whole thing has to be considered from several different 
angles.

Q. -If the fear expressed by these people last fall that there would be 
smaller shipments to Great Britain is well founded, it means there would be a 
large amount available for Canadian shipments, and they are anxious to culti­
vate a Canadian market—A. I think it is obvious that a good market might 
be developed there, which would be of great value. We are carrying a large 
preponderance of Canadian goods south over the northbound traffic. I think 
we ought to stimulate that and try to get as much as we can, but I want to 
call attention to the service we render to Canada in transporting our goods to 
the West Indies.

Mr. Kyte: Unquestionably the service is valuable, from that point of 
view.

The Witness: Yes.
(Whereupon Chairman Euler resumed the Chair; Acting Chairman Stork 

withdrawing).
The Chairman : Have any members of the Committee any further ques­

tions to ask Sir Henry in regard to this particular subject?
Mr. Jelliff: I do not want to speak on fruit, but I do want to get back 

to the grain subject, and ask you what the results were with the grain trade on 
the Lakes—with the Merchant Marine?

The Witness: We had eight steamers on the Lakes last year, making 107 
trips in the grain trade, carrying 11,380,787 bushels. The gross earnings of that 
traffic were $585,288.13; the disbursements or expenses amounted to $507,261.23, 
leaving a profit of $78,026.90.

By the Chairman:
Q. That is an operating profit?—Yes, that is only on operating profit; 

there are included in the expenses only the operating expenses of the vessel plus 
the insurance.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Those voyages you are speaking of are included in the report of voyages 

under charter—157?—A. This is put generally under charter.
Q. Will you just* explain to us briefly what you mean by a charter?—A. 

A charter is this: a man rents a vessel from you; you rent it to him at a certain 
price, and under certain conditions, and he runs it as he pleases, and what he 
makes out of it is his. Your profit is the rental made, just like renting a house, 
or renting a building for store purposes. There is another form of charter too, 
and that is one under which we would undertake to carry a certain specific 
cargo—say, grain—that is, we would contract with the shipper to take a cargo 
of grain for him. That would be regarded as a charter, as differentiated from 
general cargo purposes.

Q. You contract to carry- a certain load, and assume responsibility for the 
expenses?—A. There are two kinds of charters, either you can contract with a 
shipper to carry a cargo for him, a certain traffic for him, or you can charter 
the ship to some individual who will run it himself. (To Mr. Doherty) Most 
of these were, I think, under our own operation?

Mr. Doherty: All of them were, sir.
Mr. Jelliff. It was in respect to these that the profits were made?
The Witness: Yes, we made $78,000.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. Jelliff: Have we any more boats which can be utilized for that 
traffic? '

Mr. Doherty: No, we have all we possibly could put in the trade on the 
Lakes now.

By the Chairman:
Q. Would you say, Sir Henry, that you made a net profit after considering 

the interest on the investment?—A. No, we did not, if you take into considera­
tion the cost of the ship, and its annual capital charge.

By Mr. Jelliff:
Q. Do you consider that is competition which might have been engendered 

by the use of our own ships—A. I think it was useful. I remember early last 
autumn there was a lot of trouble, you know, about United States tonnage coming 
into the field. I was very much alarmed about it because I was afraid that not 
only would the grain not move, but if it did move, it would have to find an outlet 
through Duluth, or some American port, so consequently I was glad to find so 
many of our ships were engaged in this traffic. I went1 further, and tried to 
charter United States tonnage for the Merchant Marine, to break any deadlock 
that might come, and I think the fact that we have our own ships in there on 
the Lakes, or that we were also in the shipping business to some extent, and could 
take over chartered tonnage if we could find it, may perhaps have had some 
effect ; how much, it is difficult to say. Fortunately the thing was straightened 
out and we did not have to do anything.

Q. Farmers generally in the West have been clamouring for some of our own 
vessels in that trade, to break up some of the combinations?-—A. We have as 
many of our own ships in the trade now as we can put there.

Q. Are your vessels all used in transport between Canadian ports?
Mr. Doherty : With one or two exceptions, yes.
The Witness: (To Mr. Doherty) They were used for Canadian ports?
Mr. Doherty : Yes, Sir Henry, but they went to American ports during the 

early months of the season when we could not get grain from Fort William and 
Port Arthur.

Mr. Stewart : I was going to suggest it would be interesting, if it could be 
done.without much trouble to the Department, to have a record of a typical 
voyage for a grain boat on the Great Lakes, similar to the one we had in regard 
to the cattle business.

Mr. Doherty: That is not possible.
Mr. Stewart: If you could take two for each month and take one carried 

at the maximum rate, and one at the minimum rate for that month, and give 
us the full information, the dates, the tonnage of the boats, the ports—well, I 
suppose they all originated at Port Arthur, but the ports to which the cargoes 
were carried, it would be very valuable for reference in further statements regard­
ing the rates on the Great Lakes.

The Witness: (To Mr. Doherty) Can that be worked out?
Mr. Doherty: No. The accounting on the Lakes is not done on the basis 

of a single trip, but runs over a series of trips with some of the steamers oper­
ated continually throughout the entire season. A single account covers the 
entire operating expenses involved and the receipts from the freight. It would 
not be advisable to work it out on the basis of a single voyage.

The Witness: (To Mr. Doherty) Could you not make an estimate of 
that?

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. Doherty: It would be difficult.
Mr. Stewart: Rather than an estimate, could we do it this way? Instead 

of asking for different voyages, could we take one boat—you account each 
boat?

Mr. Doherty : Yes, absolutely.
Mr. Stewart: Take in one or two boats and give us a statement including 

those items I have suggested. That would be interesting.
The Chairman: It seems to me it would be worth while having a record 

to enable you to say what the net results are from each individual voyage. Is 
that customary?

Mr. Doherty: Not on the Lakes, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman : It is, with the ocean traffic.
Mr. Doherty : Yes. On the Lakes they are running backward and for­

ward; more or less of a ferry service, and expenses are being incurred which 
overlap each other.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Could you give a report on two steamers for the 
season?

Mr. Doherty : Yes, we could do that.
By Mr. Harris:

Q. Were any of these boats employed in carrying hard coal up through 
the canals?—A. I don’t think so.. (To Mr. Doherty) Were there?

Mr. Doherty: I think we had two or three cargoes of coal; I would not 
say whether it was hard coal or soft coal.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Where did it originate? From Sydney?
Mr. Doherty: No, from American Lake ports across to Fort William.
Mr. Harris : There are no coal supplies at Cape Breton?
Mr. Doherty : We have none suitable for service through the canals.
Mr. Harris: Have you any record of your carriage across the Great Lakes 

—whether it was profitable or not?
Mr. Doherty: Well, as a matter of fact, it is not profitable in the true sense, 

but it does assist in giving us some return for operating the steamers up to Fort 
William, as they would otherwise go up light, but there is no actual profit. It 
assists in operating the steamers on their westbound voyages. The present rate 
is somewhere in the vicinity of 40 cents a ton, and you can imagine what it would 
leave for profit.

Mr. Harris: Did that little extra enable you to operate at a profit?
Mr. Doherty: It assisted in bringing the results which Sir Henry has just 

given.
Mr. Doherty: Do you enumerate any of these results?
Mr. Doherty: It would be included in the final figures.
The Witness: (To Mr. Doherty) It was not a large factor?
Mr. Doherty: No, very small.
Sir Henry Drayton : There is a new type of boat which loads either coal or 

sand very rapidly, and unloads equally as rapidly mechanically, with economy 
of service. Could a boat of that knd ,be navigated through our locks from Nova 
Scotia to Toronto?

The Witness: I doubt it, because I happen to know a great deal about it, 
because I had charge of the docks at Ashtabula and Erie for a while. Economy

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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in lake transport' of coal and ore consists of large vessels, of, say, 10,000 tons ; 
their average length is something like 550 feet, with a beam of perhaps 50 to 55 
feet, with the engines aft and the quarters forward, and all of the hatches, as you 
know, open up; you practically take the whole deck off, and underneath you 
have simply a bin. There is no bracings or anything in there. Now, these vessels 
handle ore and coal at a low rate with a good deal of profit, and can be loaded 
and unloaded easily. I have known a ship to come into the port of Ashtabula at 
8 o’clock in the morning with 10,000 tons of ore, be unloaded, be reloaded with 
10,000 tons of coal, and be away by 8 o’clock in the evening. That makes a 
very fast turn-around, but vessels of that knid would be much too large to pass 
through our present canals, and I doubt if we built a vessel of a size to pass 
through the canals, there would be a profit in it.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That is a typical lake coal-carrier?—A. Yes.
Q. There has been a slight change in that. There is one operating out of 

Thorold. A man called Dick owns it. It is a stronger boat and has certain 
mechanical devices, and is supposed to be doing very well with sand and coal. 
I was wondering if it would be feasible with that type of boat, which is smaller 
than the type of which you spoke, to bring up coal from Nova Scotia to Toronto 
and Hamilton at a cheaper rate. It would be a good thing for Nova Scotia, and 
a good thing for Ontario?—A. I am speaking now without much knowledge of 
this particular boat, but I would say you would practically have to have the same 
crew on the smaller boat as on the larger. In the larger boat you would have 
much more cargo expense.

Q. I don’t think it would stand the weather you get on the Gulf?—A. I think 
that is true.

Q. This other boat is a half-way boat between a sea boat and a lake boat?— 
A- I think you will find the whole question will hinge upon the expenses of run­
ning the boat per cubic foot of. cargo space. That is where we “get off” event­
ually. That might very easily be investigated ; it would not be any particular 
trouble.

Q. It seems to me there is a large field there which ought to be investigated 
in the public interest?—A. It would not be much of an undertaking. I think we 
had better make an investigation of that and give a report before the committee
adjourns.

Sir Henry Drayton : If there is any way of getting Nova Scotia coal to 
Ontario, we want to do it, but by water is the only way we can do it.

The Witness: Water is the only way we can bring Canadian coal up in 
competition with United States coal.

By the Chairman:
Q. Could it be brought up without trans-shipping at Montreal?—A. Yes. Sir 

Henry’s idea is to provide a boat that will pass through the Canals.
* By Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. It would require a boat of considerably light draught?—A. I am afraid 
we will be up against the small size of the boats.

Mr. HJarris: I take it none of these 107 trips you spoke of with these 8 
steamers competed in any way with boats carrying general cargo to Hamilton 
and Toronto?

Mr. Doherty : No, they did not come down below Port Colborne.
Mr. Harris : No competition with the Kirkwood Line or the Canada Steam­

ship?
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. Doherty : No competition at Montreal at all.
By Mr. Milne:

Q. Could these boats handle grain efficiently?—A. No, you have to figure 
on these cargoes in vessels especially built for that particular kind of service, 
either due to their light construction or some such reason, not being available 
for ocean service. You cannot switch lake tonnage to the ocean, or ocean to 
the lakes with advantage:

Q. Were these ocean vessels?—A. These were built primarily for ocean 
transport. They are strongly built vessels, and vessels quite capable of weather­
ing heavy seas. —

Q. Could they not be used in some of our ocean lines?—A. They were 
too small to be profitable in our ocean traffic.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. We have five or six for the West Indies service now?—A. Yes, some of 

them.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. What tonnage are those?—A. About 3,400 tons.
By Mr. Harris:

Q. I take it your policy is to keep all these boats employed?—A. The effort 
is to keep every vessel employed, to make any money out of it,

Q. That means quite a number will be tied up next season?—A. I think 
we had a smaller number of vessels tied up last 3rear than in most previous 
years.

Mr. Doherty: Than we had the year before.
The Wtness (to Mr. Doherty) : You only had how many tied up, on an 

average, last year?
Mr. Doherty: About 10.
Sir Henry Drayton: I will say your performance with our emergency fleet 

has been much better than the performance of the United States with her 
emergency fleet.

The Witness : I thank you for the compliment, but I do not know as it is 
a very eloquent one, because they certainly made a first-class mess of their 
fleet.

Sir Henry Drayton : They are subject to the same troubles we are.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Oh, yes.
The Witness: They had a much larger fleet, much more difficult to handle. 

It was an enormous proposition.
By the Chairman:

Q. In a general way, Sir Henry, would you care to express an opinion as 
to- whether you consider it worth while to continue this eastern service which 
resulted in substantial losses?—A. Of course, a great deal of prominence of a 
humourous nature was given to the famous voyage of one ship which lost 
$73,000. but that is not to be taken as typical of the whole of the service. I 
should say we ought to continue our Oriental service. The more we study it the 
more traffic we find that can be hauled and developed. It is like everything 
else. What I said about the Merchant Marine as a whole, I think, applies to 
the service to the Orient. I should not feel disposed at this stage of the game 
to throw up the sponge and retire from the ring, but as long as we have these 
ships, and as long as we have gotten into the jack-pot—probably nobody will 
understand what I mean by that—but as long as we have gotten into the jack­
pot, I think I would be willing to stand a raise or two------

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Hon. Mr. Graham : Sir Henry Drayton will draw three cards.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, are there any further questions on this phase 

of the subject?
By Mr. Jelliff:

Q. How are the rates for carrying grain on the Great Lakes determined? 
Bv supplv and demand for tonnage----- A. You mean, in general?

Q. Yes?
The Witness (to Mr. Doherty) : Can you answer that ?
Mr. Doherty: Market conditions and supply and demand.
The Witness (to Mr. Doherty) : It depends on the ratio of the supply to 

the demand?
Mr. Doherty : Absolutely, sir.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. We can take it for granted, Sir Henry, that in this return you will bring 

down, with the rates, you will show all that the traffic would bear at that time? 
—A. I don’t know as I would say that. Possibly we may have been philan­
thropic and not charged the rates we might have obtained. In the hand­
ling of anything of this sort one has to look at it from two points of 
view; in the first place, wre want the Merchant Marine to pay. That 
is our job. That is what wre are here for; to address every reasonable effort to 
making the Merchant Marine pay, but in doing that wre must not be oppressive ; 
we must not do anything which stifles the industrial life of the country, or 
anything of that sort. Sometimes it is a difficult course to steer, but we must 
do our job as well as we can; that is, we must make the tools we have been 
given pay, and we must try to do that under such conditions as will not create 
an onerous burden to those who give us their traffic. That is as near as I can 
come to answering that question.

Q. If your return shows the rates, we can compare them with the average 
rates, and draw our own conclusions as to how philanthropic you were.

The Chairman: There is no law against that.
Mr. Harris: The report we have in front of us, Mr. Chairman, does not just 

lay out in as readable a wray as perhaps some of us would like to have it the 
operations of the Canadian Government, Merchant Marine for this year, as 
compared with other years. Before I ask for that, I want to ask Sir Henry 
(Thornton) if the management have in mind any changes in the general method 
of making up these reports?

The Witness: Mr. Harris, I can answer that question in this way; I don’t 
think very much of this report, between you and me, although my name is 
signed to it, nor do I think' a great deal of a good many reports which have 
been made in the past. This is in respect to the Railway, and we undertook to 
produce a report which would as fully as possible set forth the operations and 
the affairs of the company, and it was a pretty big job. We had never done it 
in so much detail as that before this year as it involved a great deal of work, 
but I think this report ought to be expanded materially next year. In other 
words, this report next year must come out—and if I have anything to do with 
it it will come out—in pretty much the same form as the railway report for 
last year—

By Sir Henry Thornton:
Q. Not quite, I hope?—A. I don’t catch the significance of that statement.
Sir Henry Drayton : I don’t know whether we want to discuss the railway 

report yet, but you have on your front page here a summation and a.result which
[Sir Henry Thornton.]

81695—4i



52 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

I cannot find in the other. You show the real position here. Take the first page 
here: you show your real position. If we had that in the Railway’s, we would 
not have statements saying one thing and then another.

The Witness : So far as that is concerned, whatever may be said of this 
report, or the railway report, the effort wfill be made with this and the railway 
report to produce a report which will actually reflect the true conditions. That 
is what we tried to do with the railway report, although you may disagree with 
it.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Have you any page you can refer to which is the same as the first page 

of the Merchant Marine report?—A. The railway report was made in the same 
way as most railway reports—

Q. That hardly answers my question—A. I think we are rather getting off 
the subject.

The Chairman: Yes, I think so.
The Witness: What I wanted to explain to Mr. Harris is that we will pro­

duce and submit a report which will be much more complete than this report.
Mr. Harris: I think there ought to be a careful study of this particular point, 

and whatever does come down should, in ensuing years, come down in like manner 
in order that we can form some comparison. It is pretty difficult for one to arrive 
at any statement of policy on reading this.

The Chairman: Sir Henry has stated he intends having a much more 
complete report this year.

Mr. Macrinnon : I want to ask the Minister one question, and that is 
about the coal from Nova Scotia to Ontariô. Sir Henry states that these 
steamers can not go up on account of the canals being too shallow. Can the 
Minister say if anything has been done towards deepening the canals to the 
Lakes?

Hon. Mr. Graham : If the question of the deepening of the St. Lawrence 
Waterways should be solved, that will answer my friend’s question. At the 
present time there is provision for a 14-foot draught. Our boats, if loaded with 
a full cargo, could not go through the canals going west; they are not built for 
that purpose. The only way to ship Nova Scotia coal is by water. At the 
present time the main difficulty which has arisen, so I am told, is in the trans­
shipment at Montreal. I have wondered if that was really an impediment, but 
the Government is now studying the question of bringing coal from Nova Scotia 
to Montreal by boat, and then providing cheaper transportation in the dis­
tribution of that coal through Ontario. I do not know whether that question 
can be worked out or not.

Mr. Harris: Well, go ahead with the St. Lawrence proposition before you 
build any more boats for that service.

The Chairman : Any further questions on this? If not, we might go on with 
the estimates, which you will find in the printed estimates, on page 32. Probably 
the discussion we have had will cover pretty well what we have to say on this. 
However, we will take it up. This reads:

“Loan to the Canadian Government Merchant Marine Limited, 
repayable on demand with interest at a rate to be fixed by the Governor- 
in-Council, upon such terms and conditions as the Governor-in-Council 
may determine, and to be applied in the payment of deficits in operation 
of the company and the vessels under the company’s control during the 
year ending March 31st, 1925—”

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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the amount mentioned being $900,000, as against $1,500,000 last year, a decrease 
of $600,000.

Mr. Harris: Perhaps Sir Henry will make a statement with regard to that.
The Witness : The statement is quite simple. The appropriation asked for 

each year is to take care of the operating deficit, and w’as used last year for that 
purpose, and is intended to be used this year for the same purpose.

By the Chairman: The operating deficit last year was $1,800,000—odd. 
I notice you ask for only $900,000 this year. Is that because you expect a 
smaller loss this year?

The Witness: Yes. That is because we make allowance for what we con­
servatively believe to be an improved condition.

Mr. Harris: The sale of your assets, Sir Henry—the money received on 
the sale of some of your assets here—is being held for the purchase of new 
assets?

The Witness: You mean what use we mean to make of the money from 
the sale of the ships?

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Yes?—A. These profits are held at the disposal of the Government.
Major Bell : It goes to the Receiver General.
Mr. Stewart : How are you taking care of the $364,000 of deficit last year 

in excess of the amount provided by the estimate?
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. You would have a credit from these retired notes at once?—A. Yes.
Q. How much would that amount to?
The Witness (To Mr. Davidson) : That comes in on the supplementaries.
Mr. Davidson : We have not put in a supplementary, but evidently there 

will be later on.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. The question of my friend on my left (Mr. Stewart) was as to how 
you made up that difference of $600,000 this year, but of course, you would be 
in a better position to explain this?—A. You mean the difference between what 
we asked for last year—

Q. Yes?—A. Because we conservatively expect we will be in a much better 
position—. -

Q. And the sale of these boats would save how much interest, for example, 
and depreciation?

Major Bell : The estimate is only to provide for the actual cash outlay.
Sir Henry Drayton : Just the actual cash outlay.
Major Bell: Just the actual cash outlay.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That reflects the opinion of the management as to the likely improved 

condition?—A. Yes.
Mr. Stew'art : I do not think Sir Henry Drayton has taken the correct 

meaning out of my question. The operating cost last year was $1,864,000; the 
estimate provided for $1,500,000. I want to know how the difference, which 
would be $364,000, is provided for?

The Chairman : One is the fiscal year, and the other is the calendar year?
Major Bell: I think we had a supplementary. There was a vote of 

$1,500,000, providing for the deficit last year, and there was an actual deficit
.. [Sir Henry Thornton.]
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of 11,800.000—odd; the difference is an overdraft, for which no provision is 
made.

The Chairman : Would that be covered by this $900,000?
Major Bell: Yes.
Mr. Stewart: Actually then, we are only providing if we vote $900,000, 

for a deficit of a little over $500,000?
Major Bell : There is a certain elasticity on account of our working capital.
The Chairman: Will there be a supplementary in addition to that?
Major Bell: No. That amount is supposed to take care, so far as we 

know, for conditions this year.
The Chairman: This is a little encouraging. Are there any other ques­

tions.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. That really works out this way, then : that the vote really represents 
only $543,399, as the amount required, in the opinion of the management, to 
run that deficit?—A. That is what we would ask for.

Q. So this is practically a reduction in the estimate of $1,000,000 for last 
year?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. If we can hold out on that basis through the year?—A. Well, of course, 

the less money you have to spend the best pace-maker it is, in some ways..
Sir Henry Drayton : I am not grumbling over it.
Mr. Stewart : There is another point upon which I desire information. I 

am not ciear whether the Board handling the Merchant Marine have the 
authority to increase the fleet without a particular vote, or at least, without 
it being shown in the estimate that that is the purpose the money is voted for.

The Chairnan: Capital expenditure?
Mr. Stewart: Capital expenditure in the way of new boats.
The Witness: I would rather that someone who is more familiar with 

the intricacies of procedure would answer that.
Major Bell : That amount mentioned there cannot be used for buying a 

new boat, but if we have money from the sale of a boat, one type of boat, we 
could take that money and with the approval of the Government buy another 
type of boat.

Sir Henry Drayton : In other words, you have $300,000 which you could 
use for buying boats, with the approval of the Government ?

Major Bell: In the old Canadian Northern we have a trust fund which 
must remain there, or used to buy a new boat.

The Chairman: Then you have the money from the sale of the four boats?
Major Bell: Yes.
Mr. Stewart: You can exchange the boats in service, but cannot increase 

the capital investment?
Major Bell: \es. We must have the approval of the Government to sell 

these boats ; otherwise the Board would not do it.
Mr. Stewart: Is the same thing true of the present use of a new boat?
Major Bell: Yes.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. How much did you get from the sale of these boats?—A. These boats 

were sold on terms ; that is, 50 per cent down, and a first mortgage on the 
boats for the balance.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Sir Henry Drayton : You probably could not get all cash at once, and I 
have no doubt you have arranged so you are sure of getting your money.

Mr. Kyte: Were some of these boats on the lakes?
Major Bell: Yes. Tenders were invited, but I do not think we got a 

single tender—
The Witness : We got a tender, but it was such a ridiculous one that we 

would not accept it.
Major Bell: There were no tenders accepted anyway. They were con­

sidered too low.
Mr. Kyte : These vessels were sold at a very much less price proportionately 

than their original cost?
Major Bell: Yes.
Mr. Kyte: The present operators would not have to provide for such a 

large capital charge against operating expenses?
Major Bell: That is true.
Mr. Stewart: I think it was suggested yesterday that the replacement cost 

would be about 60 per cent.
Sir Henry Drayton : No. I was asking Sir Henry Thornton whether he 

thought $60 per ton would be the present replacement value.
Mr. Stewart : That is my mistake. I thought you said 64 per cent.
Sir Henry Drayton : No. I think this represented 175—
The Witness: I should think so. They were built in times of great pres­

sure and under peculiar conditions.
The Chairman : Gentleman, you have had a pretty general discussion on 

the whole range of activities of the Canadian Merchant Marine. I should say 
we are through—

Sir Henry' Drayton : They are looking up the figures on the sales of these 
boats—how much they amount to.

The Chairman : I should say then you ought to crystallize your opinion 
in some way in the form of a report.

The Witness: The total sale price was $721,000, of which we received 
$346,900 cash; the balance has been taken out in securities on the vessels, on 
notes and other collateral security which, in our judgment, covers and protects 
the balance. We will ultimately get $721,000.

By Mr. Drummond:
Q. How many vessels?—A. Seven.
Sir Henry Drayton : Now, in addition to that, there is a credit in con­

nection with the steamships of the Canadian Northern. How much does that 
amount to?

Major Bell: I think it was some million—
The Witness: I think it approximates $1,200,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : Was that the net result, or not?
.The Witness: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : So that the net result of it all is that the Govern­

ment and the management have available a fund, either immediately available 
or shortly to become available through good securities, of $1,921,000, which 
might be applied in the purchase of new boats, with the consent of the Gov­
ernment?

The Witness: That is right.
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. Stewart : The reports we have before us show only four boats sold 
during 1923.

The Witness : Yes, but we have sold three since this report was published. 
I have given you the situation up to date.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Could you give us the names of the other three?—A. The Canadian 

Logger, the Sealer, and the Miner.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. How are these funds carried? How is that $1,200,000 carried?—A. That 
is in the hands of .trustees.

Major Bell: With the National Trusts- of Toronto.
Sir Henry Drayton : The interest is applied how ?
The Witness: Credited to the fund.
Sir Henry Drayton: It will go against the bonds?
Major Bell: It will go against the bonds, yes, sir.
Sir Henry Drayton: I think, Mr. Chairman, we might pass that item, 

and approve that estimate.
The Chairman : Do we need a formal motion? I believe not.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Oh, no. I
The Chairman : Anything by way of a resolution or otherwise which you 

want to submit before passing on to the Railways? Do you want to consider 
the report-

Sir Henry Drayton: In connection with the report: I think we have some­
thing here that ought to be covered. One thing is the chilled meat business, 
which Sir Henry Thornton was to give us information on.

The Chairman : And the development of the West Indies trade—
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, and also the coastal service.
The Witness: I was pondering whether the Committee might think it 

wise—and I think it would be certainly useful to those who administer the 
Merchant Marine, if all of this discussion, or a large part of it, could be crystal­
lized and set forth in three or four or five conclusions for the future guidance of 
the Administration ; for instance, your opinion with respect to the West Indies 
traffic, the further fact that we should endeavour to develop a chilled meat 
business, the fact that it is obvious that most of the losses on our United King­
dom traffic result from an insufficiency of westbound cargo, and that efforts 
should be addressed to provide more westbound traffic. In other words, I think 
it would be too bad to have all of this very useful discussion simply disappear, 
and only be represented in the form of evidence which very few people will 
probably read. ^

Sir Henry Drayton : There are concrete things with which we might deal.
The itness: I would like to get the thing crystallized into something 

we could use as a guide post, more or less, for the future.
Sir Henry' Dray'ton : It seems to me, Sir Henry, after listening to you, 

that the concrete things we should deal with should be first, we ought to 
observe our contractual obligations in the West Indies business. That, possibly, 
ought to be looked after. • There is no doubt about it, our obligations ought 
to be observed, and I also think, of importance to us, that something ought 
to he done in connection with that coastal business that shows a profit, whether 
bv purchasing new boats, or the transfer of boats from unprofitable routes— 
which would be my Anew—if we are all clear that everything should be done

[Sir Henry Thornton.]



NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING 57

to develop a paying business, and the coastal trade on the Pacific show that 
it is a paying business. We could make any definite recommendation that is 
necessary on that point, which is really sound. On the general principle of 
going after paying business, and obtaining it. Then there is another thing in 
which we are interested, not only from the standpoint of the Merchant Marine, 
but the country'as a whole, and that is building up a proper regular service, 
so that the people of the Maritime Provinces can depend upon it, and the 
people of the Pacific coast can depend upon it, through the Panama canal. I 
think we ought to do all that is possible in regard to that. My personal view 
is if we put up a proper service there with England, we would then not need 
to bother about customs representatives in New York; we can get clear of a 
lot of these questions; we would do the business ourselves.

The Witness : You see, all of these things, if crystallized in some concrete 
resolution, will be very useful not only to the present administration but 
successive administrations as an indication of the policy which the shareholders 
of the company, as represented by this Committee, approve. It gives them 
something definite to work' upon.

Sir Henry Drayton : I suggest the management bring down their recom­
mendations the way they want them.

The Chairman: I think that is more for the Committee—
Sir Henry Drayton : T will get to that in a moment. I think, after all, 

the management knows what they want, and they could send down their recom­
mendations, and we could have a copy of them, and go over them to see to 
what extent we could meet their views, or change them if necessary. I think 
that is the concrete way of making progress. The management know more 
about this than the Committee, although we have had a great deal of discussion.

Hon. Mr. Graham: I would like to report on the Merchant Marine. We 
could report this portion to Parliament. I want to get on with my estimates, 
and if I had a,report drafted. I could go on with the estimate for the Merchant 
Marine, and get that cleaned up.

Sir Henry Drayton: I see no reason why this should not go through the 
House just as it stands.

Mr. Stewart: Should not this resolution we are discussing be a part of 
that report, to Parliament?

The Chairman : I should think so.
Hon. Mr. Graham: That will be the report to Parliament.
Sir Henry Drayton : I understand the Minister does not want to be

held up—
Hon. Mr. Graham: I do not think I would be justified in presenting my 

estimates at all until we get the/opinion of this Committee.
Mr. Harris : When we are accumulating this expression of opinion, I do 

not think it is necessary to tie up a gentleman like Sir Henry Thornton and 
these other gentlemen. The Committee have the information in front of them. 
If it is simply to pass the estimate we ought to be able to come to some con­
clusion, but if these gentlemen have to sit here and listen to our deliberations—

The Chairman: Could we not adopt an interim report to the House?
Mr. Mackinnon : I move this be approved.
Sir Henry Drayton : I second the motion.
The Chairman: Moved by Mr. Mackinnon, seconded by Sir Henry Dray­

ton, that the estimate of the Canadian Merchant Marine, of $900,000, be
approved.

The motion agreed to.
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. Stewart : It is definitely understood this is only an interim report, so 
we can add a rider in the form of this resolution?

The Chairman: We will bring in a second report.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I am very much delighted at these proceedings, because 

I think the management can see the different angles from which we all look 
at these things. We cannot make a policy that is suitable for everybody, but 
it is a good deal easier to arrive at a just conclusion concerning all the things 
that go to make up a policy, when the management sits here and hears the 
opinions of men from all over the Dominion of Canada. I think they appreci­
ate it. I know I do, and I think we all appreciate the things we have got from the 
management.

The Witness: Speaking for the management, I will say that I think this 
discussion has been extremely illuminating; it has given us all perhaps a dif­
ferent and better point of view, and I think the deliberations of the Commit­
tee, as far as we are concerned, have been helpful.

Sir Henry Drayton : There is one thing, Sir Henry, which I think would 
delay things a good deal if we were to go into it, and that is the question of 
the activities of your Traffic Department, which is involved in the question of 
returning cargoes. We would be here all summer and then we could not really 
help you. That is entirely a matter of traffic.

The Witness: It is quite largely a question of active solicitation.
Hon. Mr. Graham : It is the existence of the traffic and our ability to 

get it.
The Witness: As far as that aspect is concerned, I think we can make 

considerable improvement in the future.
Sir Henry Drayton : I don’t think the Committee can interfere there at

all.
The Witness: I think we will be able to tell you an interesting story with 

respect to increased traffic activities next year. The more the administration 
gets into this thing, the more we find out, and the more we find that things could 
have been done differently, and possibly better.

Sir Henry Drayton: That is one of the questions which I purposely kept 
away from, in the interests of management.

Mr. Harris:.There is another feature which enters into that. Some of us 
are not very keen to see them heavily laden, from European points to Canada.

The Witness: Providing they bring in things which do not compete with 
our manufacturers here.

By Mr. Milne:
Q. Are we getting our share of the trade coming this way?—A No, we are

not.
Sir Henry Drayton : And there are reasons why there are difficulties? I am 

not criticizing that at all.
The Witness: That is entirely right; we are not.

By Mr. Maddnnon:
Q. Do you touch Manchester?—A. No. You mean by way of the Man­

chester ship canal?
Q. Yes?—A. No. We have not had any ships to Manchester.
Mr. Milne: I spoke yesterday about this rebate system, and I was 

informed it was practically out of existence, but in looking over this report of 
the Imperial Conference, I find that it still exists. Without going into it extens­
ively, there is a sentence here which says, “ In the main it affects only the out-
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ward trade from this country that is referring to Britain—" to other portions 
of the Empie.” Now, a little futher over there is another sentence which says, 
“Instead of having a form of a rebate to be paid to you after a certain period 
of deferment, provided you are loyal, they a,re substituting an agreement whereby 
you sign a contract to remain loyal to the ships,”—with certain exceptions. 
There are two possible forms for rebate, one is a rebate, and the other is a 
payment of damages if you fail to act up to the agreement to be loyal.

Hon. Mr. Graham : You must not forget that the British Government is 
quite a shareholder in the shipping on the High Seas, and the Shipping Board’s 
activities in some parts of the Empire have been to straighten out difficulties, 
the result of which has been to practically get a monopoly of the shipping for 
certain transportation companies. That is, if they put on a service they ask the 
shippers to make an agreement that they will give them their business, in order 
that they may have an opportunity to get the traffic.

Mr. Mit ne: I realize that, but the British Government are backing the 
British shippers to that extent. What is the use of our trying to buck the British 
Government?

The Witness: If I remember the discussion rightly, your question arose out 
of the North Atlantic Conference matter, and I think the answer that interested 
you at that time, and it ought to interest you, was that insofar as the North 
Atlantic Conference was concerned, the granting of rebates had been stopped.

Mr. Doherty: That is right.
The Witness: I do not think what you read there refers to the North Atlan­

tic Conference. I think it may refer to the general shipping position with respect 
to England, and I am sure that the answer given to your question with respect 
to those services in which we are interested, that there are no rebates today being 
given, is correct. (To Mr. Doherty) Is that right?

Mr. Doherty: The practice went out of existence 12 or 14 years ago. It was 
in force at one time between Canada and the United Kingdom, but for the past 
ten or twelve years it has been out of existence.

Mr. Milne: How about the other direction?
Mr. Doherty : It covers both directions.
The Witness: Secret rebates may be given.
Mr. Doherty: Of course.
Mr. Milne: I admit that.
The Witness: There is no way to check it up. Ifz anybody wants to do it, 

they can “get away with it”.
Mr. Milne: Yes.
The Chairman : Are you ready to go on with the discussion of the National 

Railways?
Several Members : Yes.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Gentleman, in the absence of the Prime Minister I am 

compelled to go to Council at 12 o’clock.
As a member of the Committee, I would suggest you take up the question of 

the purchase of the Paris Building.
Sir Henry Drayton : I think we ought to look for a statement from the 

Minister on that.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I will give you a statement any time I am required to, 

but I am sure the gentleman before you (Sir Henry Thornton) can give you a 
better statement than I can.

The Chairman : Is it the wish of the Committee to take up the Scribe Hotel 
building matter?

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Several Members: Carried.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I think you should call it the “Paris building".
Sir Henry Crayton : I thought you wanted it called the "Palais Canadien"?

By the Chairman:
Q. Sir Henry, are you prepared to discuss that matter?
Mon. Mr. Graham : I think that matter should be taken up at this time.
The Chairman : Perhaps this would be a good time to do it.
The Witness: Yes, I can do that. Wait until I get my papers together.
The Chairman : Gentleman, Sir Henry Thornton will give a statement first 

and will be followed by Major Bell, who I understand has certain details.
The Witness: The statement that I propose to give you refers to the 

reasons which led the administration to take the necessary steps to acquire suit­
able quarters in Paris, and Major Bell will subsequently give you a statement 
with respect to further details, with which he is more familiar than I.

Early in 1923 it seemed that it was essential to equip the Canadian National 
Railways for an expansion of business on the continent of Europe by having 
suitable quarters in Paris, and in this connection it also seemed desirable that 
simultaneously the various offices of the Dominion Government in that city 
might be advantageously assembled on tire same site, thereby providing a 
centre in what is really the capital of the continent which would be entirely 
Canadian in its atmosphere. The particular reasons just touched upon are 
more specifically elaborated below:—

(1) To a large degree Paris is to-day the most important city on the con­
tinent. The activity and influence of the French Government on the continent, 
apart from any other reason, have contributed largely to this result. It is the 
centre of tourist traffic, and practically every visitor to Europe eventually 
either passes through Paris or spends a number of days in that city. Many of 
the large English and United States financial institutions have important offices 
there. Business conferences and meetings for the determination of business and 
industrial policies are held there, and broadly speaking, the industrial, com­
mercial and banking life of the continent radiates from Paris; so that it cannot 
be denied that the city of Paris from every point of view is the most important 
metropolis on the continent. Under these circumstances, to remain without 
adequate representation and suitable quarters in such a centre would be to 
surrender that participation in European business which is essential to the 
business expansion and prestige oj: the company if it is to play its part in inter­
national traffic.

It is also to be remembered that the Canadian National Railways has 
working arrangements for both freight and passenger business with the'White 
Star and Cunard steamship companies. The Canadian National Railway Sys­
tem collaborates with these steamship companies in the active solicitation of 
business'destined to Canadian ports and points in the interior. While it is true 
that these steamship companies have, to some extent, their own offices in the 
various capitals of Europe, it was disinctly desirable that the travelling public 
should be impressed with the fact that the Canadian National Railways are not 
without steamship connections, and the offices proposed in Paris have an 
important bearing upon this aspect of the business. There is also to be con­
sidered the importance to the Canadian Government Merchant Marine the 
increase of our westbound tonnage.

(21 Practically all of the first rate business locations in the heart of Paris 
have already been taken by banking, business and transportation companies. 
No site of the necessary size for the purpose of the national railway system 
could be obtained, and the only way in which adequate quarters could be
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secured was thought to be through the acquisition of the Hotel Scribe ; it being 
the intention, after reserving such space as was necessary for the Canadian 
National Éailways, to sell or lease the balance.

(3) The possession of suitable and commodious offices in London furnished 
adequate precedent for the acquisition of similar quarters in Paris, and, further­
more, the experience and policy of other large railway and business institutions 
confirmed this opinion, for it is to be remembered that many of these institutions 
have offices not only in London and Paris, but also in other less important capi­
tals of Europe.

(4j lu view of the fact that it was, and is, the intention of the Canadian 
National Railway System to enter aggressively the European field for freight, 
passenger and express traffic, as well as for the purposes of emigration, it is 
.essential that whatever quarters are secured should be second to none, and the 
site selected represents beyond any question the most important and satisfactory 
location which could be obtained.

(5) It was the intention that ultimately the various departments of the 
Government now maintaining offices in Paris might be assembled under one roof, 
together with any other Canadian institutions which might desire suitable 
quarters, thereby establishing a Canadian centre in the best business part of 
Paris which would not only be of advantage to the Dominion as a whole but 
lend still further prestige to the national railway system.

With the above objects in view the Hon. Philippe Roy, the Commissioner 
General of the Dominion Government in Paris, was communicated with, to 
determine whether, if such quarters were provided, he could endorse the policy 
upon which the matter was proceeding and would remove his offices to any site 
which might be obtained provided location and rentals were satisfactory to 
the Government and himself. The Commissioner expressed his approval of 
what was contemplated, and subsequently Mr. Arnold Aronovici, a resident of 
Paris, proposed to the Commissioner the acquisition of the Rue Scribe property. 
The president of the Canadaan National Railways has no recollection of having 
initiated the matter with Mr. Aronovici although, from his previous acquaint­
ance with him, there were no objections whatever to his intervention in the 
matter. Mr. Aronovici is a Roumanian by birth, with a wide business experience 
on the continent of Europe. For fifteen years or so he had been in business in 
Paris, and during the latter stages of the war, in anticipation of a more aggressive 
.continental policy, he had been appointed General Continental Agent of the 
Great Eastern Railway of England by and with the approval of the directors of 
that company. He was acting in this capacity when negotiations for the Paris 
property were commenced with him. After considerable investigation he suc­
ceeded in securing an option on the Hotel Scribe property for 32,000,000 francs, 
and about the 1st of April, 1923, he came to Montreal to discuss the proposal.

Other opinions from responsible sources indicated that the price was fair and, 
as information was received that at least two other important companies were 
considering the site, Mr. Aronovici was instructed to at once close on his option.

In this procedure counsel advised that there were no legal obstacles to pre­
vent the consumation of the purchase. It was the intention at that time that 
the property should not be purchased outright by the Canadian National Rail­
way System but resold or financed through some outside agency or syndicate 
with which satisfactory terms might be arranged, leaving the company in pos­
session, at a reasonable rental, of that part of the property which was desired 
for railway purposes. Reasonable assurances from responsible people were given 
that there would be no insuperable difficulties in working out such an arrange­
ment. In order to permit freedom of action, it was decided that the title to 
the property should be taken in Mr. Aronovici’s name, the railway to finance 
him through the Bank of Toronto so that he could make the purchase. This was 
done and a mortgage taken for the protection of the company on the property 
and also Mr. Aronovici’s note for the whole of the purchase price.
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These and all other subsequent arrangements were conducted under the 
advice and scrutiny of the legal department of the National Railway System.

The arrangement with Mr. Aronovici was that he should look after all of 
the details of acquiring the property, such as examination of title, legal pro­
ceedings, taxes, and, what was particularly important difficult, the negotiations 
for the vacation of the property by existing tenants. He was also to have plans 
prepared for the rearrangement of the property to suit the requirements of the 
Canadian National Railways and other tenants, and, broadly speaking, to do 
all that was necessary in connection with the purchase of the building, its re­
arrangement and subsequent administration. In return for these services Mr. 
Aronovici was to receive a commission of ten per cent on the purchase price in 
the event of the property being taken over by some such machinery as that indi­
cated above within a period of five years, and this was to be full compensation 
for all of his services in connection with the acquisition and administration of 
the property.

It is proper to say that some time after the purchase, consideration was 
given to the development of a European organization, and Mr. Aronovici was 
asked to accept, and did accept, the post of General Continental Agent. His 
qualifications were his previous experience with such work in a similar capacity 
with the Great Eastern Railway of England, his wide and fluent acquaintance 
with European language, and his general knowledge of European conditions. 
He was engaged at a salary of $15,000 per annum.

About the middle of May, 1923, Mr. Aronovici returned tij Europe to carry 
out the detail's with respect to the purchase of the property and shortly there­
after negotiations were entered into with ohe of the large insurance companies 
of England for the purpose of financing the deal. This company was prepared 
to furnish, on terms to be subsequently arranged, approximately £700,000.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I suppose that is the Prudential Insurance Company?—A. Yes.
A French Company was to be formed which would take over the'title. 

Subsequently, the purchasing syndicate scheme was changed so as to provide for 
a loan made by the above mentioned insurance company to a subsidiary Cana­
dian Northern Company upon an issue of the subsidiary company’s debenture 
stock charged upon the capital stock of the French company which latter com­
pany was to hold the title to the Hotel Scribe. The amended scheme had the 
advantage of avoiding duplication of taxes and was largely directed towards 
that end, but the falling of Euro'pean money values and legal conditions affect­
ing the registration in France, with resulting high taxes, led to the abandonment 
of this proposition, and it was ultimately decided, after much investigation and 
discussion, that the most advantageous arrangement would be for the Canadian 
National Railway itself to take over the property. This opinion was further 
confirmed as it soon became evident that the rentals to be secured from outside 
sources would more than carry the capital invested and the transaction would 
then become more profitable to the railway company than was originally con­
templated. Under these circumstances there seemed no reason why an outside 
syndicate should reap the benefit of the company’s foresight.

As the transaction stands at present, the property is in the name of the 
French company, but all of the stock of that company is held on behalf of the 
railway by the Canadian Northern Realties Company Limited. The railway 
will have the full management and operation of the building and, as a result, 
will have acquired at a reasonable rental a site of constantly increasing value 
on which can be assembled, without undue expense, any Government offices 
which may choose to avail themselves of the opportunity.

In the latter part of 1923 it was found that the services of Dr. W. J. Black, 
former Deputy Minister ol Immigration and a man of outstanding capacity and
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reputation, might be obtained. After careful consideration it was concluded 
that the best interests of the system would be served by putting Dr. Black in 
entire charge of emigration and development affairs in Europe. His familiarity 
with Canadian conditions rendered him particularly valuable in this capacity, 
and, in view.of this, it was decided that there would be no further need of Mr. 
Aronovici’s services. The latter, however, had abandoned an important post 
with the Great Eastern Railway of England and it was only fair that a reason­
able compensation should be paid him in connection therewith and also for his 
services relating to the acquisition of the property. In the final settlement with 
him he agreed to accept and received a commission which would amount to 
approximately five per cent of the purchase price and about $7,500 as an allow­
ance on account of salary. Accordingly he resigned from the service of the 
company.

I would like to explain that the French taxation laws are exceedingly 
intricate and exceedingly difficult, as we discovered, and having paid a con­
siderable sum in transfer fees and taxes for the acquisition of the property, we 
felt that we were justified in trying to avoid any duplication of these transfer 
fees. That, after we got into it, taken into consideration with the depreciation 
of European currency, led us all to the conclusion that it would be more advan­
tageous for the company to take the title to the property itself. We were 
further quickened in that opinion by the fact that the property i^ constantly 
increasing in value, and we were satisfied that the outside rentals for the space 
not occupied by the company would be more than sufficient to carry the capital 
charge.

Now, Mr. Chairman, that represents my statement of the matter, broadly 
speaking, and with particular reference to the reasons which led me to feel that 
the acquisition of such a property in Paris was essential for the welfare of the 
system. In working out the details, Major. Bell went abroad for that purpose, 
and he can tell you the subsequent story.

By the Chairman:
Q. There were two transfers, then, altogether; one by Mr. Aronovici?— 

A. Yes.
Q. And the other by him to the company controlled by the Canadian 

Northern Realties Company Limited?—A. That will all come out in what Major 
Bell will tell you.

Sir Henry Drayton : What course does the committee want this to take? 
Do we want the whole story first, or shall we proceed to question Sir Henry
Thornton?

The Chairman : Will some one move that we hear Major Bell? We 
may as well get it in the regular order. I will observe the wishes of the com­
mittee; if the committee wants to hear Major Bell I would like a motion to 
that effect, and if it is desired to question Sir Henry Thornton, a motion to that 
effect.

The Witness: I think at least some of the things Major Bell will tell you 
will give you the connected story. If you question me now I would have to ask 
him to answer some of the questions anyway.

Mr. Stork : I will move that Major Bell be heard.
The Chairman : It is moved by Mr. Stork and seconded by Mr. Kyte that

Major Bell be heard.
Carried.
Major G. A. Bell : Mr. Chairman, about the 1st of August, the latter part 

of July or the 1st of August, 1923, Sir Henry Thornton, Chairman of the Board, 
asked me if I would proceed to Paris for the purpose of looking into the whole
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question of the purchase of the Paris building, and also in connection with 
the financing, as to whether we should finance this through the syndicate, or 
take a loan on the building, carrying the property in the name of the Canadian 
National Railways, and when I say in the name of the Canadian National 
Railways I mean through one of the subsidiary companies. I arrived in 
London about the middle of August; I had cabled Mr. Aronovici to meet me 
there, and we proceeded to take up the question of the transfer of this building. 
He differed a little from me at the start whether it would be good policy for the 
railway to take it over, or wffiether it would not be better to leave the property 
with him. He contended he could give the railway the space required at a 
reasonable rental, and that he could more advantageously rent the balance of the 
building than if we took it over. Various discussions took place at that tiihe in 
London and later on in Paris, and I found he was working up a scheme to 
lease to a subsidiary company, an hotel company, three of the upper floors, and 
from a money-making standpoint I think possibly it was a very good thing. 
Personally I thought it would be rather objectionable to have that hotel in the 
same building where we had our offices, and while I thought he might possibly 
make a little more money out of it from a rental standpoint than he would 
renting it for offices, I could not agree with him. Naturally, if he had gone on 
and exploited the building, even if the railway had got their space for nothing 
I think he would have made considerable money himself if he had handled 
this thing properly, because I think it lends itself for rental purposes to con­
siderable advantage to the people who own it. However, I came to the con­
clusion, and in communication with the Chairman he agreed with me and I 
also had the advice of one of the ablest lawyers in Paris, Mr. Archibald, who 
was a Canadian from Montreal. He has probably one of the largest practices, 
and is one of the most reputable lawyers in Paris. I also had the advantage of 
the advice of our lawyer in London, Mr. Brown. I might say for your informa­
tion that Mr. Archibald is a son of Judge Archibald of Montreal, and a brother 
of Doctor Archibald. I was in very close touch with him; practically no 
move was made from that time on without Mr. Archibald’s advice and counsel. 
After considerable negotiation Mr. Aronovici made the statement that he did 
not want to make any money out of this; he agreed that he was acting for the 
railway, said that he did not want to make any money out of it, and he was 
willing to transfer this building to any company or syndicate that we might 
decide on, and do so in any form we might ask him to. It was therefore decided 
—first of all we abandoned the idea of the syndicate, because the taxes were 
going to run up so high, and the transfers to this syndicate were going to run 
up so high it did not pay us to do it. It was decided instead to form a company 
with -a capital of 30,000,000 francs, and immediately upon its formation the 
company—the company was "to consist of Canadian National officers, two, I 
think, from the Prudential Insurance Company, Mr. Archibald, and one of Mr. 
Archibald’s partners. The company was formed, I was appointed president, 
and I brought Mr. Young, a Canadian, from our London office, whom I had 
known in the old days, a man in whose ability I had considerable confidence. 
I brought him to Paris and appointed him to the directorate, and made him 
general manager. The company was duly formed, and Mr. Aronovici immedi­
ately transferred his shares to the company. I have forgotten what the charge 
was, but I think it is about one per cent, which it cost us for the transfer, where 
if we had made the regular transfer it would have cost us 12 per cent. Taxes in 
France are very high. If you buy a million dollar property, they charge you 
12 per cent on the transfer. If you put a 60 per cent mortgage on, or any mort­
gage, no matter what it is, they charge you another 11 per cent on that, and 
there are various other charges, so when you get through with the transfer of 
a piece of property in Paris, you have paid from 25 per cent to 30 per cent of 
the total value of the property. So it was most important that we should have
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some means of transferring this so as to keep down the cost, which we did; it 
was perfectly legal and a form of doing business in Paris. I finally decided it 
would be better to form this company and eliminate the syndicate, brake the 
loan direct from the Prudential Company, and the Prudential Company agreed 
to advance us £700,000. I think my negotiations with them up to that point 
went into about the middle of October, and I came out to Canada to report to 
the Board, and it also required the approval of the Government, so I came back 
to put the whole matter before the Government. The Board approved of it; 
the resolution which was put through has been tabled in a return which has been 
brought down in the House. I might say that before I came over I had an 
understanding with the Hon. Mr. Barrington, who represented the Prudential 
Company, and that is embodied in a memorandum which was tabled in the 
House. I also had an understanding with Mr. Aronovici as to the transfer, and 
that is also embodied. A resolution of the Board was passed authorizing me 
to proceed on the lines I have just set out. I also explained the matter to the 
Prime Minister, to Mr. Graham, and to Sir Lomer Gouin, and I had an informal 
approval, that it was quite all right to go ahead on this basis, and the proper 
Orders in Council would be put through when the transaction was completed. 
I returned to Paris and started to take steps to clean the matter up. The ques­
tion of payment to Mr. Aronovici then came up. Mr. Aronovici had been 
advanced, in round figures, $2,600,000, that was represented by a note which, he 
had given to the Bank; the Bank had given him the money practically on the 
guarantee of the railway ; the railway had to deposit funds to cover it. The 
question then came up of checking up what he had done with this money. There 
was no difficulty about the main items, because they are all recorded in the 
office in Paris, and we had the notarial documents which were quite all right; 
we had no trouble checking them. The purchase price of the property, the exact 
amount, was 28,000,000 francs.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. How much would that be in our money?—A. It would depend on the 

exchange. There was about 40,000,000 francs advanced altogether, and that 
represents about $2,600,000, and a little over. The registration fee was 3,360,000 
francs ; that is what the French Government got out of it.

By the Chairman:
Q. Original price, 28,000,000 francs?—A. Yes. The registration of the 

mortgage cost 750,000 francs. A man named Delaine, a reputable architect 
of Paris, who had the option, had been paid 600,000 francs. The Grand Cafe, 
which had a lease, was paid 3,710,000 francs. I might explain that, probably, 
in going along, in connection with another charge in connection with the pur­
chase of property in Paris. Nearly every lease in Paris is a long lease, run­
ning from 14 to 15 to 20 years. A great many of these leases were made before 
the war when the franc was at par, roughly 20 cents. The franc went down 
before I left Paris to about 5 cents. Naturally the lease was worth just four 
times what they had originally paid for it. If a man had made a lease to pay 
100,000 francs a year for a piece of property before the war, he could not get 
it to-day for 400,000 francs. Not only did the franc go down, but during the 
last three years the rental value of property in Paris has gone up; it is almost 
impossible to get an office or a building. In fact, it is so bad that the French 
Government has put through a statute that where there are dwelling houses, you 
cannot convert them into shops. If you want to repair them, you must repair 
them as a dwelling house, the shortage is so bad. So, naturally, rentals went up 
while the franc was going down. So the rentals in Paris, if the franc had been 
the same as in war days or shortly after the war, would probably be 50 per cent
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higher, without regard to the enormous fluctuation between the amount of francs 
you had to pay before the war, and the amount you have to pay to-day.

To illustrate just what this costs ; I do not want to give the name, because 
I got this information to a certain extent in confidence, but there is a prominent 
insurance company in New York, who conducted the purchase of a building 
almost similar to this, only they handed their representative in Paris 15.000,000 
francs and he was to do his best to get the tenants out and repair the property. 
He succeeded in doing everything he was asked to do, with one exception. This 
was a triangular building, and in the apex of the triangle there was a cafe, and 
he could not get that out. The owners of the cafe had a very, very valuable 
site, and to-day this building has been lying idle, with everybody out but the 
cafe owners, and they cannot get them out unless they pay them 6,000,000 
francs, and their lease still has two years to run, and that building is simply 
standing there, with all this money invested. You can get some idea from this 
of what you have to pay on the main streets of Paris to get these chaps out. 
The French law protects them. It is very hard in Paris to dispossess a tenant 
unless you come to his owm terms.

That accounts for the Grand Cafe, of 3,710,000 francs. I don’t know 
whether you have all read this return although 1 think Sir Henry has, but you 
will notice the difference, Sir Henry, from the amount set out as the property 
amount. We estimated we could get the Grand Cafe out for 3,000,000 francs, 
but it cost finally 3,700,000 francs. Then there is a draft on the Bankers’ Trust 
of 20,000 francs; legal fees, 60,000; payments to architects 192.000-----

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. You gave us the architects altogether?—A. That payment I spoke about 

was to hold the option. This payment of 192,000 francs was money wrhich Mr. 
Aronovici had paid out in having his architects prepare plans for the remodelling 
of the building. He had gone ahead and let contracts for certain changes, 
where he was going to instal this hotel, when we stopped him.

The Jockey Club on account of dispossession, 210,000 francs. The amount 
he had agreed upon with the Jockey Club, if they moved out on a certain day, 
was 700,000 francs. They asked for some delay in moving out, and as we could 
afford to do this, we agreed to that, and the option was to be reduced in propor­
tion. The matter has been handled by Mr. Archibald, and it amounted to 
212,000 francs. That was all that was paid.

In addition there is the item of taking up the option on purchase, 1,735,000 
francs. That amount, Sir Henry refers to as being slightly under 5 per cent. 
In dealing with Mr. Aronovici, I took the ground that we would not pay him a 
dollar for anything unless he could produce vouchers I could place before the 
Board, and which could be exposed on the table of the House if necessary. He 
had made, or claimed to have made certain payments and as far as I could 
gather from Mr. Archibald’s advice I have no doubt he did make the payments, 
but as he could not produce the vouchers for certain reasons I refused to pass 
the amounts, and wre were held up for a while in our negotiations, but, as hd 
could charge us 10 per cent commission, we finally agreed to pay what would 
equal this amount. That is why this amount of 1,735,000 francs is there. I 
want to make an- explanation in connection with this, but I much prefer thjat 
the reporter should not take notes of it.

(Whereupon, by request of the Witness, and at the direction of the Chair­
man, the explanation referred to was not reported).

Major Bell (continuing). When I left, I left a certain amount of cash over 
there; had the cash transferred for the payments of certain things which might 
be necessary to go on with our work. There was about 1,720,000 francs, at the 
last report, on hand, so the total expenditure as of-the 1st of May—I think the

[Sir Henry Thornton.]



NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING 67

statement is dated May 28th—there were either expended or cash on hand in 
connection with the Paris building about 40,360,000 francs—I am giving you the 
round figures. I am quoting from a statement brought down in the House.

The Chairman : Actually expended?
Major «Bell: Or cash on hand. That is the total that was paid out; it is 

either cash on hand or expended. Some of this 1,700,000 may have been spent 
since.

The Chairman: But there is 7,000,000 on hand out of the 4*0,000,000—
Major Bell: No, 1,700,000 francs. That roughly is about $2,700.000, the 

total cost of the building. About the time we had this French company formed, 
and I will say that I was the President, and Mr. Young was the General 
Manager, and Mr. Archibald was an officer, and the balance was made up of 
our officers. We had two of the Prudential Company, who were afterwards 
substituted—about this time the loan we were to make of 700,000 was to bear 
5j- per cent. The Prudential Company on first negotiations wanted 5f per cent, 
but they finally agreed on per cent. We found after we had the company 
formed in making this loan that the taxes were going to be so high ; we were 
going to have tcTpay taxes for registering this loan of 700,000; we were going to 
have to pay certain taxes in connection with all the rentals that came in which 
were enormous ; the rate of exchange on Pounds dropped, and we had to make 
that loan in London in Pounds, and I made up my mind that inasmuch as the 
Dominion Government was practically behind this, it was foolish for us to pay 
all this ; it was better for us to go to the Government asking for an appropriation 
to pay in the ordinary way on our ordinary notes, which we would give the 
Government. So I did not complete the transaction. I returned to Canada, and 
after consultation with the CJiairman and officers of the company it was agreed 
that was the proper thing to do, and we took the matter up with the Government 
and the Government agreed to that, for that reason you will notice in the return 
in December we had things practically finished, and Mr. Graham was returning 
from England, and I took the matter up with him and everything was arranged, 
and an Order-in-Counci 1 was put through for a loan from the Prudential Com­
pany, but that was cancelled, and the Government agreed with me and advanced 
the money that was required to pay this for the necessary repairs and alter­
nations. I think briefly that is the story.

The Chairman: Will any further capital expenditures be required?
Major Bell: Yes, there will be the capital expenditures in connection with 

the repairs to the building. I may say, we have a wonderful building there ; 
I do not think that anybody who has seen it will fail to agree that it is the 
finest site in Paris, and that means the finest site on the Continent of Europe. 
I do not think there is anything to beat it. It is a magnificent building. Before 
I left we had three banks negotiating to get part of the ground floor. I thought 
we could cut our own space down to permit a bank getting in there. Two 
prominent Canadian banks and a French bank have been negotiating. These 
negotiations were not finished when I left, and I do not know whether they are 

, closed now or not.
Mr. Stork: What is the size of the building?
Major Bell: I have it in meters, and I asked today to have that transferred 

into feet. I will get it for you. There is a basement under the whole building; 
there is the ground floor; the next floor was occupied by the Jockey Club, with 
three floors above that, and a half-storey above that; what we would say in 
Canada, five and a half storeys and the basement. The measurements are 
126,994 square feet. The frontage on the Boulevard de Capucine, 105 feet; on 
the Rue Scribe, 180^- feet. It is one of the finest buildings in Paris. Of course, 
the finishing inside has to be remodelled. ,
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Sir Henry Drayton : Those are the measuremênts, changing the meters 
into feet.

Major Bell: Yes. Before I left we had arranged with architects and 
builders. The builders whom we picked were picked on the recommendation of 
the President of the Bank of France and the Manager of the Bank of Montreal. 
I think that probably he xvas one of the most reliable contractors, or a member 
of one of the most reliable contracting firms in Paris. The architect was picked 
on the recommendation and endorsation of the President of the Bank of France. 
Any of the men we secured were had on the very highest recommendations from 
the very best sources we could get, and I think everything is on the way to 
finish a most magnificent building. We estimate that when that building is 
finished and ready for occupancy—my idea being offices—that it, including 
what the Government will use paying the same price as other tehants, and the 
railway going in and paying the same price, will pay at least 6 per cent on our 
investment, and probably a small amount to wipe out the capital.

Mr. Drummond: What will the revenue be to the railway company 
outside of the space they occupy?

Major Bell: I think the President would be able to tell you more about that 
than I can. The policy was to go into Paris, which is the gateway of the 
Continent. I think everybody will acknowledge that nobody goes to the Con­
tinent who do& not finally pass through Paris. I know thefe has been criticism 
that our boats do not run to Paris, for practically everybody passes through 
there, and is ticketed through Paris. There is an opening for a huge express 
money order business. While there is not a large emigration from France—I 
think it is discouraged by the French Government—still Paris is a gateway for 
bringing them through from Continental Europe.

Sir Henry Drayton: You have not said what the alterations will cost.
Major Bell: The alterations I think, Sir Henry (Drayton) will be about 

$500,000 or $600,000. I think that is a fairly rough estimate.
The Chairman: Any taxes on that?
Major Bell: No, not on the alterations.
Mr. Stewart: That is in dollars, not francs?'
Major Bell: Dollars, not francs. It will depend, Sir Henry (Drayton), 

as a credit on the account. It was not quite decided as to whether we should 
finish the offices ourselves, or have lofts in which the tenants would do the 
partitioning themselves.

Mr. Harris: Do I understand, Sir Henry (Thornton), that we have a 
working arrangement with the White Star Line and thé Cunard Line to get their 
business at this end?

The Witness: Not all of their business. We have a reciprocal passenger 
and freight arrangement with both of these companies.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Do we actually get a major portion of this business?—A. Yes, particu­

larly with respect to the White Star Line.
• Q. And what portion of the Cunard Line’s business?—A. I cannot answer 

that offhand, but we get a fair proportion çf their business. We have had 
better results from the White Star than from the Cunard'Line.

Q. You intimated to the Committee that one of the features—perhaps the 
major feature—which led you to adopt certain policies on the Continent, was the 
tourist traffic?—A. Tourist, express business and freight. One would not say 
it was exclusively tourist.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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_ By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. The returns which you brought down, Sir Henry,—were they complete? 

—A. Yes, to the best of my knowledge.
Q. Then, referring to the return, assuming that return to be complete, I 

take it that no action was taken by the Board at all until after Major Bell came 
back?—A. That is correct; no formal action.

Q. I have been told—I do not know whether it is true or not; you can 
verify it very easily—that this matter at the time it became public in the House 
last year had never been before the Board at all? I mean the Scribe Hotel.

Major Bel!l : Perhaps, Sir Henry (Thornton), I can explain that. Sir 
Henry (Drayton), long before this matter came up at all—

Sir Henry Drayton : I think I would rather get this information from the 
gentleman'who has had the most to do with it, and then we can try to straighten 
it out afterwards.

Now, I was told—and I say I do not know whether it is true or not—that 
at the time it came up in the House (and Major Bell’s interruption is perfectly 
in order if the date I have given is wrong)—I said it was in June last—that up 
to that time the Canadian National Board, as such, knew nothing about the 
Hotel Scribe.

The Witness: That is correct.
Q. Then the return is all right in that respect. Now, another question, Sir

Henry. The communication from Roy, I suppose, correctly sets out how the
matter stands between you and Mr. Roy?—A. That is correct.

Q. Hie gives no estimate of value at all in that correspondence. You there­
fore had to accept, or rather you had no statement from Mr. Roy as to the 
value of that at all?—A. That is right.

Q. Now, I cannot find any other valuation in that return, or rather I can­
not find any valuation on it at all. Was there ever a valuation made of the
property, for purchase?—A. In other words, your question would be perhaps 
put his way, if I might say so: what reason had I to suppose that the purchase 
price proposed was a suitable price?

Q. No, I am asking you a plain and simple question. I am just asking 
this; the return showns no valuation at all. You have told me the return is 
correct and complete. If the return is complete, no valuation of that property 
was made before purchase or indeed after purchase, because we have not any 
yet.—A. There is in the return no statement from any one with respect to the 
value of the property, but before proceeding I took such steps privately, for my 
own information, as I thought necessary to determine whether that was a suit­
able price or not.

Q. What were those steps?—A. Conversations with certain individuals 
whose opinion I thought would be valuable.

Q. With whom?—A. That. I cannot tell you.
Q. Y’ou cannot tell me with whom?—A. No.
Q. You were in Canada all the time?—A. Yes.
Q. Now, wa§ there anybody out here except Mr. Aronovici who was in a 

position to give you any information as to that value?—A. Yes, I sought and 
got the opinion of one gentleman who happened to be in Canada, whose opinion 
I thought was worth while.

Q. Who was that?—A. That I will not give you. I would rather not, 
because it was merely a personal opinion he expressed to me.

Q. That leaves the matter in rather an unfortunate position. You will 
appreciate that?—A. Yes.

Q. The way in which your evidence will stand is that so far as the evidence 
is concerned, the only gentleman that ever gave you any information as to this 
value is some unknown person we know nothing about, and the man who was

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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interested in the sale, Mr. Aronovici. I would like to see you get yourself on 
e more sound ground.—A. I will simply say to you and make the statement that 

in the first place I had some knowledge of the value of Paris property myself, 
having been in Paris a good deal.

Q. May I interrupt you there? While you tell us that now, your letter to 
Mr. Roy says you had no knowledge of Parisian values, and asked for his 
opinion.—A. I had no technical knowledge, no knowledge such as a real estate 
agent would have. Every one who is familiar with any city knows in a general 
way whether certain values are reasonable or not.

Q. You see again I am in some difficulty. Which is correct, your state­
ment to-day that you have a knowledge of Parisian values, or your letter to 
Mr. Roy in which you say you have not?—A. Every one has a general know­
ledge of values, but one may not have a precise knowledge.

Q. I am just asking you a simple question. Which statement do you want 
us to believe? We have the written statement in Mr. Roy’s letter ; you wrote 
that?—A. Yes.

Q. That you were not familiar with Parisian realty values. Then we have 
your statement to-day that you are familiar with these values, at least to Some 
extent. You qualify it, it is true. Which statement do you want the committee 
to accept?—A. I do not think there is any conflict between the two statements. 
As I said before, every one who is familiar with any particular city would know 
whether a certain value which might be placed upon a property was badly out 
of line or not. What I meant to say in my letter to Mr. Roy was that I had no 
precise knowledge of the value of this particular property. I checked that by 
opinions wdiich I secured from two or three people whose opinions I thought 
would be valuable.

Q. Now we are getting a little more light.—A. I might go further and 
say that is furthermore confirmed by the fact that we have had a recent intima­
tion—it does not amount to an offer, and I do not put it forward as that—that 
this property could probably be sold for 40,000,000 francs, reserving for the 
railway company such space as it may require for itself, without rental. That 
is an indication that the purchase price that was paid of 28,000,000 francs was 
not excessive.

■ Q. I am just, at the present time, trying to find out what information you 
had when you made that purchase. Frankly I do not appreciate your point, 
that any one who knows a city knows as to relative values one way or the other. 
I do not think you would know very much about the values of New York 
property sufficiently to invest other people’s money in it, or Ottawa property, 
or Montreal property, or Toronto property, or property anywhere else. I know 
I have .not, and I am quite sure that any one else to whom you put that ques­
tion would say the same thing. Supposing we come back to what you said in 
the first instance. You said you had a conversation with one gentleman of 
what I think you described as a personal character. Am I right in that?—A. 
It was not a casual conversation.

Q. What kind of a conversation was it?—A. The same kind of a conversa­
tion I might be having with you now.

Q. I see. You had it with one gentleman, and then just a few moments 
ago you told us you got it confirmed by two or three?—A. Yes.

Q. Which is right, one, two, or three?—A. I discussed the matter, as I told 
you before, with one gentleman who happened to be in Ottawa at the time and 
who was familiar with this property, and I particularly relied upon the opinion 
of a friend of mine in New \ ork who had been for many years in business in 
Paris, and who had dealt in Parisian real estate, both rented and sold property, 
and I relied very largely on his opinion. He is an old personal friend of mine 
who, I am quite sure, would not in any sense deceive me and who had no par­
ticular interest in this thing one way or the other.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Q. You do not want to tell us who the gentleman was?—A. I think you 
will have to take my word for it, that it was a responsible person. I do not 
particularly care to bring him into the thing. It was an opinion given to me 
as a personal favour.

Q. You do not think he would be ashamed of his opinion?—A. No.
Q. What is the trouble about saying who it was?—A. I will not do it. I 

will tell you privately who it was after this meeting.
Q. I do not know that there is very muck in a private conversation.—A. 

Very well, as you like.
Q. Then the New York gentleman who had knowledge of Parisian real 

estate, who is he?—A. That is the gentleman to whom 1 was referring.
Q. No, first it was Ottawa, and then New York. Is it the same man?—A. 

No, there were two individuals, one I talked to in Ottawa, and one in New 
York.

Q. So far as he was concerned, wdiat was his business, the New York man? 
—A. I have just told you that was the gentleman I spoke to in New York.

Q. You' have told me one you spoke to in Ottawa, and you will not give 
me his name.—A. No, but if you wish I will give you his name privately. I 
told you there was a gentleman in Ottawa and one in New York. Those are 
the two.

Q. We cannot get the name of the Ottawa gentleman ; can we get the, name 
of the New York gentleman?—A. No.

Q. By any chance, was the New York gentleman the man whom we were 
told in the House was going over, I think the next Thursday after the thing 
came up in the House? He was going to leave immediately for the purpose of 
looking after the syndicate.—A. No, it was not a syndicate.

Q. It was not the same?—A. No.
Q. Who is the gentleman whom we were told in the House wras going to 

New York to arrange for the syndicate?—A. That I won’t tell you.
Q. You won’t tell us?—A. No.
Q. The information given to the House in connection with the syndicate 

last year ; was that true or was that not true?—A. That the syndicate was about 
to be formed to take over the property?

Q. It went farther than that. It went to this length, as I recall it; a syndi­
cate had been formed and a gentleman was going over from New York to com­
plete the details?—A. Yes.

Q. Was that true or not?—A. Do you not think, Sir Henry, that you are 
really attacking my veracity there? I said at that time it was true. I say so 
now, that it is true.

The Chairman : Sir Henry (Drayton), has not Major Bell explained that?
Sir Henry Drayton : I think this examination is in order.
The Chairman : I have no desire to curtail your examination.
Sir Henry Drayton : If the Chairman thinks the examination should not 

be made, all right, but it is perfectly in order. x
The Chairman : I was trying to save time, that is all.
Sir Henry Drayton : The House was told last year that a syndicate was 

to be formed in New York; there were to be no capital charges at all; and we 
were told in the House this year of an English syndicate, which had fallen 
through. V e have got some rights, and so far as the information given in the 
House is concerned, we have the right to believe in the word of a Cabinet 
Minister—

Major Bell: I think you misunderstood me—
Sir Henry Drayton: One minute; the answers are there and speak for 

themselves. I am trying to find out where the trouble is.
[Sir Henry Thornton.]



72 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

The Chairman : There is no disposition to keep you from finding out.
The Witness: Sir Henry (Drayton) practically said to me, “You said 

something a year ago; was that a true statement then, or is it true to-day?”
Sir Henry Drayton : No, I have not said that. I said was that statement 

given in the House last year—
The Witness: Of course that was a correct statement.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Who was the English syndicate who was in that?—A. That I won’t 

tell you.
Q. That is hidden—A. No, that is not hidden.
Q. It is not disclosed ; it must be hidden—A. Don’t try to twist words, or 

play the light in such a way as to bring out an effect which is inaccurate. It 
was a bona fide arrangement made with the syndicate in New York to finance 
this arrangement through the Prudential Company of England. That arrange­
ment, for the reasons which Major Bell has given did not materialize; the 
people in New York who were connected with it were thoroughly reputable 
people ; the thing did not go through, so I do not think it would be fair, in vièw 
of that, to bring them into it at all, and I won’t do it.

Q. Then it is still hidden?—A. It certainly will be hidden, as far as any 
information is concerned, from me.

Q. I do not see then why you object to my word. We have not that 
information and you frankly tell us you won’t give it?—A. No. As I understand 
it you are asking me if it is true that the syndicate was prepared to take this 
over—

Q. And you say this—A. I say it is just as I said it was true a year ago; 
I say it is true to-day.

Q. I ask you who they were?—A. For the reasons I have given you, I won’t 
give you their names.

Q. Then you will not object to my saying that that information is hidden 
from us?—A. Yes.

The Chairman: It is 1 o’clock. Do you think, Sir Henry (Drayton), 
that you can finish in a short time?

Sir Henry Drayton : No, I think we had better adjourn.
The witness retired.
The Committee adjourned.

Committee Room 231,
House of Commons,

Friday, June 20, 1924.
The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping met 

at 10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. W. D. Euler, M.P., Chairman, Presiding.
The Chairman : Gentleman, we have a quorum so we will proceed. When 

the Committee rose yesterday ive were considering the purchase of the Paris 
property. We will continue with that.

Sir Henry Thornton, recalled.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Sir Henry, when was it that Mr. Aronovici first came into the service? 
—A. Immediately following a letter that I had from Mr. Roy, I think. He 
refers to him in this letter.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Q. I want to be absolutely fair with you, Sir Henry. I do not want you 
to get yourself in a hole where you are contradicted by the documents?—A. ’I 
am speaking from memory.

Q. I am going to the documents?—A. Please do.
Q. There was an answer filed in the House in answer to a question of my 

own—although it does not make any difference whose question it was—show­
ing that Mr. Aronovici was paid $5,625 for services for December, 1922, Janu­
ary, February, March, and half of April, 1923?—A-. That is right.

Q. That would have him engaged some time in December?----- A. I thought
you were referring to his relationship with the Paris property?

Q. No, I was referring to the company ?—A. I think it was in December.
Q. So he was engaged in December?—A. Yes. ,
Q. What was he engaged to do in December?—A. I asked him to make a 

general investigation -of European—particularly Continental traffic conditions 
with respect to our own traffic and the proportion of European traffic we might 
reasonably expect to get, and also to report on the possibilities of emigration 
to Canada from various countries, and particularly from south-eastern Europe)

Q. Then he was asked later on to take charge of the office, apparently. 
When would that be?—A. That, I think, was in April. That is to say he was 
appointed General Continental Agent, I think, in April.

Q. I see that he apparently called on Mr. Roy, or at any rate he got in 
touch with him, and in Mr. Roy’s letter to you of March 9th, he says : “Mr. 
Aronovici tells me you have asked him to take over your office in Paris”.. .— 
A. May I interrupt you there to say that is not an accurate statement. I do not 
know why Mr. Aronovici said that whether that was a misunderstanding as to 
what he said to Mr. Roy, or what it was, but I do know that at that time Mr. 
Aronovici had not been appointed our General Continental Agent, and I had 
had no conversation with him to that effect.

Q. I think that would be so...—A. That is inaccurate.
Q.----- because the answer shows that he was down on some kind of a tem­

porary engagement until the first half of April, 1923, when he got paid that 
$5,625, and was then on regular employment from April 15th?—A. That is right.

Q. At $15,000 a year?—A. Yes
Q. So Aronovici is wrong or Roy is wrong—A. I do not know whether any­

body is wrong or not, apparently there may have been a misunderstanding.
Q. Apparently smething is wrong, from the files, and I want to get this 

thing straight?—A. That is right.
Q. When did Aronovici' come out to Canada?—A. I am speaking from 

memory, but I thiiflk he arrived here the last few days in March ; it was approx­
imately the 1st of April.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. That is 1923?—A. Yes.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. How was it he came out? Did you write to him to come, or cable him 

to come?—A. No. This came about in this way: He evidently had had some 
conversation with Mr. Roy, and the first I heard of it was that he had either 
obtained or could obtain the option on this property, and he communicated 
with me and I told him to come out, and we would discuss the matter here. My 
recollection is that it was sometime approximating the 1st of April. That may 
bè a fçw days late.

Q. I point out to you that I do not find that letter in the files?—A. No, you 
would not.

Q. I thought the file was complete?—A. Complete, excepting the confi­
dential and personal information that passed between myself and others. That 
was merely a telegram.. .

[Sir Henry Thornton,]



74 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

Q. Would that be regarded as private and confidential?—A. If you like.
Q. It is for you to say?—A. No.
Q. It is not on the file and the only reason for keeping anything off of the 

file is that it is private and confidential?—A. Presumably that would be it.
Q. I don’t know “presumably”; it is for you to say?—A. I have nothing to 

add; it is relatively unimportant.
Q. We may find it important?—A. You may.
Q. He came out here at any rate about the first of April?—A. Yes.
Q. When did you first see the option?—A. I think it was shortly after his 

arrival, which would be about that time.
Q. Who gave the option?—A. The option was obtained from the owners of 

the property.
Q. Who were they?—A. I cannot tell you offhand. (To Major Bell) Major, 

do you know the precise owners of the property?
Major Bell: I have not had occasion to inquire. I heard casually it was 

some estate.
The Witness: I can give that to you.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Perhaps I could give it to you?—A. I would be glad if you would.
Q. No, I have not brought that down. It appeared in a French news­

paper—
Major Bell: I think that is right.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I have a clipping of a newspaper upstairs, but I stupidly overlooked 

bringing it down. It is a French newspaper giving the name of the society, 
and also certain allegations regarding some 55,000 shares of stock which they 
thought should be accounted for, but, at any rate, you cannot tell me definitely 
what the name was, now?—A. (No response).

Q. Where is that option?—A. I do not know. I think probably Mr. 
Aronovici has it.

•Q. We have not that in the file either?—A. No. I never had that.
Q. You did not obtain a copy of it?—A. No.
Q. Then, I observe also that the title deeds are not on the file at all. We 

have nothing here showing either from whom we got title or what the title is?— 
A. There is nothing in that file with respect to the title deeds, but we can 
tell you the name of the owner of the property.

Q. We have that?—A. That can be easily obtained.
Q. The present owner of the property is your organized company?—A. All 

the title deeds and papers which would affect it, I take it, are in Mr. Archibald’s 
office. ( To Major Bell) : Is that so, Major?

Major Bell: Yes. I must take the blame for that. We can obtain these 
papers, but I thought it undesirable to delay matters in getting them from 
Paris. It is a straight transfer to Aronovici, and from Aronovici to the 
company.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Then, Sjr Henry, we have Aronovici here on April 1st. How long did 

he stay here?—A. I think about a month, as I remember it.
Q. When he left, did you give him any instruction?—A. Yes, he was 

instructed to at once complete the arrangements for taking over the property 
in accordance with what has already been made public.

Q. So he got his definite instructions to close?—A. Yes.
Q. Was that about the first of May?—A. Either that, or perhaps a little 

before that.
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Q. I do not think it could have been very much before, because your 
letter, I suppose, was the basis of the instructions?—A. Yes. The date of that 
letter will probably show.

Q. It is April 30th?—A. That would be about right.
Q. Then this letter of April 30th is signed by you?-—A. Yes.
Q. I take it it is entirely your letter?—A. Yes. I think that letter was 

drafted by Mr. Ruel. He is not here.
Q. You can be definite on that?—A. Yes.
Q. That would be rather a surprise to me, but I have no doubt you are 

correct?—A. We can easily bring Mr. Ruel here. Here he is now. (To Mr. 
Ruel) : Did you draft that?

Mr. Ruel: Yes, I drafted that.
Mr. Kyte: What letter is that, Sir Henry (Drayton) ?
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the letter of April 30th, 1923.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Sir Henry, if you did not draft it, I suppose it is not fair to ask you 

about it?—A. Oh, yes, ask me anything you like about it, and I will try to 
answer as well as I can.

Q. What was your understanding of the arrangement as shown by that 
letter? What did you think you were doing?—A. I did not think I was doing 
anything, Sir Henry. I was positive that I was acquiring for the company a 
property that I wanted, under the terms which are set forth in the letter.

Q. What were those terms as you understood them?—A. They are there in 
the letter.

Q. I will let you have the letter. For instance, I would like you to go over 
that and tell me what, as you understood them, were the terms of the sinking 
fund?—A. The sinking fund? Is this what_you refer to, Sir Henry (reading) :—

“ The terms of security. Interest at the rate charged us by the 
bank in making advances per annum, payable half-yearly out of the 
rental as specified below. Principal payable in 20 years, or such addi­
tional time as may be necessary to enable the sinking fund, hereinafter 
provided, to retire the whole indebtedness.”

That is what you refer to?
Q. Where is the sinking fund provision?—A. You will have to let me ask 

Mr. Ruel some questions about that, because I am not certain regarding some 
of theÿe details. (To Mr. Ruel). Reference is made here to a sinking fund. 
Can you tell me what that is? Was that a sinking fund that was subsequently 
to be provided?

Mr. Ruel: I have forgotten that: “Principal repayable in 20 years, or 
such additional time as may be necessary to enable the sinking fund, herein­
after provided, to retire the whole indebtedness ”. The sinking fund was not 
down there. That must have been left out—the sinking fund.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I think you require several counsel to tell you about that?—A. No, 

Sir Henry ; that is a very clever remark—
Q. There is the document, and you can search it in vain?—A. (To Mr. 

Ruel). Do you know where that is?
Mr. Ruel: No, I do not. I had forgotten all about the sinking fund.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Yes, I think it was like many other things ; they have been forgotten.
Mr. Kyte: Was that a complete statement?

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Mr. Ruel : I do not remember the sinking fund being mentioned. It was 
a surprise to me. I had not read this letter for a long, long time, since I 
drafted it.

The Witness: My recollection of that was that in any arrangement which 
was made with respect to the property, other than if we took it over and paid 
for it ourselves, there was to be a sinking fund provided, which within a certain 
number of years, would amortize the capital invested.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. You provide for annual payments? It is not a sinking fund at all. 

You provide for annual payments, and I think that is what you refer to. If 
you will look through it, you will find there is a minimum payment of $25,000 
per annum?—A. I think that is probably the explanation for that.

Q. Then, treating your hypothesis as correct, what was your understanding 
as to the number of years that was given to Aronovici to pay?—A. Those were 
details which were subsequently to be worked out.

Q. I would like you to point out in that document anything which reserves 
that. There is.a document which purports to be complete?—A. It is complete, 
within the limitations of our ability to make it complete at the time it was 
signed. Necesarily in preparing any document of this sort of a transaction 
which we were anxious to put through as quickly as possible, lest the property 
get away from us, you touch upon some things, and you leave the details to be 
developed by the proper officers later on.

Q. Just direct your attention to what you did. I have given you the con­
tract so you can see it. Just say what you did in connection with the payments? 
—A. To what payments do you refer?

Q. To the annual payments of not less than $25,000 a year.—A. (Reading) : 
“ The principal payment: you were to pay $25,000 per annum Canadian money 
on account of principal, provided that if and when the exchange between France 
and Canada was so improved that the franc came to par, that payments on 
account of principal, while the franc remains at par, should be double.”

• Q. That is the only thing I could find which would approximate talk of 
the sinking found, apd it would be improperly so named, as you will agree. If 
you can find anything else in that, I will be pleased to have you tell me?—A. 
I am afraid I do not understand what you are getting at.

Q. I am trying to find out what this document is. It is pretty hard to say. 
I cannot find anything there in regard to the sinking fund. I am asking yoü if 
you can. The question is perfectly plain.—A. As I explained before, this was a 
document in which Aronovici took over the property. It determines all the 
essential preliminary factors in that connection, and at that time there was a 

. certain amount of doubt in our minds as to exactly what final disposition we 
were to make of the property. There were two or three things which could 
have been done, and which we ultimately did. We could have taken over the 
whole property ourselves.

Q. It is provided for in that scheme?—A. Yes, or we could form a syndicate 
and finance outside with the understanding that such part of the property as 
we desired should be reserved for our uses, and the rest should be rented or 
otherwise disposed of by the syndicate, and none of these details were deter­
mined, and necessarily, any preliminary document had to leave open entirely 
the consideration of further, details.

Q. The document was drawn. It does not show all that you tell us. Let 
us stick to the document, which I suppose meant something; it ought to. There 
is a lot of money depending upon it, I will ask you this again—I have been 
unable to find the provision referred to in regard to the sinking fund. I cannot 
find them, can you?—A. No, they are not here for the reason I have given. It 
says, “ For the sinking fund to be hereinafter provided.”

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Q. It is perfectly plain what the words mean. I suppose you meant what 
you signed?—A. Obviously.

Q. Then we will have to stick to the written word. Now this $25,000 a 
year: Do you realize that would mean this thing could be kept on with pay­
ments of $25,000 a year?—A. I don’t quite get that.

Q. Do you realize the principal was to be repaid by Aronovici at $25,000 
a year, and do you realize the length of time that would take, that it would 
give him one hundred years in which to pay for that property?—A. We had, 
in this document, the privilege of taking it over within five years ourselves. 
That was precisely what I had in my mind at that time.

Q. But you had to give him a bonus of 10 per cent if you took it over then, 
and later on you would take ft over and give him a bonus of 20 per cent?—A. 
That is right.

Q. Is that all you can tell me about the letter? Is there anything else you 
wish to say?—A. No. I have answered your questions to the best of my 
ability.

Q. I am giving you the opportunity of saying anything you like about that 
letter—any explanation you like, Sir Henry?—A. I do not think there is any 
further explanation to be given, excepting this ; that we were anxious to secure 
this, property. I have already explained the advantages of the property and 
the uses to" which it was to be put. It was the intention, in this document, that 
Aronovici should acquire the property in his name, in order that subsequently 
we might rapidly make any disposition of it we wanted to. Furthermore, at 
that particular time I did not want it to be know that the company owned the 
property, as we would have had trouble in dispossessing the tenants and making 
other arrangements for the property, and this document contemplated that, 
and nothing else.

Q. Then, on the 30th of April we have got this settled, but I notice looking 
at the file in further instruction to Aronovici, he had been paid $200,000 to 
enable him to bind the bargain. You remember that?—A. Yes.

Q. When was that payment made, and how?—A. I cannot tell you the 
exact date; it must have been about the time of the signing of that letter, or 
shortly thereafter, and it was as I remember it, by funds that were cabled to 
Morgan Hodgins’ bank in Paris. (To Mr. Ruel) Is that right?

Mr. Rtjel: I am not sure.
Major Bell: Drafts were purchased on the Bank of Montreal and trans­

ferred to Morgan Hodgins’ bank in Paris to the credit of Mr. Aronovici.
Sir Henry Drayton : How was that done? Where did the money come

from?
Major Bell: From the general funds of the railway.
Mr. Stork : What was the amount?
Major Bell: $200,000.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. How was that payment vouchered?—A. In the usual way.
Q. What is the usual way?—A. A voucher passed by the appropriate 

officer.
Q. Who would that be in this case?—A. Signed by myself and sent to the 

Treasury Department for payment.
Q. Who was the appropriate officer in this case?—A. I was. My recol­

lection is that I signed it. (To Major Bell) : Did I not, Major?
Major Bell: No, sir. On instructions from you to me I signed that.
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By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Of course, at that time. We already have it, the Board knew nothing 

about it?—A. That is quite true.
Q. At the last session of the House, the Hon. Minister of Railways told the 

House on the 7th of June—and I was right about the date yesterday, in saying 
June—“That one of the Canadian National deposits was placed in the bank 
and remained there until such time as the building was taken over,” and I asked 
him, “ Well, that is better. So that $2,000,000 in cash of the railway was 
applied to that purpose?” and Mr. Graham said, “ To the bank,’ and I said, 
“ $2,000,000 cash of the railway’s was deposited in a bank,” and Mr. Graham 
said, “ Yes.” And later on, I said, “ My hon. friend will agree with me that 
this is playing -with words. What happens is this: The sum of $2,000,000 of 
the funds of the Canadian National Railways is deposited in a bank for a 
specific purpose, namely, to enable somebody else in Paris to get $2.000,000 
from that same bank. Now, is that wrong?”, and Mr. Graham said, “I think 
that is correct,” and I said, “ Of course it is correct. In other words the system 
is paying the money to finance this deal,” and Mr. Graham said “ Yes.” Now, 
Sir Henry, is that correct?—A. Yes.

Q. Well, Sir Henry, how do you reconcile that statement with your letter 
to the Bank of Toronto, which says that instead of making, a deposit of 
$2,000,000, the deposit was $2,608,330? How do you reconcile your statement 
of to-day with your letter of May 25 to Mr. Carson, Manager of the Bank of 
Toronto?—A. Would you be so kind as to read my letter of May 25? I don’t 
quite remember the terminology?

Q. With pleasure:
“ In connection with the advance made by your bank of 36,232,161 

French francs ($2,608,330), to Arnold Aronoyici, for which his note has 
been issued payable on demand at 6 per cent, funds have been deposited 
by the Canadian National Railways in a special account in the Montreal 
branch of the Bank ,of Toronto in the sum of $2,608,330.

“ This money is not to be withdrawn from the Bank of Toronto until 
the note and interest thereon is paid. You are authorized at any time 
to call for the payment of the said advance with interest after giving the 
General Treasurer of the. Canadian National Railways five days’ notice 
of your purpose so to do and if the principal of the said note is defaulted, 
you are empowered to apply the deposit to the liquidation of the 
defaulted principal. Any failure to pay the interest on the note is to be 
brought to our attention, but no part of the deposit is to be used for the 
discharge of indebtedness.”

The Witness: What was the date of Mr. Graham’s remarks in the House?
Sir Henry Drayton : The 7th of June.
The Chairman: I am informed that the information with regard to that 

was given to Mr. Graham by Major Bell, and that Sir Henry (Thornton) had 
nothing to do with conveying that information to Mr. Graham, so any dis­
crepancies that might appear would not come within the knowledge of Sir 
Henry (Thornton).

Sir Henry Drayton : Speaking in the very kindliest spirit, I do not know 
as that interpolation has anything to do with the correctness of Sir Henry 
Thornton’s memory.

The Chairman: I am trying to get at the facts, speaking in the kindliest 
way also.

Sir Henry Drayton : He made his statement only a few moments ago that 
the answer given in the House, and which the House accepted, was that there 
was a deposit of $2,000,000, and this morning his letter shows that instead of
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being a deposit of $2,000,000, the deposit was $2,608,330. One surely has the 
right to test the,memory, at least, of a witness, and that is what I am doing.

The .Chairman: No doubt his answer was substantially correct.
Sir Henry Drayton: It may be substantially correct. The Chairman 

may think that a matter of $608,330 is a matter of no moment—
The Chairman : Not at all.
Sir Henry Drayton : ■—we can discuss that later on.
The Chairman: That was not my intention, to give that impression. How­

ever, go ahead with your questions.
Sir Henry Drayton : I cannot see anything else to be read into the Chair­

man’s interjection.
The Witness: As I understand, this hinges upon a statement made by.Mr. 

Graham in the House—
Sir Henry Drayton : And I asked you if it was correct, and you said yes.
The Witness: I think it is. I am speaking only from memory now. My 

recollection if it is that any information which we gave Mr. Graham, or which 
he had, was at that time correct, insofar as our knowledge went. In other 
words, your position is that Mr. Graham made this statement that $2,000,000 
had been deposited in the Bank of Toronto, when, as a matter of .fact, it was 
$2,600,000. Is that it?

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. It is perfectly clear that the House was misled to the .extent of that 

amount. I am not saying who was responsible for it?—A. I do not know. I 
cannot answer that. I do not know what went on in the House.

Q. I asked you if the statement was correct?
The Chairman : The fact is admitted that it was $2,600,000. That should 

be sufficient.
Sir Henry Drayton : We could have more information. The fact is there. 

There is his answer..
The Witness : There could be no intention on the part of Mr. Graham or 

myself to deceive the House.
Sir Henry Drayton : I have taken the position from " the commencement 

that Mr. Graham did not knowingly or willingly deceive the House. I have 
been perfectly frank in all these matters.

Mr. Mackinnon: What is the date of that citation from Hansard?
Sir Henry Drayton : June 7th, and this letter is May 25th.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. When was it that the basis of the contract with the syndicate was 

arranged?—A. That was arranged in this way: Prior to the closing of the 
option I was anxious to find out whether it would be possible to finance the 
acquisition of the property through an outside syndicate and I took that up with 
a friend of mine in New York to see whether such an arrangement would prob­
ably be made, and he assured me that he thought there would be no difficulty 
in connection with it. The details as to who was to furnish the money, and how 
it was to be arranged was subsequently determined.

Q. When was that determined?—A. That was determined—(To Major 
Bell)—shortly after you went to France, was it not, Major, that you entered 
into negotiations with the Prudential?

Major Bell: The New York syndicate was in April, 1923, and when I 
went to France I met two of them there, and then dealt with the Prudential.
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The Witness: (To Major Bell) Would the answer to Sir Henry’s 
(Drayton) question be thç latter part of April?

Major Bell: The latter part of April or the first part of May—about that 
time.

Sir Henry Drayton : So then, do I understand it that the details about 
the syndicate were arranged the latter part of April? That is, in New York.

The Witness: Only in a general way. The details were perfected in 
Europe, and that was one of the things for which Major Bell went over.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. We were told during the last session of the House that a syndicate had 

been formed, the details had been'arranged, and that a gentleman was going to 
leave very shortly from New York for the purpose of putting the matter through 
or something to that effect. Is that correct? Had the details been arranged on 
June 7th, or before June 7th?—A. The principal details had been arranged. 
There were some subsequent details which were left open, as to how the prop­
erty was to be transferred.

Q. Had it been reduced to writing?—A. Had the details of the syndicate 
been reduced to writing?

Q. Yes?—A. No. It had been discussed and the principal outlines had 
been determined.

Q. So there was nothing reduced to writing at that time?—A. (No response).
Q. And you had your understanding, and were felying on your understand­

ing, I suppose?—A. Precisely.
Q. That this syndicate would go through?—A. Precisely.
Q. So you were in that position on the 30th of April, that this arrangement,

which was more or less definite, but not reduced to writing-------A. That is
correct.

Q. —would go through?-—A. Yes.
Q. Then, I take it, your knowledge of the merits of the transaction was 

entirely confined to what you have already told us. Can you think to-day of 
any further information you got as to values, or anything of that kind?—A. 
Nothing other than I have given you.

Q. You told us there were responsible parties in connection with the syndi­
cate? In your statement here you said the syndicate was to take it over, and 
you had assurances from responsible people. Do you object to giving the names 
of these people?—A. Yes, I do, because the syndicate did not come off. I think 
I can say to you—tpid I would ask this to be treated with reasonable confidence; 
I suppose you would have no objection to that, Sir Henry, if I made a state­
ment to that effect— »

Q. I don’t know if we should have anything confidential in looking into a 
matter of this kind?—A. No, except that the syndicate did not come off. It was 
with a banking firm in New York who were acting for us, and the name of the 
banking firm was Whitewells and Company.

Q. Can you produce any correspondence with them?—A. No, it was handled 
entirely by conversation.

Q. Did they come up here or did you go down there?—A. I went down 
there. (

Q. So you cannot produce any records of any kind about that?—A. No.
Q. You have already told me as to the Board. When was it you first advised 

the Government, or any member of the Government as to your action?—A. 
What was the date, Sir Henry, of the signing of the letter there to which you 
referred, about sinking fund, and payments and so on?

Q. That letter of contract is the 30th of April.—A. The 30th of April?
• Q. Yes?—A. Well, speaking approximately, [ should think it would be 

about a week or so in advance of that. (To Major Bell) : Am I right in that 
statement, Major? Is that approximately right?
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Major Bell: When the Government first knew about it?
The Witness: Yes.
Major Bell: It was about two weeks before.
The Witness: It was about two weeks before.
Sir Henry Drayton : About two weeks before the 30th of April?
The Witness: That is as near as I can remember it. I do not think I am 

very many days out in that.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Could you say definitely that was before that letter was signed?—A. 
Yes, it was.

Q. Whom did you tell? Whom did you see? Whom did you advise? 
Because I do not find it in writing here?—A. No, it is not in writing.

Q. Whom did you advise?—A. I have to rely somewhat on the information 
that Major Bell can give me,------

Major Bell: I did not get that question.
The Witness (to Major Bell) : Did I talk to Mr. Graham about it?
Major Bell: No, I think what tpok place------
Sir Henry Drayton: I would prefer------
The Witness: One minute------
Sir Henry Drayton : If you cannot tell me, I am content to leave it that 

way—
The Witness: Unless 1 have the privilege of refreshing my memory, Sir 

Henry, on some things that happened over a year ago, by asking those who 
were in the service of the company wdiat their recollection is, then I am being 
denied, I think, a reasonable privilege. I cannot carry all the details in my 
head.

Sir Henry Drayton : It is not a detail; it is a matter, rather, of import­
ance, when you told the Government you were contemplating this purchase.

The Witness (to Major Bell) : It was about a week in advance?
Major Bell: It would be immediately after the Board meeting when you 

brought up the general question before the Board. I believe it was a week or 
10 days after that. It was some time after it was discussed by the Board that 
you discussed it with the Prime Minister.

The Witness: Yes, I mentioned it to the Prime Minister.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Oh, it was the Prime Minister who knew about it. After talking with 
Major Bell, can you give me the date any better?—A. Approximately a week 
in advance of the signing of that contract.

Q. Major Bell said something about a Board. I don’t understand what 
that is; whether he can reinforce your memory there or not?—A. The conversa­
tion with the Prime Minister was entirely informal. I discussed the matter with 
him and mentioned the matter to him, as I probably mentioned many things.

Q. What did he say?—A. I explained to him what we proposed to do, and 
he said he saw no objection.

Q. You told him you were going to buy a property for 28,000,000 francs------
A. I told him what we intended to do, in a general way ; I do not think I gave 
him any details, because the details at that time, as I remember, were not per­
fected. It was a sort of informal information with respect to the general mat­
ter of policy.
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Q. We have the details all set out on the 30th to the fullest extent we can 
get them—on the 30th of April. Is it your evidence that you did not have those 
details at the time you saw the Prime Minister?—A. That is right.

Q. So the substance of it all is that you had a general talk with the Premier, 
find so far as he was concerned, he saw no objection to your going ahead .and 
buying the building?—A. In so far as the question of policy went; but it was 
not even with respect to the details, because I was not in a position to tell him 
what the details were.

Q. So he knew nothing about the matter involved at that time?—A. That 
is right.

Q. Is it a fact that the Premier then came into this matter approximately 
a week before the 30th of April? What other members of the Government did 
you see?—A. I am not sure whether I talked to Mr. Graham in regard to that 
or not. I think I probably did. (To Mr. Bell) : Do you know whether I did or 
not?

Major Bell: That was later on.
Sir Henry Drayton : How much later?
The Witness: I don’t know; I don’t remember.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Was it before or after your letter of May 31st to Mr. Graham?—A. I 

should think it was probably after.
Q. Because, so far as this letter is concerned, it is quite obvious that if this 

letter is frank, that would be the first intimation Mr. Graham would get. I will 
read it to you and you will see if I am wrong in what I suggest to you : “For 
some months, the necessity for a more aggressive campaign—A. What was 
the date of that letter?

Q. April 31st.
“For some months the necessity for a more agressive campaign in 

Europe on the part of the Canadian National Railway System has been 
apparent to me if we are to get our share of the European business, and 
likewise develop a constructive immigration policy.”

Mr. Stewart: That date is not April 31st.
Sir Henry Drayton: Did I say April? I beg your pardon. May 31st.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. It would seem to me that Mr. Graham knew nothing about it until he 

got this letter. I may be wrong.—A. I cannot answer that definitely but 1 
think the chances are I discussed the matter with Mr. Graham, sometime prior 
to that, and then wrote that letter to him, which somewhat more or less repre­
sented the result of our conversation.

Q. So the writing of this letter to Mr. Graham, according to your evidence, 
is that it represents more or less the result of the conversation you had with 
him?—A. I think so, Sir Henry.

Q. Well, how definite are you in your thought? Have you any recollection 
about it?—A. Well, I have a recollection of discussiong the matter with Mr. 
Graham, but how many days in advance of that letter, I do not.know; I cannot 
remember the exact date. I talked to the Minister about so many different 
subjects that it is not an easy matter to recall, after a year’s lapse of time the 
precise date at which a certain conversation which may have been more or less 
informal, took place—

Q. Sir Henry, this matter was ventilated very thoroughly as far as the 
information we had would permit almost immediately afterwards ; there was 
a great deal said about it. It was a matter of direct importance; this is no
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mete matter of detail in connection with the running of your system. 1 do not 
think that excuse will be accepted?—A. Well, no excuse was offered; please 
make no mistake in that.

Q. I do not know, then, what the reasons are-------A. You are asking me
on what date, prior to the letter of May 31st, I first discussed the matter with 
the Minister. I cannot tell you that. 1 do not recall it definitely.

Q. We will put it in another way, if you thought that was all I wanted. I 
wanted to know definitely from you whether you discussed the purchase of the 
Hotel Scribe with the Minister of Railways before you wrote that letter of 
May 31st?—A. 1 think I probably did.

Q. You thing you probably did. We have two salient clauses; the first is 
the thought and the next is the probability?—A. That is right.

Q. Can you not do better than that?-—A. No, I cannot.
Q. Then I am afraid we will have to go back to the records again?—A. Well, 

as you like.
Q. You say: “Two months ago I brought the matter to the attention of our 

Board of Directors, outlining in a general way what I thought should be done, 
and the Board expressed itself as being in accord with my views.” Just at that 
point, in fairness to you, I should draw attention to your statement of yesterday 
that the Board knew nothing about this matter until it came up in the House? 
—A. Well, I do not remember the day it came up in the House. Probably it is 
a matter of record.

Q. In June of last year; I did not give you the exact date yesterday 
because I did not have the Hansard; I have it to-day. I think it 
is only fair to draw your attention to the answer you made yesterday, that 
this Scribe Hotel had not been brought to the attention of the Board prior 
to this discussion in the House in June of last year?—A. At any rate whatever 
that statement was, it is of record. We had a particular Board meeting, to 
which reference was made in the letter of.May.31st. Whether that was before 
it came up in the House last year or not, I do not know ; I cannot remember.

Q. Do you think you are doing yourself justice there ?—A. I am not worried 
about doing myself justice.

Q. I am worried about it. I don’t want the matter to go with the wrong 
implication. I want your own story as you yourself believe it?—A. Well, I 
presume from that letter which you have before you, that this matter was 
mentioned to the Board on the third Monday in May. (To Major Bell) : Would 
it not be the third Monday of May?

Major Bell : Yes. The Scribe Hotel was not mentioned, it was the general
policy.

The Witness: That would be the second Monday in May.
Major Bell: Oh, you mean when the Scribe Hotel came up. The Scribe 

Hotel did not come up in the Board before this matter came up in the House 
at all. The general policy was discussed; Sir Henry Thornton explained to the 
Board that he considered that we should open up an office on the continent and 
he discussed the various places, and we finally got .down to Paris; we decided 
that we should have an office there in order to pursue an aggressive policy on 
the continent. No particular building was mentioned at that time at all, and the 
Boar had no information at the time.

-The Witness: I think that was on May 21st.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. You discussed with the Board the advisability of opening an office in 
Paris?—A. And the acquisition of the necessary property in connection with it.
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Q. Major Boll did not say that, and you are relying on his memory alto­
gether in connection with it. Now, do you want, in view of the fact that you 
could not tell us about this yourself, to add to what Major Bell has said the fact 
that the Board authorized the purchase of property as against leasing?—A. On 
May 21st, at the Board meeting, the general policy of acquiring a property in 
Paris for the purposes named was discussed and approved.

Q. You put it now as “acquiring”?—A. I did not put it that way at all.
Q. You certainly said so a moment ago, but there is still room for change.— 

A. No, it is exactly as I think I put it to you. that the general policy was 
discussed at the May Board meeting which, if I remember rightly, would be on 
May 21st. That was a discussion with respect to the general policy, and the 
policy of acquiring suitable office quarters either by purchase or otherwise was 
discussed at that flhne. (To Major Bell) Is that right?

Major Bell: I think it was the month before, in April.
The Witness: AVe can easily refer to the minutes of the Board, and deter­

mine when it was.
Sir Henry Drayton : I have the other minutes of the Board, and I cannot 

find' any minute of the Board with the interview of which you speak. It, is not 
here.

Major Bell: I doubt if it would be a minute of the Board.
Sir Henry Drayton : I have not much doubt about it either.
Q. So the acquisition of the property, as you nowr put it, could either be by 

lease or purchase?—A. That is my recollection of the discussion.
Q. Very well, we will go on.
“There has been abundant evidence that our inactivity abroad was losing 

us a certain amount of business, and you may recall for example, the statement 
made recently on the floor of the House by an honourable member, complaining 
that the Canadian National Railway System was unknown in Europe.

“One of the essential implements.on the solicitation of business as well as for 
the purpose of advertising the Dominion of Canada as a whole, is proper 
quarters at strategic European points. A\7c are already properly housed in 
London, but we have no quarters on the continent, I therefore considered it 
necessary to secure offices of sufficient prominence to meet our requirements in 
■that territory.”

Mr. Kyte: AVhat are you reading from there?
Sir Henry Drayton : A letter of the 31st of May addressed to the Minister.
Q. “Early in this month, an opportunity developed to secure a property at 

the corner of Rue Scribe and the Boulevard des Capucins, close to the Place de 
l’Opera, and in the centre of the banking and transportation district; briefly it 
may be said that this location is in the very heart of the city”. I think it is only 
fair to draw the point out that if this file is correct this letter is not true—A. 
In what respect?

Q. —and give you every opportunity of changing it. As a matter of fact 
the file says that on the 9fh of April the opportunity developed to secure this 
property, while the letter says, “Early in this month” the opportunity developed. 
Both cannot be true.—A. I do not quite see the point.

Q. No, it is only a question of veracity, that is all; which is true? There 
is no point which I am making at all; I am trying to get the facts and nothing 
else.—A. Yes.

Q. The file says that on the 9th of April you had the opportunity to secure 
this property. On the 31st of May you write to this effect, “Early in this month 
the opportunity developed to secure this property”. Which is true?—A. I do not 
think theçe is any conflict, unless one wants to play upon terms. The matter wras 
first brought to my attention as has already been developed. The first oppor-
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unity we really had to close the deal or even to discuss it in detail was when 
Mr. Aronovici arrived here, which I think was about the 1st of April, and you 
cannot say an opportunity developed until the matter was practically closed or 
until we had an opportunity of knowing exactly what the terms and conditions 
would be. When I said “Early in the month”, that was only an approximation 
of about the time that was involved. Whether it was two weeks in advance of 
that, or three weeks in advance of that is unimportant.

Q. We have your cable to Philips to repeat to Roy, which is entirely 
different.

Mr. Kyte: What date is that cable.
Sir Henry Drayton : April 9th.
Q. However, the use of one month as against the other is merely a term, as 

T understand you.—A. In a general way that is a correct statement.
Q. Any way you like to put it. If the name of a month makes no difference 

to you, that is for you to say. “Immediate action was necessary, as I had infor­
mation from authentic sources that other interests were considering the property.” 
What other interests?—A. I understand there were two, which were not named 
to me, important United States New York banking institutions who had it in 
mind.

Q. Who told you that?—A. A friend of mine who was familiar with the 
position and who gave me the information.

Q. Have you any objection to stating his name?—A. I will not, for the 
reasons already given.

Q. You have refused but given no reason for refusing as 1 remember.—A. I 
think he is available, and I will ask him if he has any objection to my giving his 
name. If he says he has not, I will do so.

Q. I cannot think why he should have any objection.'—A. That may be, 
but at the same time, when people give you confidential information you are not 
at liberty to divulge that information or their names without their permission. 
That is a recognized practice all over the world.

Q. Did he give you this confidentially?—A. Quite.
Q. Was this the friend who told you about Paris values?—A. Yes, one of 

them.
Q. There was one in Ottawa and the other in New York?—A. Yes, the 

one in Ottawa.
Q. Is this the one in Ottawa?—A. Yes.
Q. “Accordingly, I immediately aranged that an agent should purchase the 

property, and employed the support of the Canadian National Railway System 
in arranging suitable temporary financial credit. The deal was immediately con­
summated, and simultaneously negotiations were entered into with a responsible 
syndicate——As a matter of fact, the deal was consummated just a few days 
before that letter was written, was it not?—A. Well, no. The deal was con­
summated as of the date of the letter of contract with Aronovici. I think that 
was April 30th.

Q. Your letter to the Bank of Toronto is dated May 25th.—A. Whatever 
that date was.

Q. It would have to be after May 25th?—A. That the deal was finally 
consummated and the money paid?

Q. Yes.—A. Yes, technically that is correct.
Q. Not technically, but truthfully.—A. When you say a deal is consumated, 

it depends upon the payment of certain sums, and these sums may not be paid 
until two weeks dr thirty days after the deal is made, and it is a question 
whether you consider the deal consummated when .you make your arrangement, 
or when the money is paid over.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Q. If you had entered into a binding agreement with the owners that is 
quite right, but we have not .got that. We have not any evidence of that.—A. 
You have the letter to Aronovici.

Q. He was not the owner.—A. No, but he controlled the option, which is 
the same thing.

Q. “The deal was immediately consummated, and simultaneously negotiations 
were entered into with a responsible syndicate not connected with the Canadian 
National System, for the purpose of taking over the property, and with a view 
to our becoming tenants. These arrangements have now been completed, and 
the syndicate has agreed to take over the property subject to certain details.” 
What were the details left open?—A. As to the form of debentures, signing the 
various legal documents, the arrangements with respect to taxes, the formation 
of a company to act in the name of the syndicate, and a lot of things of that sort.

Q. Can you think of anything else? That sounds a lob—A. No, I think 
that is sufficient to indicate there were further details.

Q. You say, “a lot of things of that sort.” I would like the list,—A. If you 
put the question that way, I will answer it by saying I have given you substan­
tially an indication of what the list of details would be.

Q, “This arrangement now being completed—”. Do you think it is fair 
to say that, when you have as many details open as that?—A. Yes, I think it 
is fair to sav tl'iat ; if you have settled the general principles of any proposition 
you can consider the proposition closed.

Q. Well, sometimes you take chances in such a thing?—A. We must always 
take chances in this world.

Q. Now, Sir Henry, you have already told me you do not know who the 
owners were. Have you followed the French press at all?—A. In a general way.

Q. Have you followed the charges hj the French press to the effect that 
there is something very very mysterious and wrong about this deal?—A. Yes.

Mr. Kyte: I would hardly think, Mr. Chairman, that that should go down 
in the minutes. We do not know anything about the French press. Sir Henry 
Drayton has made a statement from the information he has obtained from read­
ing French newspapers. Sir Henry Thornton has no ..knowledge of them, and 
I hardly think that should be taken down into the record.

Sir Henry Drayton : Sir Henry Thornton has already said he knew of 
these statements.

The Witness: Yes, and I will be glad to tell you something about them, 
too. - j

By the Chairman:
Q. Do you wish to answer that question?—A. Yes, I do.
Mr. Stewart: For the benefit of the Committee, I think Sir Henry Dray­

ton ought to tell us what he is talking about, before Sir Henry Thornton answers 
him. We are in the dark as to these statements.

The Chairman: Perhaps that is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : I have asked a question as to whether the President 

knows about these statements appearing in the press, that there was something 
wrong in connection with the purchase of this Hotel Scribe. I would sooner take 
Sir Henry’s opinion about it.

By the Chairman:
Q. Do you care to answer that question?—A. Yes, I do. There are in Paris 

certain so-called newspapers which consist of an .enterprising individual and a 
typewriter. These publications from time to time undertake to blackmail 
reputable business men.

(Sir Henry Thornton.]
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By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Something like The Axe in Montreal?—A. I should not go that far, nor 

have I any desire to discuss The Axe nor The Hook nor any of these things 
with which we are all familiar. They make a practice, and their usual practice 
is this. They will call upon some reputable business man or some company, and 
they will intimate to him that they have certain information. Whether it is 
accurate or inacccurate is relatively unimportant, except that it is generally in­
accurate. They say, “ If you could find it convenient to make a certain contri­
bution to our newspaper, we would find it equally convenient not to publish the 
article in question.” Sometimes there is a practice gallop or a practice canter in 
advance, in which they will put out something that is not very definite, but is 
intended to be indicative of what they will do to you in the next issue if you do 
not “ come across.” Now, in this particular instance that newspaper—and I 
havez forgotten the name at the moment—

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Is it not “ L’Amérique Latine?”—A. I do not remember the name, but 

I can probably find out. At any rate, a certain so-called newspaper in Paris 
tried it on with me, and they published the article in question. Not only was 
it a scurrilous article, but it referred also to the brother of a dear old friend of 
mine, one of my best friends, who is now dead, having died as a result of his 
efforts in the war. This article was published for the attempted purpose of try­
ing to get us into the payment of blackmail. I reported the matter to Mr. 
Archibald, our Attorney in Paris, and tie said, “ Pay no attention to it. If you 
ever deal with these people in any way or recognize them even to the extent of 
talking to them, then you have opened the door to all sorts of complications.” 
As far as this particular article is concerned in this particular newspaper he 
said, “ We’all understand the position. It is a thing to which every business man 
in Paris is'from time to time subjected,” and he said, “ My advice to you is to 
pay no attention to it whatever.”

Q. Do you remember the name of it?—A. No, but I can get it for you.
Major Bell: I saw the article and talked it over with Mr. Archibald. It 

is one of these papers that is here to-day and gone to-morrow.
By Sir Henry Drayton: ,

Q. That is not the paper I am talking about; I will have to get you the 
article. That is all you know about it?—A. I treated the thing with all the con­
tempt which I thought it merited, on the advice of our lawyer in Paris.

Q. Then I think you did know about the taxes and that sort of thing, on 
April 30th, did you not?—A. The approximate extent, probably. I do not 
know that I can answer that question precisely in that form.

Q. We will turn up the letter and see. You say in your letter of April 30, 
“ 12 per cent of this amount payable to the Government of France”. That was 
right, because that would be 3,600,000 francs, so your information was correct 
there. Do you remember what the taxes were that were paid in that originally?

Major Bell: It is on file there, Sir Henry.
Mr. Kyte: You gave that information yesterday, did you not?
Major Bell: Yes. The purchase price of the property was 28,000,000 

francs, the actual amount paid, and the registration fee on that was 3,360,000 
francs, as established by the documents.

Sir Henry Drayton:. Was there not something paid for the mortgage also?
Major Bell: Yes, for the mortgage, 750,000 francs. That was a separate

tax.
Sir Henry Drayton : What were the Government taxes paid in connection 

with the transfer from Aronovici to the company?
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Major Bell : T think 1 gave that to you yesterday : I did not give you the 
amounts, because I did not have them. I think it is something in the neigh­
bourhood of one per cent; it may be a little over or a little under.

Sir Henry Drayton : One per cent as against three per cent? You did 
not give it yesterday.

Major Bell: I referred to it, and told you I could not give the exact 
figures. That is the reason we formed the company ; Aronovici signed off the 
shares as soon as that was done.

Mr. Sjewart: Was that included in the 1,370,000 francs?
Major Bell: No, we would take care of that after.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Were there any other members of the Government or members of Par­

liament with whom you discussed this, besides the Premier and the Minister 
of Railways?—A. No.

Q. That is all?—A. Yes.
Q. Have you anything in writing from Mr. Rucl as to the legality of this 

matter?—A. I do not think we have. I think Mr. Ruel simply gave me his 
opinion verbally.

Q. What was the date you brought Mr. Ruel into this?—A. Oh, imme­
diately we began discussing the matter with Aronovici.

Q. So he was in it from the start?—A. Yes.
Q. What date did you bring Major Bell into it?—A. I think about the 

same time.
Major Bell: The day I signed the $200,000 advance. That was the first 

I heard of it. That is, this particular property ; I know the general scheme.
Sir Henry Drayton: The time the advance of $200,000 was made. We 

did not get the date of that, did we?—A. Can you fix the date of that at all, 
Major?

Mr. Kyte: Was that not in the statement yesterday, also?
Major Bell: It would be some time in May, I imagine, would it not?
The Witness: I think it would be before that.
Major Bell: It is a matter of record, when that $200,000 was advanced.
Sir Henry Drayton : It is not set up in the account of payments.
Major Bell: It would be about the time that letter was signed, about the 

same date.
Sir Henry Drayton : April 30th?
Major Bell: Yes.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I will go and get that article for you, Sir Henry.—A. I wish you would. 

I might say there has been not only an article in the paper I referred to, but 
there have been a certain number of articles which were all prompted by 
nefarious purposes.

Q. Now tell me the date of Aronovici’s option?—A. No, I do not think 
I can. I might be able to get it, but I do not remember.

Q. I suppose Mr. Archibald has that option ; he would naturally take it 
over in getting the title?

Major Bell: I do not think he would have it.
Sir Henry Drayton : Well, I will get that article, because it is only fair 

to let you see it.
The Chairman : Have you finished?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, with the exception of that one thing.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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By Mr. Kyte:
Q. I have just two or three questions. What position did you occupy in 

railway management before going to England Sir Henry ?—A. 1 was General 
Superintendent of the Long Island Railroad, which was owned by the Penn­
sylvania.

Q. For how long a period?—A. Three years.
Q. And you went to England when?—A. Early "in April, 1914.
Q. What position did you hold there?—A. General Manager of the Great 

Eastern Railway.
Q. For how long?—A. Until I came here in December, 1922.
Q. In your experience, you are familiar with the way in which large corpo­

rations acquire property ?—A. Yes.
Q. While you were General Manager of the Great Eastern Railway, did 

it become necessary for you to acquire property?—A. Oh, yes.
Q. In what respect was it acquired by you, in what manner?—A. It would 

depend a good deal on the character of the property, and the circumstances 
under which its acquisition was accomplished. Sometimes the Chairman and 
myself would decide that a certain property was essential for the welfare of 
the company, and if the circumstances justified it that property was acquired, 
and a subsequent report made to the Board.

Q. That property was acquired without reference to the Board of Directors 
in the first instance?—A. Yes.

Sir Henry Drayton : That entirely depends on the bylaws of the company, 
and the objects of the purchase.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Could you state generally the reasons why purchases for large corpora­

tions should be made in that way?—A. Sometimes there is certain property to 
be acquired which is difficult of acquisition, and should the name of the pur­
chaser be publicly known in advance of the acquisition of the property, the 
price would be considerably advanced, and therefore it is not an unusual prac­
tice for railway companies and large business institutions, in the acquisition of 
property to acquire it without reporting to the Board for approval.

Q. Did you follow the usual course in your experience with regard to this 
Paris property?—A. I did.

Q. Could you state generally, Sir Henry, in what respect you would prob­
ably have had to pay a larger sum for this property in Paris if it had been 
generally noised abroad that your company was seeking it?—A. I think it is not 
unlikely that the price would have become prohibitive if the name of the pur­
chaser were known. That applies not only to railways, but it applies to people 
of opulence throughout the world as a whole. A rich man or a man who enjoys 
the reputation of wealth, if he proceeds to purchase a property or wants to ac­
quire a property, he usually does not let his name be known until the property 
has been acquired, for perfectly obvious reasons. That applies to individuals 
and companies as well.

Q. I think you stated yesterday that it was necessary to make terms with 
the tenants occupying that property, to get them to vacate?—A. That is true.

Q. I suppose if those tenants knew this property was being acquired for 
the Canadian National Railway System you would have had some difficulty to 
succeed in your object?—A. Yes, that is true.

Sir Henry Drayton : That is feeding it up in good shape.
Mr. Kyte: No wonder, the committee is hungry for the facts, and we are 

getting them now.
Sir Henry Drayton: No, you are putting the words into the witness’

mouth.
[Sir Henry Thornton. 1
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By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Has the Canadian Pacific Railway an office in Paris?—A. I believe they 

have; in fact I think they have offices in most of the capitals in Europe, either 
through their own company or through subsidiary companies which they con­
trol.

Q. I think you stated yesterday that you knew Paris fairly well?—A. Yes.
Q. You were a frequent visitor in Paris in recent years?—A. During the 

war as Deputy Director of Movement of Railways and Inspector General of 
Transportation, I had an office in Paris and I also had an office at the front.

Q. Was your knowledge of conditions in Paris' greater or less than that of 
the co-directors of your railway?—A. I think I am not egotistical if I say that 
I knew something more about Paris than most oi our directors, in fact than any 
of our directors. I would like to say this, in connection with procedures of this 
sort which we are discussing. Not so very long ago an opportunity occurred 
for the purchase from the Montreal Tramways Company of a line which runs 
from Montreal to Bout de l’Isle. I think it is about 12 miles long. I had about 
an hour in which to decide whether we would buy that property or not. The 
price was $1,200,000 and I decided to buy it for the company and did buy it, 
and it was subsequently reported to the Board of Directors for approval. I 
had to take the responsibility of acquiring that property or not getting it at all, 
and I assumed that responsibility and acquired the property. That is an in­
stance within my own knowledge of recent occurrence, which necessitated im­
mediate action and the assumption of responsibility. These are things which 
from time to time present themselves to the administrator of any large institu­
tion.

Q. Did I understand you to say yesterday, Sir Henry, that there was some­
thing in the nature of an offer made for the purchase of this property from your 
company?—A. I have within the last few days received a telegram from Mr. 
Archibald saying that he had an inquiry from responsible people in Paris to 
discover whether we would consider an offer of 40.000,000 francs cash for the 
property, plus free office space,for such quarters of reasonable size as we might 
care to reserve from the property, and he wanted to know whether we would 
favourably consider such a proposal.

Q. Would that 40,000,000 francs cover the amount expended by you?-—A. 
It depends a .good deal on the condition of the franc; I think that would repre­
sent about $2,200.000, plus whatever office space we required free, for our pur­
poses. I told him to develop the thing- and let us know further details.

Q. In making the selection, Sir Henry, I presume you had in mind the site, 
rather than the building: the location?—A. Unquestionably, yes.

Q. I suppose a smaller building would have suited your purpose if one had 
been available in that quarter?—A. Undoubtedly.

Q. There was something said about a deposit of $2,680,000, made in the 
Bank of Toronto?—A. $2,608,000, I think it was.

Q. h ou intimated that Major Bell would know more about the particulars 
of that than yourself?—A. I think so, yes.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. You mentioned that the C.P.R. have an office there. Do you know the 

rent they pay?—A. No.
Q. Quite a small office, is it not?—A. I do not know; I do not know where 

it is.
Q. So you cannot give us any particulars about that. What is this railway 

you just bought?—A. It is that section of the Montreal Tramways which runs 
from Montreal to, T suppose, the eastern end of the island, Bout de l’Isle, mean­
ing, “ The end of the Island.”

Q; And what sum of money is involved in that?—A. $1,200,000.
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Q. How payable?—A. We have paid already in cash $200,000.
Major Bell: $100,000, I think, and the balance is payable within à year. 

That is just from memory ; I can get you the exact figure.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Is that subject to mortgage or bonds or anything?—A. No.
Q. What is the mileage?—A. 12 miles.
Q. That will be run in connection with what branch of the system?—A. I 

do not quite understand that question.
Q. That will be operated in connection with what branch of the system, 

what activity of the system? Is this one of the electric railways?—A. No; I 
will describe that to you. We have a line running to this same part of the island, 
Bout de PIsle. The line to which reference has just been made lies to the north 
of our line and is immediately adjacent thereto. Its rails prevent access to any 
industrial development which might take place in that part of the island. There­
fore the property was bought more as an industrial freight proposition, of 
course, than passenger ; for the purpose of giving us access to that particular 
part of Montreal which has developed and will further develop for industrial 
purposes.

Q. This is really in connection with industrial development, for spur lines, 
and so on?—A. Yes.

Major Bell: You will find this all set out in the discussion before the 
Quebec legislature in giving the Montreal Tramways Company power to sign 
up.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I hope you are going to follow up that offer that you have from Mr. 

Archibald?—A. I do not know whether we should or not, for this reason. I 
should think it would be pretty safe to assume that within five years’ time we 
can sell that property for a good deal more than 40,000,000 francs, if we wAnt 
to. The situation in Paris is this: Paris until recently was surrounded by fortifi­
cations and at intervals the principal thoroughfares leading to Paris penetrate 
these fortifications. At each one of these fortifications there is a gate, and any 
one leaving or entering Paris is obliged to stop at that gate and declare their 
petrol or any other things they may have; they are given a receipt for that, 
and when they return that is checked up against them to see that they are 
not smuggling into the city, because a tax exists on everything that enters the 
city of Paris, and most French cities. That was a tax which arose at the close 
of the Franco-Prussian war, and was for the purpose of assisting the French 
municipalities in meeting their various municipal expenses. These fortifica­
tions have become obsolete, and the French government is now engaged in 
tearing them down. The fortifications established a pretty definite barrier to 
the real development of Paris for residential purposes. With the removal of 
these fortifications, there will undoubtedly be a considerable impetus to resi­
dential building in the immediate vicinity of Paris. In other words, it is going 
to very largely expand the population of Paris. That in turn is going to mean 
that there will be a further congestion in the business district of Paris, because 
the high-class business district of Paris is limited to the area in the immediate 
vicinity of the Place de l’Opera, the Rue de la Paix, and generally speaking, 
that district which surrounds La Madeleine. That, in turn, if I am correctly 
informed, and 1 believe I am, is going to very materially enhance the value of 
business locations in the desirable part of Paris. So, there is no question in 
my mind at all but what before so very long we shall be able to dispose of that 
part of this property which we may wish t'o dispose of at a considerably 
enhanced price. You will forgive me for going into details about the position 
in Paris, but it explains to you why I think these quarters in Paris are going

F Sir Himry Thornton.]
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to be more valuable and more sought after in the future than has been the case 
in the past.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Just one further question. I think you stated yesterday that the Pruden­

tial Insurance Company advanced, or were willing to advance some considerable 
sum of money on this property ?—A. £700,000.

Q. That would be sterling pounds.—A. Sterling.
Sir Henry Drayton : With the guarantee of the government .
The Chairman : Any further questions?
Mr. Mackinnon: I would like to make a little reference to what Mr. 

Graham said as reported in Hansard. When Mr. Graham was asked what the 
price was. his answer was, “about $£,000,000, 1 am told.” He did not say 
definitely $2,000,000.

The Chairman: I think I might also refer to that, because I had a little 
argument with Sir Henry Drayton. I think what was in Mr. Graham’s mind 
was the original purchase price, which was- about $2,000,000; 28,000,000 francs, 
which would figure out about $2,000,000. The $600,000 made up by way of 
expenses and taxes would be added to that.

Mr. Mackinnon: At page 3615 of Hansard he said, “I did not say I was 
not consulted.” He was charged with being not consulted, and he denies he said 
he was not consulted. I thought it was right to have the record corrected 
according to Hansard, in the absence of Mr. Graham.

By Mr Harrisf
Q. 1 gathered yesterday that it was considered that Paris is the gateway 

for all European traffic, whether it is tourist, freight, express or anything that 
has to do with the interests of the Canadian National Railways?—A. Yes, that 
is substantially correct.

Q. Perhaps the most remunerative of that, I gathered, was the tourist 
traffic?—A. I do not think you could say it as definitely as that. Generally 
speaking there is more profit in carrying in freight, whether it be by freight or 
by express, than there is in the tourist business. In other words, I would not like 
to say that there is really more profit in the tourist business than in the freight 
or express, or vice versa.

Q. The policy of the railway company is to push very vigorously the exten­
sion of freight collection and express collection, then, on the continent?—A. That 
is true.

Q. You also intimated that Paris was really the headquarters for emigration 
from Europe?—A. If I did say it was headquarters for emigration, I did not 
mean it quite that way. What I meant was that Paris, for the reasons that 
have been already given, is the centre of industrial and financial activity on the 
continent; meetings are held there, matters are discussed there, and in a general 
way policies are more or less drawn from Paris, due very largely to the predom­
inating activity of the French government on the continent of Europe.

Q. You told us yesterday that in these new quarters which you are acquiring 
you would house, for example, Doctor Black and all his departments?—A. Doctor 
Black would have an office in London and an office in Paris, and as far as 
emigration is concerned he might have several offices.

Q. The proposition made yesterday was that one of the ideas in mind was 
to house Doctor Black in this particular building?—A. I do not remember that 
statement.

Q. I am sorry I have not a copy of the evidence, but I remember that 
distinctly. —A. I think you are substantially correct in saying he would have an 
office there. Most of the time, I fancy, his office would be in his hat.

[Sir Henry Thornton.)
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Q. His staff, for instance, would be largely housed in Paris—A. To a 
considerable degree.

Q. The new office that has been spoken of in London, England, what has 
been done in that connection? There is nothing very definite in this report, any 
more than it says, ‘‘Having this in view, it was decided to open in London, 
England, a special office under the jurisdiction of the Department of Colon­
ization?—A. Yes, that is true.

Q. Is there anything that has been definitely done in that connection?—A. 
As you probably know, we have a very satisfactory office on Cockspur Street 
in London, in which the railway offices are placed; Doctor Black has offices in 
the building also, and the reference in the report is to that office.

Q. This special office is an office that is already in existence?—A. Yes.
Q. And Doctor Black’s headquarters, then, will be wdiere, in London or 

Paris?—A. Both.
Q. And his staff will be partly in London and partly in Paris?—A. He will 

have to have a certain staff in London to deal with emigration from the United 
Kingdom, and he would have an office in Paris to deal with continental emigra­
tion.

Q. The whole question of emigration is also linked up with the reciprocal 
arrangement made, for instance, with the White Star and Cunard lines?—A. Yes.

Q. And the head offices of the White Star and Cunard lines are in London? 
—A. Yes, I hesitated in answering that, because I was not sure but what the 
head office of the Cunard line might be in Liverpool, but I think that is a 
substantially correct statement. The head offices of the White Star line are 
in London.

Q. Would you say that this reciprocal arrangement wTould be made probably 
at the head office in London?—A. Yes, more or less.

Q. It would not be necessary for that portion of the staff to be housed in 
Paris?—A. Not so far as questions of that kind might be concerned. But we 
might also do business with the Compagnie Générale. Trans-Atlantique, the 
French line.

Q. With regard to emigration and colonization and development, your policy 
is just what with regard to the continent and with regard to Great Britain? 
Perhaps there is a statement here, number 5, which would be fair?—A. You will 
find on page 11------

The Chairman : Just a moment please. Your quèstions are directed 
in accordance with the discussion on the purchase of the Paris property?

Mr. Harris: I am trying to draw a conclusion as to the necessity of 
housing Doctor Black and all his staff in this new building. It was represented 
yesterday that a portion of this building would be allotted to Doctor Black 
and his staff.

The Chairman : I do not want to stop you questioning, but would that not 
rather be a matter for decision by the Department of Immigration?

The Witness: No, Doctor Black is in our employ. We “pinched” him, 
or got him from the government. On page 11 of the annual report you will 
find a general statement—I dare say you have it before you there—with respect 
to how we propose to develop-our immigration business, and the principles that 
we propose to follow in connection therewith.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. I would gather from that statement that it is not the intention to push 

very vigorously, as you deposed yesterday, the emigration from the continent?— 
A. Oh yes, it is. I am sorry any one got the impression that we did not propose 
to push vigorously emigration wherever we would find suitable emigrants.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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Q. Inasmuch as the report says, “ Especially from Great Britain ” I would 
imagine that you would be even more vigorous in pushing emigration from 
Great Britain?—A. I think you might put it this way. We would prefer—and 
T think it is quite obvious why—to draw as many emigrants as we can from the 
United Kingdom, but not at all to the exclusion of pursuing an equally vigorous 
policy elsewhere, where suitable emigrants could be found. If we could draw 
all of our emigrants from the United Kingdom, I think it would be a desirable 
thing to do, but we cannot.

Q. In view of the fact that you are specially working in Great Britain and 
combing Great Britain, as it were, for suitable emigrants, it is logical to assume 
that the most of your efforts would emanate from the London office.—A. No, I 
do not think that would be an accurate deduction to draw, because as I have 
said we not only want to get as many suitable emigrants from the United 
Kingdom as we can, but we also propose to aggressively and vigorously pursue 
emigration matters on the continent.

Q. In view of the fact that this traffic is carried by the White Star and 
Cunard Lines, is it reasonable to assume that the greater portion of the staff 
would find themselves working from London, England, rather than from Paris? 
—A. I should say that London would be the general headquarters of Doctor 
Black and his staff, and he would also have à suitable office in Paris, and any 
other offices on the continent as well, which may be subsequently opened.

Q. Do you really think, Sir Henry, that the fact that Doctor Black requires 
to be housed in Paris to a degree, apart from that part of his office he carries 
in his hat, do you really think that that one feature would have any bearing 
with }rour Board of Directors in encouraging you to acquire this site in Paris?— 
A. The acquisition of this property was not for the purpose exclusively of 
taking care of Doctor Black. That was one of the factors in the proposition, 
but it was not the main factor.

Q. With regard to the freight traffic from the continent, and the express 
traffic, have you also reciprocal arrangements with the Cunard and White 
Star Lines?—A. We have a working agreement with both of these lines, with 
respect to passenger, freight, and express traffic.

Q. I assume that the policy of the White Star and Cunard Lines, for instance, 
would also be to push vigourously the gathering of freight in central Europe?— 
A. Certainly, in co-operation with us, just as we co-operate with them here on 
this side. We have certain freight solicitors who are on our payroll and who 
work very largely in connection with the securing of business for both companies.

Q. I gather they are divided into two classes, express and freight?—A. Yes.
Q. How many soliciting freight agents do you have in France, for instance? 

—A. I do not think we have any at present. That is a detail that I should 
hate to ask Mr. Dalrymple about; he ifc our vice-president in charge of traffic. 
We have not fully developed our European organization yet. It is a , thing to 
which much more attention will have" to be given in the future than has been 
given in the past. Pretty much all of our efforts in the past have been in the 
direction of building up the organization for the operation of the railway itself, 
and we have had to leave aside until we could get at it the establishment of a 
European tourist, express and freight organization, and we are now getting to it. 
In fact, we have been at it for some time, but the preliminary efforts necessary 
had to be first cleared up. During the next year, the next 18 or 24 months, we 
are going to pursue a very much more aggressive policy of passenger and freight 
business on the continent than we have been able to pursue in the past.

Q. Your soliciting freight agents for the continent itself, is it logical to 
assume that they may receive instructions from the head office in Paris, but of 
course would not be housed in Paris.—A. It would be a general headquarters,
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just as we have a general headquarters in Montreal, and have freight solicitors 
all over the United States and Canada, in various places.

Q. Take your freight solicitor for the city of Hamilton; he would not pro­
bably reach Montreal once a year?—A. Yes, I think much more frequently than 
that.

Q. Your freight solicitors for Toronto would reach Montreal quite fre­
quently?—A. Yes, they would come to Montreal for meetings and discussions. 
If you go further afield and take San Francisco, your statement would be correct.

Q. We will take the city of Toronto, about which I know a little more 
than I do about Paris. The freight solicitors for the city of Toronto find them­
selves at their desks practically 5^ days a week, do they not?—A. I hope they 
are not at their desks all that time; I should prefer to hear that they were out 
hunting business.

Q. They are at their offices?—A. They are in the territory assigned to them.
Q. And as a matter of fact, just taking Toronto for the moment, I understand 

that they do not leave Toronto at all—A. Well, I do not know as to that. 
Certainly I do not know that the freight traffic manager and the vice-president in 
charge of traffic have meetings periodically with the officers, to hear from them 
their opinions and to discuss matters and give them instructions.

Q. In Paris, for instance, you would not want a very large office to house 
the heads of the freight soliciting service?—A. Yes, that is quite true.

Q. Very, very, very small accommodation?—A. Not a very small accom­
modation, but not a very large accommodation.

Q. I gather that the soliciting freight agents would find themselves working 
from different parts of Europe, particularly in the larger centres of population, 
soliciting freight, and would not be housed in the Paris building?—A. That is 
true.

Q. At the same time their superior officers undoubtedly would be housed 
there?—A. That is true.

Q. So that the point,made with regard to the necessity of a large building 
to house all those different branches—the part which the soliciting freight agents 
would play in that equation would be relatively small?—A. We tried to make 
it clear that the whole of this Hotel Scribe was not at- all required for the 
purposes of the railway.

Q. I am coming to that, sir. Now, you do not, as a matter of fact, solicit 
very much express business? In other words, you do not have a staff or 
organization out soliciting express business?—A. We would not discriminate in 
Europe between freight and express solicitors, one set of solicitors would look 
after not only the freight and express, but also the tourist and passenger business.

Q. There would be only the one class of solicitors?—A. Yes.
(At this point the Chairman, Mr. Euler, left the Chair, and Mr. Stork 

acted as Vice Chairman.)
By Mr. Harris:

Q. How much of this building would actually be used for the purposes of 
the Canadian National Railway, after you have throughly made up your organiza­
tion?—A. Well, in that connection, Mr. Harris, I proposed what I think will 
eventually come about that any officers whom wre may have in Paris for the 
various departments would likewise like a floor to themselves, and that is the 
object of securing quarters in such a desirable location, and we would have to 
take into consideration, if that comes about, not only the space required for 
immediate railway purposes, but for any collateral purposes which the Govern­
ment might wish to employ.

Q. The Government and the Canadian National Railways would work very 
closely, hand in hand, on the Continent?—A. Oh, obviously.
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Q. You would find it necessitated the bringing of the policy of the Canadian 
National Railways into line with the policy of the Government?—A. I do not 
quite know how to answer that, I want to answer it, but I do not quite under­
stand the question.

Q. Well, you propose to rent a considerable part of this space to the Govern­
ment?—A. A portion of it, yes; but there will be a residue for which none of 
us have any use—

Q. I am trying to gather from you, Sir Henry, what portion of this building 
will be required for the National Railways purposes. You do not exactly 
know what that is as yet?—A. Not precisely. That is being worked out.

Q. Would that be one-half of the building?—A. No.
Q. Do you think it would be 25 per cent of the building?—A. Perhaps; 

that is about right.
Q. What portion do you think the Government will require?—A. Oh, I 

cannot answer that. I do not know precisely just what space they have else­
where at the present time.

Q. Sir Henry, if the policy of the Government was to change very con­
siderably, and you found, for instance, that a tariff was put up against goods 
coming in from Europe-----

Mr. Kyte: God forbid.
Mr. Harris: ------which made it impracticable for you to even send out

soliciting freight agents, soliciting freight traffic and express traffic, do you think 
you would find yourselves, with a large organization in Europe, probably embar­
rassed to get a financial return from your expenses?

The Witness: If such a situation would come about, if a tariff would be 
put up which would practically prohibit the movement of freight from Europe 
to Canada, we would, of course, have to trim our sails to meet the wind, and 
have to adjust our forces accordingly.

(Chairman Euler resumed the Chair; Acting Chairman Stork with­
drew.)

By Mr. Harris:
Q. I gather that your sails are trimmed now to gather as much freight as 

is possible on the Continent?—A. One is always subjected, and rightly so, to 
whatever policy the Government may pursue. If the Parliament of Canada 
imposes a prohibitive tariff, we will have to make the best of it.

Mr. Harris: I think that is all.
Mr. Kyte: Is that a threat or a prophecy?
Sir Henry Drayton : Mr. Chairman, I have the paper here, of which I 

spoke this morning. It is the “ L’Amérique Latine.”
Major Bell: I thought it was a small-sized sheet.
Mr. Kyte: This is only a four-page paper.
The Witness: Would you mind letting me see that? (Paper handed to 

witness.)
Sir Henry Drayton : That is all there is to it. I think I recognize this 

sheet. I notice something on the first page here about de Cameron Bocaccio, 
which seems to be pleasant reading. Here is a column, “ La vie Canadienne.” 
It starts off with “ Mr. Forke ” too.

Sir Henry Drayton : There is a special article on the Hotel Scribe.
Mr. Kyte: Have you a translation of it, Sir Henry (Drayton) ?

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That is the sheet?—A. Yes, that is it.
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Q. That is a paper apparently published in the interests of French people 
and Latins in America, and a copy of it is always sent through the mails to 
the Members?—A. I have no doubt of it.

Mr. Kyte: Have you any other copies?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes; I get it regularly.
Mr. Kyte: I don’t receive any.
Sir Henry Drayton : Perhaps yqu do not address yourself to the study of 

French-----
Mr. Kyte: I never addressed myself to the cultivation of this particular 

type of literature. I shall have to do that.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Do you recognize it?—A. It is not one of the well-known French morn­
ing papers like Le Matin, Le Soleil.

Q. You have a knowledge of French, so if you will follow me to see if I 
am reading this correctly?—A. All right.

Q. (Reading) :
“ Our readers know that the big building on the Boulevard des 

Italiens has been acquired on the guarantee of the state railway known 
as the Canadian National Railways. They wonder what is happening 
to this building, partly hidden under planks, and from which the enor­
mous letters announcing to the world the agent of the Paris agent of this 
railway have disappeared.”

That was Mr. Aronovici, was it not?—A. Yes.
Q. (Reading) :

“This mystery is explained as follows: The Canadian Federal 
Government entrusted the financial reorganization of its railway to an 
English specialist, Mr. Thornton, who would not accept the task, unless 
he was given full powers, which have made him a dictator. So that we 
do not know what is going to be the fate of this Boulevard building. We 
may, however, assure Mr. Thornton that it may be opportune in the 
interests of the general public, and notably of Canadians, to State clearly 
what are the facts and what are his intentions. It is altogether inoppor­
tune to allow the publication of evil rumours----- ”

That is, as you said, one of the feelers that was thrown out?—A. I do not know 
whether that would apply particularly to this paper; there was another paper 
which followed more or less along this same line. »

Q. (Reading) :
.... “ and it is better to stop them by making a clear statement. The 
small press published articles on the ‘ Roumanian who has purchased a 
terrace in the heart of Paris, and who is in trouble with his British 
patrons.’ ” "/

I suppose that is Aronovici?—A. Presumably.
Q. Do you know anything about this “ terrace in the heart of Paris ”?—A. 

I do not know, unless it refers to this party.
Q. “ Who is in trouble with his British patrons ”, I suppose that is the 

time he was dropped from the service?—A. Dropped from what service?
Q. From your service?—A. He resigned from the service. I do not know 

what this terrace is. I never heard of it.

81695—7
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Q. (Reading) : “ Others refer to the contributing 55,000 shares ”?—A. I 
do not know anything about that. (To Major Bell) Do you?

Major Bell : We formed Aronovici into a company, and issued so many 
shares, and that was the way of getting them into the company. Immediately 
after, he transferred these shares to the company, and they cartie into the 
possession of the Canadian National Railway.

Sir Henry Drayton : Was that the amount of $55,000?
Major Bell: No, I had it in francs. I think it represented 30,000,000 

francs.
Sir Henry Drayton: I will take that up later when you are examined. 

(Reading) :
“ As for us who are only concerned with the good name of our 

friends in France, we demand that an official and precise statement 
be made without further delay ”.

That was the thing I was referring to this morning.
The Witness: There was another one that was much more libellous than 

this ; this one is not very libellous.
Major Bell: It is quite inocuous.
The Witness: There was another one in addition to this, which is the one ' 

I was referring to.
Major Bell: It is not that paper. It is a much smaller sheet. I think 

I have a copy of it. I will look it up.
Mr. Kyte: And it refers to an article appearing in a smaller press. This 

is apparently a four-sheet paper—
The Chairman: Is it a daily paper?
The Witness: I don’t know—
Mr. Kyte: I was going to look it up.
Sir Henry Drayton : Weekly, I think.
Mr. Kyte: It is just a four-page paper. I do not know whether it is 

daily or not.
The Witness: It is not one of the well-known daily French journals.
Sir Henry Drayton : It is a weekly.
The Chairman : How do you spell that?
Mr. Kyte: It is apparently a four-page paper which by no means repre­

sents the responsible French press in Paris.
The Witness: I do not know anything about its respectability, and I 

would not like to make any statement in connection therewith, but I will say 
that it is not one of the well known French journals.

The Chairman: Any further questions?
Mr. Stewart: With respect to some statements made yesterday, I would 

like Sir Henry (Thornton) to give us some further information. If my notes 
are correct, the rentals of this building, if as estimated, would make a return 
of 6 per cent. I wonder if he could enlarge on that. Six per cent of what?

The Witess: Six per cent of the amount we have invested in it.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. We have at the present time about $2,700,000 invested in it?—A. I 
think it is something like that.

Major Bell: That was 6 per cent on the finished building. That was 
the estimate for the building after we get through and have made all the 
changes. That was my evidence, Mr. Stewart.
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Mr. Stew art : That was 6 per cent on approximately $3,200,000 or 
$3,300,000.

Major Bell: That was about $3,200,000, yes.
Mr. Stewart: That was a gross return? There would be taxes and 

depreciation deducted?
Major Bell: No, that is the net after providing for taxes.
Mr. Stewart: But not depreciation?
Major Bell: They thought there would be a small amount for deprecia­

tion, and to wipe out the capital interest on the building, but advice to me 
was that we could earn 6 per cent based on present rentals in Paris.

Mr. Stewart: And knowing this building, would you be able to say what 
would be a fair allowance for depreciation?

The Witness: There would not be very much of a depreciation, because 
it is a stone building and extremely well built, and the repairs on it certainly 
could not be very much. I do not know what I could say as to depreciation. 
There would be a certain charge for depreciation, but in view of the character 
of the building, it could not be a very high figure.

The Chairman: Would you think the depreciation on the building would 
be offset by an increase in value of the land?

The Witness: Oh, yes; more than that.
Sir Henry Drayton : I did not say anything to Sir Henry (Thornton) 

about that, because I thought Major Bell spoke about it.
Mr. Stewart : I did not take a note of who it was made the statement, but 

I had the statement here. You say the taxes have been provided for?
Major Bell: That was a rough estimate. That was in a conversation 

going over the matter with our builders, in our architect’s office. They were 
familiar with rentals and buildings, and I was not, and I wanted to get a 
general idea.

Mr. Stewart: You are assuming the responsibility for making that state­
ment?

Major Bell: I made it yesterday; that that was the information I had.
Mr. Stewart: Sir Henry (Thornton), I think perhaps you have answered 

Mr. Harris as fully as you can as to the percentage of floor space in this 
building which the railways will use.

The Witness: The answer I gave Mr. Harris is about as near as I can 
come to it. •

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Somewhere in the neighbourhood of 25 per cent. It would, of course, 

be the most valuable space?—A. It would be on the ground floor.
Major Bell: The ground floor and the first floor up were reserved. That 

was subject to change. Mr. Dalrymple, our \ ice President in charge of traffic, 
was over there, and my instructions to Mr. Young, our General Manager, were 
to reserve the two lower floors, and possibly part of the basement.

Mr. Stewart: Would this concern, which Sir Henry has intimated has 
made a profit, be aware of the amount of space the Canadian National would 
require? That is a very material part of their offer.

The Witness: It all depends on what we want to do. If we had a suffi­
ciently attractive offer for the property we would reduce our space to the 
space which was required by our officers dealing directly with the public, that 
is to say, the ticket offices, and we would put other officers and other offices 
some other place. It would all depend on how attractive the offer was.

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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By Mr. Stewart:
Q. You could reduce your space to less than the whole ground floor?—A. We 

might, yes. We might reduce it materially.
Q. You do not know what this concern had in mind when they made the 

offer allowing you the free rental of the space you require?—A. No, I do not. 
That is what I asked Mr. Archibald to go into at once and develop the details. 
I do have an intimation from a gentleman who is very familiar with Paris 
property, who is in business on Fifth Avenue, New York, as an importer, that 
probably some one of the large department stores in Paris would like very 
much to get such a site as this on the Boulevard de Capechene. ,His estimate 
of the value of the property was 60,000,000 francs.

Sir Henry Drayton: Is that the same gentleman whose name you would 
not give us?

The Witness: No, it is not the same. This was merely in conversation 
with him a couple of months ago.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Have you any objection to giving his name?—A. Yes; I won’t give it.
The Chairman : Any further questions?
Sir Henry Drayton : When Major Bell takes the stand I want to go into 

these figures as to the size of the property.
Major Bell: I gave that to the reporter yesterday and it is included in 

the evidence.
Sir Henry Drayton : I have not got the notes yet.
Major Bell: They will be printed in yesterday’s proceedings. They were 

126,994 square feet, the building is 105 by 180A
Mr. Harris : Will Major Bell depose exactly what instructions were left 

in Paris with regard to the remodelling of this building?
Major Bell: No; a great deal with depend on the tenant. I can tell you 

generally, that necessarily the instructions were left to the men on the ground, 
Mr. Archibald and Mr. Young, but the general instructions were that the Gov­
ernment offices and the railway—

Mr. Harris: Perhaps I had better ask Sir Henry Thornton.
By Mr. Harris:

Q. What is the policy of the Canadian National directorate with regard 
to remodelling this building?—A. There are two things which can be done, and 
it depends a good deal on what the tenant wants. You can either rent the 
space, as it stands, to a tenant and let him remodel it, under suitable provi­
sions, to suit his own requirements, or we can find out what he wants in a 
general way, and put the space which he will occupy in shape for occupation. 
In the latter event, naturally the rental will be much more than in the former 
case. It depends a great deal on what the tenant himself wishes, because some­
times a tenant would rather rent a certain amount of space and fix it up to suit 
himself, than permit us to do so. That is a matter to be decided. We might 
even do both in different parts of the building.

Q. In lieu of the fact that it may be necessary, within a few years, to 
“ trim your sails ” as you say, with regard to the policy of the continent, what 
is the policy of the Canadian National Railway directorate with regard to the 
length of time these leases to tenants will run?—A. The lease to a tenant 
would not affect us, because even if we reduce our force on the Continent, we 
would still want to retain our tenants, so it would not affect the tenants. It 
would simply mean in the event of our being obliged to materially reduce our 
force—
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Q. Why not say enlarge it----- A. In the event of our wanting to enlarge?
What we would do, is this: We would decide our maximum requirements. We 
would not absorb all the space in the building, and the rest of that space could 
be rented on long-term leases, if we liked, and we could retain the rest of the 
space, and the balance between our maximum requirements and minimum 
requirements would be on relatively short leases.

Q. You have taken into consideration too the deposition you made with 
regard to the fact that within five years this property will be worth a great deal 
more than it cost you?—Ar Oh, yes.

By Mr. Milne:
Q. When did you expect the building to be occupied?—A. Well, I do not 

know exactly, but I should think within six months or so.
The Chairman : Any further questions? If not, we will adjourn until 

Monday.
The witness retired.
The Committee adjourned.

Committee Room 231,
House of Commons,

Monday, June 23, 1924.
The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping met at 

10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. W. D. Euler, M.P., Chairman, presiding.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, I think we have a quorum. On Friday, when 

we adjourned, it was the desire to call Major Bell this morning. Sir Henry 
(Drayton) do you wish to go on with Major Bell?

Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: Unless it is the desire of the Committee to take another 

witness or to go on with Sir Henry Thornton.
Mr. Kyte: Let us take Majdr Bell.
Major G. A. Beli«, called and examined.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. What was your first connection with the Scribe Hotel?—A. You mean 

when I first went overseas?
Q. The first thing you ever heard about it. Let us start with the birth? 

—A. The first time I ever heard of it was on April 28th, 1923. I did not know 
it was the Scribe Hotel or what property it was. I knew that Sir Henry 
(Thornton) had secured a property over there.

Q. April 28th?—A. April 25th, I should say.
Q. That was the time you sent over $200,000? Did you have anything 

to do with deciding that matter or was your action purely departmental?— 
A. Departmental.

Q. In other words, you knew nothing about it?—A. Only the $200,000. I 
had nothing to do with the balance.

Q. You knew that $200,000 was to go?—A. Yes.
Q. At that time did you know what the total price was?—A. No.
Q. All you know is you were told to send over $200,000, and you sent it? 

—A. Yes.
Q. Then what was the next thing?—A. The next I heard of it was when 

it came up in the House—the night of the estimates.
Q. That was the very next thing?—A. Yes.

[Major G. A. Bell.]
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Q. Down to that time had you, as a matter of judgment, passed on it one 
way or the other?—A. Only at the meeting of the Board of Directors, on the 
general policy of establishing an office in Paris.

Q. We have heard about that. That was a general question, and nothing 
,said about the Scribe Hotel, and no action taken one way or the other. So at 
that time you did not know anything about the Scribe. My question was had 
you, down to the time the matter came up in the House in June of last year, 
gone into the merits or demerits at all?—A. As to the price of the hotel?

Q. Yes?—A. No.
Q. So then the connection is, first, doing as you were told about the 200,000 

dollars, and then hearing it come up in the House?—A. Yes.
Q. Then, I take it from what you have said, that you did not discuss the 

matter with any members of the Cabinet down to that date—or had you?-—A. 
No. Oh, I may have discussed with Mr. Graham the policy of buying an estab­
lishment in Paris, but not in detail.

Q. At any rate you did not discuss the Scribe with him?—A. No.
Q. Then, what is the next thing you had to do?—A. The next matter was 

when it came up in the House at the end of some of our estimates—I think it 
was the Railway Commission estimates. Something had appeared in the evening 
papers and a member spoke about it in the House, and Mr. Graham said he 
would have the information when the proper time came up.

Q. So it was through you that the Minister had his information as to the 
manner in which it was financed, as we went over the other day—A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is, the deposit in the Bank of Toronto?—A. Yes.
Q. You gave the Minister then the information as to the amount of money? 

—A. Yes.
Q. What information did you give the Minister as to the amount of money? 

—A. I telephoned, I think, that evening, and asked Sir Henry (Thornton) what 
they had paid for the building. As I remember, he told me approximately 
30,000,000 francs. I translated that roughly into dollars, and it was approxi­
mately $2,000,000. I had not, at that time, seen the letter and I did not ask him 
about any other details. I asked him how he proposed paying for it, and he 
told me how the matter was to be handled, and that the railway had deposited 
an amount in the Bank of Toronto to cover the amount that had been advanced 
to Aronovici. I did not ask him about the other items.* I took it for granted 
it was this $2,000,000, and when the Minister was asked for information as to 
the cost of the building, I told him to say “ approximately $2,000,000.”

Q. He was not asked the cost; he was asked only the amount of the deposit. 
We had that only the day before yesterday?—A. Pardon me, Sir Henry (Dray­
ton). At first it was as to the cost of the building.

Q. And then how it was.financed?—A. Yes. We told him a total of $2,000,- 
000, because we knew nothing more about the balance then.

Q. That was the way you explained that the House was advised that the 
deposit was $2,000.000 instead of $2,608,000?—A. We were only dealing with 
the cost of the building.

Q. No, you were dealing with the deposit there. The question was as to 
the amount of the deposit, and we were told $2,000,000. The deposit was 
$2,608,000. Now, is there any doubt about that, or do you want me to turn 
up Hansard?—A. The deposit was $2,600,000, but I am explaining all the in­
formation we had was on the cost of the building. We had not asked for the 
exact amount of the deposit. We knew the processes, and we took it for granted 
it tvas $2,000,000.

Q. So there is no doubt about the House being misled, and you point out 
it was misled honestly?—A. Yes.
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Q. Well, the fact that it was misled is there. Then, what was the next thing 
you had to do with it?—A. In the latter part of July or the first part of August 
in 1923, Sir Henry (Thornton) asked me if I would go over.

Q. Before that: you say you had not further discussed it with the Minis­
ter?—A. Oh, yes; I had -looked into the whole thing as to what the cost had 
been, and had seen this letter, and Sir Henry (Thornton) had explained the 
whole matter to me.

Q. Then, of course, you took it up with the Minister. What was the Min­
ister’s instruction to you?—A. I did not receive any instructions from the Min­
ister. You are referring to my trip oveseas?

Q. Yes?—A. I did not receive any instructions from the Minister. Sir Henry 
(Thornton) approached me, and I told him I was agreeable if the Minister was; 
that I was a departmental officer. Sir Henry (Thornton) went to the Minister, 
and he gave his consent: he practically loaned me to the company.

By Sir Henry Thornton:
Q. You were Vice President, at that time, were you not?—A. No, I had 

resigned.
Sir Henry Drayton : I did not hear that aside.
Sir Henry Thornton : I will tell you what that aside was. I said “At that 

time you were Vice President of the Company, were you not”—
Sir Henry Drayton : That is all right ; I just wanted to know what was 

going on.
The Chairman: Proceed.
Sir Henry Thornton : Wait a minute. That question was addressed to me 

with the supposition that I was saying something to Major Bell that I should 
not have said.

Sir Henry Drayton• All right; I think the questions should be addressed 
to Major Bell.

Sir Henry Thornton : All right. I did not like the inference.
The Chairman : Sir Henry (Drayton), I think you had better address your 

questions to Major Bell, and I will also ask Sir Henry (Thornton) not to answer 
unless questions are put to him.

By Sir He</riry Drayton:
Q. When did you leave?—A. I think I left New York about the 9th or 10th 

of August; that is within a day or so.
Q. And you went straight over to where?—A. I went to London.
Q. Whom did you see in London?—A. I wired Aronovici to come over and 

see me.
Q. And I suppose Aronovici came over?—A. Yes.
Q. And you saw him?—A. Yes.
Q. And did he bring over his papers with him?—A. No.
Q. Did you ever see the option?—A. No.
Q. Who were the owners?—A. I don’t know.
Q. Do not know who the owners were?—A. Well. I did hear in a casual 

■way. That was for our legal department to take care of. I was not interested.
Sir Henry Drayton : Now7, the witness does not know, Mr. Chairman if 

Sir Henry (Thornton) wants to supply the information, I do not mind.
Sir Henry Thornton: You asked me the other day who the owners were, 

and I told you I would find out. I am sorry it slipped my mind, but I will find 
cut in a day or so.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Not knowing who the owners were, then you never got in touch with 

them, of course?—A. No.
[Major G. A. Bell.]
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Q. Did you make any inquiries when you were in Paris, or anywhere else, 
as to the length of time that property had been on the market?—A. Yes. I 
heard in a general way, Sir Henry (Drayton)—May I explain to you that in 
;connection with the transfer, under instructions, Mr. Archibald handled it, or, 
at least, his office checked the price and saw the notarial deeds, seeing they 
were registered, and everything of that kind. That was not work which con­
cerned me.

Q. I was not asking you about what Mr. Archibald did?—A. I was explain­
ing why I did not touch it. I passed that on.

Q. I was just asking you the fact. You said, if I got it rightly, you did 
make some inquiries or secured some information as to the length of time the 
property had been on the market. How long had it been on the market?—A. I 
understood three or four years.

Q. For how long a time had it not been used as an active hotel, or was it 
still \ised as an active hotel?—A. The building was not all used as an active 
hotel. If you will permit me, Sir Henry (Drayton), I will explain that and 
show you what it was used for. (Witness exhibits and refers to photograph). 
This (indicating is the building, and from here (indicating) around the corner, 
it goes in to about there (indicating). On the first floor there was a cafe right 
in the corner, extending down on this street (indicating)—

Q. It looks as if it was in the oval—the circle?—A. Yes. It ran from here 
(indicating) to right around the full length of this street (indicating). From 
here to here (indicating) were about six or seven other shops. That included 
the whole of the ground floor—

Q. Which is the north and which is the south, because “ from here to here,” 
does not tell the reporter anything?—A. That (indicating) would be north (indi­
cating to the right of the photo as faced to the Committee).

Q. Well let us get instead of “ from here to here,” the notes so they will be 
intelligible. You have a cafe in the curve?—A. Yes.

Q. Then you point out what you say is to the north—A. I can identify it 
this way, perhaps. On the Rue Scribe are about seven shops.

Q. That is the street between these two buildings?—A. Yes." On the Boule­
vard de Capachene, the whole of the ground floor and a little around the corner 
on to the Rue Scribe was the Grand Cafe. That is the Grand Cafe (indicating). 
Then on the next floor, on both streets, was the Jockey Club of Paris.

Q. That is the first floor up?—A. That is the first floor up. The whole of 
it was occupied by the Jockey Club, and was still occupied while I was there. 
In fact, when I first went there the cafe, and all the shops, were all tenanted. 
What was known as the Hotel Scribe was the next three floors and the attic. 
That was unoccupied and I understand had not been occupied for two or three 
years.

Q. Then we purchased this in May of 1923. What was the amount of 
r.ental actually received at that time?—A. I have not got that exactly, but the 
rents would not correspond to the rents of to-day in that all those who were 
in the building had made their leases prior to the war when the franc was at 
par—

Q. We had all that explained—
Mr. Kyte: Is it not well to permit Major Bell to give his answers, and not 

throw him off the track. The Committee are here to get all the facts.
Sir Henry Drayton : I did not want to waste time. (To Major Bell) go 

ahead.
Mr. Ixyte: Don’t talk about wasting time.
Sir Henry Drayton : Go ahead, Major, and make all the explanations 

you want.
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The Witness: I do not remember, Sir Henry (Drayton). I was not inter­

ested in what they were paying. What I was interested in was what they are
worth to-day.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That may be a reason, but I was asking for the facts. Let us get all 

the explanations that are wanted. Go ahead and talk as long as you like, 
y The Chairman: I think what Mr. Kyte was referring to was that the 

leases were made on the old basis of exchange, and that made a considerable
difference of exchange.

The Witness: Yes, they were made when francs were at par. They are 
about 5 cents to-day. That means the leases were worth about four times that, 
and you can add anywhere from 30 per cent to 50 per cent for the increase in 
rentals which has taken place in Paris.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Is that all?—A. That is all.
Q. What was the amount of rent received at that time?—A. I have not got 

the figures.
Q. Did you ever have them?—A. Yes, I discussed them.
Q. Where are they?—A. In Paris. We discussed them when buying out the 

leases. •
Q. What leases were active there at that time?—A. The Jockey Club lease, 

the Grand Cafe, and some six or seven of these small shops.
Q. So we have these two leases and the smaller shops?—A. Yes.
Q. What was the date of the cafe lease?—A. What is that?
Q. What was the date of the lease of the Grand Cafe?—A. The date when it 

was first made?
Q. The date of the lease; I do not know how often it was renewed?—A. I 

have not got it here.
Q. Did you learn of it—A. I have no doubt I saw the lease.
Q. Have you any recollection as to the date?—A. Yes, I have sir Henry 

(Drayton). I saw the length of those leases when I was in Paris.
Q. I was asking you as to when?—A. Yes, I saw that.
Q. Approximately what was it?—A. I think that least, as I remember it, 

had about six or seven years to run.
Q. How long was it mad,e out for?—A. Some fifteen or twenty years. I am 

only speaking from memory. That is really of no value. I don’t remember.
Q. Was it a lease entered into before or after the war?—A. Before.
Q. Can you say how long before?—A. No.
Q. Well, that is the Grand Cafe lease. Now, the Jockey Club lease; when 

was that entered into?—A. Before the war.
Q. How long before?—A. I imagine ten or twelve years—well, not quite that 

long. I think the Jockey Club was a twenty year lease, and was made probably 
about 1910. Again I am only speaking from memory.

Q. Then, these stores ; when were they rented?—A. They were prior to the 
war and had about six or seven years to run at the time I was over there.

Q. Can you tell us definitely, or is it a hazy recollection?—A. I know they 
had six or seven years to run.

Q. Do you know when they were entered into?—A. No, I cannot tell as
to that.

Q. What is your recollection as to the amount of the rent—the total amount 
of the rent?—A. I have not got it.

Q. Then, can you tell us what the taxes were at that time?—A. No.
[Major G. A. Bell.]
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Q. You do not know what the taxes were?—A. No.
Q. Can, you tell what the amount of the municipal assessment was?—A. No.
Q. Did you inquire at all as to the amount of the assessment?—A. No.
Q. Then, when you were in Paris, did you at any time go into the question 

of the resale of the property?—A. No, unless you refer to my negotiations with 
Aronovici.

Q. No,'I do not mean that?—A. Outside of that, no.
Q. That was just getting the title in from Aronovici?—A. Outside of that, 

no.
Q. With a view of getting the money back did you look into that phase of 

the question at all?—A. No.
Q. You did not?—A. No.
Q. Then, whom did you see in Paris in connection with values, or in con­

nection with this transaction, outside of your lawyer, Mr. Archibald, and Arono­
vici?—A. Our contractors and architects.

Q. That is as to the question of the changes, I suppose? That is what you 
were seeing them about? Is that it?—A. After we brought them in, yes.

Q. Have you got the details, and after getting the title and seeing what you 
were going to do with the property?—A. Yes.

Q. But, apart from that, did you take it up with any real estate valuators 
or agents?—A. No.

Q. Then, just exactly what happened to Mr. Aronovici? Did he resign, 
or was his resignation asked for?—A. After Mr. Black was appointed, and before 
we settled matters, Aronovici wanted to know what his position would be, and 
I told him I refused absolutely to discuss it with him. I told him that rested 
with the Chairman and the Board of Directors. Later on, I suppose within a 
week or ten days, or perhaps the last week or ten days I was there, I intimated 
to him that with the reorganization there would hardly be a place for him. He 
said he recognized that.

Q. At that time he was getting $15,000 a year?—A. Yes.
Q. Now, did you ever get to know what the date of that option was? You 

did not see it, but perhaps you learned the date?—A. I told you, Sir Henry 
(Drayton) that I never saw the option.

Q. Did you learn what its date was?—A. No.
Q. You do not know when Aronovici got it?—A. No.
Q. So you cannot help us at all in finding out Aronovici’s real relationship 

with the owners? I do not know whether it is worth while taking up more time 
on that.—A. I cannot.

Q. Then as to the taxes: You did not ascertain the municipal valuation, 
but I think you did ascertain the amount of Government imposts in connection 
with the transfers?—A. Yes.

Q. Let us get the total charges, if we can find it, of Government taxes paid 
on that building.

By the Chairman:
Q. Is that given in the statement you gave the other day, Major?—A. Yes, 

it is in there.
Sir Henry Drayton : No, it is not all in. It is only an estimate.
The Witness: The first transfer registration fee was 3,360,000 francs. That 

represents 12 per cent of the purchase price of the property, which was 
$28,000,000 francs. That is a regular Government percentage.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That is from the deed from the owners, whose names you cannot give 

me, to Aronovici?—A. Yes, that was the deed to Aronovici.
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Q. Then, how much was the tax paid for the mortgage?—A. The registra­
tion for the mortgage was 750,000 francs.

Q. That would make a total in connection with the original transaction of 
4.110.000 francs. Is that right?—A. Yes.

Q. That closed the first transaction. There was no further impost to pay 
there. I hppe?—A. There would be the legal fees, but they have been com­
paratively small.

Q. I will not bother vou about that. I want to get the Government impost? 
—A. Yes.

Q. Then we have the transfer from Aronovici to the company, which you 
formed?—A. Yes.

Q. What were the fees then?—A. That has been paid since I left France, 
Sir Henry (Drayton).

Q. Have you not been able to verify that?—A. I think it would run about 
\\ per- cent—between 1 per cent and lh per cent.

Q. Between 1 per cent and 1^ per cent?—A. Yes.
By Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. In transferring the property from Aronovici to the new company you 
transferred the stock instead of the property direct? Aronovici had been formed 
into the joint stock company, and made the transfer in stock?—A. Yes. I 
explained that the other day.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. For that reasom-the full 12 per cent had not been paid?—A. Yes.
Q. But there was a certain percentage which had to be paid?—A. Yes.
Q. I am trying to get that definitely.—A. That has been paid since I left, 

but the idea was to get away from the 12 per cent Government tax, and we 
formed Aronovici into a company of 30,000,000 francs, and immediately trans­
ferred his shares to the new company which was formed.

Q. What I want to do is to find out, if possible, just exactly what that cost 
is to the country?—A. It was a regular company. I was looking to see if that 
was set out in the arrangements, but it is not.

Q. I am not sure whether you said this or not, so do not pay any attention 
to what I say excepting for the purpose of refreshing your own memory, but I 
think you said during one of the sessions of the Committee that by doing it in 
this way you reduced the fee to one-third or one-quarter?—A. I have a hazy 
recollection of a 1 per cent or a 1£ per cent charge. I know they were reduced 
materially. I cannot give you the exact figures. I am only guessing. That has 
all been paid since I left. ,

Q. I wonder if we cannot ascertain these facts?—A. I can have a cable sent 
for them.

Sir Henry Drayton : It seems to me we should know what the charges are.
The Chairman : I think, Sir Henry (Thornton) can give you that.
Sir Henry Drayton : Go ahead, Sir Henry.
Sir Henry Thornton : I cannot give it to you to-day, but I can to-morrow.
Sir Henry Drayton : Supposing we let this matter stand until we can get 

that because I want to get the final result from the mortgage. Could we go on 
with the estimates now?

The Chairman : Are you finished?
Sir Henry Drayton: No. I want to get that information. I do not know 

what effect it will take, but I want to follow up all the different reasons for the 
different shiftings of ground. They may be perfectly all right, or perfectly all
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wrong. I do not know. It may be that the Government was justified in dealing 
with Aronovici, or it may be that Aronovici was not the type of man that the 
Government was safe in leaving the matter with.

Mr. Kyte: All this is perfectly gratuitous for the purpose of getting it on the 
record. (To Sir Henry Drayton) You have no evidence to support that; you only 
think you can create an impression—

Sir Henry Drayton : My hon. friend is all wrong. I say frankly that I do 
not know, and I am trying to find out.

The Chairman : You are not through with the witness?
Sir Henry Drayton : No.
The Chairman: Please proceed.
Sir Henry Drayton : I say I would like to get this information with a view 

of trying to get the justification for the change at the extra expenditure of money.
The Chairman : I suggest you ask the witness—
Sir Henry Drayton : He says he does not know. Sir Henry (Thornton) 

says he will get it tomorrow.
The Chairman: Then proceed with any further questions.
Sir Henry Drayton : No, everything in Paris hinges on this.
The Chairman : I would say you can only get this information by proceeding 

with the witness.
Sir Henry Drayton : We can come back to this afterwards, but I think we 

will waste time this way.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Well, let us go back to Aronovici, and let us get in as chronological and 
definite order as we can just exactly what Aronovici claimed in connection with 
your negotiation.—A. As to the amount he claimed, Sir Henry (Drayton) ?

Q. Yes, the full amount Aronovici claimed?—A. When I first met Aronovici, 
he was keen to go on with this contract ; that the raihvay should .take up the 
ispace that would be required by any Government offices, and then he wanted to 
go ahead and lease the balance of the building. On going to Paris I decided the 
best thing to do was to take the building over into our own name and get rid of 
Aronovici altogether, and go ahead wdth our own repairs.

Q. What prompted you to that determination? For what reason were you 
determined to get rid of Aronovici?—A. If Aronovici could exploit the building 
and make money out of it, we certainly could do the same thing.

Q. Then how far had you got along with the question of exploiting the 
building at that time? Let us get the date when you determined to get rid of 
Aronovici?—A. What date did I decide to get rid of him?

Q. Yes?—A. I suppose two or three weeks after I got over there.
Q. That would be about when?—A. In September sometime, sometime about 

the middle of September.
Q. Then how far had you gone on in connection with, as you say, exploiting 

the building, in September?—A. I decided we should lease the offices and we 
could go ahead and repair the building just as well as Aronovici. One thing that 
determined me that he should not have it was his idea of having a hotel put back. 
I thought it would be a bad thing for the offices.

Q. Had you any firm offer for renting?—A. No, I had not gone after it.
Q. Had you seen any real estate people with a view of getting their views 

as to rents or value?—A. Yes, in a general discussion in Mr. Archibald’s office.
Q. Had you seen any real estate people?—A. No, I did not look up any 

real estate people.
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Q. Well then, in the absence of getting any advice as to rents were you 
able to come to any conclusion—A. Sir Henry, (Drayton), pardon me; I did 
not make that statement that I had no advice as to rentals ; you are making 
that statement for me.

Q. Well, we will go back, and I will give you every opportunity of giving all 
the explanation you want—A. I told you I went to Mr. Archibald, who is 
probably one of the most experienced business lawyers in Paris, and who knows 
all the business men in Paris, and in matters of that kind I acted on his 
advice.

Q. Had Mr. Archibald associated with him any real estate experts for the 
purpose of advising him?—A. I presume he had, because—

Q. Do you know-----
Mr. Kyte: Let him finish his answer.
Sir Henry Drayton: He said “I presume”; I want his answer.
The Chairman : Let him answer the question.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. You said “because”; because what, Major?—A. I did not believe Mr. 

Archibald would make a statement like that without having advice on it.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. What was his statement?—A. On prices and value. He did not think it 
was excessive.

Q. What did he say? What did he tell you about rentals?—A. He said he 
would get higher rents than almost any building in Paris.

Q. What did you tell him about the sum? For example, let us take this 
building we have here—the rooms; can you tell what rent he put on the corner 
that was used by the café?—A. In a general way. I was not interested in and 
odd room here and there, or an odd shop. What I wanted to know was what 
the total rentals would produce, having in mind it would cost us from $500,000 
to $750,000—I am putting this in dollars—to put that building in first class 
repair for the tenants, and knowing the total amount that had been paid out 
or would have to be paid out, and after talking this over with the architects and 
builders he was of the opinion, the same as I was, that we could make at least 
6 per cent on our investment.

Q. Can you give me anything more definite than that?—A. No; I was 
not interested-----

Q. That is the foundation for that opinion?
The Chairman: He says he cannot; he says hp does not know.
Mr. Kyte: The foundation for Mr. Archibald’s opinion?
Sir Henry Drayton : No, for his own.
The Witness: Excepting that talking with Archibald-----
Mr. Kyte:—It was not his own opinion.
The Witness:----- who probably knew more about it than any other man

in Paris.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Mr. Kyte said it was not your own opinion?—A. That is right.
Q. You simply took what Mr. Archibald told you?—A. Yes.
Q. So you cannot give me any information as to that? (No audible 

response).
Q. At that time were there any specific tenants in sight?—A. At what time 

do you refer to, Sir Henry (Drayton) ?
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Q. In September?—A. No. I had not approached anybody or talked about 
it until we got possession of the building. That would be in December or 
January.

Q. What was the sum of Aronovici’s claim at that time?—A. As set out 
in the statement which has been submitted.

Q. You did not pay him all he asked?—A. I beg your pardon?
Q. You did not pay him all he asked?
The Chairman: You asked for the sum of his claim.
Sir Henry Drayton: I asked for the sum of his claim; not what they 

paid him.
The Witness : He was standing on his contract.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That would entitle him to 10 per cent?—A. Yes.
Q. 10 per cent if sold in the first five years, and 20 per cent if over the 

first five years?—A. Yes.
Q. Did he want anything beside that 10 per cent at first?—A. No.
Q. The other smaller payments which were made would be all included in 

that 10 per cent?—A. We did not discuss those at the start at all.
Q. So his first broad claim was 10 per cent?—A. Yes.
Q. You got rid of that----- Have we got the actual sums yet? I think in

some instances it was money banked to Aronovici, if I remember rightly. Have 
you got it definitely now?—A. I don’t know what you refer to Sir Henry 
(Drayton) ; I gave you the statement the other day.

Mr. Kyte: I think perhaps you had better put1 it down again.
The Chairman: Give exactly what you paid Aronovici and what it was 

for. Can you do that.
The Witness: Aronovici pas paid $2,600,000—at least he was not paid 

that ; we took up the notes.I will give you the notes. The whole cost up to date 
as of April 30th; purchase of property 28,000,000 francs; registration fee, 3,360,- 
000 francs; registration of mortgage, 750,000 francs; Delay holder of option, 
600,000 francs.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. “Delay, holder of option”?—A. 600,000 francs; Grand Café, 3,710,000 

francs; draft on Bankers’ Trust, 20,000 francs; legal fees 60,000; taking up 
option on purchase 1,735,000 francs; payments to architects, 192,626 francs; 
Jockey Club, on occount of dispossession—that is on account—212,950 francs; 
cash in hand, 1,720,000 francs; total 40,360,576 francs. 'That “ cash in hand” 
I explained the other day, sir Henry (Drayton). Part of that may have been 
paid out since, and not doubt has been, in connection with this, but that was the 
total amount that was remitted—forty million—odd francs was remitted in con­
nection with this transaction and that is how it has been disposed of up to date.

Q. In other words, that is the whole amount available?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Now, let us get back to that item of 600,000 francs. Tell us about that, 

please?—A. Delay is an architect in Paris and he had an option on this building 
which I understand Aronovici paid 600,000 francs for.

Q. I wonder if we can get to understand that. Had Aronovici given Delay 
an option on the property?—A. I understood that when we took over the 
property Delay had an option of some kind, which Aronovici had to buy up.

Q. That would be at the rate of about 5^ cents, would it not?—A. Yes, 
about that. It was taken at the rate of exchange of that day.
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Q. Five cents was what you mentioned in your evidence earlier this morn­
ing.—A. That was only part of it. There was an addition to the $2,200,000 ; 
there was free spaces in the building.

By the Chairman:
Q. Anything definite as to how much that would be.—A. No, we have 

cabled for that, and for the length of time it would be good."
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q, Can you tell us who is making the offer?—A. All I can tell you is that 
Mr. Archibald said, “A reliable group in Paris.” It came from him without any 
enquiry* on our part.

Q. Are you taking any action at all in connection with the offer?—A. The 
Chairman would. I was there when he received the cable.

Q. I suppose that is with a view of getting particulars and seeing what can 
be gotten out of it?—A. Yes.

Q. Then is it true that wre have no title or papers here to this property?— 
A. They would all be in Paris. The head office of the new company is In Paris, 
and they would all be in our solicitor’s office there.

Q. Did you see Aronoviei when he was out here at all?—A. I saw him twice, 
in a social way both times. Once when he was in Ottawa, when he first came 
out, I met Sir Henry (Thornton) at the Club and he told me he was having him 
for lunch ; he had just arrived, and Sir Henry asked me if I would bring him up 
as he had to keep another appointment. I brought him up to lunch, and he left 
right after. The next time I saw him was in Montreal at a dinner, just to shake 
hands.

Q. Did you or did you not have an opportunity to discuss this hotel 
matter with him?—A. No, no discussion in any shape or form.

Q. Then, Major, wfiat were the factors that you were considering in connec­
tion with express and money order business.—A. What were the factors?

Q. Yes.—A. I enquired from our people over there in Paris and France, 
and everybody seemed to be of the opinion that we could open up an express 
money order business, thicket office and so on there that would return handsome 
profits.

Q. Have you any idea what the money order business of the Canadian 
Pacific is?—A. No.

Q. They have practically a monopoly there, I suppose, at the present time? 
—A. Oh no. -

Q. So far as we are concerned?—A. No, a great many people who go from 
New York deal through the American Express Company.

Q. I am speaking of as far as we are concerned. We have not any agency 
there ; we are not selling these things now.—A. No.

Q. Besides that, of course, the banks do far more of that work than any 
express company?—A. Yes. Probably the American Express does the largest 
business in Paris.

Q. That is, of any express company?—A. Yes.
The Chairman: We do not do any now at all.
Sir Henry Drayton : No, we do not do a single bit of it there.
Q. Then, as to the express business, apart from the money order business, 

do you have any data on that?—A. The express business?
Q. Yes.—A. No, only the information I had from our traffic people; that 

is all. That was not in my line at all; I took the advice of the different experts.
Q. I was just asking what data you had, that was all. It is a perfectly 

reasonable question.—A. Yes, but I am explaining that I am giving the opinions 
of others, not my own opinion.
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Q. That is the way we find things out, whether the opinion is direct or 
whether it is not. I do not think I will bother any more, Mr. Chairman. We 
will get that evidence as to the exact amount of payment.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. You were Vice-President of the Canadian National?—A. I was Vice- 

President, but I resigned about the end of May, at the May Board meeting. I 
am named in the estimates as Government Director.

Q. At the time of this transaction, wdiat was your position with the Com­
pany?—A. I was Vice-President when that $200,000 was forwarded, and I 
resigned about the 21st of May, I think, at the May Board meeting.

Sir Henry Thornton: It was May 21st, I think.
The Witness: On the 21st of May I tendered my resignation, or rather I 

tendered it some time before then, and it was accepted at the May Board 
meeting.

Sir Henry Thornton: It was the third Monday in May, either the 21st 
or 22nd.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. From the original owners?—A. Yes.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. From the original owners?—A. Yes.
Q. And you have already told us you cannot say anything about the 

original owners, so I suppose you did not go into that yourself—the question 
of 600,000 francs?—A. No, but this amount was checked by Mr. Archibald’s 
office.

Q. Did you go into that yourself?—A. No, only to have Mr. Archibald 
say that he personally—or one of his men in his office—checked all these things 
saw the notarial deeds in order to see that the amount had actually been paid.

Q. All that does, of course, is to give evidence of the fact that a payment 
was made. As to the question of rebates or anything of that kind, you would not 
get that from that evidence?—A. No.

Q. Then who got the benefit of the 1,735,000 francs for taking up-------A.
was transferring some of the funds; the ordinary banking charges.

Q. That was the bankers’ charge for the cost of transfer?—A. Yes.
Q. Then who got the benefit of the 1,735,000 francs for taking up—A. 

1,735,000 francs as far as we are concerned. Aronovici claimed to have paid 
out the larger portion of that for other things. We would not acknowledge 
that at all.

Q. Has he got it?—A. He has got that. That is a commission of 1,735,000 
francs in lieu of the 10 per cent. This amounts to about 5 per cent.

By the Chairman:
Q. Does that include all he got for his services?—A. Yes.
Q. That is the net amount after taking into consideration the expenses he 

had incurred?—A. That had nothing to do with his salary ; this is in connection 
with the building.

Q. This is what he got for his services?—A. Yes.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Then, Major, in connection with your investigation, did you ever ascer­
tain whether that property had been offered to others in Canada?—A. I have 
heard that said, Sir Henry, yes.

[Major G. A. Bell.]
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Q. Did you ascertain the truth of the rumour?—A. No, because it was of 
no value. May I just tell you frankly what it was? I understand that that was 
offered to the Canadian Pacific Railway some three or four years ago. That 
was immediately after the war, they had no firm offer, had no option on the 
building as has "been stated, and it was at a time when property was very very 
low, just at the tail end of the war.

Q. Your information is that the property was offered to the Canadian 
Pacific Railway in what year?—A. 1919 or 1920.

Q. 1919 or 1920?—A. Yes.
Q. And at what price was the property offered to them?—A. I have not 

that information.
Q. You have not that information. You then said that they had not an 

option or any firm offer on it.—A. No, they had not.
Q. Who told you that?—A. I had been advised to that effect.
Q. Who told you that?—A. I was advised that Sir MacLaren Brown said

that they never had an option on the building.
Q. Advised by him he had said that?—A. No, I did not say that. I said 

I had been advised that he stated that.
Q. That is what I asked you?—A. I told you I heard it.
Q. Who told you?—A. I heard it in London and I heard it in Paris.
Q. Can you tell me who gave you the information?—A. Yes, I can tell 

you one who gave me the information; Mr. Dalrymple was one.
Q. Anybody else?—A. Yes, there were others; I have forgotten whether 

it was Mr. Phillips or Mr. Young. Mr. Darymple did tell me.
Q. Did you see any of the Canadian Pacific officials?—A. No.

By the Chairman:
Q. Have you actual knowledge that the offer was made to the C.P.R.?— 

A. No, 'it is all rumour, altogether.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. You only have what you were told by these people?—A. Yes.
Q. Do you know anything about the offer of 40,000,000 francs?—A. Yes.
Q. That would be—what is the exchange to-day, about five cents?—A. 

Working it out the day the cable came, which was about a week ago, it worked 
out to approximately $2,200,000, Sir Henry. That was within $1,000 of it, 
anyway.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. When you went to Paris, I suppose you went to consult with the solicitor, 

Mr. Archibald, as to the transaction, did you?-—A. When I went to Paris, I 
went over with a free hand from Sir Henry Thornton to look into the whole 
matter and deal with it, communicating with him, of course, if there were any 
serious steps to be taken.

Q. To look at the whole matter ; will you please be a little more definite as 
to your instructions.—A. There had been a great deal of criticism in the papers, 
references to the Scribe Hotel; everybody spoke of our Paris property there as 
the Scribe Hotel. Sir Henry Thornton asked if I would go over and go into 
the whole matter personally and report on it.

Q. And you went into it with Mr. Archibald, your solicitor?—A. Mr. Archi­
bald and Mr. Brown, our solicitors in London, and our people generally in both 
Paris and London. Quite often, for instance, with our officials in London, in 
developing information and asking about certain things. I did not tell them 
it was leading up to the Paris property. I just wanted to gather certain 
information.

81695—8
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Q. And from the information you received from all those parties, was it 
your impression that you got the building at a fairly reasonable price?—A. I 
will answer that in another way. I left Canada for Paris with the idea that it 
was a pretty extravagant building, not knowing the building, and the amount 
of $2,600,000 seemed a lot. I am satisfied now that we will not lose any money 
on the 'building, and stand a chance of making a fair profit.

Q. That wTas your opinion after you left Paris?—-A. Yes, and that is my 
opinion to-day.

Q. I do not know if you cleared up exactly the point made by Sir Henry 
Drayton the other day. The Minister of Railways stated there was $2,000,000 
paid for the hotel, whereas as a matter of fact the deposit in the Bank of Toronto 
was $2,608,000.—A. I think that was a misunderstanding of the information 
that was asked for. I telephoned Sir Henry Thornton and asked him what 
he had paid for the property. He gave me the cost of 30,000,000 francs. I did 
not ask him anything about the registration fee or anything of that sort; I did 
not know anything about it, and I suppose he took it for granted I just wanted 
the price of the building. I translated that into dollars, and it was approximately 
$2,000,000. Then I said, “How do you provide this?” and he told me the way 
the Bank was advancing the money to Aronovici, and the railway had arranged 
to deposit an amount equal to it in the Bank of Toronto at Montreal. I pre­
sume he thought that I was only referring to this. When the Minister was 
asked on the floor of the House what we had paid for the building, I told him 
approximately $2,000,000 and he gave that information to the House. Then I 
explained to him how that was covered, not knowing about the other, and 
when he was asked—I think it was Sir'Henry Drayton asked him—he explained 
it. Neither of us knew about the balance, and as a matter of fact I do not 
suppose Sir Henry knew we were inquiring for the balance at that time. It 
was a few days later, or probably some weeks later, that I saw the letter.

By the Chairman:
Q. You speak of the original price being 30,000,000 francs.—A. It is 

28,000,000 francs, but in the option, you see, they did not know exactly what 
they were going to get; it was not to exceed 30,000,000 francs. 28,000,000 francs 
was the actual amount paid, but we might have gone as high as 30,000,000.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. All the documents in connection with this purchase are in the hands of 

your solicitor in Paris?—A. Yes.
Q. Is he the proper custodian for these documents?—A. Yes.
Q. There is no reason why they should be in the offices of the Canadian 

National Railways in Montreal?—A. No.; it is a French company, where the 
papers must be open for inspection by the French Government for taxes. We 
might bring copies over, but we would not be allowed to bring the originals out 
of France, I do not think.

Q. Sir Henry Drayton, speaking of Aronovici, expressed the opinion that 
you .desired to get rid of him. That contains the imputation that you found 
Aronovici was dishonest in some way, in relation to the transaction. Is that the 
interpretation you put upon the phrase “get rid of”?—A. Possibly you had better 
let me give you my opinion of Aronovici. Aronovici is a very enthusiastic type 
of chap, with unlimited energy, and if he were under somebody to hold him down, 
I think he would be very very valuable. Leaving him to himself, I think he is 
far too extravagant a man; he is apt to look away into the future, possibly a 
little beyond what we could afford, and on these grounds I think it would have 
been a mistake to have kept him. Under another man he probably would be 
very very valuable.
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Q. You have no reason to think he was dishonest?—A. No, I cannot make 
the charge of his being dishonest.

Q. So when you state you wished to get rid of him in respect of this trans­
action, you felt that if Aronovici could make money out of this building there 
was no reason why the Canadian National Railways should not be substituted 
for him and make the money itself?—A. Yes, and I felt if we had the hotel in 
the building it would be a detriment to us unless we had some pretty strict con­
trol of it.

Q. These photographs, when did you obtain them?—A. I have seen dupli­
cates of these ; they were brought up from Montreal to-day.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. These are out of your filing cabinet, by the look of them. What is the 

significance of the numbering in the corners?—A. I presume to identify them.
The Chairman : Are there any further questions to be asked of Major 

Bell? Does that conclude everything but the information Sir Henry Drayton 
desires?

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I wonder if Major Bell can read this sign at the top of the picture? 

He probably knows what the sign says?—A. It is just an ordinary sign adver­
tising the railways.

Q. Let us have what it is.—A. It is not very clear to me, Sir Henry.
Sir Henry Thornton : Perhaps I can make it out. I will translate it.

“ Exhibition of the products of Canada. Mines, forests, agriculture----- ” and
the other word is obscured. “ Canadian National Railways.” Those words I 
have given you are the ones I can make out; the rest of it is not plain.

The Chairman:.It is not of vital importance anyway.
Sir Henry Thornton : It is a sign put up for the purposes of advertising, 

that is all.
The Chairman: Now, what do you wish to proceed with next? The state­

ment of the National Railways? You have on page 5 a summary of the 
statement.

Sir Henry Drayton : Of course, we are not yet finished with the Scribe 
Hotel.

The Chairman : I understood you were through, Sir Henry, and I have 
asked other members of the Committee if they wished to ask any questions, 
and none did.

Sir Henry Drayton : I do not know whether the Minister of Railways 
wants to make any statement before it is closed.

The Chairman : I suppose if he does he will say so. >
Sir Henry Drayton : Nor do I know whether the Premier wishes to say 

anything.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I think everything has been said that needs to be said.
Sir Henry Drayton : And Mr. Ruel is to be called, too.
The Chairman : In the meantime, are there any witnesses here to-day wrho 

should be called?
Sir Henry Drayton : Not that I can think of.
The Chairman: Then shall we take up the statement next? I think each 

member of the committee has a copy of it, and on page 5 we have a summary of 
the whole statement.

81695—8i
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Mr. Stewart : May I ask if it was understood that a request I made two 
or three days ago was to be complied with, as to a return for at least one voyage 
of a grain boat on the Great Lakes?

Sir Henry Thornton: Yes, I remember that question, and that will be 
given to you to-morrow.

Mr. Stewart: I just wanted to make sure it was not overlooked.
Sir Henry Drayton : Does this photograph give us the frontage? It is 

marked on here, 185 feet frontage on Rue Scribe-, and 106 feet on the Boulevard.
The Chairman: Unless there are any objections, I would suggest that we go 

on with the National Railways statement. In connection with the Merchant 
Marine, Sir Henry Thornton made a preliminary statement, and I do not know 
whether he would care to follow the same procedure in connection with the rail­
ways or not.

The witness retired.
Sir Henry Thornton recalled.
The Witness : Mr. Chairman, I think any general statement which I might 

have to make would not add to what has already been said in the annual report.
The Chairman : Very well, wc will go ahead and questions may be asked 

as we go along. The first section deals with the mileage. Is there any question 
in regard to that? That speaks for itself. The next is, “ Revenue.” I notice 
in an item in connection with the revenue, the third one dealing with mail con­
tracts shows a slight decrease. Did the Government cancel some of the mail­
carrying contracts with the Canadian National?

Sir Henry Drayton : It was caused by a slight rearrangement of rates, 
an Order in Council passed about 18 months ago.

The Witness : That was due to a rearrangement of the rates, as Sir Henry 
Drayton points out.

By the Chairman:
Q. Sir Henry, I might ask you a question; does the Canadian National Rail­

way get as much of the mail business as the Canadian Pacific Railway?—A. No, 
we do not.

Q. Are you satisfied with that condition?—A. No, I am not.
Q. I do not think you ought to be. Do you know what the difference is? 

—A. Well, my feeling—and this is only my personal opinion as an officer of 
the Canadian National Railway system—is that the Government ought to pro­
portion the payment for mail services on the basis of the mileage of the respec­
tive systems. We are not getting, on that basis, our proportion.

Q. Might that possibly not be caused by old contracts that have not 
expired?—A. It might be. We have that whole question up now, with a view 
to securing a larger proportion of the mail contracts.

Q. Do you know what the total amount is, that is paid by the Government 
to the two railway systems?—A. No, I cannot tell you that offhand, but it is 
not difficult to get.

Q. But you do know that the National system is getting less than the Cana­
dian Pacific Railway?—A. Yes, and I am not satisfied with that distribution.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Are the charges the same?—A. Yes, broadly speaking, the basis of pay­

ment is the same for each company.
Q. Is the National system getting as large a proportion now as the railways 

which now form the Canadian National system were getting before they were 
taken oyer?—A. Yes, I should think that question could be answered in the
affirmai've.
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Q. It is not a Government discrimination against the Canadian National, 
but something which existed prior to the amalgamation?—A. I would not say it 
was discrimination on the part of the Government or anyone else, but it is 
simply a condition which has developed. This decrease is due very largely to 
the change in the rates, but I feel that we ought to have a larger proportion of 
the total mail contracts than we are getting to-day. In fact, it would be a 
dangerous thing to be satisfied at any time, no matter what our proportion was. 
The only way in which you can get what you want to have is to keep reaching 
for more.

Q. Can you give us an idea of any contracts which you could handle, giv­
ing equal service with the Canadian Pacific Railway?—A. I could not give you. 
that offhand, but we have some contracts of that character, and we have that 
question up now with the Post Office Department, with a view to increasing our 
proportion.

By Mr. Milne:
Q. How are the rates determined, by the Railway Commission?—A. The 

Postmaster General, I think.
Q. There is no competing for the contracts?—A. No, nothing of that sort 

involved. There is no intention, I may say, or desire on the part of the Govern­
ment to discriminate against the Canadian National Railways, nor is there any 
desire, I think, on the part of the Government to unduly favour the Canadian 
Pacific Railway. I think, as far as my observation goes, the Government is 
trying to be fair in the matter, but we want to show them how they can be a 
little more fair.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. If you were on a mileage basis, your milage would entitle you to more 

business?—A. That is the theory I would like to go upon, and that is the theory 
we are intending to go on.

By the Chairman:
Q. The present condition is probably due to a continuance of the old system 

which was in force before the railway were amalgamated?—A. Yes.
By Mr. Gauvreau:

Q. And the old companies did not get as much business as the Canadian 
Pacific Railway?—A. Yes; we have that up now, and I want to have a meeting 
with the Minister within the next few days to push the thing still more actively.

By Mr. Mackinnon:
Q. Are the contracts let by competition?—A. No, I think it is merely an 

assignment of services on the part of the Postmaster General. He is the sole 
arbiter.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Is it not a fact that private companies subsidized by the Federal gov­

ernment received the subsidy on the condition that they carry mail for a nom­
inal amount and this is outstanding?

Major Bell: Sir Henry would not know about that. That is the old sub­
sidy contract, under which they have to refund an amount equal to three per cent 
of their subsidy.

By Mr. Mackinnon:
Q. Would that not account for the smaller amount paid to the Canadian 

National Railways for carrying mails having regard to the fact that the Cana­
dian National is made up of companies which were subsidized under that?

Major Bell: No.
[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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The Witness: This decrease is almost entirely due to readjustment of 
rates; Sir Henry Drayton stated the case exactly a few moments ago.

By the Chairman:
Q. The next item there, “ freight,” shows an increase of nearly $15,000,000. 

Would you care to make any comment on that, as to the reason for the increase? 
—A. There was an increase in total freight, I think, of approximately 9,000,000 
tons, and that was divided as follows. I am only giving round figures, so they 
may not exactly check when added up. There was an increase in wheat of 
substantially 1,000,000 tons; an increase in anthracite coal of 1,000,000 tons; 
an increase in bituminous coal of 3,150,000 tons; an increase in products of the 
forest, which is to say lumber and pulpwood, of 2,100,000 tons, and an increase 
in manufactured articles of 1,100,000 tons. These represent the principal items 
of increase, and I should say that these increases were partly the result of 
increased production in Canada. We had an extremely good crop last year, 
as you are aware, which apparently stimulated a good deal of freight. The 
increase in coal was due very largely to large shipments, abnormal shipments, 
early in 1923, as the result of the coal strike ; dealers were catching up with 
their supplies, and I think it is also fair to say a certain proportion was due to 
increased activity in soliciting, and an increased condition of alertness, not 
only on the part of our freight solicitors, but on the part of the whole of the 
men employed in the service of the company. We are endeavouring to not 
limit the solicitation of freight to the freight department ; we are trying to 
make every man who is in the service of the company a potential freight soli­
citor, although that may not specifically be his duties, the theory being that 
if you can bring to bear in the soliciting of freight the concentrated efforts of 
all your men, you will necessarily get better results than if that activity were 
limited simply to the traffic department. The rank and file of our men and 
officers have responded very generously to that request, and we are getting a 
good deal of business in that way which we perhaps did not get before. A 
certain amount of it is also due, I think, to improvement in services and a 
general better feeling on the part of the public of Canada with respect to the 
services which the company is rendering to the public. All of these things 
taken into consideration account for this material increase.

Q. I suppose that would apply to passenger traffic also?—A. In the same 
way, exactly.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. This is not particularly material, but it is of interest. Our gross earn­

ings are dropping off this year ; that is public now. Is that due in measure or 
altogether to the falling off of business on our American lines, or partly the 
Canadian lines and partly American? I have two reasons for asking that. 
One is that the increase in traffic, or the decrease, might be an index to the 
prosperity of Canada. The other is that if it were in the United States where 
the decrease has taken place, that might be attributable in a measure at least 
to the Presidential election, when our friends over the line usually stop every­
thing, and which hampers business. I will be asked the question in the House 
why our traffic receipts are falling off, and I would like to know.—A. That can 
be explained in this way. It is partly due—in fact probably largely due to a 
falling off in business on our American lines. As the Minister has pointed out, 
this is a Presidential year in the United States, and most manufacturers reduce 
their activities until they know, or think they can foresee, who their respective 
candidates will be, what the prospects of the election will be, and from that 
they deduce what may perhaps be the tariff policy or other policies in the way 
of legislation whichv would affect their business. It is a well-known fact that
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in the United States, in a Presidential year, business marks time until they can 
foresee with some degree of clarity what the policy of the government, as it 
affects industrial activities, may be. In addition to that there seems to have 
been some over-production in the automobile business, and of course that 
affects us particularly, because our most profitable American mileage is that 
mileage which serves Michigan and northern Indiana and Chicago. The towns 
of Detroit, Pontiac, Lansing, and South Bend, Indiana—at which point are 
located the Studebaker works—are points where a large number of automobiles 
are produced annually. The Ford plants at Detroit, when running full, have a 
capacity of about 7,000 cars a day. Now, I think it is about perhaps half that 
J)ut there has been a distinct slackening in the automobile trade throughout 
Michigan. Just how much of that is due to the Presidential year, and political 
conditions, and how much of it may be due to over-production, it is difficult to 
sav, but it is showing signs of recovery, and the advice which we now have is that 
,most of the automobile factories from whom we derive a large proportion of 
pur business will be running full time about the first of the month, and the 
car loadings are showing considerable improvement. Any slackening of business 
or business depreciation in the United States, of course, affects our gross earn­
ings materially, because we have a large amount of mileage in the United States 
which is ordinarily very productive.

By the Chairman:
Q. Would you say it is more productive, generally speaking, than the 

part in Canada?—A. It is very profitable, there is no question about that. It 
is a more lucrative mileage.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Of course they have a greater density of poplation, over there.—A. Yes, 

of course. There has also been a hesitation, perhaps I can put it no higher 
than that, on the part of the manufacturing institutions in Canada, particularly 
in the province of Ontario. Just what that is due to I am not prepared 
to say, but there has been a distinct reduction in our loadings for manufactured 
products in the province of Ontario, and practically, of all our reductions in 
gross earnings, by far the larger proportion of it has occurred in what is called 
the central region, the region which serves the province of Quebec, the province 
of Ontario, and Michigan. On the other hand, business in the western region 
has shown a material improvement, and there was about three times as much 
grain in the West to be moved out before the new harvest comes in than was 
the position a year ago. So, as far as the transportation business is concerned, 
we have been in better shape in the West than in previous years, and propor­
tionately in better shape than in Ontario and Quebec and other parts of the 
country.

Q. May I ask if you care to give an opinion as to whether the maintenance 
and operation of those parts of the National system in the United States are 
of vital importance to the success of the whole system?—A. There may be some 
questions which you would like to ask and upon which you would like a frank 
opinion. I think those questions could be better answered if you went into 
executive session.

Q. I thought you would not have much difficulty in answering that, because 
my own opinion is that they are of vital importance.—A. I do not want to 
say publicly that they are of vital importance, but I should say they are a 
very material factor in pur earning capacity. It would be with the greatest 
reluctance that I would say anything which might result in our losing that 
traffic, because you have to remember that not only do these lines in themselves 
produce considerable traffic, but the Grand Trunk Western reaches the very
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important gateway of Chicago. All the railways of the west centre at Chicago. 
We have a large interchange business with these railways ; we have a large 
dressed meat business out of Chicago, and it is a very important gateway, and 
if we were denied access to that gateway, while perhaps it would not be a 
vital thing, it ■would be a serious thing to contemplate.

The Chairman : I think that is a fair answer.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. May I ask another question, as to the effect of the reducing of the 
rates, whether that helped to swell the increase?—A. Is your question this, 
will any contemplated reductions in 1924 increase the gross earnings?

Q. Yes.—A. I cannot concen-e of such a condition. You can have it either 
way you like; lower freight rates and more taxes, or vice versa.

By the. Chairman-
Q. Do you not think that lower freight rates would stimulate business 

and give you more business?—A. I would not want to advocate a reduction 
of rates, unless they were such as would throttle the industrial life of Canada. 
That would be silly. You may say that, broadly speaking, the freight rates 
which are imposed upon Canadian products are less than those of the corre­
sponding railways in the United States, and I can only say that if you reduce 
the freight rates I cannot see how you could avoid increasing the deficit, what­
ever that may be.

Q. Last year, were the rates reduced?—A. Yes, they were reduced. I am, 
speaking from memory, but I think the reductions last year meant about 
$7,000,000.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. I thought that covered not only the reductions of"last year, but those of 

the year before as well?—A. Probably they did; they became effective last 
year. “ This decline has seriously affected the net returns of the National 
system. The difference in rates over the two years represents a loss in net 
revenue of $7,000,000 ”. That includes whatever has been brought into effect 
in the last two years.

Q. You arc going back to the coming in of the Crowsnest Pass rates 
there?—A. Yes, that is right.

Q. flow much of that was due to the Crowsnest Pass rates? The calcula­
tion wras between $6,000,000 and $7,000,000 for the Crowsnest alone.—A. We 
can get that; it would be substantial. Have I answered your question, Mr. 
Mackinnon?

By Mr. Mackinnon:
Q. It is answered, but not to my satisfaction. You know that in the past 

many shippers were prevented by the high rates from shipping their products.— 
A. I was speaking of the future, when I said that I should reluctantly see- any 
further reductions brought into effeçt. W,hat has been, has been, and I do 
not see how we can get away from that.

Hon. Mr. Graham : The Board of Railway Commissioners has control of 
the rates.

Mr. Mackinnon: They look after the capital of the country, and not 
the producer.

The Witness: There is a point beyond which, if you raise the freight 
rates, you destroy the business. It is a matter of judgment and experience 
to say when that point is reached.
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By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. You are quite right in part of what you say about our rates being 

lower. My recollection is that they are not lower compared to the Central 
Freight Association territory; in other words, that the rates in Ontario and 
Quebec are not lower than those in the Central Freight Association territory.— 
A. I was speaking generally.

Q. That situation may have been changed, but the whole reason for the 
international freight rates case was the materially lower rates over there.— 
A- So far as grain rates are concerned, and that represents of course a large 
proportion of our traffic, the grain rates in Canada are materially lower—I 
should think at least 10 per cent or perhaps 15 per cent—than the corre­
sponding points south in the United States.

By the Chairman:
Q. Does that apply to other commodities?

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. If you were to take the crop the railways actually moved last year, and 

arrive at the average length of haul, which can easily be done and has been 
done—the records of the House show it—and apply to that same haul the 
American rates, the rates at which the grain producers of the western prairies 
had their grain moved, you will find that it cost them $33,000,000 more than 
had it been moved in this country. But the reason was not that our regular 
freight rates were lower, but that we put in an old statutory rate. Of course, 
the fact remains that there is a very very great difference ; there is that difference 
there, we all know it.—A. Do not understand that I am criticising the present 
grain rates; I am merely stating the effect. One of the fundamental factors of 
the whole proposition is that we must charge such a rate for the movement of 
grain as will enable our farmers in the west to advantageously market their 
products in the markets of the world. That is so obvious it hardly needs any 
discussion.

By the Chairman:
Q. Is it true that the rate on other commodities is lower than in the 

United States?—A. I could not answer that directly, but certainly I do not 
think that you will find that we are charging excessively.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. The rate systems of British Columbia and Alberta compared with the 

rate systems to the south, arç lower. In British Columbia and Alberta the rail­
ways moved—speaking from memory, and Sir Henry Thornton can check me if 
I am wrong—about 85 per cent on commodity rates. They have some higher 
class rates, but the traffic, taking it as it actually moves, the effect is that the 
railways are operating in the western territory at a lower rate than those to the 
south. There is no dispute about that.—A. That is correct, but might I add this 
amendment, that of course in the western country the grain movement represents 
by far the biggest volume of our traffic.

Q. Yes, we have the percentages here, I think.—A. It amounts to about 
49 per cent of our total traffic.

Q. I think it is more than that.—A. I am told about 60 per cent.
Q. My recollection is 62 per cent.—A. It represents a very large proportion 

of the total traffic.
By the Chairman:

Q. Sir Henry, could you say to what extent the revenues of the National 
Railways would be reduced if the balance of the Crowsnest Pass agreement came 
into force?—A. Yes, I could say it, but I would rather not.
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Q. Very well. It would be quite material, would it not? You have just said 
the great bulk of your traffic consists of grain.—A. There is another aspect of the 
Crownest Pass matter which is entitled to certain consideration, and that is 
that if the Crowsnest rates are fully restored, my traffic péople advise me that 
it is going to create pretty serious obligations with respect to the whole rate struc­
ture in other commodities. That may or may not be a factor or a strong argu­
ment, but the problem with the rate structure is that it is like the tearing of a 
fabric. When you pull one thread in one corner of the piece, you are likely to 
disturb something in the other corner, which may have far-reaching effects.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. You have to leave them up in the air?—A. Pretty much. I can only say 

that it is like a piece of fabric ; if you pull one thread it disturbs the other end 
of the piece, which you cannot foresee.

Q. Take the rates in Ontario on dairy products ; I take that because it is 
the chief farming activity of Ontario; the rates on butter and cheese and eggs 
were increased during the war by something like 80 per cent, 81 per cent, and 
82 per cent, and they are still there. The company wanted to reduce them, but 
they have not been able to on account of the Crowsnest Pass business.-—A. There 
is also another factor to be considered, and that is that the price of materials 
and the price of labour has not fallen materially. Those represent, of course, 
by far the largest items of our expense.

By Mr. Mackinnon:
Q. In the Maritime Provinces, would it be fair to charge the price of a 

bushel of potatoes for carrying two bushels from Charlottetown to Sydney? 
To charge the price of one bushel for taking the other bushel down ; would that 
be fair?—A. That is a difficult question to answer without knowing fûrther 
details.

Q. I am only putting the general proposition.—A. I should say if you were 
charging a freight rate which would be, according to your hypothesis, 50 per 
cent, it would be a heavy charge, although perhaps the margin in the business 
might be sufficient to permit that.

Q. That is only an illustration. Take the shipments that came from the 
Maritime Provinces, shipments of dairy products and other produce, to Ottawa 
and Toronto ; that has ceased now. They cannot afford it, they cannot pay the 
freight rate. That has affected the Maritime Provinces a good deal. You used 
to be able to go down to the business houses here and buy a carload of produce 
from Prince Edward Island, something in the line of vegetables or butter or 
cheese, but you cannot do it today.

Sir Henry Drayton : The chief trouble about raising rates has been to get 
away from the idea that the original purpose of the railway was to permit free 
interchange of products. Some of the rates are pretty high.

Mr. Mackinnon: The tariff has hit the Maritimes pretty hard.
The Witness: The United States tariff on potatoes has hit the Maritime 

Provinces hard, and that had more to do with the whole situation than freight 
rates, I think.

By the Chairman:
Q. You have an item headed “Miscellaneous” there, I see nothing about 

express revenues. Is that included in that?—A. No.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. I wonder if we could have, at the next session, information as to rates 
in the Central Freight Association territory as compared with Ontario and Quebec.
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Of course, I realize that you have to get your money somewhere, and I realize 
that the western region last year had to make up the deficits in all the other 
regions.—A. The Central Region—?

Q. —had to make it up for the others. What was it, $16,000,000 or $18,- 
000,000?—A. About that; that is close enough.

Q. To my recollection that is what it was.—A. $16,000,000.
Q. Then besides that we also had a surplus on the Chicago end?—A. That 

includes Chicago.
Q. Then that $16,000,000 had to carry the deficits for the rest of the country. 

I realize that possibly we will have to go on carrying these deficits to some 
extent, but when our traffic in central Canada is subject to such a grave dispro­
portion, in regard to the system as a whole, we should at least find how we stand 
in connection with the competitive lines to the south.—A. Let me see if I under­
stand your question. You want to know—and I suppose you will have to put 
it on a ton-mile basis, so that ik would compare—how freight rates in the central 
territory in the United States compare with the rates that we are charging in the 
central regions?

Q. In Ontario, yes. For example, take the packing house products origin­
ating in Chicago, which move at a commodity rate; then take packing house 
products originating in Toronto or Hamilton. Or take a steel product which also 
moves at a commodity rate originating in the western States; what is the per­
centage? We had at one time a practical equality of treatment in some of 
the classes; in some of them we never could approach their rates at all.—A. 
Yes, that is true.

Q. We had no reductions in Quebec and Ontario except those very slight 
ones which we got out of the remnant that was left to the general public as the 
result of the Crowsnest rates case of over two years ago. I think there was a 
reduction which might average six; it was supposed to be seven, but when you 
applied it all over it would make about six and a fraction.—A. We made a reduc­
tion in milling and transit rates.

Q. There was an order of the Board on that, an order of the Railway Board 
which compelled the milling in transit privilege to be put in in eastern Canada as 
well as in western Canada?—A. Yes, that was in effect, May 22nd, 1923.

Q. I do not know whether that was really a good thing to do or not, and 
I would not say it was. There are arguments for and against it. We used to 
figure on the percentage of traffic, and this would apply particularly in the Mari­
times, wffiere they produce chiefly articles which move on commodity rates. 
With the exception of one thing, I think almost all the products of the Mari­
times move on commodity rates. I would like to know what the percentage is of 
commodity rates. I know what it used to be.—A. You would like the percentage 
of freight in the* Maritime Provinces that moves on commodity rates, and the 
percentage that moves on class rates?

Q. Yes. Then I think it would also be a good thing if we could have some­
thing to show what a grain train costs.—A. That we can give you.

Q. What it costs to run a train; put it any way you like.—A. I think 
that will probably develop as we go farther. Perhaps you might wait and see 
if that information does not emerge ; if it does not we will provide it.

Q. If you have it ready it would be easy to take it now.—A. Do you want 
it now?

Q. No.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. Have you the figures there which would show us the total amount of 
grain that took the all-rail route to the seaboard last year, as compared with the 
year before?—A. No, we have not that.
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By the Chairman:
Q. There is an item there “Miscellaneous.” I see nothing for express 

business revenue, Sir Henry (Thornton). Is that included in miscellaneous?—A. 
That includes excess baggage, sleeping car, parlour and chair car rates. It also 
includes express, milk trains, switching, special train service, water transfers, 
dining and buffet cars, hotel and restaurants, station, train, and boat privileges, 
parcel rooms, demurrage, grain elevators and a lot of miscellaneous things of 
that character.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That is set out in a supporting schedule?—A. Yes.
Q. What page?—A. Page 18.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. In respect to the transfer of money : is your express company suffering 

any handicap as compared with the banks, arising out of the stamp tax?—A. I 
don’t think I can answer that offhand, Mr. Kyte.

Q. I discussed that with an official of your company the other day and he 
said that in the matter of transferring money by the express companies, the 
banks are able to transfer the money from one branch to another branch, or into 
the United States, and are exempt from the stamp tax, whereas the Express 
Company has to add a stamp tax to it. I would like to get the particulars of 
that.-—A. I will get that information for you.

Q. I am led to believe it has reduced the express order business very 
materially?

Sir Henry Dray'ton: I am afraid that is one of the instances of these 
improper forms of taxation which the Government delight in.

The Chairman : Order.
Mr. Kyte: You mean which the Government inherited?
Sir Henry Drayton: No, we had not multiple taxation.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I think I have heard it said ours does not pyramid so 

rapidly.
The Chairman : Shall we go on with the expenses and make some progress?
Hon. Mr. Graham : May I interject a question there?
The Chairman : Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. It is in regard to this item of expense. You have your officers herq, 

Sir Henry (Thornton). Take the “Maintenance of Way and Structures” and 
“Maintenance of Equipment.” These items on the face of them show a decrease 
in 1923 from 1922. Unless there be some explanation, you would be open to the 
charge that you were spending too little on these items, in comparison with 
other years. I think if we had the statement of these in comparison and explan­
ation now, it would be perhaps the best thing we could have in general on these 
lines. I will be asked questions in the House concerning these, and I want the 
answer on file from headquarters, and I think the House would be better 
satisfied if we had something on record here from the Canadian National Rail­
ways, than any explanation I could give them second-handed.—A. I think the 
best way, if you want to take that up, would be to go through the different 
items under the general heading of “Maintenance of Way and Structures” and 
“Maintenance of Equipment.”

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That is on page 19?—A. Yes.
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By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. May I interpolate right there? Is the accounting system of the Canadian 

National Railways the standard one adopted and insisted upon by the Interstate 
Commerce Commission?—A. It is.

By the Chairman:
Q. Would you give us an explanation why the material reduction this year 

as compared with last year is something over $4,000,000?—A. $4,000,000 for 
maintenance of way and structures?

Q. No, the reduction of the two— —A. You would have to take them 
separately.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Take the maintenance of way and structures on page 19?—A. I might 

make this general staterhent, before we consider it in detail. We charged to 
maintenance of way and structures in 1923, $4,781,775. I am speaking now from 
page 19 of the Annual Report. In 1922 we charged $45,623,536; in other words, 
we spent last year practically $842,000 less than we did in 1922. To begin with, 
in dealing with so large an amount, I doubt if anyone could find an expression 
from the condition of the track of so small a matter as $842,000. That is, when 
you are dealing with figures that are between $44,000,000 and $45,000,000, 
$870,000, while in itself a large sum, proportionately is not very much.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Would that include bridges?—A. Oh, yes; that would include every 

item.
Q. Stations?—A. Everything. That would include all of the items shown 

under the heading “Maintenance of Way and Structures” on page 19 of the 
annual report.

By the Chairman:
Q. You mean the reduction on the basis of percentage is very small?—A. Yes; 

it is a large sum to either you or me-----
The Chairman: I certainly will admit that as for myself.
The Witness: ----- but comparing it with so large an amount, it is not very

large. I thipk perhaps the best thing would be for me to take the larger items 
of decrease. The first one we come to is account 212, “Ties.” There was a 
decrease of practically $2,250,000 in ties. In the first place 111 per cent fewer 
ties were used in 1923 as compared with 1922. In addition to the saving thus 
effected, further reductions accrued from the lower average price for ties which 
obtained in 1922. There was a decrease of $500,000 due to the reduction in the 
average price of ties from 95c. per tie in 1922 to 87c. in 1923. There was a 
further decrease of $600,000 due to there having been charged in the account 
of 1922; that representing an adjustment of an account for 1921. In other words, 
in 1922, $600,000 was charged into that account which belonged to. the previous 
year, and was in adjustment. There was a decrease of approximately $950,000 
due to there having been used 1,000,000 less cross-ties on the Canadian lines in 
1923, as compared with 1922, and there was a decrease of about $200,000 in the 
value of bridge and switch-tigs used.

Now, roughly speaking, the total number of ties on our lines amount to 
80,000,000. We renew about 7,000,000 ties—or did last year, about 1,000,000 
less than the previous year. That means that we stretched the life of a tie from 
about 10 years to 11 years. That, in turn, was due to the more rigid inspection 
when the ties werè taken out to the track, and an effort to take out no ties unless 
they had entirely outlived their usefulness. In considering our annual tie
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renewals, and the fact that we are dealing with about 80,000,000 ties, a tie saved 
here and there—if you only saved, for instance, three or four or 10 ties per mile 
of track, you would save over the whole system a very large number of ties. 
No tie should be taken out of the track until it has entirely outlived its useful­
ness, and it is a well known principle of maintenance-of-way work that in no 
branch of that work is there so much of an opportunity for waste, and, at the 
same time, for saving, as in the annual tie renewal. So that by closer inspection, 
by more rigid inspection with respect to ties that should be taken out, we saved 
about $1,000,000 last year, and from my own judgment, from riding over the 
track, I do not think the character of the track has been materially affected, in 
fact, I think, if anything, it is rather better than it was in 1922.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Do you think that- saving will be reflected in this year’s depreciation? 

That is, will there be a greater depreciation of renewals of ties this year on 
that account?—A. No.

By Mr. Stork:
Q. In the matter of replacements ; are they replaced by creosoted ties?—A. 

Some are. We are increasing annually the number of creosoted ties put in the 
track, and that is a wise policy for two reasons. In the first place, it conserves 
out timber supply, which is already disappearing at an alarming rate, and, 
secondly, it saves track-work, because every time you put in ties it means you 
have to re-surface. You destroy the old bed of the tie, the compact earth or 
ballast which has become compressed underneath the tie. The moment you 
haul the old tie out and put a new one in, you destroy that old bed, and it means 
that in addition to putting in the tie you have to do an increased amount of sur­
facing, so you economize in a good many ways in rigidly examining the ties to 
be taken out of the track.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. What is the length of the life of a creosoted tie as compared with a tie 

in the natural state?—A. About double.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. Have you experimented enough with hard-wood ties to explain their use 
for our benefit—I mean the treating of hard-wxtod ties?—A. I don’t think 
hard-wood ties should be treated. These deteriorate in two ways, either mech­
anically or from the ravages of nature. They deteriorate mechanicaly because 
they are worn out, that is, the adzing underneath the rails gradually gives way 
with the weight, and sooner or later it may break ; in other words, it may be 
broken or destroyed from mechanical causes. That is one way. The other 
way is from the ravages of nature. That is simply rot. If you can find an inferior 
wooden tie which is strong enough to resist mechanical wear, and at the same 
time can be treated chemically so it will resist the ravages of nature, then you 
have as good a tie as if you took an expensive hard-wood tie and treated it. So 
my theory is—and I think I am right—to secure the cheaper, inferior, wooden 
tie which will stand up mechanically, provided that wood can be treated chem­
ically so that it will not rot. The inferior wooden tie treated chemically 
is just as good as a hard-wood tie treated chemically, therefore why 
waste money on the more expensive tie? Usually hard-wood ties, 
such as white oak, are used and are preferred untreated, because un­
treated it last longer than spruce or pine or beech. Now, beech is a wood 
which deteriorates with rapidity from the ravages of nature, but is strong 
mechanically, so if you can take a beech tie and treat it mechanicaally, creosote 
it, in other words, to resist rot, you have as good a tie as the original white oak 
tie. —
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By the Chairman:
Q. Do you buy all your ties by tender?—A. Yes, I think we do. There 

may be a few odd lots here and there, but the amount we would buy without 
tender would be a very small percentage of the total, if it were even one per 
cent.

Q. Is there much competition?—A. A fair amount of competition.
Q. Are there any old tie contracts left over from the time before the com­

panies were united?—A. I do not think we have any old tie contracts; there 
may be one or two. There is an old contract which runs out this year.

Q. For how long are these contracts usually made?—A. A year, ordinarily. 
You ordinarily buy your ties )rear by year, unless there is some exceptional 
reason for doing otherwise.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Do you endeavour, so far as possible, to purchase ties for the railway 

in the locality where they are to be used? For instance, in each province, do 
you seek to get a separate supply of ties?—A. Broadly speaking, that is the 
policy.

Q. For instance, there are no cases where ties are taken from Ontario to 
Nova Scotia, or vice versa ?—A. I do not think it would extend that far. You 
might get points that would be somewhere near the boundary, but I think 
broadly speaking the answer to your question is “yes”.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Did you say you have an old contract which has not run out yet?— 

A. I think it runs out this year.
Q. When was it made?—A. (To Mr. Brown) When was that made?
Mr. Brown : I could not say.
Major Bell: It was made before the Board of Management took over the 

company.
The Witness: I have a recollection that that contract was of either three 

or five years’ duration. I know I looked into it some months ago.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. What was the price? Can you give me a substantial figure?—A. I 
could not give you that, but we can easily get it.

By the Chairman:
Q. What is the usual method adopted for calling for tenders, advertising? 

—A. Usually invitations are sent to the principal tie contractors, and they are 
asked to send in their sealed bids as of a certain date and hour, and the bids 
are opened by the Purchasing Agent and the contract is signed with the lowest 
responsible bidder.

Q. Can you say about how many tenders would be received, approximately, 
en any one contract? «■

By Mr. Stork:
Q. In the Prince Rupert section on the old Grand Trunk Pacific, which I 

think is perhaps one of the best tie districts on the whole system, there is a 
good deal of competition. There are about 12 or 15 reputable tie contracting 
firms, and there is tremendous competition there. Among the principal ones 
are Hanson, McNeill, Jennings, and a lot of others, and they watch it very 
carefully.—A. You always have to consider this factor. You must not drive 
your tie contractors down so far as to put them out of business, or you may 
ultimately find yourself in a position where you have not anyone to depend 
upon at all. (To Mr. Brown) Have you any idea about how many bids we 
would get on each job?
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Mr. Brown : They get quite a few.
Mr. Stork: A dozen?
Mr. Brown : It will vary in different sections of the country, depending on 

the timber limits.
Mr. Stork : Would it be nearer to say half a dozen?
Mr. Brown : In some sections of the country you would get six or eight

bids.
Mr. Stork: Is there reasonable competition in all of these contracts?
Mr. Brown : I think there is.
The Witness : And furthermore, in all of these bids, if there is evidence of 

collusion or evidence of some combination to force up the price of ties or any­
thing else, we have rejected all bids and have gone direct and negotiated with 
the contractors. For instance, just as a little illustration of that, a year ago 
when we bought a lot of freight car equipment, we felt that the price which 
was asked by the various car manufacturing companies was excessive, and we 
did not feel that we could stand it.

By Mr. Stork:
Q. You bought them in the United States?—A. No, we did not. So we 

said to these various contractors—there were three—“ Here, we do not like 
your price, it is too high. We have divided up this order amongst -you in h 
manner satisfactory to the three of you, and we will buy on the basis of cost 
plus 10 per cent ” and they accepted that proposition. In the final analysis 
the price we paid per car was materially less than the original bids of these car 
companies.

Q. Did they let your auditors go right into their plants?—A. Yes, we 
examined their books, and when it was done they were well satisfied and so were 
we. I merely mention that to illustrate that when we feel that the price 
demanded for any particular thing we are buying is excessive, we have to 
negotiate or try to take some steps to get it at a reasonable price.

Q. You say there is an old contract with the G.T.R. which has not expired. 
J am just curious to see whether there are any other old contracts of the old 
constituent companies that have not expired.—A. No. With the expiration of 
this contract this year, all the old tie contracts will have disappeared.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Would these contractors be supplying new ties at the price prevailing 

five years ago?—A. This Grand Trunk contract was a peculiar contract. It 
may have been to the advantage of the company, I will not say, but the price for 
the ties was fixed, as I remember it, by an understanding between the contractor 
and the company. I do not think there was any definite price put down, and 
it varied from year to year. (To Mr. Brown) Is that right?

Mr. Brown: That is my impression, yes. I think I have last year’s 
figures on that contract.

The Witness: (To Mr. Brown) Have you anything that shows the price 
per tie paid under that contract last year?

Mr. Brown : Yes, I have the one in the State of Illinois, about half a 
million ties, at $1.15. They were oak ties.

The Witness: That is a different position again. These were white 
oak ties bought in the United States, and just roughly I should say that $1.15 
was not excessive for a white oak tie in the United States, although it would 
be an excessive price to pay for a tie in Canada.
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By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Where would you be using the hard wood ties?—A. These particular 

ties were used on the Grand Trunk Western lines west of Detroit, between 
Detroit and Chicago, and through Michigan. I do not think any of these ties 
came into Canada.

Mr. Brown : No, it was all used on the Grand Trunk Western.
/

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Do you get any of the ties for our Canadian lines in the United States? 

—A. No.
Q. Do you get all the ties for our American lines in the United States?—A. 

I think we buy them all in the United States.
By the Chairman:

Q. Is there a duty against ties, either way?—A. I do not know whether 
there is or not, but I think there is a duty on ties and lumber going into the 
United States. I am sure there is.

The Chairman : Gentlemen, it is nearly one o’clock; do you wish to 
proceed any further?

Sir Henry Drayton : I think we would save time on these questions of 
expenses if the Controller of Accounts brings down his regular monthly state­
ments. That is something I am much more familiar with than anything else.

The Witness: What statements do you refer to?
Sir-Henry Drayton: The regular monthly statement of receipts apd dis­

bursements.
The Witness: You would want twelve of them?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes; we could get everything very quickly that 

way, and we could see the general trend at once.
The Witness: Then you would only get the amounts that would be 

charged to certain items month by month, and I want to point out that that 
may or may not be a fair criterion, because in some particular month you might 
charge an amount for some reason, a very much larger or a very much smaller 
amount than in another month. Ordinarily what we should do is to budget 
certain items of expenses ; that is more or less of a practice on most railways, 
to charge one-twelfth of the amount each month, whether the work is done or not.

Mr. Drummond: Mr. Chairman, I would like to get some information in 
regard to the losses sustained in regard to the hotels.

Sir Henry1 Drayton : We have that in the House now. I am afraid we 
are losing money on all of them.

The Witness: I have not the slightest desire to suggest the procedure 
which should be followed by this committee, but if you are going to go through 
each one of these items month by month, you are going to make your work 
twelve times as hard as you should.

The Chairman : Would it be satisfactory to take the statement here, and 
if you feél you want more additional information than you have, perhaps we 
could resort to the other.

The Witness: We can furnish you with the annual report, with the items 
of increase and decrease shown on the margin. Would that help you?

Sir Henry Drayton : If I had those things now I could go over them this 
afternoon and let you know.

81695—9
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The Witness: I do not think I have the monthly statements; they will 
have to be sent down from Montreal.

Sir Henry Drayton: We could subpoena someone from the Board of 
Railway Commissioners ; they should have copies. It seems to me I was guilty 
of a judgment a few years ago under which the railway companies had to file 
these with the Board.

The Witness: We file our monthly statements of expenses with the Com­
mission, of course.

Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, that was done under a judgment of 1916, so 
that the Board would be in touch with what was going on every month.

The Chairman : Will these statements be produced then?
The Witness: Yes, we will send for them.
The Witness retired.
The Committee adjourned.

Committee Room 231,
House of Commons,

Tuesday, June 24, 1924.

The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping met at 
10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. W. D. Euler, M.P., Chairman, Presiding.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, if you will come to order, we will proceed. I 
may say, at the outset that there is a caucus this morning, and some of the 
members of the Committee will want to leave to attend the caucus at eleven- 
thirty. I might also direct the attention of the Committee to the fact that in the 
printed proceedings there is an error on page 286, line 3, the fourth word. The 
word “edging” should be changed to “adzing.” I do not think it is of very great 
importance, but we may as well change it. I would also say that some of the 
members have not returned the first day’s proceedings; unless they do return 
those it . is impossible to make up a complete file, as they arc being turned out 
now, so, if any of you have the first day’s proceedings, please turn them in. 
I may also say that there is some disposition to come to the conclusion of the 
session, and we should speed up our work as much as possible without trying 
t"' prevent any investigation.

I think Major Bell has the information asked of him, and is prepared to 
give that information which Sir Henry Drayton wanted yesterday? We might 
finish with that at this time.

Sir Henry Drayton : Shall we question the Major. If he has the informa­
tion, he might just make the statement.

Major G. A. Bell, recalled.
The Witness: This information was telephoned to me from Montreal this 

aiorning from thee Chairman’s office. Amount of transfer charges on transfer 
from Aronovici to present company—this is in dollars $62,153.39.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. That is the taxes?—A. That is what it cost the company to transfer the 

title from Aronovici to the present company. The name of the company is La 
Rente Foncier.
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By Mr. Kyte:
Q. That is the present company?—A. Yes, it is a subsidiary company of 

; the Canadian National. ,
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. That would be approximately what, in francs? We have all the rest'of 
. it in francs and we might as well continue it?—A. Yes. Take about five cent to 

■1 the frank, Sir Henry (Drayton).
Q. Just see how you figure it. I don't want to tie you down to a thousand 

francs one way or the other, but it will do only approximately.
Hon. Mr. Graham: When that was done the franc was worth more than 

j five cents.
The Witness: No; this is at a later time.
Mr. Kyte: 1,243,000 francs.
The Witness: 1,243,000 francs roughly, yes.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
I ■ Q. Does that make the total paid for these Government taxes—in francs? 
f—A. In francs, yes. The total paid to the Government for registration fees on 

the mortgage. First of all there was a registration fee of 3,360,000 francs; regis­
tration of the mortgage 750,000 francs, and retransfer of the property from 
Aronovici to the company, 1,243,000 francs—approximately.

Q. That is a total of 5,353,000 francs that we have paid into the French 
Government?—A. Yes.

The Chairman : A nice revenue.
Sir Henry Drayton: It is a fine thing for the other fellow.
The Chairman: If or the French Government, I should say.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. You gave the name of some company there. Have you the name this 

morning of the original owner?—A. No, sir.
Sir Henry Drayton : The Minister is here and I wonder if he could tell 

I us if an offer was made to the Canadian Pacific Railway, and if so, at what
price?

Hon. Mr. Graham : I was informed the property was offered in May, 1920, 
) to the President of the Canadian Pacific Railway through his manager in Lon­

don, Sir George McLaren Brown—20,000,000 francs, with 3,000,000 set for the 
I - tenant. What that 3,000,000 francs is I do not know.

Sir Henry Drayton : I suppose that would mean the owners were going 
to give possession on being paid 3,000,000 francs, plus the purchase price.

Hon. Mr. Graham : I doubt it, because there was half a dozen tenants, 
and there are some tenants which he could not buy out, ■ and which our people 
have been unable to buy out.

Sir Henry Drayton : You have got rid of all of them?
The Witness No, there were three we did not ask to get out.
Hon. Mr. Graham : The statement made to me was “ 20,000,000 francs with 

3,000,000 for the tenant ”. What that means I don’t know.
Sir Henry Drayton: With 3,000.000 for the tenants.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Not “tenants”; “tenant”.

By Sir Henry Drayton:'
■ Q. Three you have not been able to get rid of?

[Major G. A. Bell.]
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Hon. Mr. Graham : I corrected, that this minute. I said that was at 
that time. There were three left there.

Sir Henry Drayton : Which three? ,
The Witness: On the side there weçe three small shops which did not 

interfere with us at all and we left them there.

B y. Sir Henry Drayton:
(j. How long do their leases run?—A. Five or six years.
Q. What did they demand?—A. They were not asked to get out; we did 

not bargain with them.
Q. What was their rent?—A. I have not that information here.
Q. Can you make your changes in the building and leave them in?—A. Yes, 

so we are advised. They are only small shops.
Hon. Mr. Graham : You did not let me finish my answer. Mr. Beatty says 

they had a similar offer repeated to them in November, but they held no 
option on it between those times.

The Chairman : November, 1920.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Yes. The first was in May, 1920, and the last was 

in November, 1920, but the offer was not considered. He thought the property 
was too expensive at that time and that they did not require such large premises 
for their business.

Sir Henry Drayton : That would sound very reasonable.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Major Bell, have you any knowledge as to whether the value of property 

increased from 1920 to 1923 from information you received while in Paris?— 
A. The general opinion was that it had gone up tremendously on account of 
the scarcity of space. I think, roughly, that rentals, apart from the deprecia­
tion of the franc, had gone up as high in increase as 50 per cent, and naturally 
property would be just about the same.

Q. That is from 1920 to 1923?—A. Yes, depending on the situation.
Mr. Kyte : That is all.

By the Chairman:
0. Can you tell me, Major, what the value of the franc was when the 

offer was made to the C.P.R.?—A. I have not that with me, but I think I 
could get it for you.

Q. Could you give me any idea as to how the offer to the Canadian Pacific 
Railway compared with the price paid by the Canadian National Railway, 
when you consider the relative values of the franc in 1920 as compared with 
when the purchase was made in 1923?—A. Taking the relative value—if it was 
20,000,000 francs and the relative value of the franc at that time, together 
with the increase, in property values, the offer made to the C.P.R, was higher 
than the price paid by the Canadian National Railways. ' „ 1

Hon. Mr. Graham : In 1920 when the offer was made, the value of the 
franc was, at one time, 9-13. I think. It would depend on what day of May it 
was done. It ran from that to approximately 7, if I remember correctly..

Sir Henry Drayton : We do not have to pretend to know. There is no 
reason for guessing about it. We can get it absolutely.

Hon. Mr Graham : I had it in my pocket this morning, and thought I 
had it with me. In November the value of the franc ran from six-something 
to eight-something.
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By the Chairman:
Q. Could you give a definite answer to that, Major?—A. The offer to the 

C.P.R., if I understand Mr. Graham rightly, in May, 1920, was 20,000,000 
francs. Property has increased 50 per cent entirely apart from the fluctuation 
of the franc, so I would put the value of the offer made to the C.P.R., on that 
basis, -at about 30,000,000.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That would be assuming that your idea of French real estate is right?— 

A. I am just saying, Sir Henry (Drayton), how the property jumped and 
increased—

Q. We have no evidence of jumping, except the jump that Aronovici 
took. We. have a general idea of values from gentlemen who know nothing 
about it. That is all.—A. (No audible response).

The Chairman: Are you through, Mr. Kyte? •
By Mr. Kyte:

Q.- Do you know, or do you not know, that in the case of that offer to 
the C.P.R. the transfer fees would have to be paid by the purchaser?—A. Cer­
tainly.

Q. All the items enumerated by you as adding to the cost of the building 
would be added in the case of the C.P.R. ?

Sir Henry Drayton : I wonder if the witness really wants to say “yes” 
to that question. He nods his head—

The Chairman: Leave it to him to answer.
The Witness: Sir Henry (Drayton), I will go into that in detail, taking 

it on the same basis as the Canadian National purchase. Supposing the C.P.R. 
put it through at 20,000,000 francs : the registration would be 12 per cent—

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Certainly, which would be a lower rate—A. Yes—
Q. Do you think the C.P.R. would have taken the deed in Aronovich's 

name, and got rid of it afterwards?—A. I am not discussing—
Q. Can you state to us whether all these other costs would be the same?— 

A. Of the first transfer, yes. I am not referring to the second transfer.
Q. Just limit yourself to that?—A. The second transfer would be addi­

tional, of course. 1 am referring to the first transfer.
By Mr. Mackinnon:

Q. Was this offer of the C.P.R. known when the Canadian National bought 
it?—A. I cannot tell you that, because I was not in at the bargaining at first.

Q. Was this a good time to buy. when the price was high ?—A. If you 
wanted the property you would have to buy it at the current price.

The Chairman: Any other members wish to a«k the witness any ques­
tions?

By Mr. Gauvreau:
Q. If the C.P.R. was willing to purchase that property, is it your idea 

they would buy it outright, instead of making a bargain with a middleman?— 
A. No, the chances are they would have had somebody in between to purchase.

Q. Just as vou did, when vou took the third man to put the deal through?— 
A. Yes.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Do you mean to say that they would do more than just employ an 

agent ?—A. I don’t understand your question. Sir Henry.
[Major G. A. Bell.]
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Q. It is very plain. Do you think they would do more than employ an 
agent to buy, and have the option in his name?—A. I think the chances are 
the Canadian Pacific Railway would have done just exactly as we did the second 
time. They probably would have used a subsidiary company.

Q. In the first instance ?—A. In the first instance. As a matter of fact, 
the Canadian Pacific Railway Company at the present time, are incorporating 
and operating separately in Paris. They do that to avoid the taxes.

Q. In other words, they would have done, in the first instance, what you did 
in the last? —A. Sir Henry, may I make this explanation? One of the largest 
banks in Canada did just exactly what •we did in the purchase of a property, 
and to-day they are not in possession of the property, and it is my information 
that they will not be for twelve years.

Sir Henry Drayton: Oh, yes, there was another Canadian institution stung 
as well as the National. That bank was pretty badly stung, but they bought 
it at a very considerably lower rate than you did. I happen to know the 
details of that purchase.

The Witness: I am not so sure of that. ,
Hon. Mr. Graham : The property ' is not comparable to this.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. What was the price, 17,000,000 francs?—A. They are willing to bargain 

with us for taking a part of our floor space, based on the price we paid for it.
Q. For a certain amount, but they are inclined to deal because they cannot 

get possession of their own.
Hon. Mr. Graham : There is an American company which has done the 

same thing.
The Witness: Yes, I explained that yesterday.
Sir Henry Dray'ton : 'I am not saying there were not others ; there are 

other suckers: there always are.
' The Chairman : Are you through with this? Do you wish to continue 

now with some of these statements?
Mr. Kyte: Is Mr. Ruel here?
Sir Henry Drayton : I think he was to be here this morning. I thought 

we were to have this morning the accounts from the Comptroller of Accounts.
The Chairman : I thought we were to hear Mr. Ruel.
Mr. Kyte: He was asked to come.
Mr. Stewart: I thought it was understood he was to be here this morning.
Gérard Reel called, and examined.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, Mr. Ruel is now ready for your questions. 

Will some one please proceed.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Mr. Ruel, when was it that you first had any knowledge of the Scribe 
Hotel?—A. The first time I came into it was the day Mr. Aronovici arrived 
in Toronto

Q. When was that?—A. I do not know ; it was some time prior to the 
writing of this letter which I have before me.

Q. That is dated April 30th?—A. Yes, April 30th, 1923, some time prior 
to that. I do not know exactly the day this letter was signed.

Q. It is a letter within a letter.—À. A letter within a letter.
Q. A short time prior to the 30t h of April ?—A. Yes.
Q. Did you have anything to do with the negotiations for the purchase?— 

A. No, except after Aronovici arrived. I had nothing to do with the price 
paid, or anything like that. Possibly I had better state what happened on
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that day. The president sent for me in the morning, and Mr. Aronovici was 
in his office. Sir Henry explained to me that it was proposed to acquire this 
building in the city of Paris. He started to explain where it was, on the Rue de 
Capucines, and so on, but that did not convey any information to me at all. 
The president told me that Aronovici, to whom I was introduced at that time, 
had or intended to obtain, I have forgotten exactly which, an option on the 
property, and it was thought desirable in the interests of the expansion of 
the property and the expansion of the traffic of the railway that this building 
should be acquired. The price was mentioned in a general way, but it did 
not convey anything to me, because it was stated in francs. However, the 
president was in a hurry, and he asked me if I would take Mr. Aronovici over 
to my office and draw up some kind of a contract with him. So Mr. Aronovici 
and I went over to the office and then, at that time, I drew up the first draft 
of this letter of April 30th, which was. to be addresed to Mr. Aronovici and 
signed by the president. It was signed afterwards, of course.

Q. Did you get the details of that from Mr. Aronovici or from the Presi­
dent?—A. That is what I am coming to now. I put down the whole thing:

“ I am writing this letter to you for the purpose of reporting our 
understanding of the tentative arrangement made with you respecting 
the acquisition of a location in Paris, France, for the offices of the Cana­
dian National Railway Company, and for the Dominion Government 
should they desire to avail themselves of the sp^ce.”

Then I put down a description, which Mr. Aronovici gave me, and I started 
to put down the price, which he also gave me. In the first draft I got all 
tangled up in the price and cut that out, and it was filled in afterwards. Then 
as to the payments, I put that down, as to what he said was the understanding. 
We were that day advancing him $200,000, and the letter says:

“ The Railway Company will further advance to you, before the 
20th of May, dollars sufficient to enable you to complete the bargain, 
such further advances to be placed to your credit at Morgan Harjes & 
Co., Place Vendôme, Paris.”

That is what he said the arrangement was.
“ Security.—The Railway Company is to be secured for all its 

advance by a mortgage executed by yourself upon the property for the 
amount advanced, to be returned to the Railway Company in Canadian 
money.”

Then I put in the terms of the security and the occupation, which was dic­
tated entirely by Mr. Aronovici:—

“ Occupation.—The Railway Company is to take space on the prem­
ises, as follows:

Basement.—Space for cinema.
Fù-st Floor.—Space for exhibition hall for Dominion Govern­

ment and offices for Canadian National.
Second Floor.—About 20 rooms for the Dominion Government 

and the same number of rooms for administration offices of the 
Railway Company.
Detailed measurements and locations to be subsequently agreed 

upon, and subject to change on mutual agreement.
[Mr. Gérard Radi.]
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Rental.—To be agreed upon between yourself and myself, as Presi­
dent of the Canadian National Railways.”

That was a point upon which I insisted. I did not know what the rental 
would be, and I said we would leave that entirely to be arrived at, that it was 
no use our attempting to adjust it then, because we did not know.

“ Payment of Interest.—Interest shall be payable out of rental so 
far as it goes being deducted by the Railway Company. No interest shall 
be payable on the advances made under this arrangement until the rental 
begins; in other words, the Railway Company charges no interest on its 
advances until concurrent with its occupation of the premises.”

That was insisted on by Mr. Aronovici. In regard to the payments on prin­
cipal, the sum of $25,000 per annum was suggested by Aronovici. I said that 
did not amount to anything at all, $25,000 per annum ; that would take him a 
million years to pay it off, and he said of course when the franc came up to par 
he would double that. I said even that did not amount to very much.

Q. That would be, not a million years, but a hundred years, without bother­
ing about interest at all?—A. I know, and I told him it was a ridiculous thing. 
However, that was what he was determined on, and I just put it down. Then, 
about the option to purchase ; I said that of course the railway company would 
have to take over this property, and Aronovici said, “ Oh, no, the railway com­
pany is not to take over the property;” I said, “ Nothing of the kind ; we have 
to be able to take it over or we cannot make advances to you. That would be 
impossible, because the railway has no authority to make advances to a man 
to buy property for his own purposes.” He said that was the way he under­
stood it, he was to have the management of the property and he was to pay off 
the principal from time to time. I said I did not understand it that way, and 
proposed that we just pass that over for the time being. So we went on and put 
in the insurance clause and the rental terms and the form of mortgage.

“Form of mortgage: The form and terms of the mortgage to be 
satisfactory to us, the mortgage, of course, to be a first mortgage, free 
from prior liens and charges.”

Then I said, “We will have to go back and see about this option to purchase”, 
so we went back to the office and I said to the President, “The Railway is not 
to have any right to purchase this property, according to Mr. Aronovici”, and 
I said, “Of course that is impossible, because we cannot go ahead at all unless 
that is the basis of the proposition.” Sir Henry looked at Mr. Aronovici, and 
Aronovici said, “Well, I am to have the property : it is my property”. Sir 
Henry said, “Oh no, not at all; the Railway is to have the right to take that 
over any time”. I said, “Of course, we cannot legally go ahead with the thing 
unless that is understood”. Sir Henry said that was the idea, the Railway 
company to take it over any time, and he said, “In fact, I have some people in 
mind who will probably take it over before a very long time”. Then Aronovici 
said, “How much am I going to get paid in case it is taken over?” ^nd then we 
had a discussion on the amount. Aronovici wanted 20 per cent commission, in 
case we took it over, and I said that was ridiculous. While as a general thing 
I do not go into questions of terms at all, I said that was absurd and that 5 per 
cent was all that it should be. Then Aronovici said it might not be taken over 
for some length of time, and in the meantime he would have to carry the ! 
property and get the tenants out, and clean it up, and have charge of the 
management, and he thought 20 per cent was right. Finally it was suggested 
that 10 per cent was about the right thing for the first five years, and 20 per 
cent after that. I pointed out, of course, that that meant we would have to

[Mr. Gérard Ruel.]



NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING 137

take it over within five years, because we could not afford to pay 20 per cent. 
Then we went back and put in this clause covering the option to purchase as 
shown here, and of course the minute that was put in the whole purpose of the 
letter was then served. It practically resolved itself into a case of Aronovici 
acting as our agent, the money being advanced by ourselves, and we had the 
right to take it over and purchase it any time, and pay him off. In the mean­
time he gave us a mortgage back for the full amount of the advances, and he 
was to give us a lease, so if the property was turned over to anybody else that 
lease would be possibly a continuing lease. In other words, we were practically 
getting a friendly landlord ; that is the way I looked at it. That was my first 
connection with the thing, and that is the principal'part of the story so far as 
I was concerned. I had practically nothing to do with it after that.

Q. I see that from what you tell us you had nothing whatever to do with 
the terms.—A. No, nothing whatever. \

Q. You know nothing whatever, I suppose, about Parisian real estate, and 
whether it was a wise or crazy thing?—A. Nothing of that at all.

Q. You were called in, I suppose, to put this in the best shape you could, 
under the circumstances.—A. With the limited knowledge we then had of the 
situation, yes.

Q. Then, did you give any advice to the President as to the legal right 
of the company under the terms, at all?—A. I said we could not make these 
arrangements at all unless we had the right to purchase, that it was an acquisi­
tion, so far as we were concerned.

Q. Just in order to get the information—and I am not referring now to the 
waters gone under the bridge, but to the future—what is your view as to the 
legal right of the Canadian National Railway Company to make capital com­
mitments outside of Canada?—A. I have not any doubt about that at all, that it 
has a legal right.

Q. It has a legal right?—A. Yes.
Q. On what do you base that view?—A. The question is, of-course, what 

is necessary for the purpose of the undertaking, the undertaking of any railway 
company. Under the Railway Act the company is not necessarily restricted to 
Canada. Its powers are derived under the Railway Act, which is not limited 
to Canada.

Q. Would you suggest there was any legal right to purchase a building of 
this size, when apparently the only use the Company can make of it is a 
comparatively small portion?—A. I take it the relative size is immaterial; it is 
a question of the right. In other words, we can build a station anywhere on our 
lines; we can also build a tremendously big station with a hotel in it, if we want 
to. There is no restriction as to size; there is no restriction on amount, so far 
as the position of the company is concerned.

Q. Supposing we get that clear. We have the Canadian National Railways 
Act of 1919?—A. Yes.

Q. Which confers certain statutory powers upon the company. Which is 
your idea, first, are these powers merely supplemental to the nearly one hundred 
subsidiary Acts? Are they merely subsidiary and ancillary to them, or do they 
take the place of the former statutory powers?—A. They certainly do not take 
the place of the former statutory powers. Where you amalgamate one com­
pany with the old companies, the new company has the aggregate of the powers 
of both companies.

Q. That is probably so as a general principle in amalgamating companies.— 
A. It says so in-the Act.

Q. I want to see just exactly what we have to do here in order to protect 
the Treasury, if it is thought wise that the public treasury ought to be protected. 
Of course, maybe the government does not think it is wise to protect the
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treasury, but in case it is thought wise that the treasury should be protected, do 
we have to look, in your view, past the Act of 1919 and find out what all the 
powers are under other Acts as well?—A. Yes, under the Railway Act, and we 
also have powers under the various other Acts. There is no doubt about that; 
each individual company has its own powers.

Q. It becomes necessary to review all that legislation.—A. Largely. Of 
course I have that all in my head.

Q. Yes, but unfortunately we have not always your head with us, and 
sometimes what your head is supposed to have said gets mixed when it reaches 
us.

Hon Mr. Graham : That is not at all personal, I hope.
Sir Henry Drayton : No, not at all. Mr. Ruel knows how he has been 

quoted in these cases. He knows very well the discussion we had in the House 
last year, and what was said as to legal opinions given.

The Chairman : You were not referring particularly to Mr Ruel?
Sir Henry Drayton : To anybody. Mr. Ruel is fortunate in one thing, and 

that is that he is not in the Department of Trade and Commerce.
Q. Coming back to the question under discussion, take the question of the 

right of bond issue. We have the right of bond issue of $75,000 per mile, under 
the legislation of 1919.—A. Yes.

Q. Over and above that we have the right of bond issue in all the subsidiary 
companies. It is your view that that $75,000 per mile is over and above that 
given to the subsidiary companies?—A. No.

Q. In that particular instance you would make an exception to ÿour general 
opinion?—A. There, of course, you see, you have to read this specific legis­
lation, because the specific legislation refers to the individual lines. For 
instance, suppose I have the right to build a road from A to B under a certain 
charter of the Canadian Northern, for instance, and I do not amalgamate that 
company. The power to issue bonds is still a Canadian Northern power and 
governed by the Canadian Northern Acts. On the other hand, with the 
Canadian National Railway Company, it has the power of $75,000 a mile in 
respect of all lines of railway which it controls or operates. In that case you 
have to look at the individual issues made' prior by the Canadian National Rail­
way Company, or its predecessors in title, and you have to take that and 
deduct it from the $75,000 per mile.

Q. In other words, in the particular instance legislation taking the place of 
former legislation decreed that all that can be done, in your view, by the 
system is to bond to an extent not exceeding $75,000 a mile irrespective of all 
powers contained in the original character?—rA. Precisely, and in Mr. Fielding’s 
Act of last year he laid down a further restriction.

Q. What he put in was simply that they could not be issued unless they 
first received tijc approval of the government. That is not very much of a 
protection.—A. No, not very much.

Q. Then you rely on the general wording of the Act in acquiring anything 
which is necessary for the Company’s undertaking.—A. Yes.

Q. That is what you rely upon?—A. Yes. I have the wording of the Act
here.

Q. You can give the section if you like; perhaps the committee would like 
to have it.—A. It is in the general powers of the companies coming under the 
Railway Act, contained in section 162, subsection 1 C of the Railway Act:

“ (c) purchase, take and hold of and from any person, any lands or 
other property necessary for the construction, maintenance and operation 
of the railway, and also alienate, sell or dispose of, any lands or property 
of the company which for any reason have become not necessary for the 
purposes of the railway;”
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That is the general power.
Q. And you think, under that pox^er, we could buy, if the management 

wanted to, offices in China?—A. It says, “purchase, take and hold of and from 
any person.” In the United States we have, I suppose, 500 leases of offices, all 
over the United States.

Q. If the Board so decided under that Act, your view would be that they 
could buy an office in China?—A. Quite.

Q. You do not think it is limited at all by the words that you there read 
as to the construction, maintenance and operation of the railway?—-A. No, 
because who is to decide what is for the purposes of the undertaking? Obviously 
the Board of Directors of the Company, and if the shareholders are not satisfied 
with them, they chuck them out.

Q. What do you think of the “just and generous” provision? Perhaps you 
would give us a written opinion on that.—A. The provision of “just and 
generous” does not apply to countries at all.

Q. I am not applying it in that way ; I am applying it to companies as such, 
and that is the exact reading of the statutory clause.—A. How would you apply 
the “just and generous” to this clause?

Q. The controlling words you read there.—A. I am afraid “just and gen­
erous” does not apply there.

Mr. Kyte: What doth it profit this committee to listen to these very learned 
gentlemen discusing obscure points of law?

The Chairman: I would suggest this, that the witness has given his opinion 
that the railway has the right to make extended investments.

Sir Henry Drayton : The words I am referring to are “necessary for the 
construction, maintenance and operation.”

The Witness: Yes; this is operation. What else is it?
Mr. Kyte: Mr. Ruel is the paid solicitor of Sir Henry Thornton and the 

Board, and I think Sir Henry and the Board were justified in accepting his 
opinion, even though it differs from that of Sir Henry Drayton.

Sir Henry Drayton : I do not know whether the House is going to feel 
comfortable if they know that this is going to enable the Board to purchase 
property anywhere they like. It may be that that is the view of the government, 
but we had better get a clear opinion.

The Chairman: We have the clear opinion of Mr. Ruel. Many of us are 
not lawyers, but is this the understanding of the witness, that under the general 
Railway Act, railway companies have the power to make extended invest­
ments?

The Witness: Yes.
By the Chairman:

Q. Is there anything in the Act incorporating the Canadian National Rail­
ways that restricts its powers?—A. Except with respect to lines of railway; that 
is the only case.

Q. You cannot buy other lines of railway, but you can buy lands, buildings, 
and so on?—A. (Reads) :

“ (c) purchase, take and hold of and from any person, any lands or 
other property necessary for the construction, maintenance and operation 
of the railway, and also alienate, sell or dispose of, any lands or property 
of the company which for any reason have become not necessary for the 
purposes of the railway;”

Q. You cannot buy other lines?—A. No.
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Q. Can you sell lines that you now, own ?—A. No, except with the consent 
of the Governor-in-Council.

By Sir Henry Drayton'.
Q. You distinguish between “property and railway”?—A. Unquestionably; 

that is the distinction.
Q. Because the system has been selling property.—A. Yes, but no lines of 

railway. I will just read you the clause which I put in the 1919 Act myself.
“With the approval 6f the Governor in Council, on the recommen­

dation of the Minister of Railways and Canals, agreements for any of 
purposes specified in sections three hundred and sixty-one and three 
hundred and sixty-four of the Railway Act may be entered into between 
the Company and any Company, now or hereafter comprised in the 
Canadian Northern System, or between the Company and His Majesty, 
or the Company and any other Railway Company approved by the Gov­
ernor in Council, or between any two or more of any such parties.”

This section of the Railway Act quoted there is from the old Act, not the 
one of 1919. This Act was passed in June 1919, so that would' be sections 151 
and 154 of the present Railway Act of 1919. These agreements referred to arc 
agreements for the purchase, lease, or other acquisition of railway lines, or for 
amalgamation, and can only be entered into with the approval of the Governor 
in Council upon the recommendation of the Minister of Railways. So if you 
want to buy or sell any part of the System, or buy any line from any other 
company, you have to go to the Minister of Railways; lie has tq recommend 
it to the Governor in Council, and the Governor in Council has to pass an order- 
in-council. There is no such restriction on ordinary property.

Q. If that be correct that purchase which we heard of, I think on Monday 
of the 12 miles of railway running to Bout de l’lsle would have to be approved 
oi by the Governor in Council first?—A. I made a gentleman’s agreement in 
that case. I simply went down and closed the agreement and told them it was 
subject to the approval of the Governor in Council, but I did not pay over a 
dollar until I got the Order in Council in my hand.

,By the Chairman:
Q. Summing up, then, your contention is that the railway was entirely within 

its legal powers in making that purchase?—A. No question about that.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Then, Mr. Ruel, did you ever see the option?—A. No, never.
Q. Aronovici did not produce any papers?—A. No.
Q. Do you know who gave the option?—A. No. He simply said, as I 

remember it, he either had an option or was going to obtain one; the idea he 
tried to give me was that no one else could buy it but himself.

Q. That is an idea that is very often given by people who want to make 
deals.—A. I put it down as “ hot air.”

Q. Then there is another legal question, which was debated in the House 
last. year. That is, as to the right of the System to give any guarantee to the 
Bank of Toronto in advancing the money. Did you give a legal opinion on that? 
—A. No. They did not give a guarantee, as a matter of fact; they merely 
made the deposit.

Q. Are you familiar with the file?—A. No.
Q. Supposing you look at it before you make that statement, and look at 

their letter of May 25, and tell me if that is not meant to be a guarantee.—A. 
What is the letter?
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Q. The letter to Mr. Carson, Manager of the Bank of Toronto.
By Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. While Major Bell is looking for that, may I ask a question? Did you 
not really draft that Act of 1919 yourself?—A. Sure.

Q. Then you know what was meant by it?—A. Absolutely, or at leastv I 
thought I did.

Sir Henry Drayton-: He certainly knows what he thought he meant.
Mr. Kyte: And there is no evidence that he did not think right.
Sir Henry Drayton: We will find out.
The Witness: This is the letter, and it does not seem to be a guarantee.

“ In connection with the advance made by your Bank of 38,232,161 
French francs ($2,608.330), to Arnold Aronovici, for which his note has 
been issued payable on demand at 6 per cent, funds have been deposited 
by the Canadian National Railways in a special account in the Mont­
real Branch of the Bank of Toronto in the sum of $2,608,330.

This money is not to be withdrawn from the Bank of Toronto until 
the note and interest thereon is paid. You are authorized at any time 
to call for the payment of the said advance with interest after giving 
the General Treasurer of the Canadian National Railways five days' 
notice of your purpose so to do, and if the principal of the said note is 
defaulted, you are empowered to apply the deposit to the liquidation of 
the defaulted principal. Any failure to pay the interest on the note is 
to be brought to our attention, but no part of the deposit is to be used 
for the discharge of this indebtedness.”

Q. I would just say to you that while it is a deposit it creates a limitation. 
It limits the right of the company so that it cannot draw against that deposit? 
—A. Surely. It is just collateral security.

Q. What do you say as to the company’s legal right to do that?—A. I do 
not say they have not the power to do that. I would not go so far as to say that 
unquestionably they had power to put up security for anything.

Q.- Yes?—A. Yes.
Q. You want us to take just as you state it or would you li,ke to limit that? 

—A. Possibly it is rather broad.
Q. It is so broad as to be ridiculous and I think on reflection you will see 

it.—A. That is entirely within the powers of the company.
Mr. Kyte: That is what everybody inferred, except our friend Sir Henry 

Drayton.
Sir Henry Drayton : The Chief Whip is here to help you out and say that 

the English language does not mean what the English language sayS.
Witness : We could not put up money for a banking purpose.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. What is your view as to the right of the company to enter into obliga­

tions, capital obligations, which must charge their shareholders, the Govern­
ment, without the Government’s consent?—A. There is nothing in the Act as !• 
drew it. It puts no restriction on the company in that particular. So far as 
legal rights are concerned there is no restriction. So far as moral rights are con­
cerned the Govenment should be consulted.

Q. Do you think it would be wise to make a little amendment to that Act? 
—A. My attitude is always to tell the Govenment everything, especially every­
thing of any importance.
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Q. Your attitude would be that the Government ought to be a party to any 
new capital commitments ?—A. They should at least know about it.

Q. A party to the matter, knowing about the matter, I mean before they 
are committed. The Government surely ought to be told what is contemplated 
and given the opportunity of saying, “No”.—A. Certainly, as regards every im­
portant transaction, but when you speak of capital commitments you are going 
a little far too because the building of a station is a capital commitment. We 
might decide to tear flown the building comprising the station to-morrow at 
London and put up another one.

Q. I think you ought to, in the interest of the travelling public, tear down 
the station and I think if you put some of this money in there it would be much 
better for the Canadian people?—A. I would also agree with that.

The Chairman: Mr. Ruel hardly has charge of the matter of policy in 
regard to all these things.

Sir Henry Drayton: I am just trying to find out where Mr. Ruel wants 
this to go. He wants to qualify the capital commitments. We have a qualifi­
cation as to the stations, which, I think, is pretty well looked after, but apart 
from stations, what else?

By the Chairman:
Q. Is the company restricted in any respect other than that of the pur­

chase of land or the sale of land? Are they restricted in any other way beyond 
the power perhaps to make the financial arrangements?—A. No.

The Chairman: It seems to me that would cover it.
Mr. Kyte : That does not suit Sir Henry (Drayton).
Sir Henry Drayton : After that Mr. Ruel said that in his view the Govern­

ment should be consulted.
The Chairman : But not under the law. They are not obliged to. That is 

a matter of opinion.
Sir Henry Drayton : It is more than a mater of opinion. It is a matter 

of what should be done. If the man who was in charge of the legal end of this 
thing has no opinion it is all right.

Mr. Kyte: He has opinions as to the law but not as to policy.
Witness: I said the Government should be consulted in all important 

transactions and I still stick to that.
The Chairman: Very good.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. The company had no liquid assets of its own?—A. Yes, it had.
Q. What?—A. Tolls, rates and fares, coming in every day.
Q. They are insufficient to discharge their obligations?—A. It does not 

change the legal situation. You use your liquid assets for the payment of your 
wages. It is the same thing.

Q. It is the same thing, using your liquid assets for the payment of your 
wages, as it is in purchasing the Scribe Hotel?—A. In one case they would have 
consulted the Government. In the other case it is not necessary.

Q. Your answer was not quite correct. It is not the same according to 
you.—A. I am just making a slight variation. It is the company’s money, not­
withstanding the fact that there is a deficit. If we were an ordinary share­
holder of the company the Board would act exactly as the C.P.R. Board would 
act. and the C.P.R. Board would not consult the shareholders in a case of that 
kind. I do not think Mr. Robb, of the C.P.R., would let anything go if anything
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had not been passed by the shareholders. He is there for the purpose of seeing 
that the shareholders money is not switched?—A. I do not know what the 
the meaning of “ switched ” is.

Q. We will take the Home Bank deficit. That was switching of one account 
to another account for one purpose, namely, to held an indigent bank.—A. 
That I know nothing about.

Q. Would you not call that a switching of the funds.
Major Bell: I object to that statement.
Hon. Mr. Graham: That has been investigated by another commission.
Sir Henry Drayton: It was put in their account one day and taken out 

almost the next. It was put there, where it could deceive the Government and 
must have deceived it. It was put there when it could enable the dividend to be 
paid and the dividend was paid.

Major Bell: You will know that money was not used for dividend 
purpose. The deposits are not used for dividend purposes and the Home Bank 
advertised they were going to pay their interest before that.

Sir Henry Drayton : The meeting was held after that deposit.
Major Bell: It was advertised in the Canada Gazette before that deposit 

was made.
Sir Henry Drayton : The real thing that was found in connection with 

the Home Bank inquiry, if anything has been found, was that the deposits were 
made use of for the purpose of-----

Mr. Kyte : That is entirely out of order.
The Chairman : That is entirely out of order.
Mr. Kyte: The Home Bank investigation took place in another court.
The Chairman: I have no desire to rule out of order anything that is 

pertinent to this discussion.
Sir Henry Drayton : The Chief Whip asks for a ruling. Will the Chair 

make it?
Mr. Kyte: I have suggested this is not a matter pertinent to the present 

inquiry. The evidence is there. Why thresh it over again.
The Chairman : I know of no connection between that question and the 

matter of the purchasing of the Paris property.
Sir Henry Drayton : The Chairman rules it out of order. I want to 

know where I am.
The Chairman: Yes, I do.
Sir Henry Drayton: You rule it out of order. Very good.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Taking the removal of $2,608,000 from the bank’s regular account, in 

the Bank of Montreal, and taking it for the purposes of this deal, what do you 
call that? A switching of the bank deposit?—A. It is not a question of policy 
for me to decide that. N

Q. I see. It is not a question of policy, so we do not want to say any­
thing about that. Can you tell me, as a matter of fact, what deficit was made 
at the end of the month in the main account in the Bank of Montreal by 
taking that $2,608,000 out?—A. The finances do not affect the legal department. 
I have not the remotest idea now what the effect would be.

Q. Can you tell me that?—A. I could not.
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Q. If the result would be as I think the result is, as already shown by 
answers given in the House to decree a substantial overdraft in the Bank of 
Montreal, is your attitude just the same?—A. Absolutely clear as to the power 
to overdraw. I am only dealing with the legal rights.

Q. In your view this is legal to some extent, because sometimes statutes 
are construed as rights, are construed, having regard to the objects of the Act. 
What, in your opinion, was the idea of the Act of 1919? Was it not rather that 
the railway should be administered in a businesslike manner at the smallest 
expense to the country, revenues applied to the payment of operating expenses 
and wages and the like, rather than that those revenues could be applied in the 
purchase of new capital assets?—A. I suppose the answer to that would be 
the answer given by Parliament as stated in the recital which says :

“ Whereas His Majesty on behalf of the Dominion of Canada has 
acquired control of the Canadian Northern Railway Company and of 
the various Constituent and Subsidiary Companies comprising the Cana- 

. dian Northern System, aS specified in the First Schedule to this Act, and it 
is expedient to provide for the incorporation of a company under which the 
railways, works and undertakings of the companies comprised in the 
Canadian Northern System may be consolidated, and together with the 
Canadian Government Railways operated as a national railway system.”

That is the answer.
Q. Taking your answer, is your idea that the railways, having in view legis­

lation, ought to be run so that their current receipts would be employed in pay­
ment of current liabilities or that their receipts should be employed for the pur­
pose of extending the operations of the system?—A. That is a financial question. 
I do not think that is a legal question.

Q. It goes to the very meat of the matter?—A. It is a policy of finance. 
There are people who are paid to do that kind of thing and I do not interfere 
with them.

Q. Who would those people be?—A. The President, and Vice-president of 
finance.

Q. At present, as a matter of law, is it possible to withdraw large sums of 
money from the banks of the system in a new matter without the consent and 
approval of the directors?—A. Yes.

Q. It is?—A. Yes.
Q. We had it from Sir Henry Thornton that the first and I hope Mr. Kyte 

will listen to me now carefully and say if it is wrong, because if it is wrong I 
want it put right—that the directors knew about this matter was when the case 
came up in Parliament in June of last year. I think he said that. In your view 
was it or was it not necessary for Sir Henry (Thornton) to consult his Board 
before committing his Board to this new capital expenditure?—A. It was not 
'necessary but it should be.

Q. It was not necessary but it should be?—A. Yes.
Q. What amendment would you suggest for the purpose of curing that 

situation?—A. I would,amend the by-laws of the company so that any expen­
diture of say, over $100,000 should be approved firs£ by the Board or the execu­
tive committee. The Executive Committee is simply the same Board in a 
smaller quorum.

,Q. Do you not think it also should go to the extent of controlling the hand­
ling for deposit purposes of the moneys of the system?—A. That is a matter 
for the Vice-president of finance. I would take his recommendation on that 
matter preferably. I never butt in pn another department if I can avoid it.
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Q. Then Sir Henry (Thornton) told you and he told us that he had some 
people in mind who would take the property over?—A. Yes, he said he had 
some people in mind.

Q. Did you get any definite information as to that?—A. No, it was just a 
casual remark passed at that time as a reason given why we had the right to pur­
chase.

Q. Just a casual remark?—A. Yes.
Q. Did you at any time draw up any papers in connection with anybody 

else taking it over?—A. Except in connection with the Prudential Trust Com­
pany, of which Major Bell has spoken.

Q. We are familiar with that?—A. That is the only one.
Q. You had nothing with any New York gentleman or anything of that 

sort?—A. No.
Q. That is all I will trouble you with.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. What is your connection with the Canadian National?—A. Vice-presi­

dent and general counsel.
Q. How long have you occupied such a position?—A. The Vice-presidency 

since the first of 1923; general counsel since about 1920. I have been with the 
Canadian Northern since 1903 but then I wTas assistant in the early days and 
went up through the lines.

Q. As general counsel for the Canadian National from the time of its incep­
tion?—A. Yes, since the Government took it over.

Q. In such capacity you advise them in all matters submitted to you?— 
A. All legal matters, and sometimes I butt in on others.

By the Chairman:
Q. You are the Vice-president?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. The other day Sir Henry Drayton read a letter in which he had referred 

to a sinking fund?—A. Yes.
Q. Would you please explain the point which was made by Sir Henry 

(Drayton) on that occasion?—A. Well, that was this Aronovici letter, which I 
dealt with in the first part of my evidence, and I used the words “ sinking fund,” 
in there because Aronovici dictated it in that way. He was referring to the 
$25,000 payment on account of the sinking fund, but we did not treat it seriously 
because it did not amount to anything. I did not pay .much attention to it 
after we got the “ option to purchase ” clause put in. The whole advaantage of 
the matter was in our right to purchase. Nothing else mattered at all.

Q. No sinking fund entered into the transaction at all?—A. No sinking fund 
entered into the transaction at all. I did not take the $25,000 as being worth 
anything at all.

Q. So the mare’s nest that Sir Henry ( Drayton) thought he discovered in 
that letter turned out to be nothing but an ant hiil?—A. Nothing at all.

Sir Henry Drayton : Are you an authority on mares’ nests or ant hills?
Mr. Kyte: There is some comparison that might be drawn between Sir 

Henry (Drayton) and that particular body.
By Mr. Kyte:

Q. Who was the solicitor of the Canadian National Railways in Paris, 
the legal adviser?—A. The solicitor was Mr. Archibald.

Q. What are Mr. Archibald’s Initials?—A. S. J. He was selected by 
Linklaters. Linklaters are.our London agents and have been for a number of 
years.
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Witness: I am looking for that clause. I do not think I can see it.
Sir Henry Drayton : I do not think it makes much difference any way.

By the Chairman:
Q. If there was no sinking fund you could not forfeit it?—A. The only 

thing I was interested in was to see that the purchase price was properly stated 
and that the mortgage form and drawn up by proper legal men in France. 
This did not amount tp anything at all, except the “ option to purchase ” 
clause.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. There are one or two questions here: Look at question No. 1 in the 

Orders of the Day of the House of Commons.—A. Oh yes, that is the lease at 
Prince Rupert.

Q. I will put the questions as they are here.
The Chairman : .Have these any connection with the Paris deal?
Mr. Kyte: No, but since Mr. Ruel is here I would like to get some infor­

mation from him.
The Chairman: I think he better finish, if there are any other questions 

on the Paris subject.
By Mr. Mackinnon:

Q. Is it usual to provide that the outgoings should be paid by the vendor 
in an option like that? The point is, should not the man who sold to the 
National Railways have paid for these tenants who had rights there?—A. It 
depends on the bargain.

Q. But should it not be put in the bargain?—A. It would depend on the 
wording of Aronovici’s option, which I have never seen.

Q. It is no difference what his bargain was?—A. We were to take him over 
and pay him off, paying off his note and paying off his mortgage.

Q. And pay the outgoings provided they were reasonable?—A. That is left 
to Major Bell, to decide what were the outgoings but we would not expect 
Aronovici to suffer any loss in connection with the transfer fees. We want to be 
reasonable.

Q. Would you not look into his terms of purchase before you would draw a 
bargain for the C.N.R.? Would you not look into his terms, that all the tenants 
would get possession at a certain time on-else they would be out and give that 
claim up?—A. Damages should.be provided for and charged to the man who 
sold. If Aronovici were selling us there would be no question about that, but 
he was acting as our agent, with the right, on our part, to take him over and 
pay him off.

Q. If he were your agent would it not be your duty to see that you were 
getting the property free from all claims by tenants?—A. The original letter 
which I have read over once or twice, that is the letter of the 30th of April, 
specified certain payments which were to be made by the company for the 
purpose, if I remember rightly, of covering just those same things.

Q. Is there something in the letter?—A. I find this was the letter which I 
read, April 30th,

“ You are to acquire the property in your own name for amounts 
not to exceed the following:

(a) 30,000,000 francs for the building and lot.
(b) 12 per cent on this amount for the taxes payable to the Gov­

ernment of France;
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(c) 3,600,000 francs for removal of existing tenants;
(d) 300,000 francs (estimated) for fees and commission;
(e) $50,000 (estimated) for sundry expenses ;

Making an estimated total of 37,500,000 francs.”
Q. You provide for that in that agreement?—A. Yes.
Q. I just wanted to bring that- out.—A. Yes.
Q. 3,600,000 francs?—A. Yes.
Q. Did' it exceed that?—A. Major Bell is the one who handled that.
Q. Did it exceed that, the damage paid to the tenants?
Major Bell: Yes. .

By Mr. Mackihnon:
Q. It was an estimate made, more or less on that particular day?—A.

Yes.
By Major Bell:

Q. 3,700,000 francs. The vendor would not be entitled to anything in 
excess of that?—A. He was to acquire the property in our name and we were 
trying to limit him, at that time, to the amount he should be permitted to 
expend in the acquisition of the properly. He ran over it to the extent of about 
100,000 francs.

Major Bell: He ran considerably over what we had to pay and we refused 
to pay it. That was included in the 1,735,000 francs.

By Mr. Mackinnon:
Q. Have you the 1919 Act there?—A. Yes.
Q. What is clause 12, clause 14, the one that deals with control?—A. Clause 

12 relates to the power to transfer to the company the stock or controlling 
interest of His Majesty in any railway company.

Q. The Board shall have the control of the management of the roads?— 
A. I do not know what section that is. You are probably referring to Sec­
tion 11.

Q. Would you read that?—A. (Reads) :
“The Governor in Council may from time to time by Order in 

Council entrust to the Company the management and operation of any 
lines of railway or parts thereof, and any property or works of whatsoever 
description, or interests therein, and any powers, rights or privileges over 
or with respect to any railways, properties or works, or interests therein, 
which may be from time to time vested in or owned, controlled or 
occupied by His Majesty, or such part or parts thereof, rights or interests 
therein, as may be designated in any Order in Council, upon such terms 
and subject to such regulations and conditions as the Governor in Council 
may from time to time decide; such management and operation to con­
tinue during the pleasure of the Governor in Council and to be subject to 
termination or variation from time to time in whole or in part by the 
Governor in Council. Any such Order in Council shall be laid before 
Parliament within ten days after the opening of the next ensuing session, 
or if Parliament be sitting at the time such Order in Council is passed, 
then within ten days from the date of said Order in Council.”

Q. What I am coming to is the giving of control of the Board.—A. “Entrust 
the management and operation.”

Q. That is the wording. —A. “The management and operation.”
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Q. These are the two words?—A. Yes. That is all that has been entrusted 
to us.

Q. That is a legal point I would like to know. Under the “management 
' and operation” would you include the purchase of a hotel like this?—A. No. 

This only relates to the Intercolonial. The officers cannot acquire anything 
under the Crown nor can we construct anything for the Crown.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. That would refer to the Transcontinental Government Railways?—A. It 

only refers to Government railways.
By Mr. Mackinnon:

Q. Management and operation or Government railways?—A. Yes.
Q. What clause applies to the management of Government railways?—A.

• That comes in under Clause 11 of the previous Railway Act, except wherein 
certain provisions shall apply to the company in its undertakings.

Q. When you speak of having the same powers as the Canadian Northern 
and the Grand Trunk, is that vested in His Majesty or is it vested in the 
Canadian National Railway?—A. In so far as the Canadian National Railway 
Company is concerned, it is vested in the Canadian National Railway Company. 
The scheme in the Act is this: The title to the Intercolonial and the Transcon­
tinental and all the Government railways is vested in the Crown. We do not 
want to give these properties to the Canadian National, so we only give them 
the powers of operation and management. We left the title where it stood. The 

\ Canadian National actually owns the old Grand Trunk because it has been 
amalgamated with it. All the properties of the old Grand Trunk are vested in 

I the Canadian National by amalgamation. The Government Railways was not 
i so. They are based in the grant, and all we do is to act as agents for them.

By the Chairman:
Q. That includes the old C.N.R.?—A. No, the old C.N.R. runs on its own 

basis.
By Mr. Mackinnon:

Q. Under that interpretation you cannot buy, say, on the Intercolonial, 
an hotel?—A. Not unless we got the power from them.

Q. So this old Government railway was under a different management?—A. 
They are under our control for operation and management because we are acting 
as general managers, as it were, of this railway. We cannot sell anything qr buy 
anything for them or make a capital expenditure for them. That is controlled 
by the Minister of Railways under the Department of Railways and Canals Act.

Q. But, as the Canadian National organization, you have to pay no capital? 
j —A. No.

Q. You are simply acting as trustee?—A. Yes.
Q. Then you may have the legal right, by the assignment of this power of 

the C.N.R. or the Grand Trunk, to buy a hotel or acquire property, but is that 
not limited by the power whereby you are trustees only ; you are holding it in 

I trust for the Government?—A. No. You must distinguish there between the 
Canadian Government Railways and the property invested in the company itself. 

| As to the property invested in the company itself, the Canadian National, or the 
old Grand Trunk, have full powers of a company.

Q. By assignment to you?—A. No.
Q. It comes to you by statute?—A. Yes.
Q. All the powers arc assigned to you?—A. Allocated.
Q. You have that, as a Canadian National organization?—A. Yes.
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Q. As the Canadian National, you paid nothing for it?—A. Oh, no-----
Q. The Canadian National has paid nothing?—A. The company did not. 

The company has the operating end of it, under its powers.
Q. It pays for this power—it has a charter?—A. The powers are granted 

to it by Parliament.
Q. In relation to a matter of this kind you act as if you were a corpora­

tion, with shareholders, and with your shares paid up, as a distinct railway cor­
poration?—A. Which we are, yes.

Q. And you claim to be that?—A. Yes, except as to the Government rail­
way.

Q. There are two managements now?—A. Yes, two kinds of management; 
one is our company management-----

Q. I thought you were simply trustee for the Government, and would go 
into no large capital expenditure without the authority of the Government?— 
A. There is no such distinction.

Q. You are simply trustees, not the owners?—A. Wre are a legal entity 
for the purposes of management.

Q. And the trust is acquired----- A. It is always the shareholders, in this
case the Government.

Mr. Gauvreau: This is all very interesting-----
The Witness: This is a legal fight we are having.
Mr. Mackinnon: WTould you like me to quit?
Mr. Gauvreau: Oh, no.
The Chairman: Are there any further questions on the Paris property?
Mr. Gauvreau: It seems to me we should get some facts.
Mr. Mackinnon: I thought 1 was getting facts. These are legal facts. 

That is what we are here for.
The Chairman: Well} we want to make progress-----
Mr. Mackinnon: I thought I was making progress. I understand that 

very differently. If I ask the Minister of Railways for a branch of railway for 
the Maritime Provinces, I see, by his interpretation, I would not get it.

The Witness: I would haire to build a Canadian National branch.
Mr. Mackinnon: YYu could build branches for the Canadian National—
The Witness: Yes.
Mr. Mackinnon: That should not be. There should be no distinction.
The Witness: It is a question of detail.
Mr. Kyte: Just one question, Mr. Chairman.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Referring to the selling of lots at Prince Rupert, owned by the Cana­

dian National. Did they sell a large block of lots, numbering upward of 1,000, 
about a year ago, and if so, how many?—A. I don’t know how many. I know 
they disposed of a number of lots in Prince Rupert.

Q. Was the price $7 per lot, or if not, what was the price?—A. I don’t 
know what the price was, but the situation was this: The property in Prince 
Rupert was assessed at a very large assessment. We appealed against the 
assessment for a number of years with the intention of getting it reduced, but 
were unsuccessful. We did. not consider the property of much greater value— 
rather a lesser value than the actual taxation—less than the assessment against 
it. We tried to give that property to the city, to have them take the property 
in discharge of the taxes. They said no, they would not do that; the taxes

[Mr. Gérard Ruel.3
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were assessed against the company, and we had no remedy, no redress. We 
said, “ Will you take the property and sell it to anybody to discharge the 
taxes?” and they said, “ No, you have to pay the taxes.” We, therefore, paid 
all the taxes, and then transferred the property to Duthie. If the city wants 
to get that property to-morrow we will give it to them; we will get it back and 
hand it over to them, but we do not want to pay taxes on property that should 
not be assessed.

Q. You take the ground that the property should not be assessed at all?— 
A. No. I do not know the exact amount because I did not attempt to keep the 
figures. We say the property is not worth the amount of the taxes, which is 
about $5,000. We say, “ We will give you the bally property; take the whole 
thing,” and they say, “ No, we don’t want it; we want you to pay your taxes.” 
You see how helpless we are, but we say, “ All right, we will put it in the hands 
of Mr. Duthie until you come to your senses.”

Q. Were the taxes paid?—A. Yes, I had to pay all the taxes in arrear in 
full. This (indicating) is only this year’s taxes, and if they want the property 
we will transfer it to them, but we do not want to pay taxes on value that is 
not there.

Q. Does Mr. Duthie hold the title to these lots in fee?—A. Yes, as our 
• agent there. We can take it back any time we like.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Is it your understanding that the company—speaking of the railway 

company—is undertaking now to have a conference with the provincial treasurers 
all over Canada, where the company’s lines run, to arrive at some basis of taxa­
tion of the company’s property?—A. Yes.

Q. Not including the Government Railway, of course. Is that the case?— 
A. That is the scheme.

Q. You hope to get at a clear solution of this?—A. Yes. Each province 
now taxes us for provincial taxes on the basis of their own; some have a high 
basis and some have a low. The municipalities also tax us individually in a 
greater number of the provinces, although in Manitoba they do not. What I 
want to do is to have a conference between the Government, ourselves, and 
all the provincial treasurers with a view of adjusting all the taxes on a reason­
able basis, because my theory is that it is our duty to bo fair, but we have 
no right to be generous with the Government’s money, and we do not think 
one. province should tax us more than any other province. Now. in this case 
at Prince Rupert : we would like to discuss that with the Provincial Treasurer 
of British Columbia, and we will ,ask him, “ Will you take care of the taxes 
in the municipalities?” and if so, that will take care of the matter there. We 
would like all the provinces to come in and discuss the question as to whether 
they can take care of the provincial taxes, or as to whether we must continue. 
Y e would like to pay them in a lump sum on the same basis in each province. 
That is what we want to do.

By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. That refers to the railway undertaking, as such?—A. Yes.
Q. That does not apply to vacant lots for sale?—A. That applies to all 

railway property.
Q. There is a great distinction between railway property, as used for that 

purpose, and lots held for speculative purposes—a different method of handling 
by the clerks in the various municipalities?—A. Quite right. We would like 
to arrive at a scheme respecting both classes of property.

Q. I do not see any reason why the Government should hold land for 
building purposes on a different basis to an individual?—A. We do not want 
them on a different basis; we want them to arrive at a fair conclusion.

[Mr. Gérard Ruel.l
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Q. I think you do need it on a different basis. There are two things : one 
is railway property, which is used for the purpose of the undertaking—A. Yes.

Q. I take it this man Duthie is your agent?—A. Yes.
Q. Just one of your people?—A. Yes.
Q. And it really makes no difference, the property being in his name?— 

A. Yes.
Q. If he is your agent, you are still liable for the taxes?—A. Yes; they 

can sell it to-morrow.
Q. They can bill you for the taxes?—A. They can bill Duthie; it is not 

in our name.
Q. Duthie is your agent?—A. Yes, according to law.
Q. He is only a stool pigeon there?—A. Practically a stool pigeon; it is 

postponing the payment of these taxes until we can talk it over. We will 
adjust that.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. I suppose, as a matter of law, Mr. Ruel, if they- wanted to they could 

transfer this land to the Crown ?—A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. Graham: I would be opposed to that.
Sir Henry Drayton : I thought we were to adjourn early.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I want to ask one other question—
Sir Henry Drayton : There was an understanding we were to adjourn 

for the Conservative caucus. Now if caucuses do not count—we were advised 
fairly all around that there was a Conservative caucus at 11.30. If caucuses 
are not to count—

The Chairman: Sir Henry, I am very much surprised to hear you make 
that remark. The Chair certainly had no desire to ignore your caucus. You 
were making your examination at the very moment—

Sir Henry Drayton : 1 did not want to delay the Committee unless the 
Committee wanted to have itself delayed.

The Chairman: I would be very sorry to have Sir Henry think that was 
intentional on the part of the Chair.

Mr. Kyte : I can say very frankly that I did not know there was a 
Conservative caucus this morning.

The Chairman: Sir Henry spoke to me about it yesterday, but when 
he was going on with his examination—

Hon. Mr. Graham : It would have been a shame to disturb him.
Sir Henry Drayton: Very well, as long as we have the same rule all 

round.
The Chairman : It was entirely inadvertent, I assure you. Shall we 

adjourn now?
Sir Henry Drayhon : There is one way we_can materially hasten things. 

If the accounts I asked for yesterday, the monthly statement, could be given 
to me this afternoon, I might be able to cut out a great deal of talk here.

The Chairman : Can we have those?
Major Bell: Do you want to see these this afternoon? If you like, you 

could go over these accounts with Mr. Henry this afternoon, Sir Henry 
(Drayton).

Sir Henry Dray’ton: Yes. I can perhaps save half a day.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Are you through with Mr. Ruel?
The witness discharged.
The Committee adjourned.

[Mr. Gérard Ruel.]
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Committee Room 429,
House of Commons,

Wednesday, June 25, 1924.
The Select Standing Committe on National Railways and Shipping met at 

10 30 o’clock a.m., Mr. W. D. Euler, M.P.. Chairman, Presiding.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, if you will come to order; we have a quorum. 

We had proposed to go on with the accounts but I am informed we have a 
gentleman here this morning who is prepared to give us some further information 
with regard to the purchase of the property in Paris. I do not like to go on in the 
absence of Sir Henry Drayton. What is the pleasure of the Committee? Do you 
wish to go on with the examination of the witness or go on with the accounts.

Mr. Stewart : Could we take up a few more accounts and then revert to the 
Scribe matter?

The Chairman: Then we will go on with the accounts. Mr. Rosevear is 
here. Now, I do not know just what particular procedure you want to follow in 
connection with this. We had discussed pretty well the summary on page 5. 
Following that there is the report under the various headings. Do you want to 
go on with those or go right into the figures? We have on page 6 some inform­
ation with regard to gross earnings, operating expenses, and so on.

Hon. Mr. Graham: Are those not really the details of what appears on 
page 5?

The Chairman: Yes. I suppose it is in the nature of comment of what 
appears on the following pages.

Mr. Stewart: We were on page 19 when we adjourned the other day,—the 
details of Maintenance of Way and Structures.

The Chairman: Shall we go through this report in some sort of a systematic 
way from the beginning? Do you want to examine the balance sheet, the assets 
and liabilities? That appears on pages 14 and 15. Then we could go on with the 
profit and loss statement, and the income statement just as it appears in the full 
report. I think we ought to go on from the beginning and have some sort of 
continuity.

Hon. Mr. Graham : We want to get through this week, that is sure. When 
I left yesterday you were discussing the question of maintenance of way and 
structures, to get some information on those. Those were questioned in the 
House. The accuracy—perhaps that is the wrong word-—not the accuracy oi 
figures, but the apparent fact that there was less expended on the maintenance of 
way and maintenance of equipment than there was the year before, and the 
reasons were being given yesterday when I left.

Mr. Kyte: I think Sir Henry Thornton finished that up pretty well. Sir 
Henry Drayton asked for the monthly statement of income and expenditure 
saying that by so doing he might shorten the proceedings.

The Chairman: That discussion came about directly in this way, as I 
recollect it: we were looking at page 5, the summary of expenses, and the first 
item was maintenance of way and structures. We discussed that in a general 
way and then went on with the details on page 19. If you want to finish,that, 
well and good, and then we could go back to the other, maintenance of equipment, 
and discuss that in detail. And then on to “Traffic” and “Transportation , 
just as it appears in the record.

Major Bell: Sir Henry (Drayton) went over all these monthly statements 
yesterday afternoon with Mr. Henry.

The Chairman : Are you satisfied with what we have had on maintenance 
of way and structures?
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Mr. Stewart : I was quite satisfied with the statement of Sir Henry 
Thornton regarding the results that might be secured from this smaller expend­
iture on maintenance of . right of ways, but there are some other items on page 
19, coming under that general heading “Maintenance of Way and Structures”, 
which I thnk should be further explained. I might say that the only thought I 
had in mind was as to whether the expenditure of a lesser sum during the last 
year might not reflect in the years to follow, the year perhaps immediately 
succeeding and other years, and they would be necessarily increased by lesser 
expenditures in any one year. It might make a better showing for one year, but 
show a greater deficit in the years to follow.

The Chairman : Do you mean the following year there would be a greater 
expenditure necessitated, because they did not keep it up to the mark in one 
particular year?

Major Bell: Sir Henry (Thornton) answered that quite fully.
Mr. Stewart: I was satisfied so far as the items we took, ties, rails, ballast 

and elevated structures, but there are a score of other items here, and I think 
the majority of them show a decrease.

Major Bell: Have you any particular one in mind?
Mr. Stewart: I had several in mind. I did not mark them here, so I will 

have to look them up again. “Tunnels and Subways” is the first one-----
Major Bell: Mr. Brown is on your right, the Chief Engineer of Main­

tenance, and he will be glad to answer any questions you have in connection 
with that.

Mr. Stewart: I notice the tunnels and subways are about 30 per cent or a 
little more, than the previous year.

Mr. Henry: That is a smaller amount.
Mr. Stewart: For my information, can you tell me this; does that from 

year to year vary in a proportion something like that?
Mr. Brown: This expenditure is small for tunnels and subways, and it 

varies from year to year, but it represents a condition that is quite general.
Mr. Stewart : I would take that to be satisfactory.
The Chairman : I notice a very great decrease, a reduction of about 50 per 

cent in the item of maintenance of yard tracks and other facilities.
Mr. Henry: That is by reason of the fact that in the previous year this 

was an inter-company charge, which has been eliminated this year.
Mr. Stewart: Another item is grain elevators. It is not a large difference, 

but there is a considerably lesser expenditure.
Mr. Brown : That maÿ be explained by saying that a number of these 

elevators which have been owned by the company have been leased by private 
companies, such as certain large elevators at Fort William, and they undertook 
to make these charges under the lease.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Would that apply to the elevators in the Montreal 
Harbour?

Mr. Brown : We have nothing to do with that. That was sold to the 
Harbour Commissioners.

Mr. Stewart: That is, there are fewer elevators that are under the control 
of the management of the railway?

Mr. Brown : Yes.
Mr. Stewart : Item 247 ; “Telegraph and Telephones.” There is $100,000 

less expenditure-----
Mr. Henry: That was a general increase.
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Mr. Stewart : Item 272; “Removing Snow, Ice and Sand.” That is a con­
siderable increase. That is a seasonable condition.

Mr. Brown: That is an exceptional condition that accrued in the Atlantic 
region last year.

Mr. Henry: We can take these up one by one, if you desire.
Mr. ICyte: Item 274; “Injuries to Persons.” What liability does that 

indicate? Who can answer that? Was that actions brought against them or 
gratuities, or what is it?

Major Bell: Mr. Henry will give you all that,
Mr. Henry: That is item 274?
Mr. Brown: (To Mr. Henry). I think you have a memo on that.
Mr. Henry: There is an increase of $85,000 on the western region, heavier 

payments having been made through the Compensation Board of Manitoba, 
Alberta, and British Columbia; payments to 11 employees amounted to $45,000 
and $12,000 was paid covering administration expenses of Workmen’s Com­
pensation Boards of Manitoba and British Columbia for 1921 and 1922.

Mr. Kyte: It is $316,000; that represents your contribution to the Work­
men’s Compensation Boards of the various provinces?

Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Galwreau : Now, item 235; “Shops and Engine Houses.” There is an 

increase. Does that mean new shops or new machinery?
Mr. Henry: No. This is maintenance. That is the proportion chargeable 

to maintenance, but the shops and engine houses come in periodically ; they are 
long-lived structures which come in periodically, and during that year I think 
were heavier than the previous year. I can give you a list of the specific places 
where these increases took place, if you want it. There is an increase on the 
Grand Trunk Western lines, due to heavy repairs to shops and engine houses, 
particularly at Battle Creek, Durand, Saginaw, Jackson, Port Huron, Milwaukee 
and Grand Haven. On the central region there were none.

Mr. Galwreau : That is what I wanted.
The Chairman: There is a heavy increase under “ Insurance.”
Mr. Henry: That is largely due to the fact that under the old system there 

was no insurance carried upon the property—perishable property of the Canadian 
Government Railways. This year it has been included in the ordinary way.

Hon. Mr. Graham : But this is really paid into our own insurance fund?
Major Bell: Perhaps we had better explain that the insurance for both 

fire>and marine is carried by the railway itself; every month so much is deducted 
and put into a fund in cash and against that fund we charge out all our fire 
losses, and comparing 1923 with 1922, when we carried a greater portion of oui 
insurance in outside companies, we made a saving of over $1,000,000, but that 
is not reflected in the surplus ; it is reflected in the surplus of the fire fund.

Mr. Henry: That is correct.
Mr. Stewart : What arrangement was there between the Government 

and the Canadian National Board regarding the fire losses on the Government- 
owned railways operated by the Canadian National?

Major Bell: We charged the premium, and deposited it in the fund of 
the Government-owned railway, just'the same as the National. Any loss is 
paid for out of the fire fund, and a surplus, if any, is Credited to the Government 
railway in the fund. This is divided as between the company—

The Chairman: There is no actual transfer of money?
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Major Bell: No, we have to have cash, because if we did not do that, that 
money would lapse and we would have to come to Parliament for a vote. 
To run the insurance fund properly we practically give it to the Government, 
because we invest it in Government bonds, and there is a small committee of the 
Board who from time to time check over all the investments of the Financial 
Department.

The Chairman: How much of a surplus have you in that fund?
Major Bell: Roughly speaking between $3,000,000 and $4,000,000.
Mr. Milne: Is the Merchant Marine Insurance carried in the same way?
Major Bell: In the same way. There are a few policies which have not 

lapsed, but which will lapse in a few months, and before the end of 1924 it will 
all be carried in our own fund.

Mr. Stewart : With regard to the Merchant Marine; how long has this 
been in effect?

Major Bell: This was put into effect with the new Board. When Sir 
Henry (Thornton) first came out the matter was taken up and was dealt with 
by, I think, the Board Meeting of February, 1923. In the meantime, we 
renewed our insurance that was lapsing on December 31st, 1922, a month at a 
time, until the policy was determined by the Board, and they determined to 
carry their own insurance.

Mr. Stewart: Was that $1,000,000 you refer to part of the general insur­
ance you carried on the Marine—

Major Bell: Both. It is in the Annual Report.
Mr. Stewart : Does the insurance on the Merchant Marine show an equal 

profit to the railway, over the expense that would be incurred insuring with 
private companies?

Mr. Kyte: Mr. Chairman, if you will permit me I would suggest—
Mr. Harris: Before Mr. Kyte speaks. I might say I happen to be on 

the Banking and Commerce Committee and this morning the business of the 
Banking and Commerce Committee, as everyone knows, is extremely important, 
especially for some of us who happen to have two branches of the Home Bank 
in our eonstitutencies. An argument is being given before that Committee, and 
inasmuch as I am a member, I find I will have to withdraw from this Com­
mittee this morning.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Our difficulty is this. The other day, if my memory 
serves me right, Sir Henry (Thornton) was asked to give the name of a gentle­
man who advised him in reference to the Parte building. He did not care to say 
who the gentleman was. Now, one of the gentlemen is here and is ready to give 
his evidence.

Mr. Harris: Was it understood he was to be here this morning?
The Chairman : No, we did not know it yesterday.
Mr. Harris : I think the Committee will appreciate my position.
The Chairman : Could this gentleman be here later on, or will that make 

it awkward for him?
Mr. Kyte: (To Mr. Pratt) Are you remaining in Ottawa?
Mr. Pratt : All day.
The Chairman: And tomorrow?
Mr. Pratt : I am not sure.
Hon. Mr. Graham : If you don’t mind waiting, we will go on with some­

thing else, and perhaps Sir Henry (Drayton) may come in. I do not want 
him to think we are doing anything without his knowledge.
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Mr. Kyte: Mr. Pratt would like to know about what hour it would be con­
venient to hear his statement. I wonder if we might assume Sir Henry 

! (Drayton) could be reached by 12 o’clock.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Supposing we make it half-past twelve, and that will 

( give Sir Henry Drayton lots of time.
Major Bell: Mr. Pratt, so we will have it on the record, may I ask if 

| you are a Canadian, residing now in Paris?
Mr Pratt: Yes.
Major Bell: Your headquarters are in Paris?
Mr. Pratt: Yes.
Mr. Kyte: Thank you. Come in at half-past twelve.
Mr. Pratt : That is advanced time?
Hon. Mr. Graham : I call it “foolish” time, Mr. Pratt.
The Chairman: Here comes Sir Henry (Drayton) now.
Sir Henry Drayton: I have been looking for the Committee Room.
The Chairman: I would like to say for the information of Sir Henry 

(Drayton) that we have a gentleman here this morning who was referred to 
I the other day by Sir Henry Thornton with regard to the purchase of the Paris 
i property, and I would like to call him for examination. Will someone move 

he be called?
Mr. Kyte : Move that Mr. Pratt be called and asked to make a statement. 
Mr. Milne : Second the motion.
The motion agreed to.
Louis Pratt, called and examined.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Mr. Pratt, where do you reside?—A. In Paris.
Q. Are you a Canadian?—A. I am.
% What part of Canada?—A. I was born in Missisquoi County, Eastern 

Townships.
Q. Province of Quebec?—A. Yes.
Q. Are you in business in Paris?—A. I am.
Q. What is your business?—A. Brokerage and Commission.
Q. Where is your place of business located in Paris?—A. My offices are at 

4, Rue Edouard Sept.
Q. Is that in the neighborhood of the Hotel Scribe?—A. Just alongside of 

it; just back of it.
Q. Do you know the Hotel Scribe property?—A. Very well.
Q. Could you state briefly the important buildings that occupy the neigh­

boring sites?—A. Of the Hotel Scribe?
Q. Yes?—A. Facing it is the Grand Hotel.
Q. What sort of a building is the Grand Hotel?—A. It is the leading hotel 

I in Paris, a very large hotel, it is the largest hotel in Paris, and I believe the 
, travel is enormous from there to all parts of the world. It is always full, and it 
| is said that nearly all strangers coming to Paris pass there or stop there.

Q. At this hotel—A. Yes.
Q. What other important institutions are in that neighborhood?—A. Just 

; at the back of it is the Rue Edouard Sept, named after King Edward, finished in 
1914 and is now occupied by a large banking concern.

I Q. What is that called?—A. Société Générale, the third largest bank in 
Paris.

[Mr. Louis Pratt.]



158 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

Q. How long have you occupied the premises in the neighborhood of the 
Hotel Scribe?—A. Since 1919. I rented there in March, 1919.

Q. Will you please inform the Committee what your experience is as regards 
the increases in rentals since then in that part of the City of Paris?—A. Right 
in that particular place, in that section of Paris, around Rue Scribe, Boulevard 
des Capucines, Place de l’Opéra—in there—it has been increasing very rapidly. 
Take it in my owrn case, for instance. I rented my offices in 1919 from the 
British Tank Commission; they were occupied by the British Commission 
during the war. I am paying 25,000 francs a year, and I have ten small rooms. 
Since then they have increased very rapidly until last year the Société Générale 
bought out the whole of the street of the Rue Edouard Sept, which has buildings 
on both sides of the street; it is a short street ; it runs from the Boulevard des 
Capucines, and they have been trying to buy out our leases. About two and a 
half months ago I was offered to surrender my lease, which has four more years 
to run, 100,000 francs, and a little later 150,000, which I refused, and I am in a 
position now to turn the possession over for 50,000 francs a year.

Q. What you leased in 1919 for 25,000 francs you can get 50,000 for now?— 
A. Yes, any time I like to take it.

Q. Where are your premises with reference to the Hotel Scribe?—A. Well, 
the backs of the two buildings come together ; the back of the Hotel Scribe 
and the back of our building come together.

Q. Your building is facing Rue Edouard Sept?—A. Our bulding faces the 
west and the Hotel Scribe faces east.

Q. Please indicate the streets they face?—A. The Hotel Scribe is on Rue 
Scribe facing the Grand Hotel, and our building is on Edouard Sept, the back 
toward the Scribe, and facing west.

Q. Do you know something of the value of properties—business properties— 
in the city of Paris?—A. Yes, in a way. I have acquired a good deal of know­
ledge since I have been there.

Q. And from your knowledge of the city of Paris and the location of busi­
ness, what would you say with respect to the site of the Hotel Scribe?—A.Well, 
it would be very difficult to give an accurate—

Q. No, I mean as to its location for business purposes?—A. I consider that 
the Hotel Scribe as situated is the finest property in Paris within a radius of 
a quarter of a mile of the centre of Paris, because it is in the centre, next to the 
Grand Opera and the property around those streets is considered the gilt-edged 
of Paris.

Q. What business concerns are in the neighbourhood? You mentioned the 
Grand Hotel and the Société Generale?—A. The Lloyds Bank have just pur­
chased a very valuable corner across the street on the Boulevard des Capucines.

Q. Are there any steamship and railway offices in that quarter?—A. Yes; 
they are all moving on to the Hotel Scribe. The principal company, the Cunard, 
has just come in there, and the White Star, the Red Star, and the Canadian 
Pacific, and then right across the street is the Compagnie Generale Trans­
atlantique.

Q. So all the steamship companies are concentrated in the centre?—A. All 
the vacant buildings, vacant during the war, have been taken up by steamship 
and railway companies.

Q. What would you say, Mr. Pratt, as to the value of the Hotel Scribe? 
What would you say as to the increase of the value of property since 1919 or 
1920 up to the present day?—A. From 1919 to the present time I consider that 
property in that vicinity has increased at least from 75 to 80 per cent.

Q. And what would you say as to the increasing valuation in the near 
future?—A. I think there will be a steady increase for the next five years, for 
the reason that right in that vicinity there are no more properties available,

[Mr. Louis Pratt.]
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and anyone who wants property will have to pay large prices. There are no 
good properties available there now. This Hotel Scribe building was one of the 
old properties that changed hands, and there are no more, around there, that 
I know of, for sale. And the consequence is, I should estimate that values in the 
next four or five years will be very large, that is, the increase of values.

Q. Do you know what was paid for the Hotel Scribe?—A. I did not until 
this morning.

Q. $2,700,000?—A. That is what I am told.
Q. What is your opinion as to the reasonableness of that, as a purchase 

price?—A. The general opinion among business men of Paris who know some­
where near what it cost is that it was a good buy, and it was thought over there 
that there had been $3,000,000 paid for it; it was rumored that $3,000,000 had 
been paid, and they thought that was a very reasonable price.

Q. Do you know Sir Henry Thornton?—A. Yes.
Q. How long have you known him?—A. About a year; a little over that— 

that is, personally.
Q. Do you remember meeting him in Ottawa something over a year ago.— 

A. Yes.
Q. What time was it, precisely?—A. It was somewhere between the first 

and the 20th of April, I cannot exactly remember the date, but I know I was 
in Ottawa about that time.

Q. Did he have any conversation with you regarding this property?—A. 
He did.

Q. Did you express any opinion to him as to the value?—A. I did.
Q. And did you express an opinion to him similar to that which you have 

given to the Committee to-day?—A. Yes. As to values. I might say that was 
discussed very little. I was informed that they were negotiating for the building, 
and I replied that if they were, it was better for them to do it quickly because I 
knew of two other concerns negotiating for it.

Mr. Kyte : That is all.
By Sir Henry Drayton:

Q. Mr. Pratt, are you in the real estate business?—A. No, sir.
Q. Who were the real owners of the Hotel Scribe?—A. I cannot tell you. 

It was a stock company. That is, there were some insurance companies 
interested in it.

Q. Some insurance companies?—A. At that time, yes; I do not know who 
they were.

Q. Do you know Aronovici?—A. Very slightly.
Q. Do you know anything about Aronovici’s option?-—A. No, I did not 

know he had any.
Q. So you did not know anything about it?—A. No, sir.
Q. In your view, is this neighbourhood around there as you described it 

to be, gilt-edged?—A. Yes.
Q. That property in this gilt-edged neighbourhood—you say that was 

bought out?—A. It was bought within the past year by the Société Generale?
Q. What are the dimensions of that property?—Â. Of the Rue Edouard 

sept?
Q. Yes, the property bought within the year?—A. I cannot tell you Sir 

Henry, exactly. To my personal recollection I think it would run about double 
the size of the Hotel Scribe.

Q. And what was the price paid for tha't?—A. I cannot tell you that. I 
have only heard rumours.

Q. Do you know of your own personal knowledge the prices paid for any 
property around there?—A. Those are the only two properties I have any 
knowledge of.

[Mr. Louis Pratt.]
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Q. That is, the Hotel Scribe and this other one?—A, Yes, those two large 
transactions are practically the only ones, excepting Lloyd's Bank across the 
Boulevard, which have changed hands in the last few years.

Q. Can you tell us anything about that one?—A. No, I cannot tell you.
Q. So then, as I understand you, you cannot give us the details of any 

transactions in that neighbourhood?—A. No. I could have got some of this 
had I known I was going to be here, but I was just passing through on a trip, 
and was asked to stop. I could give you a lot of these facts if I were home.

Q. Then you were telling us about the steamship companies. Does, the 
Canadian Pacific do any considerable business in Paris?—A. Yes, I think they 
do. They have never had very large quarters ; they are in a better office now 
than they were. They had a very small office up to a var ago, but I think 
they do quite a business.

Q. How would you place the ocean service of the C.P.R.?—A. I beg your 
pardon.

Q. In what way would you place the ocean service of the C.P.R.—the 
Canadian Pacific activities in Paris? Which would you look upon as the most 
important steamship company there?—A. Well, I should think the Cunard.

Q. And where, after the Cunard, would the C.P.R. come in?—A. I would 
not like to give you anything very definite on that, Sir Henry, because I do 
not know, but my best judgment would be that the Cunard, the Compagnie 
Generale Trans-atlantique, the White Star, and then possibly the C.P.R. That 
is just offhanded; I do not know definitely.

Q. How large an office have they in this gild-edged neighbourhood?—A. The 
C.P.R.?

Q. Yes?—A. Well, they had a very small office, as I say, until last year, 
and they moved in now with the offices, I think of—let me see what that name 
is. It is an English company. They are right next door to the White Star. 
They have a very nice office there.

Q. A very nice office now?—A. Yes.
Q. Have you any idea of the dimensions of it?—A. I have an idea, but I 

could not give you- anything you could rely upon. I have been in there fre­
quently and it is a very nice office.

Q. A sufficient office, you think, for the purposes of the business?—A. I 
think so.

Q. What rent do they pay?-—A. I don’t know.
Q. Then outside of the C.P.R., is there any other company, or railway, in 

Canada or the United States with offices in Paris?—A. There "is the American 
Express Company.

Q. That is not a railway?—A. They do a railway business.
Q. Just the same as all express people do. But outside of the American 

Express Company is there any other company there at all?—A. Foreign com­
pany?

t). Yes?—A. No, not that I know of, at the present time. The German 
lines are some business in there, but not in their own offices.

Q. I was asking you with regard to companies this side of the water?— 
A. No, I do not know of any others at the present time.

Q. You have told us you did not act as a real estate agent yourself. Have 
you ever owned property in Paris in that neighbourhood?—A. Not in that 
neighbourhood. I do own some property in Paris. I belong to the British 
Chamber of Commerce in Paris, and in that way get a good deal of inside 
information.

Q. That is all you can tell me about that—or is there anything further 
you can say?—A. I do not know, Sir Henry, on what line.

Q. Then you were out here between April first and April 20th, seeing 
Sir Henry Thornton?—A. Yes.

[Mr. Louis Pratt.]
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Q. How did you come to see him? Did you come to see him about this?— 
A. No. As I said, I did not know a thing about the Hotel Scribe until I 
met him. I met him in the Parliament Buildings, with some friends, in a 
friendly manner, not to speak of business at all. I was on my way to the 
coast; I was going to Vancouver and I-stopped off in Ottawa to visit my friends.

Q. And as I understand your evidence given to Mr. Kyte, you did not dis­
cuss values with him?—A. No.

Q. But you did tell him if he was after that property—what did you 
say, that “ He ought to be quick about it ”? that “ There were two other 
concerns after it”?—A. Yes, that is about all the conversation we had.

0. Who were the two other concerns?—A. That I am not at liberty to 
tell you. I am sorry, Sir Henry, I got that information in a very confidential 
manner before leaving Paris.

Q. Did you get that from the concerns themselves?—A. One of them, yes.
Q. But you cannot tell us the reason—
Mr. Kyte: He gave you the reason.
Sir Henry Drayton : He says it was in confidence.
Mr. Kyte: Is that not a reason?
Sir Henry Drayton : Confidénce might mean one of two things—■
Mr. Kyte: Confidence means confidence.
Sir Henry’ Drayton : It might make a difference; sometimes confidence is 

justified and sometimes not.
The Chairman: He does not care to give the answer.
The Witness: They were reliable concerns.

, By Sir Henry Drayton:
Q. Do you know what price they were willing to give?—A. Only from 

hearsay, if that is any good.
Sir Henry Drayton: No, that is not any good.
The Chairman : Any other questions by members of the Committee? If 

not, the witness is excused. Thank you very much, Mr. Pratt.
(The witness retired).
The Chairman: I understand Senator Wilson is here, to give some evidence. 

Will someone move that he be heard?
Mr. Kyte: In regard to this property?
The Chairman : Yes.
Mr. Mackinnon: I so move.
Mr. Gavvrf.au : I second the motion.
The motion agreed to.
Hon. J. M. Wilson called and examined.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I saw you sitting there and I heard you say the other 

day you had seen this property in Paris, and, frankly, that you had formed 
a favourable opinion of it. This is an informal Committee and we are trying 
to get all the information we can.

The Chairman: Mr. Kyte, will you proceed?
Mr. Ky’te: Or Sir Henry (Drayton) ?
Sir Henry Drayton : He is the Minister’s witness.
Hon. Mr. Graham : A witnes for the public.
Sir Henry Drayton : I don’t know about that.

81695—11
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By Mr. Kyte:
Q. You are a Senator of the Dominion of Canada?—A. Yes.
Q. And you have been engaged in business in Montreal?—A. Yes.
Q. For many years?—A. Yes.
Q. You visit Paris frequently?—A. Yes, quite often.
Q. When were you there last?-—A. I was there in March and April ; I 

left there on the 10th of May.
Q. Of the present year?—A. Yes.
Q. Do you know the building recently purchased by the Canadian National 

Railways known as the Hotel Scribe?—A. Yes.
Q. What would you say as to its location with respect to the business 

district of Paris?—A. To my mind it is the best located property in Paris. In 
fact, I would go further and say it is the best property in Central Europe. It 
is the hub of that part of the world.

By the Chairman: i
Q. For business purposes?—A. For business purposes. It is right in the 

centre of Paris and so situated that you can see the property on both sides of 
the street as you come out. The Avenue de l’Opera is the centre of Paris. 
You have the Boulevard des Capucines and the Grand Hotel here, and the 
Scribe Hotel and the Grand Hotel are located right there, and the Avenue 
de l’Opera and the Boulevard des Capucines are right together there, and you 
can see the whole front of the property. It is like a square.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Have you or have you not, any idea of the values of property in 

Paris?—A. No, I have no idea of values.
Q. Is there an yother information that you think you can give to the 

Committee?—A. No.
By Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. Now that the Canadian National Railways has this, do you think it 
would be a good idea for all the business of our Canadian activities to move 
into that building?—A. To my mind thatv would be the thing to do.

The Chairman: Have you any questions, Sir Henry?
Sir Henry Drayton : No.
The Chairman: Any other members of the Committee desire to ask any 

questions? (To Senator Wilson) Thank you Senator.
Hon. Mr. Graham : We have at least had the dignity of having a Senator 

give evidence before this Committee.
The witness discharged.

The Chairman : We were dealing with the item on page 19, Railway 
Operating Expense, Maintenance of Way and Structures. Any other items you 
want to examine further?

Sir Henry Drayton: In connection with the accounts. Have you taken up 
the income statement on page 17?

The Chairman : No.
Sir Henry Drayton : Is not that the first thing to take up? I will go on 

wherever you want me to go on.
The Chairman : I think we might go right through the report.
Sir Henry Drayton : The income comes first.
The Chairman: We got into that as a sort of a summary.

[Hon. J. M. Wilson.]
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Sir Henry Drayton : Have we exhausted any of the items yet?
The Chairman: We did not take them in order. Possibly if the Committee 

desire we might take them in exact order, and if there are no questions to be 
asked, we will pass on, or will you merely dip in as you go on?

Sir Henry Drayton : This is the first page we took up this morning?
The Chairman : Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : I had an opportunity of going through the monthly 

statements yesterday afternoon and I want the gentlemen just to follow me 
because I think I can shorten this a great deal. This is the Maintenance of 
Way that we are on, under Railway Operating Expenses?

The Chairman : Part of the Railway Operating Expense.
Hon. Mr. Graham : On page 18 there is Railway Operating Expenses.
The Chairman : How would it be if we left the Income statement, and 

since we are on Expense, begin on page 18 and follow through until we finish 
that subject? Is that satisfactory?

Hon. Mr. Graham : Let us take some order so when we are through we are 
through.

Mr. Henry : Page 18 are revenues, at the bottom—the general account.
The Chairman : The actual expenditures begin on page 19.
Mr. Henry : The details.
The Chairman : Shall we go on item by item? I believe that will be the 

quicker way in the end. Then “Maintenance of Way and Structures”, $44,- 
000,000 this year and $45,000,000-odd last year. Any question on that?

Mr. Henry! The details follow.
Sir Henry Drayton : Will you follow me on that so that the Committee will 

have the facts? In connection with the first item which is the Maintenance of 
Way and Structures, and which includes items 201 and 279, the regular earnings 
—that is, the regular monthly accounts—commence with the new system as of 
the month of May.

Mr. Henry: That is correct. That is the consolidation.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then, for the purpose of keeping the accounts right, 

what the system did and did properly, was to make a summation of the. appro­
priate items in the details of the different companies, and brought it down as 
the amount that had been spent.

Mr. Cooper: That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : I do not think there is any issue as to the facts. I 

want to get the figures as near right as we possibly cap. Just follow this, Mr. 
Heiyy. Starting out then with May: The figures for the month of May, 1923, 
are $3,813,679.

Mr. Henry: That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : For the same month in 1922 $3,732,000.
Mr. Henry: That is correct. /
Sir Henry Drayton : For the period from the beginning of the year—that 

would be in the five months’ period ending in May, 1923—$15,934,454.
Mr. Henry : I will have to get the details of that.
Mr. Cooper: Do you want us to verify that?
Sir Henry Drayton: We went over this yesterday and I want you to 

verify this. We want to get this thing absolutely right. There should be no 
contention about it.

81695—11|
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The Chairman: Can you get the facts?
Sir Henry Drayton: Yes. They are right here. I think I have saved 

the Committee a lot of work yesterday, and it was a hot job doing it, too.
Mr. Henry: The total for the five months?
Sir Henry Drayton: The total for the five months, $15,934,454?
Mr. Henry: That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : And for the same period of 1922, $14,621,556.
Mr. Henry- : That is right.
Sir Henry’ Drayton : How would it do if I handed this statement in after­

wards to the reporter? This has been gone over by Mr. Henry and the officials 
and myself. The first thing to draw attention to is this, that down to October 
—just look at your figures, Mr. Henry, again, the expenditures—that is those 
on Maintenance of Way and Structures—run very much alike. For example, 
in October, 1923, we spent under this item $4,616,260, while for the same month 
the year previously the sum of $4,649,330. They are running very much the 
same year for year.

Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Cooper : These are from May, and not in the first four months of the 

year.
Sir Henry Drayton: There is a difference in the first four months of the 

year, or the first five months of the year, it would be. Am I not right in saying 
it was five.

Mr. Cooper: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is including May, because we have to take the 

details including May.
Mr. Cooper: The expenditures for the first five months would be less than 

the month subsequent.
Sir Henry’ Drayton: The expenditures in the first five months were less 

than for subsequent months?
Mr. Cooper: Per month.
Sir Henry Drayton : What have we before that? I want to give you 

credit for this in connection with the other matter, because you are entitled to 
take the whole year. You had spent at the end of the first five months, 
$1,300,000 more than you did in 1922. Look at the figures for a moment and 
you will find I am right. I am not dealing with odd figures.

Mr. Cooper: $1,231,000-----
Mr. Henry: $1,231,000 more.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then it runs along, as I say, just about the same, 

as we have agreed, from then on until the end of October.
Mr. ^enry : That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then in November there is a drop a million-----
Mr. Henry : There is a drop of-----
Sir Henry’ Drayton : A little over a million.
Mr. Henry: $1,023,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : And in December?
Mr. Henry: $772,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : So we have a drop of about $2,000,000 in the report?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : I think you had better give the Committee an 

explanation of that drop?
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Mr. Henry : Prior to the consolidation the practice of the Canadian 
Northern or, rather, the Canadian National with the exception of the Grand 
Trunk, was to budget their expenditures or their proposed expenditures over the 
year for rails and ties and charge them into the account during the months 
regularly throughout the year. On the old Grand Trunk the practice was to 
charge in during the month in which the expenditure took place. Generally 
speaking, that is the explanation for the drop in those two months. I think 
that is all.

Sir Henry Drayton : There was a change made in the system of account­
ing at the end of October?

Mr. Henry: No, the change in the system of accounting was made as of 
May, but it had this effect by reason of the fact that in the month of October 
there was nothing charged on this account, because nothing was done.

Sir Henry Drayton: Then in December-----
Mr. Henry: The same thing would apply.
Sir Henry Drayton : In other words, during those months of November 

and December, to use your expression, nothing was done?
Mr. Henry: What I had in mind was that nothing was done in the way 

of renewing ties or putting in rails.
Sir Henry Drayton : That makes a total saving for the year, although 

we were ahead down to that date almost $1,000,000, practically $1,000,000 on 
that accoupt. That was the effect of that.

Mr. Cooper: No, $841,000.
Mr. Henry: $841,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then we will go on to the next item------
Mr. Kyte: May I ask one question?
Sir Henry Drayton : Surely.
Mr. Kyte: Is it usual to lay rails and ties in these months?
Mr. Henry: It is not, for the reason you cannot get labour in those 

months ; labour is otherwise employed, and it is the best possible practice to 
do that work starting early in the spring and completing it, if possible, around 
the first of September; if that can be done.

Mr. Kyte: Were there as many rails and ties laid for these months as in 
the preceding year?

Sir Henry Drayton : Be fair to the witness. Sir Henry (Thornton) said 
there were a million less ties laid. We want to be fair to these people.

Mr. Kyte: I want to get this explanation.
Sir Henry Drayton : If he says it is just the same, he is falling into my

hands.
The Chairman : Mr. Kyte, what was your question?
Mr. Kyte: As a matter of fact, I want to know if there were any ties laid 

in the corresponding months of the preceding year.
Mr. Henry: (To Mr. Brown) Would there be?
Mr. Brown: No. They stopped tie and rail renewals on account of the 

frost.
Sir Henry Drayton: That was covered by the previous explanation. They 

struck a monthly average, and now the system is to charge them into the work.
Mr. Stewart: May we ask Sir Henry (Drayton) about these figures? He 

said he would file them with the reporter. Do they run for the whole year 
month by month fairly equally?
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Sir Henry Drayton : Down to the time I pointed out.
Mr. Stewart : You did not give us these figures.
Sir Henry Drayton : I said there was a drop in that month.
Mr. Stewart: But these two months do show a decrease as compared with 

1922?
Sir Henry Drayton: Yes. Now then, passing on from that; in connection 

with the reserve:—
Mr. Henry: With regard to the adjustment of $600,000—
Sir Henry Drayton: Oh, there was an adjustment to be made?
Mr. Henry : In 1922 there was an adjustment of $600,000 by reason of the 

difference in the average prices and freight charges lapsed over from 1921.
Sir Henry' Drayton : In other words, the cost of maintaining your way 

and structures in 1922 was swollen by an item of $600,000, which represented 
an insufficient charge made in a like account for the year 1921? That is the 
evidence. '

Mr. Henry: That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : I think we have exhausted everything about struc­

tures. Now, going to “ Rolling Stock.” We did the same thing with Rolling 
Stock?

Mr. Henry: That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : In connection with Rolling Stock: the figures again 

down to October run very much the same. The total for the year as at the end of 
October was $43,393,104 as against $43,266,354 for the year 1922.

Mr. Henry : What was the figure you read?
Sir Henry Drayton : For the year 1923, as at the end of October, 

$43,393,104.
Mr. Henry: $100.
Sir Henry Drayton : It should be $100?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : And for the year 1922, $43,226,354?
Mr. Henry : That is correct.
Mr. Stewart: Was that a larger or a smaller figure for 1922?
Sir Henry Drayton : It is practically the same thing. There is not enough 

difference there to make any comment at all. Then we have figures which, apart 
from any explanation, indicate rather startling drops for the months of December 
and November. That is right, is it not?

Mr. Cooper: Yes..
Sir Henry Drayton: The 1923 figures for November were $4,570,413?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : As against $5,563,976 for 1922?
Mr. Henry: That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : For December, $4,212,806?
Mr. Henry: That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton: As against $7,370,369?
Mr. Henry: That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : Now, there was an explanation given for that; the 

explanation given for that consists of this, that in the year 1922 provision was 
made for reserves. That is right, is it not?

Mr. Henry: Correct.
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Sir Henry Drayton: And the books show that in the month of September 
the sum of $250,000 was set to reserve for this purpose, and in October $490,605. 
In November $1,664,394, and in December $2,385,000?

Mr. Henry : That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : Making a total of $4,490,000?
Mr. Henry-: Those figures are correct.
Hon. Mr. Graham : What year is that?
Sir Henry Drayton : In 1922, building up the reserve to look after equip­

ment of the system. Then we have no reserve built up in the year 1923 except 
$801,000.

Mr. Henry: That is correct. That is referred to on page 6 of the report.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I do not quite understand that.
Sir Henry Drayton : You take a survey of your situation and you make 

up your mind what you are going to do with your money, whether you 
are going to put it in this year or the next year. It is a matter of the 
executive passing on these things. Some railway operators think it is a 
good thing to charge as much as possible to the current year, and some 
do not. Sometimes the things which might go to maintenance go to betterments 
of the line. It is a matter of the exercising of judgment. I am not quarreling 
with the judgment; the judgment here was that $4,000,000 in 1922 should be 
set up as a reserve, and that is the reserve Sir Henry Thornton spoke about. 
The same judgment fixed on $801,000 as the reserve to be built up in the year 
1923. So that the expenses, so far as the accounts are concerned, would indicate 
that on this subject of reserves, the accounts are charged with $3,689,000 more 
money in the year 1922 than they are charged in the year 1923.

Mr. Cooper: In maintenance of equipment.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is quite right. It does not mean that the equip­

ment did not get service ; they got the service out of the money which had been 
allocated in the previous year. So the result is this, that you have an apparent 
saving or skimping, because that is what anyone would think from looking at it, 
represented by the difference between $52,176,320, as against $56,160,700. That 
would be an apparent saving of how much?

Mr. Cooper: $3,984,380.
Sir Henry Drayton: That is the actual saving?
Mr. Cooper: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : But the service, that is the equipment, as a matter of 

fact did not suffer from the non-expenditure of that $3,984,000, because we have 
$3,689,000 available from the books of the other year. That is right?

Mr. Cooper: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : So that the service is kept up, and the only difference 

is that there is a shortage in our reserves to-day of $3,689,000, and an economy 
hn actual economy of----- how much would that be?

Mr. Cooper: $3,984,380.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the real difference between the figures of 

$52,176,320 and $56,160,700?
Mr. Cooper: Yes. i
Mr. Stewart : I am not very clear on the purpose served by these reserves 

that Sir Henry Drayton is talking about. I think a little explanation might 
make it clearer.

Sir Henry Drayton : Let us get this finished, and then take that up. That 
would make a real difference in the amount spent on equipment of $295,380,
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being the difference between the reserves of the two years, which amounted to 
$3,689,000, and the apparent difference in cost?

Mr. Henry: I would like to check you op those figures.
Mr. Cooper : That is for the year?
Sir Henry Drayton : For the year.
Mr. Cooper : $295,781.
Mr. Henry: $298,781 is the exact figure.
Sir Henry Drayton : So instead of anyone getting the idea that the loco­

motives have not been kept up as a matter of fact there has been just as much 
spent upon them except this sum of $295,000?

Mr. Henry: That is equipment generally.
Hon. Mr. Graham : That is rolling stock.
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes.
Mr. Henry : In addition to that it is only fair to say there was a decrease 

in the average wage schedule of $1,700,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : That applies to all shop workers?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry' Drayton : It applies to locomotives and everything else, and 

that was the general reduction made effective, I think, last-----
Mr. Henry: July, 1922. It had twelve months in 1923.
Sir Henry Dray'ton : We get the benefit of the reduction in wages, which 

was $1,750,000 in the maintenance account, $750,000 of which was applicable 
to the freight car situation.

Mr. Henry: I will just check that. I do not appear to have the exact 
figure, but I think it is $700,000. $700,000 is correct.

Sir Henry Drayton : $700,000. I have $750,000, but it should be $700,000.
Mr. Henry: Yes, $700,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : For freight cars. Just so as to follow up the matter 

to its legitimate conclusion, if you look at the income account where the balance 
is worked out at page —

Mr. Henry : Page 17. Is that what you mean?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, page 17. There is an actual improvement 

shown at page 17 of $6,262,422.84, being the difference in the net income deficit. 
Is that figure correct?

Mr. Henry: That was of both years, $6,262,422; that is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then we have our reserves exhausted, with the 

exception of $801,000?
Mr. Henry: No, there is $1,600,000.
Sir Henry Drayton: You gave me yesterday, reserves on this rolling 

stock of $801,000 altogether.
Mr. Henry: $801,000 plus $4,490,000 gives you $5,300,000, and you take 

from that $3,000,000—
Sir Henry Draytons No, you should not plus that. As I understood from 

your explanation of the account yesterday, you have on hand in this account a 
reserve which may be used nfext year of $801,000.

Mr. Henry: No. The $801,000 represents the amount credited to the 
reserves and charged to maintenance of equipment during the first four months 
of 1923.

Sir Henry Drayton: So that has gone, has it?
Mr. Henry: No. There is in the reserve now, $1,600,000.
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Mr. Kyte: You added the two reserves together, the one previous to last 
year, and the reserve of last year, amounting to $801,000?

Mr. Henry : That is right.
Sir Henry Dray’ton : Let us get that clear now, Mr. Henry. The reserves 

that you have told me about, $4,490,000, if I understand the evidence you have 
given here, are the amounts of these reserves that have been expended in this 
work this year.

Mr. Henry: I did not say that, that it had all been expended.
Sir Henry' Drayton : How much has been expended out of that?
Mr. Kyte: The total reserve is $5,491,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is for the two years.
Mr. Ky'te: Yes, we will see what has been spent out of that.
Mr. Cooper: In 1922 we spent $915,000, and in 1923 we spent $2,731,657.45.
Mr. Kyte: That is $3,646,657.
Sir Henry Drayton : How does that figure out? That will change these 

other figures.
Mr. Ky'te: $1,644,745, I make it, as the balance of the reserve.
The Chairman : Did I understand you to say that in 1922 you spent only 

some $800,000. ,
Mr. Cooper : In 1922 there'was charged to this reserve, after it had accu­

mulated, $915,000.
The Chairman: Was that actual expenditure?
Mr. Cooper : That meant the work was actually done.
The Chairmans And in 1923 you say you spent $2,730,000?
Mr. Cooper : Yes.
The Chairman: Was there any skimping, as it has been called, in 1922?
Mr. Cooper: There was more work to be done, of course, in 1922; that 

was the reason for setting it up.
The Chairman : In 1922 the figure is so much less than in 1923.
Mr. Henry: The reserve, as Sir Henry has explained, was set up in the 

months of September, October, November and December of 1922, and for the 
months of January, February, March and April of 1923; the reserve was built 
up in those months. Now, during the later months of 1922 work to the amount 
of $915,000 was done and charged to reserve.

Sir Henry Drayton : Just let us see if we can get the net figures.
Mr. Henry: What is your particular point, Sir Henry?
Sir Henry Drayton : Just to see exactly how much the real difference

was.
Mr. Henry: You want to find out how much was actually spent in each 

year?
Sir Henry Drayton : You know that you charged up in the year 1922 

this sum of $56,000,000, and you know you have charged up in 1923 the sum of 
$52,000,000.

Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : You spent out of the reserve in the year 1923, 

$2,731,657?
Mr. Henry: I think that is the figure.
Sir Henry Drayton : Now, in order to arrive at what you spent, should you 

not add the amount of these reserves to that sum, that is the reserves spent, this 
$2,731,657 to your item of $52,000,000 to make thé total of $54,907,977?
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Mr. Henry: That is correct, and then you should deduct from that what­
ever was charged.

Sir Henry Drayton: The sum of $801,000?
Mr. Henry : Yes, that is correct. .
Sir Henry Drayton : So that would make the total spent $54,106,977, as 

against $56,000,000?
Mr. Henry: Then on the other side you have to do the same thing; you 

have to subtract from the $56,000,000 the $915,000.
Mr. Stewart: Add it?
Mr. Henry : Yes, and then subtract the $4,490,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is to get what was actually done, not what was 

charged?
Mr. Henry : Yes.
Sir Jîenry Drayton : I was dealing with what was charged. Dealing with 

what was done, your present basis, is correct?
Mr. Henry: No, that is not right. What was charged in 1923 was 

$52,176,000; that is what the amounts total.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is what was charged?
Mr. Henry: That is what was charged.
Sir Henry Drayton : Including that $801,000 of reserves?
Mr. Henry: Yes, including in that that sum. That is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : And for the year previous the charge is $56,000,000 

odd, including in that reserves of $4,490,000?
Mr. Henry : That is correct, but you must subtract both if you are going 

to get the relative basis of expenditure.
Sir Henry Drayton : I was getting the charges for the two years.
Mr. Henry : The books show the charges. What is charged into the account 

is what appears in the statement.
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, but the reserve is the thing I am getting at.
Mr. Stewart: Do I understond that the actual expenditure for 1922 was 

$52,585,000 and for the year 1923, $54,106,000?
Mr. Henry: In actual work done, yes, that is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then how many reserves do you say we still have on 

hand?
Mr. Cooper: $1,696,754.
Mr. Stewart : How do you arrive at that?
Mr. Cooper: You will be out $52,000; $52,010, that was an amount which 

was transferred to the reserve which did not come out of the operating expenses 
at all; it is an additional credit in 1922 to the reserves.

Sir Henry Drayton : That is included in the major sum, the sum of 
$4,000,000?

Mr. Cooper: No, that is an addition. That $4,000,000 is what was charged 
to expenses and credited to reserves.

Sir Henry Drayton : That would be a further charge on the revenues of 
1922?

Mr. Cooper: No, sir, it was an amount which we received from the United 
States administration, and we just put it in the reserve account.

Mr. Stewart : These figures do not represent the totals of the account; that 
is, $4,000,000 and the $801,000 for 1923?

Mr. Cooper : It is1 an additional credit of $52,000.
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Mr. Stewart : What is the standing of the reserve account as of the end of 
this year we have reported here?

Mr. Cooper: $1,696,000.
Mr.' Stewart : What was the reserve account at the end of 1922, then, after 

deducting the amount spent?
Mr. Cooper: $3,627,010.
Mr. Stewart: That shows it depreciated in the year $1,831,000, and I can­

not see any place where that fits in with the figures given.
Mr. HeniIy: In addition to that there was $801,000 accrued in 1923.
Mr. Stewart: You have been juggling that $801,000 around as an expendi­

ture.
Mr. Henry: The $801,000 was a charge to maintenance of equipment and 

a credit to the reserve in the first form.
Mr. Stewart: It went in and out again. It would not affect the balance 

in the end?
Mr. Henry: To the extent that it went in and out, that is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes it does, because you charge the other against 

expenses.
Mr. Henry: To the extent that it went in and out at all it is.
Sir Henry Drayton : It shows the volume of work done.
Mr. Henry : It depends "on the way you look at it.
Sir Henry Drayton : These monies were actually used?
Mr. Henry: If you are looking at what the books show as charged to that 

account, and what the expenditure actually was, of course those are two differ­
ent points of view.

Sir Henry Drayton : What the expenditure really was is the real thing.
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : It is not merely a book-keeping entry.
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Stewart: I would like to get a little further'light in regard to this 

reserve account. Where does this originate?
Mr. Henry: The reserve represents charges made to maintenance of 

equipment during the last few months of 1922 and the first four months of 1923. 
It was for'the purpose of taking up deferred maintenance in the equipment, 
which was estimated to be that extent below normal.

Mr. Stewart : Was there no such thing as reserve account prior to 1922?
Mr. Henry: It commenced on September 1st, 1922.
Mr. Stewart: It may be that I am very dense, but I do not understand 

yet just why you formed that account.
Mr. Henry : It was to take up what might be called deferred maintenance.
Mr. Stewart: There was a change of'accounting at that time?
Mr. Henry: There was a change, yes. There was a change of adminis­

tration, too, as a matter of fact.
Major Bell: Mr. Henry, put it in another way. From year to year, sup­

posing you had the same number of cars apd you kept thpm up to a certain 
standard, and they cost you $12,000,000 a year. You put out $1,000,000 every 
month to keep them up. If you spend that over a period of ten years, that 
would show absolutely the proper expenditure. Instead of doing that, you 
might say the first five years that you would only put out $500,000 a month. 
The result is that at the end of the ten-year period you would be $10,000,000
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behind with the upkeep of your equipment; you have lost that. To even that up 
you take out either in work or in cash $1,000,000 a month, and at the end of ten 
years you will be square. You would either have it in your equipment or a 
reserve in cash, ready to repair that equipment.

Sir Henry Dray ton : It is to prevent an undue loading of the books in any 
.one year.

Major Bell: Yes, mid to keep money there to repair the equipment.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I might say that they follow a splendid precedent in 

that. Major Bell will remember years ago, when the Intercolonial was managed 
iby the Government through a Board, or a General Manager, the problem of 
getting money for a rush requirement of repairs for equipment was a very diffi­
cult one, because the Government had to vote all the money. So we estab­
lished what was called an equipment renewal account, and we put away so much 
money every month for equipment renewal. One month we might have quite a 
(big balance in the account, then something unforeseen would happen and for 
the next three months we would not have any, but we would have it in the cars. 
I imagine this is run on the same plan.

Mr. Henry: Yes.
Major Bell: There are ups and downs in business. Sometimes it may be 

very slack, and you would be very foolish to repair a lot of cars that you could 
just put'on the siding. Then when business presses again you have your reserve 
account to fall back upon and from which to make these repairs.

Mr. Stewart: Is there any department outside of this which carries an 
Recount of this kind?

Major Bell: Yes, the Insurance Department.
Mr. Stewart : I take it that the maintenance and right of way department 

does not carry such an account?
Major Bell: On the Intercolonial we had, at one time, a rail account and 

a maintenance account. For instance, supposing you put up a station, a build­
ing costing you $25,000. With the exception of a little paint, you might not 
touch that building for 25 years. The building is going down all the time, and 
at the end of the 25 years you prabably have to make a 50 per cent expen­
diture to get it back into shape. If you have a building reserve account you 
pan call on that right away, without unduly charging that year’s account with 
it. It will only have paid the proper proportion for that year.

Mr. Stewart : It amounts to this, that comparing the figures of our expen­
ditures on equipment one year with another does not give us an indication of 
the actual standing of the equipment.

Major Bell: No.
Mr. Stewart : The equipment may actually be depreciating, but the money 

is there to raise it to its original status.
Major Bell: In connection with your expenditures running even, if you 

could have a reserve account for everything, then every year would reflect 
absolutely your true charges.

Mr. Stewart : It would seem to me that if there was an item added to this 
page'showing the standing of the reserve account it would very much enlighten 
us regarding the standing of our equipment, because if it is not there in actual 
stock it is there in dollars.

The Chairman: Is this your practice, Mr. Henry; I want to get it clear. 
You figure that each year you will require so much money for maintenance of 
equipment?

Mr. Henry: That, of course, depends upon the business.
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The Chairman : There is, of course, a certain depreciation which ought 
to be replaced from time to time. You do make these replacements at different 
times?

Sir Henry Drayton : There is no depreciation at all; it is all maintenance. 
That is a separate item.

The Chairman: I mean this. Your equipment is depreciating, is getting 
worth less, and that has to be repaired.

Sir Henry Drayton : That is not shown in this at all.
The Chairman: You want to keep your equipment, your cars and so on, 

up to the mark. For that you set aside each month, I suppose, certain moneys. 
Do you charge that immediately to maintenance and credit reserves, whether 
you spend it or not? •

Mr. Henry: Exactly.
The Chairman : Because you want to keep a proper charge against the 

system so it would not all be charged in any one year or any one month, even 
though it was an accumulation?

Mr. Henry': That is right.
The Chairman : So at the end of each period—-each month, is it?
Mr. Henry: Yes, at the end of each month.
The Chairman: You make a charge against maintenance and credit your 

reserve account with it, whether you have actually made the expenditure or 
not. Then, when you do make the expenditure you charge your reserve with it, 
and the cash goes out?

Mr. Henry' : That is right, generally speaking.
The Chairman : The result being that each particular period carries its 

charge of maintenance, which is a loss, whether you have actually made the 
expenditure or not?

Mr. Henry : That is the purpose of this reserve.
Sir Henry Drayton : Just leaving that, if everybody understands it, we 

spent out of reserves this year the amount you have given us, which I think is
$2,731,000?

Mr. Henry: Yes, that is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then you also have on hand some reserves now, 

$1,696,754?
Mr. Henry: Yes, that is correct.
Sir Henry Drayton : So there is a depletion in the reserve for the year of

$1,930,436?
Mr. Henry : $1,731,657, I think.
Sir Henry Drayton : There is that $52,000 that comes out?
Mr. Henry: Yes. If you are dealing with the decrease, it is $52,000 more. 
Hon. Mr. Graham : That $52,000, ‘technically speaking, does not belong 

in this discussion at all.
Sir Henry Drayton : The sum of $3,627,010, I thought, was the amount 

left to the credit of the reserve at the end of the year 1922.
Mr. Cooper: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then the amount left to the credit of the reserve 

to-day is $1,696,574. Does that not give the result I gave you?
Mr. Henry: Yes. We will just check that.
Sir Henry Drayton : It is $1,930,436.
Mr. Cooper: The difference between $3,627,010 and $1,696,754, is $1,930,-

256.



174 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. Stewart: I was going to ask, then, if we are right in considering that 
it would require that $1,930,256 to bring our equipment up to par? Just let 
me read this sentence from the report. “ All deferred maintenance of equipment 
charges may now be considered as either having been overtaken or provided for 
in the above mentioned reserve Does that mean it would require the whole 
reserve to bring our equipment up to par?

Major Bell: Yes.
Mr. Henry : Yes, that is correct.
The Chairman: Is there anything further on this particular phase of the 

report?
Sir Henry Drayton : How is it determined what sums that are spent 

on the roadbed shall be charged to maintenance, and what to betterments?
Mr. Brown: It is charged entirely in accordance with the Interstate 

Commerce Commission classification accounts.
Sir Henry Drayton: Who determines this? You can do almost anything 

with classifications. Who determines it? There is a classification of accounts, 
but who determines what goes into each of them?

Mr. Brown: These amounts of expenditures come into the audit office 
and they do the allocating.

Sir Henry Drayton : I want to know who does it.
Mr. Cooper: The engineer distributes it and we audit it.
Mr. Brown: Where you take an appropriation that covers a betterment 

as well as a maintenance charge, we distribute that in making up our estimates, 
in making up what we call our authority for expenditure, and that is determined 
on the basis of the Interstate Commerce Commission classification accounts.

The Chairman: Who checks that up?
Mr. Brown: It is checked right up through the various offices and finally 

in my office.
Sir Henry Drayton : It is a matter of judgment, into which account it 

should go.
The Chairman : Whether it is a capital charge or expenditure.
Major Bell: It is laid down very very clearly to what this shall be 

chargeable, and through very long experience there is very little left out.
Sir Henry Drayton : WTe know, as a matter of fact, that the amount 

charged by some lines for maintenance varies absolutely from that charged on 
others. We know that some railroads like to char’ge everything they can to 
maintenance, with a view to getting the property in the best shape. We know 
that others charge everything they can to betterments, with a view to showing 
as good an income return as possible.

Major Bell: If they do that they are deliberately putting in false state­
ments.

The Chairman: I suppose there is a little latitude there.
Mr. Cooper: Not under the Interstate Commerce Commission classification.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the way it works out. For example, you 

have in connection with this very matter the question of maintenance on the one 
hand and betterments on the other. You have had how many advances this 
year which you treat as capital accounts?

■ The Chairman: Do you want the number, or the total of the amounts?
Sir Henry Drayton : Just the total.
Mr. Henry: You want to know how much was advanced for betterment 

purposes?
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Sir Henry Drayton : Yes.
Mr. Henry: Chargeable to capital?
Sir Henry Drayton : Chargeable to capital.
Hon. Mr. Graham : That is what you call the twilight region, is it?
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the twilight zone.
Mr. Henry: We will have to get you that figure, Sir Henry.
Sir Henry Drayton : Surely your capital account would show it. I think 

you have it in one of these statements.
Major Bell : Mr. Cooper, what Sir Henry wants is the total capital charge 

for 1923.
Mr. Henry: Oh, that is different.
Sir Henry Drayton: Look at page 23. ,
The Chairman: Yes, it is there.
Mr. Henry: $49,715,581.
Sir Henry Drayton : Of that we have “ road, $19,000,000 ”,
Mr. Henry: Plus $550,028.
Mr. Brown : That is improvements on lines and so on.
Sir Henry Drayton : Out of that whole total, how much was spent on 

new construction, new lines? I think the only thing you had was the cut-off.
Mr. Henry: We could not tell you that offhand, Sir Henry.
Major Bell: The only line that was under construction was that Long 

Lac cut-off.
Sir Henry Drayton : What did that cost?
Mr. Brown : Approximately $2,000,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : The charge against that would be $2,000,000?
The Chairman : Has this any reference to what we are considering? We 

are getting into capital account now.
Sir Henry Drayton : I want to see which place it ought to be in.
Major Bell: You are speaking of the total cost of that?
Mr. Brown : Yes. There was a little bit spent in 1922, and there will be 

a little spent this year, finishing up the ballasting.
Sir Henry Drayton : We have a total charge for original new work of 

$2,000,000. How much of that would be in this year’s account?
. Major Bell: There was some in 1922 and some in this year.

Sir Henry Drayton : How much in 1922?
Mr. Henry : We will have to get that.
Major Bell: Get the cost of the Long Lac cut-off, the amount spent in

each year.
Sir Henry Drayton : You see, that leaves approximately $18,000,000 that 

was put into capital account on old lines. It is just a question in each instance 
what is a betterment and what is a maintenance.

Major Bell: Of course, there is a certain amount of that in building con­
necting lines, you know.

Hon. Mr. Graham : What was that little piece built into the coal mines in 
New Brunswick?

Major Bell: Mr. Cooper, take out co-ordination too, and that will probably 
figure the same thing or take that road account and analyse it to bring it into 
sub-headings that will give us an idea of improvement of stations, and so on.

Mr. Henry: It is all classified there.
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Major Bell: On page 23 you pretty well get that clasification.
Sir Henry Drayton: We will take up page 23, then. How much of the 

engineering there was charged to the Long Lac cut-off?
Mr. Henry: That would have to be ascertained, Sir Henry.
Sir Henry Drayton: I suppose we had better let that stand until that 

statement comes along.
The Chairman : Probably that, had better stand until we get that state­

ment, and it will be a great deal quicker. Now, have we completed pages 19 and 
20?

Sir Henry Drayton : Just while we are on that, do you not think it would 
be much better, Mr. Henry, to have the system remodelled so that the public 
would not be misled, and that this first page ought to show your basis, the claims 
which are set out—.

The Chairman : He might not admit the public is misled.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then we will say the newspapers. We know they 

were misled, and misled badly.
Mr. Henry : I think Sir Henry Thornton intimated in his evidence that he 

had in mind the remodelling of the form of the annual report.
Mr. Cooper: He did not admit there was anything wrong.
Mr. Stewart: Was it not agreed that our report to the House would con­

tain—.
The Chairman : We might let Mr. Henry make a statement, if he so wishes.
Mr. Henry: Page 5 merely represents a letter of transmission, really, from 

the President to the Honourable Minister of Railways. If you go on to pages 
14 and 15, you wall find the consolidated balance sheet, followed by the profit 
and loss statement and then the income statement.

Sir Henry Drayton : The income statement shows your betterment of 
$6,262,000 in operation?

Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the betterment in operation, while anyone 

looking at page 5 would think there had been an improvement of $17,000,000 
plus.

Mr. Henry: In operation?
Sir Henry Drayton : I point out that this is entirely operating.
Mr. Henry: It is a question of classification.
Sir Henry Drayton : Your rental of cars and all that sort of thing, all that 

goes into your operating expenses?
Mr. Cooper: This is the standard classification.
The Chairman : Following out the regular practice?
Mr. Cooper: Following the I.C.C. Your suggestion, Sir Henry, is that 

the whole thing ought to appear on the first page. Would it be your view that 
this first page ought to include the wdiole income statement?

Sir Henry Drayton: No, just the net returns claimed by the system. This 
looks to the ordinary man on the street as though there had been an improve­
ment of $17,000,000.

Mr. Henry: In the operating?
The Chairman : That is perfectly clear. If you take the income state­

ment it tells exactly what you think it ought to tell; it shows an income improve­
ment of over $6,000,000, and on page 6 it is merely a comparison of the 
operating expenses.
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Mr. Henry: That is all ; that is all it is intended to be.
Hon. Mr. Graham : If you issued a report contrary to the Interstate Com­

merce Commission classification which you have adopted, would not the United 
States government probably thump you?

Mr. Cooper: If it were in the United States they would.
Hon. Mr. Graham : You have a lot of lines in the United States?
Mr. Cooper: In that case we would have to comply with their regulations 

down there.
Mr. Kyte: Is it the same system for both?
Mr. Henry: Yes, for the reason that you want to make comparisons with 

roads over there.
The Chairman: I do not see how the public, or the newspapers, could 

possibly be misled if they studied page 17.
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, but who does it?
The Chairman : It is a matter of judgment. You might want, perhaps, to 

show that at the beginning, because you think people look at the first statement 
instead of the summary given inside, but it is all perfectly plain as set forth: 
there. •

Sir Henry Drayton: What is done is this: the most favourable way of 
looking at the thing is picked out, and irrespective of the effect on the public or 
on the system, it is featured.

The Chairman : You mean it should be given as it is on page 17?
Sir Henry Drayton : It is featured where the rest is not featured.
Major Bell: Let me put it another way, Mr. Cooper, take page 17 of this 

annual report. The statement that is given out to the public monthly is the net 
revenue from railway operations?

Mr. Cooper : Yes.
Major Bell: That is, the statement for January would come out about the 

end of February?
Mr. Cooper : About the 25th of the following month.
Major Bell: For the month of January would it be possible to give accur- 

atley the net income deficit in the same shape?
Mr. Cooper: Yes.
Major Bell: You could give it exactly.
Mr. Cooper: Yes, each month.|
The Chairman : In the same w'ay as it is given on page 17?
Mr. Cooper: Yes, we do that.
Major Bell: In connection with your taxes for instance, do you put them in 

just when they are due?
Mr. Cooper: We accrue them ; we apportion them to each month equally.
Major Bell: Then there is no reason why you should not give the two state­

ments ; or, in other words, the net income deficit and the other information.
Mr. Cooper: Yes sir.
Major Bell: And you could give them out at the same time?
Mr. Cooper: Yes, sir.
Mr. Henry : Of course, our classification, whilst it follows the I.C.C., is laid 

down by our own Bureau of Statistics here, and the Board of Railway Commis­
sioners.

Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, and they have adopted it.
81695—12
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The Chairman : It would be just as easy to give the income statement 
which is on page 17 and put that right alongside of the operating statement?

Mr. Henry: Absolutely.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Will there be a note made of that for one of the things t 

we will discuss in the report?
Major Bell: May I explain to the committee how this classification is 

arrived at by the Interstate Commerce Commission? It is not an arbitrary rule, ' 
but has been gone into very thoroughly. Before any change is made in their 
classification. Before any change is made in their classification, they refer it 
to a sub-committee of what they call the American Accounting Officers’ Associ- ' 
ation, which includes the accounting officers of all the leading roads in thd 
United States and Canada, and the best brains of the organization go all over 
the suggested change and confer with the Interstate Commerce Commission 
before any change of any kind is made, so that in the classification you have ! 
the judgment of the best accounting brains on the continent. Sir Henry knows 
that. That is the way it is arrived at; it is not done by rule of thumb, or just 
saying that you must do it this way. They have gone very thoroughly into what 
should be charged to this account, and what should be charged to that, and this 
is their considered opinion.

Mr. Kyte: Do you pursue the same course on your American lines as on 
your Canadian lines?

Major Bell: Yes, and we follow the United States practice, because our 
roads are similar to them and we sit in the American Accounting Association 
and through them reach the Interstate Commerce Commission, although not 
officially.

Mr. Stewart : Regarding the point raised by Sir Henry Drayton a while ago, 
regarding the charges to betterment and to maintenance, do you think that 
over a period of years it might be possible, even with the small leeway there is, 
to make a statement showing a very greatly increased capital?

Major Bell: Every means that they possibly can use, and every check that 
they can put on is in effect, and new ideas are coming up all the time ; there 
are improvements every year. They are putting them on so as to have these 
amounts shown plainly. There is nothing better devised as yet, and so far as 
they know today this is the very best system, and the National Railways is 
following that out right through.

Hon. Mr. Graham : The C.P.R. adopt the same system, do they not?
Major Bell: Yes.
Mr. Cooper: The only expenditure that can be charged to expenses must 

be less than $100.
Sir Henry Drayton : In connection with this very matter of maintenance, 

how many miles of service do you exepct a freight car to give before it has to 
be shopped? What is your experience?

Mr. Henry: Offhand, I do not think I could answer that. It depends a good 
deal on the type of equipment.

Sir Henry Drayton : But you have to average up the whole thing.
Major Bell: It depends very largely on the roadbed, too.
Mr. Henry : There are a good many factors entering into it.
The Chairman : What is the average, do you know, Sir Henry ?
Sir Henry Drayton : It used to be about 800. Is it not perfectly true that 

the ratio of car repairs ought to correspond to your ratio of car mileage?
Mr. Henry : It ought to bear some relation.
Sir Henry Drayton : And it bears a fairly definite relation.
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Mr. Henry: Fairly definite.
Major Bell: You could wear a car out without running it at all.
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, you could put it on a siding and let it rot if you 

left it long enough, but you are not going to get your bumpers out of shape in 
that way, or anything of that kind.

Mr. Stewart : Would not the freight carried make a lot of difference?
Mr. Henry : It would depend to a certain extent on the nature of the 

traffic carried in it.
Sir Henry Drayton: I think I am perfectly right in saying that is the fact, 

that there is a ratio and it is also true of locomotives.
The Chairman: Mr. Henry is not in a position to say.
Mr. Henry: I could not like to venture an opinion on that.
Sir Henry Drayton : I think Mr. Henry knows pretty well.
The Chairman : We cannot go behind what he says.
Sir Henry Drayton : Probably not.
Mr. Henry: If you would like to get a statement as to our experience in a 

given year, we can give you that.
Sir Henry Drayton : I think you know enough about it to admit the obvious 

fact that there is a ratio between use and maintenance.
Mr. Henry : There ought to be.
Sir Henry Drayton : What were your car milès for 1923 as compared with 

your car miles for 1922?
Mr. Henry : That is on page 30. For 1923, the freight train loaded car 

miles were 797,189,578. For 1922 they were 708,181,197. The empty car miles 
were 413,047,269 in 1923, and 352,407,339 in 1922, making a total, loaded and 
empty, of 1,210,236,848.

Sir Henry' Drayton : As against—?
Mr. Henry: 1,060,589,336.
Sir Henry Drayton : And your repairs for the two years were what, on 

those same cars?
Mr. Henry : The accounts indicate $18,289,334 in 1923; $23,518,811 in 1922.
Sir Henry Drayton : In other words, you spent how much more in 1922?
Mr. Henry : The difference there is roughly, $5,000,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : Although you spent $5,000,000 less, the increase of car 

miles was how much?
Mr. Henry: That, of course, has to be adjusted. We ran about 150,000,000 

more car miles.
Sir Henry Drayton : In 1923 you spent approximately $5,000,000 less for 

repairs.
Mr. Stewart : Just a moment : does not that reserve enter into it?
Mr. Henry': Yes. The situation, after you adjust for the reserve, is as 

follows : in 1922 we spent $19,943,811 ; in 1923 we spent $20,586,563, to which 
would have to be added the $700,000 on account of the decrease in wages.

Sir Henry Drayton : A saving?
Mr. Henry: A saving. That was, in other words, we performed that much 

more work for that much less expense.
Mr. Stewart: What wras that,item?
Mr. Henry : $700,000, on account of decrease in wages.

61693—125
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Sir Henry Drayton : And what is the difference now between the two years, 
in the money actually spent?

Mr. Kyte: $642,000.
Mr. Henry: Plus $700,000 for wages.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then the total locomotive mileage, you have on the 

same page 81,000,000 and odd.
Mr. Henry: The locomotive mileage increased about------ .
Sir Henry Drayton: Look at item 41. That gives the total locomotive 

mileage.
Mr. Henry: Yes, that is correct. That is about 6,600,000.
Sir Henry Drayton: More miles?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : What was spent on locomotives for the two years?
Mr. Henry: We spent in 1922, on repairs, $18,651,882, and in 1923 $19,- 

134,803 ; that is $500,000 of a-difference.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Do I understand as a matter of fact that you expended 

more money in the maintenance of rolling stock in 1923 than in 1922?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Of course the car mileage was greater?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Kyte: Dos this reserve enter into this, with regard to locomotives?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : The effect of the locomotive situation is this, if I am 

right, that you have 6,600,000 more locomotive miles at an additional cost of 
maintenance, according to your figures, of $483,021?

Mr. Henry: Plus the wage reduction as well.
Sir Henry Drayton : There would be another million there?
Mr. Henry: Yes, roughly another million.
Sir Henry Drayton : That would be $1,483,000?
Mr. Henry: That is right.
Mr. Stewart: From these figures given us on car mileage, they show an 

increase of approximately 14 per cent on the mileage and in the case of repairs, 
even allowing the amount for labour, of less than seven per cent.

Mr. Henry: That is the way it worked out.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Percentages are very deceiving; two is 100 per cent 

greater than one, but it is not much of an increase.
Discussion followed.
The Committee adjourned.

Committee Room 116,
House of Commons,

Thursday, June 26, 1924.
The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping met 

at 10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. W. D. Euler, M.P., Chairman, presiding.
The Chairman : We have a quorum, and will proceed.
Hon. Mr. Graham : There is a gentleman here from the Canadian National 

Railways who would like to be heard.
Mr. Kyte: Anything to do with the Scribe Hotel?
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Hon. Mr. Graham : No, that is closed. This gentleman wants to place 
• some figures before the Committee concerning the distribution of the mail trans­

portation in Canada. The president thinks the Canadian National Railway is 
not getting its proper share. Of course, the solution of that would be up to the 
Post Office Department, but the Canadian National wants to place before the 
Committee these figures. I move Mr. Fairbairn be heard.

Mr. Jelliff: Second the motion.
The motion agreed to.
R. L. F airbairn, called and examined.

I By the Chairman:
Q. What is your name and position?—A. My name is R. L. Fairbairn, and 

my position is manager of the Postal Service Bureau in charge of passenger 
train service and mail traffic.

Hon. Mr. Graham : That ought to be a big enough job for anybody.
| The Witness : We have felt for some time that we are not receiving our
! proper proportion of the mail traffic of Canada. That has been due to the way 

the railways have grown up in Canada. The Canadian Pacific have a through 
service between the east and the west, and the two services, Montreal to Van­
couver and Toronto to Vancouver, give the Canadian Pacific Railway approxi­
mately $2,000,000 mail revenue per annum.

By the Chairman:
Q. And the Canadian Pacific has all of that?—A. Yes. That gives them a 

very decided advantage.
By Mr. Kyte:

Q. They have $2,000,000 worth of traffic, but is that all of the traffic?— 
A. No; they get practically that amount on these two services alone.

Q. Is that all the mail service between these points?—A. Through mail; 
Montreal to Vancouver and Toronto to Vancouver. Now, the mileage in Can­
ada of the Canadian National is 20,510, the Canadian Pacific 14,895. For the 
fiscal year ending March 31, 1924, the mail earnings for the Canadian National 
were $3,162,977.51—

By the Chairman:
Q. That is the gross receipts?—A. The gross receipts from the mail traffic 

in Canada. The Canadian Pacific was $3,658,937.40.
Mr. Kyte: A difference of some $300,000.
Mr. Stewart (Humboldt) : Would you repeat that figure for the Canadian 

National gross earnings?—A. I have a few copies of it here which I can pass 
around.

The Chairman : The Canadian National, $3,162,977.51. Even with a 
straight comparison the Canadian Pacific Railway has a half a million dollars 
more.

The Witness : The earnings per mile of road per annum for the Canadian 
National were $154.21, as against $245.65. Now, take the mileage of the two 
lines, the Canadian National has 57.9 per cent, and the Canadian Pacific 42.1 
per cent. If the mail traffic was divided on the basis of traffic of the two lines, 
the Canadian National Railway is short $786,911.23 per annum.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. In other words, if the -Canadian National Railways had its share of the 

mail traffic, its gross receipts would be $786,911.23 more?—A. Yes, sir. Now, as 
everybody knows, the Canadian National Railways serves practically every

[Mr. R. L. Fairbairn.]
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important centre in Canada. There is very little they do not serve. The Cana­
dian Pacific has the big advantage owing to these two services I spoke of.

Q. What are they?—A. The Montreal-Vancouver and Toronto-Vancouver 
services.

By the Chairman:
Q. I suppose they always had those because they were the original through 

line?—A. That is the reason of it, and no change was ever made, and we were 
not in a position heretofore to go after the traffic, because we did not have the 
equipment. We will have the equipment available by the first of August or 
very shortly thereafter.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Is there any difference in your time between the points named, Mont­

real to Vancouver and Toronto to Vancouver from that of the Canadian Paci­
fic?—A. I was not going after Toronto to Vancouver. I was going after Toronto 
to Winnipeg and Montreal to Winnipeg. The time there is just the same.

By the Chairman:
Q. For how long is a contract made?—A. It is not a case of a contract 

at all. The Post Office Department can determine the service and change it on 
a day’s notice. The rates are fixed by Order in Council, under which we handle 
the mail.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. I do not quite get this, Mr. Fairbairn. You have a mail contract, and 

so does the Canadian Pacific. Are you paid by the number of cars you drûw, 
or the mileage or by the pound?—A. We are paid by the size of the unit, it is 
based on space.

Q. What does that mean?—A. In the postal car service—what the Post 
Office Department call the “ R.P.O.”, with mail clerks in it—there are the full 
postal cars and the half postal cars. The clerks in them are on the Government 
pay roll, not the Railway’s, and they sort the mail en route.

Q. These are the railway mail clerks?—A. Yes, the railway mail clerks. 
The other service is a baggage car service, in which the mail is entirely in 
closed pouches, and is taken on and off by the train baggage-man. There are 
several units for that, 3-foot, 7-foot, 15-foot, 30-foot—it depends on the volume 
of the mail.

By Major Bell:
Q. There are sections of the National Railway on the through lines that is 

not served by the Post Office Department?—A. Yes.
Q. Take Cochrane, for instance. If you mailed a letter at Cochrane, what 

would happen?—A. A letter from Cochrane to Winnipeg would go round by 
North Bay. I was going on the -question of service to the public.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Who fixes the unit to be used in the service, the Railway or the Post 

Office Department?—A. The Post Office Department, and the rate the railway 
is paid is fixed by Order in Council.

Major Bell: I might say that we of the Railway sat in with the Post 
Office Department a little over a year ago. As a matter of fact, the Post Office 
Department asked the Railway Department here at headquarters if we would 
assign an official to it. Mr. Henry, who was at that time with the Railways, 
was assigned to go into the whole matter. He acted practically as an arbitrator 
between the Railways and the Post Office Department, and finally an agree­
ment was reached as to the rates—not as to the runs—and these are embodied 
in a report to Council, which afterwards was approved by Council.

[Mr. R. L. Fairbairn.]
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Mr. Harris : May I revert to that statement of Major Bell’s in regard to 
portions of the Canadian National that was not receiving service? Did I under­
stand you correctly, Major?

Major Bell: On account of having a through postal service. We are not 
asking for it all, because that would put the Canadian Pacific in the same posi­
tion the National is in now; what we are asking for is that the units of ser­
vice be changed so as to give a unit of service on both lines, and then both lines 
would have the same service.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Mr. Fairbairn, is it not possible that the same thing obtains for the 

Canadian Pacific?—A. How do you mean?
Q. In the statement that Major Bell has made in regard to parts of the 

Canadian National that do not receive attention?—A. I do not know of anything 
or any place on the Canadian Pacific where a similar situation exists. Take 
between Montreal and Toronto. Our heavy mail service is Canadian National. 
There is a postal car service on the Canadian Pacific between Montreal and 
Toronto and Ottawa and Toronto, and the public is well served.

Q. Is it within your knowdedge that the Canadian Pacific have the same 
conditions to cope with?—A. I do not know of any such place.

Q. Would you say there was no such place?—A. I think I can safely say 
there is no similar situation along the Canadian Pacific; the public is served 
very well. I know pretty well what their service is. I have the Post Office books 
issued twice a year. I have not them with me, but I know they show service 
all over.

Q. If we were to make a recommendation along the line you suggested, 
would not that condition then obtain on the Canadian Pacific?—A. No, sir, 
that would not take away service to the public. I wanted to show wherein it is 
of great importance along the lines of the Canadian National. Take Smooth 
Rock Falls, where newsprint plants are going up. The mail service there is 
very important. They want good mail service as well as train service. The 
same applies all over in regard to the mail service. The through service on the 
Imperial Limited, trains 1 and 2, C.P.R., has a full postal car. They have the 
same from Toronto to Vancouver on trains 3 and 4. We ask that the Montreal- 
Vancouver service on the- Canadian Pacific be reduced to an apartment car, 
and the Toronto-Winnipeg service on the Canadian Pacific be reduced to an 
apartment car, and that apartment car service be authorized on the Canadian 
National trains which make the same time. That will give the public along 
the Canadian National Railways a very efficient service all the way through. 
It will not in any way take away service from the public along the Canadian 
Pacific. You cannot advocate taking away service from the public, but we do 
want service given to the people along our line, and we do want the additional 
revenue we are entitled to on account of our mileage.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. How are these places served at the' present time?—A. They are served 

by side service in different ways. For instance, take a letter going from Mont­
real to Hearst. It goes out of there on the Soo train of the Canadian Pacific 
leaving here at 11.15 p.m. standard time, and goes to North Bay and is trans­
ferred to a local train on the T. & N. 0., arriving Cochrane 10 o’clock at night; 
goes to the post office at Cochrane, and goes forward in baggage service from 
Cochrane 24 hours later to Hearst. .

Hon. Mr. Graham : All this is interesting, but let me ask one question. 
Let us have a sample of this service as we go along, because we know nothing 
about it only what the witness tells us.

[Mr. R. L. Fairbairn.]



184 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. How far is it from Cochrane, say, to Armstrong? I am picking out two 

places here on the Canadian National Railway.—A. 375 miles. That is, 
roughly.

Q. That is on the Canadian National Railways?—A. Yes, sir.
Q. Supposing a letter was mailed at Cochrane for Armstrong, what becomes 

of it?—A. My understanding is that it moves via North Bay to Winnipeg.
Q. It goes to North Bay? How many miles?—A. Cochrane to North Bay, 

and North Bay to Winnipeg on the C.P.R.—
Q. I want to find out how far that letter travels. It is 375 miles from 

Cochrane to Armstrong on the Canadian National?—A. Yes. It will travel 
approximately 1,700 miles.

Q. Let us get this thing out. You know all about this, but we want to 
know. From Cochrane it goes to North Bay via the T. & N. 0.?—A. 253 miles.

Q. From North Bay where does it go—Winnipeg?—A. Winnipeg.
Q. How many miles is that?—A. Approximately 1,100.
Q. And from Winnipeg— '—A. Back to Armstrong, approximately 375 

miles.
Q. On the Canadian National Railways?—A. Yes, baggage service.
Q. It goes 375 miles from Winnipeg east, while if it travelled from Coch­

rane to Armstrong, it would be the same distance direct?—A. Yes.
By the Chairman:

Q. What wrould be the difference in time?—A. On that particular case the 
run is a little slow—it is about a 12-hour run.

Q. And how long does it take under present conditions to travel 1,700 
miles?—A. 70 hours.

■ Q. Put it into days, and we will understand it better?—A. Well, three 
days.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. That letter posted at Cochrane; is it the Canadian National all the way 

from Cochrane to Armstrong, or does the Canadian Pacific carry it from North 
Bay to Winnipeg?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. It does not strike the Canadian National until it goes the 375 miles 

from Winnipeg?
Major Bell: It comes from Cochrane on the T. & N. O., to North Bay, 

and then via the Canadian Pacific Railway to Winnipeg, and then strikes 
us at Winnipeg.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. You have a direct service between those points?—A. Yes, the Con­

tinental Limited on the Canadian National Railway runs by way of Ottawa, 
North Bay, Cochrane, Armstrong, Winnipeg, Melville, Saskatoon, Edmonton, 
Jasper Park, Kamloops to Vancouver

By the Chairman:
Q. It would not employ any greater cost to the Post Office Department to 

follow out your suggestion?—A. I don’t think it would. I think that can be 
worked out so that it would not cost the Post Office Department any more, but 
it would give us a greatly improved route.

[Mr. R. L. Fairbaim.]
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By Mr. Stewart:
Q. You spoke of putting on two compartment cars service instead of one 

full car on the Canadian Pacific?—A. In that case we might have to adjust 
the rates somewhat.

Q. How would we stand, at the present time, with two compartment cars?
It would cost-----  A. It would cost five cents a mile more. The rate for the
full car is 35 cents, and for an apartment car is 20 cents.

By Major Bell:
Q. Under your plan there what would the two lesser units cost?—A. 40 cents, 

20 cents each, but the Postmaster General is not anxious to increase the expenses 
of the Department, and we are not anxious to increase them, but I think we can 
find some good grounds on which to work that part out.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Have you any figures of what that would mean?—A. A change in service 

would have to be by Order in Council and the Cabinet would have to be satisfied 
on the expense part of it.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Would this reduce the money to be paid to the C.P.R.?—A. Yes, sir.

By the Chairman:
Q. Decrease it exactly to the extent that it would increase the Canadian 

National?—A. Yes.
Q. Which you have based on the relative mileage of the two systems?—

A. Yes.
By Major Bell:

Q. As a, matter of fact, you have got to take a letter from Hearst, for 
instance, to Armstrong—it comes down to North Bay, and then is carried along 
this long route to Winnipeg and back again. All that would be cut out. You 
would only be carrying it the 375 miles, so on the total of the year, even by 
paying 40 cents for these two lesser units, instead of 35 cents, the chances are 
it would even up?—A. It would make a considerable reduction.

Q. In other words, we are wasting money by sending it all around the 
country, and this would even it up?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. I gathered from the conversation between the Chairman and yourself 

that the cost would be exactly the same?—A. That is what would have to be 
worked out. It is not only a case of having it cost the Post Office Department 
more money ; the Canadian National Railway feels it is entitled to more mail 
revenue, and there is no question but the public throughout Canada will be 
given a more efficient mail service. I think that is one of the prime consider­
ations.

Q. Will you explain the difference between the 35 cent unit and the two 20 
cent units?. What are they?—A. The one is a full car and the other is a half 
car.

Q. What service is in the full cars—A. Railway mail clerks are in both cars.
Q. Would there be as many railway mail clerks in a full car as in a com­

partment car?—A. There are more railway mail clerks in a full car than an 
apartment car. The full postal cars between Montreal and Vancouver and 
Toronto and Vancouver carry a full staff. I do not know how many men that 
is, but it is either six or eight men.

[Mr. R. L. Fairbairn.]
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Q. How many on the staff of the compartment cars?—A. They would 
work three or four men, according to the volume of the mail.

Q. You do not know exactly?—A. No, there are some which run with 
one, and others with two, three or four.

Q. Speaking of the 40 cent units and the 35 cent unit: you do not take 
into your equation the number of railway mail clerks on the pay-rolls?—A. No.

Q. Then it would be necessary for us also to consider the number of clerks 
on the pay-roll?—A. By reducing the units and the volume of mail on the 
Canadian Pacific, it would reduce the number of postal clerks, but it would 
switch these to the Canadian National.

Q. You would have half the number of railway mail clerks on the 20 cent 
unit than on the 35?—A. Yes.

Q. I understood you would have three or four in the one case, and seven or 
eight in the other?—A. It all depends on the volume of mail. I know a number 
of compartment-car runs where they are working with two.

Q. You have not taken that into your calculation?-—A. No. I think that 
is a detail which can be worked out very easily by the Post Office Depart­
ment.

Q. Have you any evidence from the Post Office Department that you can 
submit to us—A. No, I have nothing.

Q. You have no word about those suggested changes from the Post Office 
Department?—A. No. I do not think it would cost them anything in the matter 
of clerks. This is a suggestion of my own, but I think if this Committee would 
recommend the split to be made in this sendee, to give the Canadian National 
Railway a greater proportion of revenue, and give the public a better service 
the detail of expenses would be checked up by the Post Office Department. It 
would have to go to the Cabinet for an Order in Council before the change 
would be made, and the expense would be checked up prior to the Order in 
Council being issued. That would be gone into very carefully, and in the case 
of any disputed item we would have to sit in and see what we could work out.

Q. I understand your service will be ready by August 1st?—A. Yes, about
that.

Q. Is it the desire of your company that this Committee should take this 
seriously into consideration at this time, or wait until you are ready?—A. It is 
certainly our desire that this be taken into consideration now. because it is a 
thing that requires considerable work in advance before the Post Office Depart­
ment could make the switch. They could hardly make the switch before August 
1st.

By the Chairman:
Q. That is what you are here for, to press the matter?—A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. Graham : As a matter of fact, to my mind this Committee could 

not make any recommendation any further than that the matter be investigated, 
because it might entail the expenditure of a considerable amount of money. It 
it a pretty big problem, and is really a matter for the Canadian National Rail­
ways to state their position for the consideration of the Post Office Department 
and the Government, because this is really a Post Office matter.

Mr. Harris : I appreciate that
Hon. Mr. Graham: If we could get the representations of the Canadian 

National Railway— •
The Chairman: It is undoubtedly important for the Railway.
Hon. Mr. Graham : So it is. I do not think it will be wise to make a recom­

mendation until the Post Office Department were to take it up.
[Mr. R. L. Fairbaim.]
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By Mr. Harris:
Q. Are you acquainted with the different rates of pay, as it were, for the 

different mail clerks on the 20 cent service and the 35 cent service? In other 
words, are you prepared to give the Committee an idea as to the scale of wages 
—a comparative scale—that these different mail clerks would receive on the 
basis of the-35 cent units, and the 20 cent units?—A. No, I am not posted as to 
the wages. I understand, though, that the size of the postal unit has no effect 
on the wages ; the wage question is entirely on seniority—length of service.

Q. Can you tell us what the general practice is with regard to the number 
of seniors carried on the 35 cent unit, and the number of seniors on the 20 cent 
unit?—A. The number of men carried is entirely dependent on the^amount of 
mail.

Q. I am thinking of the class of men. Is it logical to assume there must 
be one senior mail clerk on a 20 cent unit?—A. I cannot say as to that.

Q. Would you say there was no such thing as a supervisor?—A. No. I do 
not know what they pay their men or anything about that. I have never asked 
any questions along that line.

Mr. Stewart: If my memory serves me right, Mr. Chairman, there was a 
question on the Order Paper this year regarding this matter, and I have a recol­
lection that the answer as to why the Canadian National and Canadian Pacific 
Post Office contracts were different was that in certain regions the Canadian 
National Railway did not give the equipment necessary to give the service. 
That statement Ï presume is true?

The Witness: We have the equipment, but we have to handle the service 
which the Post Office Department gives us.

By the Chairman:
Q. You will have this larger equipment in August?—A. Yes.
Q. You are not ready at the moment?—A. Speaking about getting things 

ready, the Post Office Department could not swing this on short notice. In 
making a change in the service the Post Office authorities have to go in and 
revise the mailing lists of all the publications. For instance, take the Montreal 
Weekly Star, which has a very large distribution throughout Canada. Their 
mailing lists are made up in a certain form and as the papers come off the press 
they are put into pouches according to the postal runs in Canada. When there 
is a change in the service the postal men have to revise all these mailing lists, 
so the papers will go to the proper trains. That takes time. You cannot do it 
in a day or two. I doubt if the Post Office Department could be ready by 
August 1st, there is so much work involved "in it.

Hon Mr. Graham: You will not be called upon by August 1st to inaugurate 
this new arrangement. This is a big question. I was very anxious you should 
put your case before the Commitee, because we want to get all the information 
we can.

The Witness : I was just giving this as an illustration to show that it is not 
a thing you can change overnight; there is too much involved in it. The prin­
cipal things in this through service—perhaps the principal thing—is the service 
to the public all the way through. For instance, all mail between Winnipeg and 
the east, and points west of Edmonton on the Canadian National right through 
to Prince Rupert would be expedited 24 hours by service on the Continental 
Limited, trains 1 and 2. There are other cases which can be cited.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Give us a citation for mail going to Edmonton or west?—A. Well, in 

regard to mail for Edmonton, the only difference it would make in a letter from
[Mr. R. L. Fairbairn.]
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Montreal to Edmonton or Toronto to Edmonton is that mail would arrive at 
Edmonton at night instead of the next morning. It would insure delivery the 
first thing in the morning. The mail eastbound from all Canadian National 
local points, east of Winnipeg, would be expedited in delivery 24 hours all the way 
through. It would cut out practically all circuitous routes of mails all through 
Canada. You could write volumes showing all the circuitous routes used all 
the way through Canada.

By the Chairman:
Q. Have you enough copies of this memorandum so that each member of 

the Committee may have one?—A. No, but I will have some more made.
By Mr. Kyte:

Q. How about the mails from Halifax west—the Overseas Mail? Are they 
carried by the Canadian National?—A. From Halifax to Montreal only; then 
the C. P.R. get it.

Q. The forwarding of that mail further west is done by the Canadian 
Pacific?—A. From Montreal, yes. The Canadian National only handles it from 
Halifax to Montreal.

Q. Is there any reason why the Canadian National could not handle it?— 
A. There is occasionally a full car that will be handled through to Winnipeg, 
but there is very little Winnipeg mail that we handle west of Montreal.

Q. In arriving at this difference in the mail earnings of the two systems, 
was this fact taken into account in your calculations, that the overseas mail 
from Montreal west goes via the Canadian Pacific?—A. Yes.

Q. That is a difference in the earnings of both systems all over Canada?— 
A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Supposing this: The Canadian Pacific steamships handle their mail on 

their own trains. You have a connection with the White Star Line, the White 
Star carries mail?—A. Yes, they carry some mail, there is a great variation in 
the boats that carry mail.

Q. Take any other line: am I to understand that you take mail off of one 
of these other liners that carry mail, at Halifax, would carry it, not all the way 
through but only to Montreal?—A. That is right.

Mr. Kyte: That seems very strange.
The Witness: They cart that mail from the Canadian National to the 

Canadian Pacific station at Montreal.
By Mr. Stewart:

Q. Does that occasion any delay in the through service?—A..It might some­
times, but at other times it would not. It all depends on the time of arrival of 
the train carrying the mail at Montreal. Usually with the overseas mail it 
comes in in special trains. It might come in at a time that would not make 
any difference or it might be our train was going right through to Montreal, and 
the mail would miss the connection, and it would occasion a delay, perhaps of 
24 hours.

By Major Bell:
Q. Is it not a fact that the Post Office Department would lose money on 

this haul from Hearst to Armstrong? To illustrate that, supposing a man has a 
parcel at Hearst he wants to send to Armstrong. Instead of using your line 
with the long haul, he would send it direct by express?—A. Yes, he could do that. 
Now, the mail comes from Great Britain this way, the carriage of that mail is 
paid for by the British Government to the Canadian port. The Canadian
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Government has nothing to do with it. On the eastbound mail to Great Britain 
the carriage is paid by the Canadian Government, but on the westbound mail 
the Canadian Government has no say about the routing of it. They select 
their steamers according to sailing date and speed of boat. The liners carrying 
a majority of the mail on the Atlantic are the Canadian Pacific, the Cunard, and 
the White Star-Dominion. We handle all the mail out of Halifax. That is 
on account of our service. Anything coming into St. John is handled by the 
Canadian Pacific. They have the short line there, and are entitled to it. 
During the summer season the mail comes in to Quebec, is taken off the boat at 
Quebec. The C.P.R. handles mail from their own steamers, and we are handling 
mail ex-Cunard and White Star-Dominion Line steamers. The C.P.R. have 
more sailings and also coupled with that fact is the fact that the White Star- 
Dominion and Cunard Lines have subsidies from the British Government for 
the carriage 6f mail to New York and Boston and on account of that agreement 
they are inclined to favour the Canadian Pacific steamships with the Canadian 
mail traffic to divide between the tw'o lines because the Cunard Line and the 
White Star-Dominion do get the heavy mail traffic to New York and Boston— 
the American mail; so the Canadian Pacific carry a great deal more of overseas 
mail into Quebec than the other lines do. We are so short, we figure that the 
proportion of overseas traffic in mail for the C.P.R. should be reduced, and a 
portion routed Canadian National Railways in order to make up what we feel 
is our proportion of traffic due us on account of our mileage. I estimated that 
item for this year at $31,000. I could not get all the details, the destinations of 
every car, or tell what volume of mail went beyond Winnipeg, but that is a fairly 
close estimate of what it would amount to this year. There is also another* 
item. That is the overflow mail between Toronto and Montreal. The main 
postal service between Toronto and Montreal is on the Canadian National 
Railways but there is compartment postal service on the Canadian Pacific which 
gives the public along that line full service. On three nights a week there is 
overflow mail which goes by way of the Canadian Pacific to Montreal. We 
believe the overflow mail should be routed Canadian Railway every night. On 
three nights a week our equipment is standing idle. We estimate that roughly 
at $16,000.

The Chairman : If you are through with that part of your statement I 
wanted to revert to the matter we were discussing a moment ago. But finish 
your statement first.

The Witness: The four items of mail revenue would be the Montreal- 
Vancouver, Toronto-Winnipeg, the, overseas mail to Quebec, and the overflow 
Toronto to Montreal. This would give us approximately $600,000 revenue 
per annum, and we would still be down on our proportion.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. These figures are at the present rate, and not increasing the cost tc the 

Post Office Department?—A. We might have to make some readjustments in the 
rates so as not to increase the costs to the Post Office Department.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. You cannot say it would not increase them.
The Chairman : That is under the control of the Government.
The Witness: That is under the control of the Government.

By the Chairman:
Q. I would like to return to that striking example in connection with the 

carrying of the mail from Cochrane to Armstrong wherein you state if the mail 
were given to the National there the distance would be some 375 miles as com-

[Mr. R. L. Fairbaim.]
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pared with 1,700 miles under present conditions, with an additional saving of 
two days in time; if you carried it, it would take but one day, while under 
present conditions it takes three days?—A. I would not swear to Cochrane and 
Armstrong—that the mail goes that way but I know from points west of Arm­
strong they are doing it.

Q. Are there possibly similar instances in connection with the National lines 
where you may have contracts to carry mail, in which you travel longer dis­
tances than might be necessary if it were carried by the Canadian Pacific? The 
point I want to get at is this: if these things prevail on both lines would it not 
be a good idea for the Government to take up the whole situation and try to 
work out an allocation of these mail-carrying contracts on the basis of short- 
distance hauls, and a saving of time, and efficient saving to the public?—A. I 
don’t know anything of the Canadian Pacific being in the same situation—.

Q. The Canadian National Railways, you mean? I was asking if there wrere 
any similar conditions on the Canadian National?—A. No, the Canadian Pacific 
was the first line between the east and the west, and the mail service has been 
built up because of their being the first through line between the east and the 
west and I think I can safely say that every line of the Canadian Pacific has an 
efficient postal service. There might be some cases where people think they have 
more service; there might be one or two trains which would not have service, but 
it is a very safe statement to say that the public is exceedingly well served along 
the Canadian Pacific Railway. It is the new line that always suffers in postal 
service.

Q. You are entitled to a fair proportion, but if any rearrangement is made 
I think it should be made with the added purpose of giving quicker and more 
efficient service to the people along the various lines. In some places it might 
be -well for your line to have it, other places for the C.P.R.—A. I do not know 
of any place where any of the public are suffering on account of circuitous routing 
of the Canadian Pacific. It is always the other way ; it is always against the 
people on the Canadian National Railway.

The Chairman: There is room there for readjustment.
The Witness: That is, where it improves the service to the people.

By the Chairman:
Q. Would you like to make any further statements, Mr. Fairbairn?—A. 

The statement I have here gives example after example where we could greatly 
improve the service to the public.

Hon. Mr. Graham : I will tell you how we could have this statement before 
us. We could have it copied in our minutes, and then every member of our 
Committee would have it available.

Mr. Stewart : I think that is the proper way.
Mr. Harris: Yes.
The Chairman : Then that will be done.
The Witness: I thought perhaps some members of the Committee would 

want to ask me some questions on this. Perhaps they will later on.
(Whereupon the memorandum referred to was offered and admitted and by 

order of the Committee, on instructions of the Chairman is included in and made 
a part of this record, and is in words and figures as follows, to wit:)

Canadian National Railways

• . Montreal, Que., June 25. 1924.

Routing of Canadian Mail Trafic
The present division of mail traffice between the Canadian Railways has been a matter 

of much concern to our officials for some time, for the following reasons :
[Mr. R. L. Fairbairn.]
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C.N.R.
Mileage in Canada............................................... 20,510
Mail earnings in Canada, Fiscal Year ending

March 31, 1924................................................ $3,162,977 51
Mail earnings per mile of road......................... 154 21
Total Canadian mileage of the two lines is

35,405, yielding............................................ 57.9%
On Mileage basis, division of mail revenue

should be......................................................... 3,949,888 74
On Mileage basis, C.N.R. is entitled to addi­

tional traffic of................................................ 786,911 23

C.P.R.
14,895

$3,658,937 40 
245 65

42.1%

2,872,026 17

The Canadian National Railway's serves practically every important centre in Canada. 
The through mail services between the East and the West are on the Canadian Pacific 

Railway, and this results in the Canadian Pacific Railway handling a greater proportion of 
mail traffic than it is entitled to by mileage and. also, in mail being handled via circuitous 
routes, thereby depriving the public along Canadian National Lines of the fast and efficient
service to which they are justly entitled.

I would respectfully suggest the following :—
(A) That with the exception of services serving strictly local communities along 

other lines, all growth of services should be along the Canadian National Railways, 
so that the main mail services of Canada will be based upon Canadian National Rail­
ways train services.

(B) That instructions be issued that the following services be authorized on the 
Canadian National Railways, which will give the railway the following estimated 
additional mail earnings per annum :—

1. Apartment postal car service, Trains 1 and 2, Montreal^ ancouver.
2. Apartment postal car service, Trains 3 and 4, Toronto-Winnipeg.. .
3. All Overseas Mail ex steamers, Quebec

$391,864 00 
176,076 00 
31,000 00

4. All overflow Mail, Toronto-Montreal..................................................... 15,878 56

Total................................................................................................... $614,818 56
Item 1.—Montreal-Vancouver Service, There is now operating on Canadian Pacific 

Trains 1 and 2, the “ Imperial Limited,” Montreal-Vancouver, a full postal car, and, in addi­
tion thereto, therè is considerable overflow rpail westbound from Montreal to Winnipeg and 
west thereof. The estimated annual mail revenue of the Canadian Pacific on this service is 
approximately $850,000.00. In addition to the through service on these trains there is also 
service on other trains between Montreal and Sudbury, and Winnipeg and Moose Jaw.

On Canadian National Trains 1 and 2. the “ Continental Limited,” Montreal-Vancouver, 
the mail service is exceedingly restricted, being limited to baggage car service—3-foot unit 
only in a limited territory, and the revenue received is a mere trifle, as follows :—

Between Service Annual
Revenue

Cochrane, Ont.-Hearst, Ont............................ Dailv ex. Sunday..........
$ cts.
3,230 16

3 foot unit.
Baggage car service.

Hearst, Ont.-Armstrong, Ont........................................................... Tri-weekly..................... 3,194 88

Armstrong, Ont.-Sioux Lookout, Ont..............................................

3 foot unit.
Baggage car service.

Tri-weekly..................... 1,734 72
3 foot unit.
Baggage car service.

Sioux Lookout, Ont .-Winnipeg, Man..................... Daily ex. Sunday.......... Free Service
3 foot unit. See Note 1.
Baggage car service.

Edmonton, Alta.-Jasper, Alta.......................................................... Daily ex. Sunday.......... Free Service
Edmonton, Alta.-Mt. Robson, B.C. 3 foot unit. See Note 2.
Jasper, Alta.-Mt. Robson, B.C. Baggage Car Service.
Jasper, A1 ta -Vancouver, B.C.

Lucerne, B.C.-Kamloops, B.C............................................. Tri-weekly..................... 3,162 92
3 foot unit.

Total Revenue Service.................................................

Baggage car service.
11,329 68

Total Free Service........................................................ 11,626 48
[Mr. R. L. Fairbaim.]
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Note 1.—Provided free by Railway. This service started some years ago in order to 
give Postal Service to Railway Employees, Annual value of this service is $6,285.04.

Note 2.—Provided free by the Railway from June 1st to September 30th for accom­
modation of summer tourist traffic. Annual value of this service is $5,341.44.

We, therefore, ask that mail service on the Canadian Pacific Trains 1 and 2, the 
“ Imperial Limited,” Montreal-Vancouver, be reduced from a full postal car to an apart­
ment postal car, and that apartment car service be authorized on the “ Continental 
Limited ” Trains 1 and 2, Montreal-Vancouver, of the Canadian National Railways, which 
will increase the mail revenue of the Canadian National Railways by approximately 
$391,864 per annum, and give an increase of 836,938 per annum to the Temlskaming and 
Northern Ontario Railway.

This change would not in any way affect the service to the public along the Canadian 
Pacific Railway, but would provide a greatly improved service to the public along the 
panadian National Railways.

Apartment postal car service on the “ Continental Limited,” C.N.R. Trains 1 and 2, 
Montreal-Winnipeg-iVancouver would' eliminate numerous transfers at' junction points 
between C.P.R. and C.N.R. stations, which will tend to expedite the service and at the same 
time reduce Post Office Department transfêr expenses.

The service to the public would be greatly quickened as follows:—
Mail between Montreal, Ottawa and stations east on the one hand, and T. & N. O. Ry. 

stations on the other hand, is now handled on C.P.R. trains 17 and 18 between Montreal 
land North Bay and on T. & N. 0. local trains Nos. 17 and 18. A letter from Montreal or 
Ottawa to Cochrane would arrive at Cochrane at 7.30 p.m. instead of 10.35 p.m. The 
answer could be written and posted the following morning and would leave Cochrane at 
12.20 noon, arriving Ottawa 5.40 a.m., or Montreal 8.55 a.m., the following morning, whereas 
under present service the answer would not leave Cochrane until the second morning 
following arrival, at 6.50 a.m.

Delivery of westbound mail at important stations on the T. & N. O. Ry. would be 
greatly expedited and the eastbound mail, being handled on a fast limited train, operating 
approximately five hours later than the train on which mail is now handled, would give the 
public greatly improved service.

Mail between stations east and south of Cochrane on the one hand and stations west 
of Cochrane on the other hand, is required to be handled via Cochrane Post Office for 
fsortation purposes and on account of the lack of train connections with T. & N. O. local 
trains on which handled. With apartment service on C.N.R. Trains 1 and 2 the handling 
of this mail to and from important stations west of Cochrane at which trains stop would 
be quickened 24 hours.

The service west of Hearst, Ont., to Sioux Lookout, Ont., is tri-weekly, and where the 
volume of traffic warrants, daily service could be given.

Mail between T. & N. O. Stations and C. N. R. stations west of Sioux Lookout, Ont., 
to and including Winnipeg and all points west thereof is now handled via North Bay and 
C. P. R. trains. In the case of Winnipeg the delay is over 24 hours and if to or from a 
station between Winnipeg and Siioux Lookout the delay is approximately 48 hours. Note— 
a letter Winnipeg to Hearst is handled via Sudbury, North Bay and Cochrane.

The delivery of eastern mail at important stations west of Winnipeg would be greatly 
expedited, as follows:—

Rivers, Man., 24 hours.
Melville, Sask., 24 hours.
Watrous, Sask., 24 hours.
Saskatoon, Sask. Noon delivery instead of 3.45 p.m., which would enable letters to be 

answered and reply mailed on the day received.
Biggar, Sask., 24 hours.
Edmonton, and all points west of Edmonton on C. N. R., 24 hours.
Eastbound mail from points west of Winnipeg to Ottawa, Montreal and East thereof 

twould arrive destination in nearly all cases 24 hours earlier than at present.
Locally in Western Canada the handling of all mail traffic would be greatly expedited.
Mail between

Winnipeg
And

every important business centre west of Winnipeg and east of Edmonton and 
all C. N. R. local stations east of Edmonton on the one hand

And
All C. N. R. stations west of Edmonton—would be expedited 24 hours.

The handling of mail between Vancouver and Edmonton and the delivery at Van­
couver or Edmonton as the case may be, wi)l be expedited from 8 to 24 hours, varying 
according to the time at which the letter is posted, all such mail now being handled via 
Calgary.

[Mr. R. L. Fairbaim.]
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There is considerable mail between stations west of Edmonton on the one hand and 
; Vancouver and contiguous territory on the other hand which is now routed via Calgary 
' and the handling of this mail on C. N. R. trains 1 and 2 would be quickened 24 to 48 hours.

Item, ê—Toronto-Winnipeg service—A full postal car operates Toronto-^ ancouver on 
I Canadian Pacific Trains 3 and 4, and the estimated annual mail earnings thereon are $800,- 

000. In addition to the through service there is local service on other trains between 
Toronto and Sudbury.

Canadian National Toronto-Winnipeg Trains Nos. 3 and 4 operate via Capreol, 
jLonglac and Nakina, and the only mail service authorized thereon is baggage car service— 
0 3-foot unit between Sudbury and Longlac.

We ask that the service on Canadian Pacific Trains 3 and 4 be reduced to apartment 
car service between Toronto and Winnipeg, and that apartment car service be authorized 
on Canadian National Trains 3 and 4.

With an apartment postal car service on these trains, which stop at all important 
stations en route, the public can, where the traffic warrants it, be given a daily service and 
the delivery of mail will be quickened as follows :—

Mail between Ontario points gouth of Sudbury to stations between Sioux Lookout and 
Winnipeg is now handle^ via Winnipeg. Direct service on trains 3 and 4 would quicken 
the delivery of this mail by over 24 hours. A letter between Sudbury and Armstrong is 
now handled via North Bay and Cochrane. Handling on Trains 3 and 4 would expedite 
delivery by 48 hours.

Mail between Ontario points and C. N. R. points west of Winnipeg would be greatly 
expedited and transfer of such mail at Winnipeg would be eliminated which would tend 
to reduce Post Office transfer expense at Winnipeg.

Eastbound mail from C. N. R. stations west of Winnipeg for Eastern Canada arrives 
Winnipeg in the morning after departure of C. N. R. train No. 2 for the east, and as a 
result goes forward on C. P. R. No. 4 from AWnnipeg in the evening, resulting in a delay 
of from 8 to 12 hours or more in delivery at destination, and in a great many cases the 
delay will be 24 hours.

A letter from Melville, Sask., to Toronto, when handled on the C. P. R. east of Win­
nipeg arrives Toronto at 4.00 p.m.. Standard Time, meaning delivery the following day, 
(whereas if handled on the C. N. R. No. 4 from Winnipeg to Toronto the arrival time at 
Toronto is 7.20 a.m., and delivery would be made the morning of arrival. The same is true 
of every other local point west of Winnipeg.

Item 3—Overseas Mail ex Steamers, Quebec. At the present time Overseas Mail 
traffic ex steamers. Quebec, is divided between the two lines—mail arriving on Canadian 
Pacific steamers going forward C. P. R. rail, and mail arriving on Cunard and White Star- 
Dominion Line steamers going forward C. N. R. rail. The Canadian National Railways 
(can give the service required and can handle a much greater volume of traffic with the 
cars now required for this service. It is estimated that the routing of all of this traffic 
via the Canadian National Railways would provide additional mail revenue of $31,000 
per annum.

Item li—Overflow Mail Traffic Toronto-Montreal. The main mail services between 
Toronto and Montreal are now handled by the Canadian National Railways, the service 
along the Canadian Pacific lines being confined to that required by the public, with the 
exception that on three nights per week a car of overflow mail is routed C.P.R., Toronto- 
Montreal—during the balance of the week this overflow car being handled by the Canadian 
National Railways.

The equipment used by the Canadian National Railways stands idle on the days the 
Canadian Pacific handles this traffic.

The estimated annual earnings on this traffic now handled by the Canadian Pacific
Railway is $15,878.56.

General:—In connection with equipment for the handling of this traffic, please note 
the following :—

Item 1—Montreal-Vancouver : Equipment will be available in August.
Item 2—Toronto-Winnipeg: Equipment is now available.
Item 3—Overseas mail ex Quebec : Equipment is now available.
Item 4—Overflow Mail Toronto-Montreal : Equipment is now available. *
It appears it should be possible to make arrangements whereby this mail traffic can 

be routed via the Canadian National Railways without any increase in operating expenses 
to the Post Office Department.

The Chairman: Any further questions to ask the witness?
The witness discharged.
The Chairman : Shall we go on now with the estimates?

[Mr. R. L. Fairbairn.]
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Mr. Harris: Item No. 106 in the Railway Operating Revenue for the year 
ending December, 1923: There seems to be quite a little shrinkage in the revenue 
for carrying mails—on page 18. Perhaps Mr. Fairbairn could enlarge on that 
for us.

Major Bell: Perhaps I could explain that to you, Mr. Harris. We had 
this readjustment and the cost of carrying the mails was reduced to the Post 
Office Department. That affected the Canadian Pacific just the same as the 
Canadian National; that is, lessening of the service to the Canadian National 
Railways and lessening the cost to the Post Office Department.

Mr. Harris : You have made some concessions to the Post Office Depart­
ment with regard to rates?

Major Bell: Yes.
Mr. Harris: Due, perhaps, to the underlying principle of competition?
Major Bell: No, what is the fair rate? Mr. Henry, can you give us details 

on that? He has gone into that from top to bottom with the Post Office Depart­
ment and the different railways, and we finally got to the place where we all 
agreed that it should be readjusted.

Hon. Mr. Graham : The Post Office Department brings in an Order-in- 
Council after an agreement is made in regard to the new rates.

Mr. Fairbairn : In addition to that there have been a few cases where the 
Post Office Department has reduced the character of the services on the trains ; 
they have eliminated the postal car service and put in a baggage car service, 
which would mean a reduction in the Post Office Department expenses ; they 
would not have to pay the railway as much, and would cut out the wages of 
the postal clerks, so that is reflected in that item. There is a big change going 
on all the time, and they are watching their expenses very closely.

The Chairman; Yesterday we were going on with the statement of expen­
ditures. I suppose we might continue with that now. Had you completed your 
examination of operating expenses in connection with Maintenance of Way, 
Structures and Equipment?

Mr. ICyte: That is pages 18 and 19?
The Chairman : Yes, and 20, I think. At the foot of page 20 begins the 

Traffic Expenses. I do not know as we touched that. Are there any other ques­
tions before we go on with the examination of Traffic Expenses?

Mr. Stewart : I would like a little explanation on a matter I do not under­
stand in regard to items 151 and 152 “Joint facilities,” giving first a credit and 
then a debit following.

Mr. Henry: This represents the joint use of facilities at terminals, the 
joint trackage as between different railways.

Mr. Stewart: How do*you get a revenue out of it?
Mr. Henry” We get a revenue when some other carrier uses your facilities, 

and the expense part of it when we have to pay to use the facilities of other 
carriers.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Would not the station facilities here be an example?
Mr. Henry: Yes, that would.
Hon. Mr. Graham : The C.P.R. pays the Canadian National Railways a 

certain amount per year for the use of its facilities. At another place, say in 
Quebec, the Canadian National Railways has to pay the Canadian Pacific.

The Chairman : Mr. Henry, you have a credit marked in one type and a 
debit in another type. Is there any significance in that?

Mr. Henry : .One is a credit and the other is a debit.
Major Bell: It takes the place of red and black ink in the printing.
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Mr. Stewart : It seemd a peculiar thing to me that it should appear under 
“Revenue”; I could not understand how a credit and debit could both appear 
in one item of “ Revenue it looks to me like an outgoing account.

Mr. Henry: Account 101?
Mr. Stewart: 151 and 152.
Hon. Mr. Graham : It gives you a quick and ready way to find the differ­

ence, and strike a balance.
Mr. Henry: The definition for that is this : “This account shall include 

the carriers proportion of "revenue collected by others in connection with the 
operation of joint trackage, yards, terminals, and other facilities.” That is the 
credit endi At the debit end it says, “ This account shall include all proportion 
of the revenue from the operation of joint track, yard, terminals and other 
facilities which is creditable to other companies.”

The Chairman : Is that any clearer to you, Mr. Stewart?
Mr. Stewart : I think I see it the way it is, yes.
Hon. Mr. Graham : If the he-bird takes the worm, it is a male.
Mr. Stewart: It is revenue to somebody else, not to the Canadian National 

Railways.
The Chairman: We could hardly have both appear as revenue.
Mr. Cooper: The credit account is the payment to the Canadian National 

Railways, and the debit account is the payments by the Canadian National 
Railways.

The Chairman: If it is payment to the Canadian National Railways how 
does it get under “ Revenue ”?

Mr. Cooper: It is in the revenue account.
Mr. Kyte: That goes to make up the total revenue.
Mr.-Stewart: It is deducted in this statement, Mr. Kyte.
The Chairman : It goes to make up the account.
Mr. Stewart: I did not total that up, but I presume if you added all 

these other figures to get the total you would have to deduct that $42,888.
' Mr. Henry: That is correct.

The Chairman : Anything more on page 18? Page 19.
Mr. Harris: Is that a matter of policy—the matter of separating your 

depreciation from your general account, in your Tunnels and Subways, for 
instance and several other items?

The Chairman : What is the item?
Mr. Harris: 206.
Mr. Cooper: It is only of the American lines. Take, for instance, the 

depreciation in Tunnels. There is a depreciation on the St. Clair Tunnel between 
Port Huron and Sarnia.

Mr. Harris: Does the same obtain for items 227 and 228?
Mr. Cooper: Yes.
Mr. Harris: And items 233 and 234?
Mr. Cooper : The depreciation in that group—the account is in connec­

tion with the St. Clair tunnel.
Mr. Harris: How is the depreciation taken care of on your other fixtures, 

and in your general statement? Where is the item for depreciation on your 
other fixtures throughout the country?

Mr. Cooper: It is only on the tunnel ; we accrue depreciation on roadway 
structures.

81695—131
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Mr. Harris : Only on a tunnel?
Mr. Cooper: Only on the St. Clair Tunnel. That is because it has to 

comply with .the Interstate Commerce Commission’s requirements as regards 
American roads.

Hon. Mr. Graham : That is the tunnel at Sarnia?
Mr. Cooper: Yes.
Mr. Harris : Before we leave page 19, Mr. Chairman, I would like a 

general statement as to the replacing of ties, for instance, on any of the lines, 
with these creosoted ties, where they take out an old tie that is not creosoted 
and replace it with a creosoted tie. I would like to get an idea from Mr. Henry 
as to what portion of that is charged to Betterments and what portion to Main­
tenance of Ways?

Mr. Brown: It is all charged to Operating Expense; no charge to Better­
ments there at all.

The Chairman: Although the new ties are better than the old?
Mr. Brown : They have increased life, and cost more on account of the 

treatment.
Major Bell: That has been argued out half a dozen times—
Mr. Harris: Not in Committee.
Major Bell: No, not in Committee, but in connection with the railway, and 

while in the first year we may suffer a little in having extra maintenance costs, 
it will average itself up in the long run, and it was thought better not to disturb 
that.

Mr. Harris: Will the same condition obtain if you increase the weight of 
the rail?

Mr. Brow'N : No. Increased weight of rail over what you are replacing is 
charged to Capital Account.

Mr. Harris: The bare increase?
Mr. Brown: Yes.
Mr. Harris: Where is the rçplaeing of one rail by another charged?
Mr. Brown: To Operating Expense.
Mr. Harris : The fact that there is quite a little difference in the cost of ties 

during 1923 as compared with 1922 will be due largely to the fact that there 
is less replacement.

Mr. Henry: There were a million ties replaced, but there was a decrease 
in the average price of ties, and there was an adjustment of $600,000 from 1922 
to that of 1921 ; there was a bookkeeping item amounting to $600,000 representing 
an adjustment from the previous year.

Mr. Harris : The same explanation applies for items 214, 216 and 218 
“Rails, other track material and ballast.”

Mr. Henry: In regard to rails. There was about 100 miles of new rails 
less in 1923 and about 200 miles less of relay rails.

Mr. Harris: The same applies to item 222?
Mr. Henry: That is a little increase there.
Mr. Harris: Could you enlarge a little on item 243; there is an increase 

there of some $30,000?
Mr. Henry: I think that is largely due to—(To Mr. Brown) Do you know 

what that is? I do not know offhand.
Mr. Brown : I think they are heavy repairs at the coal dock in Port Arthur.
Mr. Harris: At Port Arthur?
Mr. Brown : Yes.
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Mr. Harris : Repairs to equipment you own at present.
Mr. Brown : Repairs to the wharf and coaling dock there, yes.
Mr. Harris: Will you enlarge on item 245 “The Gas Producing Plant”? 

Is that also repairs?
Mr. Henry: That is also largely repairs, yes.
Mr. Harris: You have an Accident Prevention Association within the 

Canadian National Railways’ organization.
Mr. Henry: First aid, I suppose you would call it.
Mr. Harris: Apart from the first aid, have you a prevention association?
Mr. Henry: Safety First? Is that what you refer to?
Mr. Harris: Have you an organization within your organization that func­

tions in a like manner to the Industrial Accident Prevention Association, which 
comes under the Ontario Workmen’s Compensation Act?

Mr. Henry : Well, practically, yes.
Mr. Harris: Do you work in unison with the Workmen’s Compensation 

Board, say of the Province of Ontario?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Harris: Have you an association of your own more or less under their 

purview?
Mr. Henry: Well, not in exactly the same way—not under their purview.
Mr. Harris: Do you work in unison with their inspectors?
Mr. Henry: To a large extent.
Mr. Harris : Could you tell us just why, in a general way, there .has been a 

considerable increase in the cost of your accidents last year as compared with 
the year before?

Mr. Henry: Let me see, I think I have an explanation of that. There was 
an increase of $85,000 on the western region that was due to heavier payments 
having been made to the Compensation Boards of the provinces of Manitoba, 
Alberta and British Columbia—

Mr. Harris: That is the whole point. What rate did you have? You 
mentioned the western provinces? Did you mention any particular province?

Mr. Henry: Manitoba, Alberta and British Columbia.
Mr. Harris: What rate have you in Manitoba at the present time?
Mr. Henry- I am afraid I cannot answer that offhand.
Mr. Harris : Do you know if there has been any reduction in the rate?
Mr. Henry : I cannot answer that offhand.
Mr. Harris: You know all the manufacturing industries in Ontario, and 

all different classes of industries, have industrial accident prevention associa-. 
tions which have considerably reduced the cost of accidents.

Mr. Henry: I suppose that is correct. We pay, of course, exactly the 
same rates as any of the other concerns.

Mr. Harris: I appreciate that all manufacturing companies in the same 
group, and all traffic companies in the same group would pay the same rate. 
Has there been any effort on the part of the carriers to get a reduction in the 
rates?

Mr. Henry: I cannot answer that.
Mr. Harris: You do not know what has been paid in—
Mr. Cooper: We cannot tell you that.
Mr. Harris: You know what you paid the Board.
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Mr. Henry : We know what we paid out.
Mr. Harris: You got your returns from the Workmen’s Compensation 

Board—what they paid out.
Mr. Cooper: I know the balance to our credit, but I do not know how 

much of that is surplus. We do not know what the difference is between the 
cost'of the pensions and the amount paid in.

Mr. Harris: I don’t just get that answer.
Mr. Cooper: We know the amount to our credit with the Board but we 

do not know if there is any proportion of that considered as profit or surplus 
over and above the actual costs of the compensation payments.

I he Chairman : Should it not be considered that? If that is what you 
received over what you have paid in, and so much has come out, and so much 
stands to your credit, would that not be a surplus?

Mr. Henry: I suppose he refers to the cost of administration.
Mr. Cooper : If there is a surplus, on one case I believe the Board keeps 

it and applies it on other cases.
Mr. Harris: Have you finished your statement—
Mr. Henry: There were payments to 11 employees amounting to $45,000, 

and $12,000 was paid covering the administration expense of the Workmen’s 
Compensation Board of the provinces of Manitoba and British Columbia for 
1921 and 1922. That was included in last year.

Mr. Harris: Are you prepared to make a statement with regard to the 
insuranse, just exactly What that covers, and why it is considerably more than 
it was last year?

Mr. Henry : Prior to, I think it was May of last year, the perishable 
property of the old Canadian Government railways was not covered by insur­
ance. Subsequent to May it was all covered, and this amount credited to the 
insurance reserve. That additional amount represents insurance, largely, upon 
properties of the Canadian Government railways not previously covered.

Mr. Harris: What is the policy of the Canadian National Railways in the 
treatment of insurance? Have you any fixed policy with regard to ultimately 
carrying your own insurance?

Mr. Henry: We have. Major Bell might answer that.
Major Bell: That was all gone into yesterday.
Mr. Harris: Very well, I will not waste the time now; I will look at the 

report of yesterday’s proceedings for that. Take Item 278. Has that been 
explained?

Mr. Henry: Yes. The difference there simply represents or is due to the 
fact that the inter-company transactions have been eliminated.

Mr. Harris: If any of these items, are covered, I do not want to waste 
the time of the committee.

The Chairman : I think that has been explained, Mr. Harris.
Mr. Harris: Everything down to 337?
The Chairman : We did not take them item by item, but there was a 

general review. Now, page 20; if there is anything there we might take it next.
Mr. Harris: Has there been a general statement made with regard to 

repairs and depreciation and so on?
Mr. Stewart: There is a question I do not think we touched yesterday 

which would come in under these headings. I notice—this is the third item— 
that we have under the heading “ Superintendence ” an increase. I would like 
a statement to explain that, and I want to make this statement that at 
Saskatoon, a point with which I am fairly well acquainted, there was a good
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deal of local comment it may be as much as two years ago, over the fact 
that the Canadian National had five superintendents over the various work 
in Saskatoon, whereas the C.P.R., which is in a similar condition so far as 
mileage is concerned, had only one there. The comment was to the effect 
that the C.N.R. was overmanned as far as that was concerned. I notice there is 
still an increase in superintendence of these various works,

Mr. Henry : I think, broadly speaking, you might say that that is due 
to the general strengthening up of the supervising forces.

Mr. Stewart: On the other hand, would you care to make any comment 
as to this criticism which has been levelled at the Canadian National at that 
particular point? That it is overmanned so far as superintendents, are con­
cerned, compared with its competitor the C.P.R.

Mr. Henry: I do not think I would say that.
Major Bell: Mr. Stewart, that particular point, Saskatoon, we will wire 

Mr. Warren, our general manager there, and if you will just put a question 
we will have him wire a very full reply and have it hère for to-morrow’s meeting.

Mr. Henry: I will undertake to do that.
Major Bell: Generally speaking, when you speak of superintendents, of 

course you do not mean the ordinary superintendents of the road; you mean 
those in charge of shops and that sort of thing. That is what we call a super­
intendent, I know there are not five superintendents at Saskatoon.

Mr. Stewart : I do not even know what branches or departments they are 
at the head of.

Major Bell: You mean, speaking generally, the supervision in Saskatoon. 
I know wre have not five superintendents there; that would be out of the ques­
tion, but your statement relates to the supervision there of our senior men, that 
we have more than the Canadian Pacific.

Mr. Stewart: Yes.
Major Bell: We will give you an answer in the morning, in the greatest 

detail, from the man there.
Mr. Stewart: I want an answer that will be a reply to the local criticism. 

That was two years ago, and they may not be there at the present time.
The Chairman : We are still at page 20; any further questions there?
Mr. Harris: Has item 356 been dealt with?
The Chairman : No, I do not think so; I was just trying to finish “ Main­

tenance of Equipment”. Now we will go on to “ Traffic Expenses”. Do you 
wish to take this item by item, or merely dip into it as you are interested. I 
notice quite an increase there in industrial and immigration bureaus, from
$145,000 to $300,000.

Mr. Henry : That is due largely to the Colonization Department organ­
ized in 1923, about which I think the President gave a statement.

The Chairman : Yes, I believe he did speak about that.
Mr. Harris : Is this what you might term a domestic expense or a foreign 

expense?
Mr. Henry: It is partly the one and partly the other.
Major Bell: If you look at page 7 of the report you will find an explana­

tion by the President.
Mr. Harris: Before leaving Maintenance of Equipment, if I may refer 

to it for a moment, what do you anticipate will be the result of next year’s 
operations? Do you still anticipate a decrease in the cost of maintenance of 
equipment?
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Mr. Henry: I think, generally speaking, our equipment is in first-class 
condition. That would be illustrated by taking for example the average con­
dition of our freight cars in 1923 as compared with 1922. I think the per­
centage of bad order cars, for instance, was 6.2 per cent in 1923, whereas it 
was a little over 10 per cent the previous year. That shows it is in pretty 
fair shape.

Mr. Harris : Arid your retirements help out considerably ; the more retire­
ments you have, the more it helps you out.

Mr. Henry : The car retirements, of course, increase our expenses.
The Chairman : We will take “Traffic Expenses ” now. Item 356. Mr. 

Harris, were you content with what is given in the first part of the report, or 
do you want further information on that?

Mr. Harris : No, I will let it go at that.
Mr. Stewart : In connection with that item, I do not know just as to what 

form these immigration bureaus are taking. Have we any statistics which 
have been compiled to show us how effective that branch of the Canadian 
National Railways will be or is it so interwoven with the Immigration Depart­
ment that we could not get fair figures?

Major Bell: This year it is just being organized; I think it was in Sep­
tember or October that Mr. Black went over.

Mr. Henry: The Colonization Department was not really organized until 
about the end of the year.

Major Bell: So next year you will have a full statement of the work. It 
was really just in the process of being organized when this report was being 
prepared.

Mr. Stewart: If it had not been taken into account, I should offer the 
suggestion that the figures be so placed before us as to enable us to make com­
parisons with other colonization schemes.

The Chairman: You mean the number of immigrants that could be 
obtained as the result of this expenditure?

Mr. Henry: That is our purpose.
Hon. Mr. Graham: It is a pretty big policy. When we come to the 

estimates in the House, I would like a synopsis of the organization.
Major Bell: We will have that for you.
Hon. Mr. Graham : There is an item there you have not looked at-----
Major Bell: Let me give an explanation in connection with that. In 

addition to Mr. Black, Mr. Dalrymple, our vice-president in charge of traffic, 
has just got overseas; he is at present in the Old Country going very fully into 
the organization, and that work will not be complete until he gets back; he is 
working on it now. There has been so much to do in Canada that he was not 
able to get over last year.

Mr. Milne: Is this railway immigration organization entirely independent 
of the Government department?

Major Bell: Absolutely independent, but working with them wherever it 
is necessary.

Mr. Milne: Would you have two offices in the same city, for instance?
Major Bell: Yes; the Canadian Pacific has offices all over the Continent, 

as well as in London.
Mr. Milne: But they have not an immigration department, like we have?
Major Bell: Yes; they have had one for years.
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Hon. Mr. Graham : The Immigration Departments of the two railways, 
and the Government Immigration Department are working together. Each 
railway has its own organization and they are working with the Government.

Mr. Milne: I realize why the C.P.R. would have an organization of its 
own, because it is a private company, but here we have practically two depart­
ments of the same company, so to speak, for the same purpose.

Major Bell: We are a company, in our department.
Hon. Mr. Graham : You see, if the Immigration Department of Canada 

was working for the Government interests, and the C.P.R. was working for its 
own private interests, the Immigration Department would not care where the 
traffic went; they would only be getting immigrants, and if the C.P.R. as a 
company did not have its own department it would not get its share of the 
traffic, unless the Government became an agent- for the C.N.R.

Mr. Milne: I do not see why we should have the two departments, when 
it is all being paid for out of the one pocket.

Hon. Mr. Graham : It would be difficult to have the Immigration Depart­
ment act for the Canadian National Railway at the same time. The company 
has to function on its own behalf. You see, if you had been here an hour or so 
ago you would have seen that the company had been putting up a very strong - 
case to get its share of the traffic from another department of the Government.

Mr. Stewart : May we take it for granted that the Immigration Depart­
ment will work in conjunction with the Canadian National Railways, so that 
they will get a fair share of the traffic drummed up by the Immigration Depart­
ment?

Major Bell: If we do not, ySu will hear from us.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I was going to ask a question myself. There is an 

increase shown in advertising. Is that not a pretty large sum for advertising?
Mr. Henry: I think not.
The Chairman : Mr. Henry, can you say anything about that?
Mr. Henry: That represents a little more advertising in 1923 than in 1922; 

that is about all I can say.
The Chairman : Can you say what form that advertising takes? Is it 

magazine advertising or newspaper advertising?
Mr. Henry: It is all kinds of advertising.
Mr. Stewart: That includes the advertising of summer resorts and hotels ?
Mr. Henry: Yes, everything.
Mr. Cooper: Train service, and so on.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Does that include the printing of timetables?
Mr. Cooper: No; that is under “ Stationery and Printing.”
Major Bell: Where is the radio?
Mr. Cooper: It is divided in the Maintenance of Equipment group. The 

maintenance of the equipment itself is under Maintenance of Equipment. There 
is the Miscellaneous Equipment account, No. 329.

The Chairman : I notice your Stationery and Printing account, to which 
you have just referred, has been very much reduced the last year. Had you a 
large stock on hand, or did you do less printing?

Mr. Henry: That is almost entirely due to an extra heavy charge for 
printing revised freight and passenger tariffs for 1922. It did not occur in 1923.

The Chairman : Shall we pass on to page 21 ?
Mr. Harris: Before leaving page 20, where do you find the capital item 

corresponding to “ Miscellaneous Equipment,” item 329?
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Mr. Henry: That is on page 23, No. 58.
The Chairman: It would hardly be that, would it?
Mr. Cooper: I do not think we had paid for most of our radio equipment 

by the end of 1923.
Hon. Mr. Graham : This is only as of December 31, 1923.
Mr. Harris : That is all you expended in 1923?
Mr. Cooper: Yes, I believe that is so.
Mr. Harris : And this little gap left on page 20, then, is to take care of it 

for the coming year, 1924; depreciation and retirement. Is that entirely for 
radio?

Mr. Cooper: No, it would not be particularly for radio. ,
Major Bell: That is a standard account. These numbers are all the 

United States classification, and even if we do not have an item we have to put 
it in.

Mr. Harris: Would it be possible to have that item put in, so we could 
separate the radio from the miscellaneous equipment?

Major Bell: We must follow the standard accounting laid down by law. 
If you want to know the cost of the radio, in any of its phases, we can give it 
to you. As a matter of fact, it is on record in the House in answer to a question 
which was asked.

Mr. Harris: It is, of course, found under “ Miscellaneous Equipment?”
Major Bell: We can give you the statement, if you like.
Hon. Mr. Graham : My own opinion, for what it is worth, is that you ought 

to divide the cost of the radio between equipment and advertising.
Mr. Cooper: I was really wrong there. The maintenance of equipment is 

in the Maintenance of Equipment account, and the cost of operating—that is 
the men on the trains and so on—is down in account No. 402, under “ Trans­
portation.”

Mr. Henry : Of course, that includes everything as well as the operating 
of the radio.

Hon. Mr. Graham : I may be all wrong, but it is not train equipment in 
any sense. Your broadcasting station, say at Ottawa, is not train equipment, 
surely ; it is purely advertising, to my mind. The cost of operating that station 
is largely advertising, and good advertising.

Mr. Cooper : I may say that we have had quite an argument as to the 
proper account for that expense. The classification as here laid down does not 
contemplate radio, but in the 1924 accounts it was our intention to put it all into 
one account.

Mr. Harris: Will the classification let you do that?
Mr. Cooper: The classification does not include radio, so we have that 

option.
Mr. Stewart: This question I am going to ask has no particular bearing, 

but it struck me during the explanation Major Bell was making a while ago 
about picking out the numbers. I notice these numbers are not consecutive, that 
there are a great many missing; is it because there is no item for that particular 
number?

Major Bell: No item for it.
Mr. Stewart: These numbers are those which w'ould correspond in the 

Interstate Commerce Commission classification with accounts you do not have?
Major Bell: Yes. We have correspondence with other railways, and they 

refer to a particular number, you see.
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The Chairman: Anything further, gentlemen? Are we through with page 
20? On page 21 I notice the third item is reduced; that ought to please Mr. 
Stewart, because it applies to superintendence. What is the reason for that? 
It is reduced by about $100,000.

Mr. Henry: That is a very small reduction; I could not give you the exact 
reason. It is in the right direction, however.

The Chairman: The item there for fuel for train locomotives; is the coal 
all purchased by tender?

Mr. Henry: Yes.
The Chairman : Lots of competition?
Mr. Henry: Oh, yes. Of course, a portion of that is obtained from the 

Rail and River Coal Company.
The Chairman : What is that?
Mr. Henry : That is a coal company we have down in Ohio
The Chairman : Do you buy mostly Canadian coal or do you have to

import much?
Mr. Henry: We import a certain amount as well.
The Chairman : Where would that be, in Ontario?
Mr. Henry: That would be in Ontario and up the lakes.
fylr. Harris: Before that, I would like to get item 382 explained. What 

weight of fuel is used to haul one thousand gross tons one mile? That is your 
usual way of expressing it, is is not?

Mr. Henry: That, of course, varies with different divisions.
Mr. Harris: You have three divisions?
Mr. Henry : You would like three divisions?
Mr. Stewart: You have three divisions now?
Mr. Henry : I mean the various operating divisions.
Mr. Harris: How many divisions have you on the road now?
Mr. Henry : I think we have 40 and odd.
Mr. Harris: Can you give us an example on one of these divisions, give us 

what it is costing you?
Mr. Henry: For a thousand gross ton miles? We could supply those 

figures, but offhand I would not like to say.
Mr. Harris : Can you give the average for the whole system?
Mr. Henry: Yes, but I do not know that that would illustrate it very much.
Mr. Harris : If you gave me the average for the whole system for this 

year as against last year, it might be of interest.
Mr. Henry : Very well.
The Chairman: You have not that at hand.
Mr. Henry : No, I would only be guessing.
Mr. Harris: You could get that, perhaps, for the next meeting?
Mr. Henry: Yes, I can have that for tomorrow morning.
Mr. Harris: And perhaps at the same time you could tell us where you 

get the reduction. As a matter of fact, I understand there has been a considerable 
reduction in the amount of fuel consumed per gross ton mile.

Mr. Henry : Yes.
Mr. Harris : And then perhaps you could tell us at the same time the reason 

for the increased cost over the whole twelve months period?
Mr. Henry: Of course, I can tell you that right away. The increased 

amount consumed was due to the increased traffic.
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Mr. Harris : Entirely?
Mr. Henry: Oh, yes.
Mr. Harris: Is there any movement being made by the management to 

reduce the amount of coal being consumed for a thousand gross ton miles?
Mr. Henry : Every possible means.
Mr. Harris : You have an organization set up for that purpose?
Mr. Henry : We are testing it out every day.
Mr. Harris: You say you are testing it out every day. Is the test divided 

into regions, or into engine divisions?
Mr. Henry: Yes, we set up comparisons between the performances of res­

pective districts.
Mr. Harris: Have you any information as to the average poundage used 

per gross ton mile on the American roads?
Mr. Henry: Yes. I doubt whether we could get that for 1923, but we can 

try. ,
Mr. Harris: Is it the policy of the Canadian National Railways management 

to use such things as smoke-consuming devices to increase the efficiency?
Mr. Henry: On the prairies we are compelled to equip our locomtives with 

those devices.
Mr. Harris: Does that apply down in the Atlantic region, for instance?|
Mr. Henry: Oh, yes. I do not think there is any regulation there, but as 

a matter of fact we do.
Mr. Harris: Have you any information with you this morning as to the 

ratio per ton of freight hauled as compared with the fuel the same train would 
be hauling? I mean a comparison of freight as against coal.

Mr. Henry : How much fuel enters into the cost of handling a ton of freight?
Mr. Harris: This is what I have in mind. We appreciate the fact that if 

it is an electrical equipment, an electric engine, of course, is not carrying coal.
Mr. Henry: Yes, that is correct.
Mr. Harris: I want an idea from you as to how much coal is carried to 

carry one thousand gross tons a mile?
Mr. Henry : What weight of coal is required to carry one thousand tons of 

freight one mile?
Mr. Harris: Yes. I understand one thousand gross tons is the usual 

expression.
Mr. Henry: I can work that out for you.
Hon. Mr. Graham : You have to haul the coal as well as the freight.
Mr. Harris : Yes, that is the point. You have a very strong propaganda 

going on at the present time among your train crews, asking them to reduce the 
amount of coal consumed?

Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Harris : All the time?
Mr. Henry: Oh, yes.
Mr. Harris : You have a regular organization set up for that purpose?
Mr. Henry: Yes, we have travelling firemen for that purpose.
Mr. Harris: Would you be able to give the committee what success you have 

had in that connection? Have you any string on the way they are functioning?
Mr. Henry : I think we could probably give you some comparison as to that.
The Chairman : You cannot do that now?
Mr. Henry: Not offhand.
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Mr. Milne: Have you a regular research department for the purpose of 
finding out the efficiency of automatic stokers and different types of locomotives 
and so on?

Mr. Henry: That is done under the direction of the executive officers in 
Montreal.

Mr. Milne: You cary on experimental work?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Stewart : Are there any electrified lines- coming under this heading 

here?
Mr. Henry: No. I think the St. Clair tunnel is the only thing, and it is about 

a mile long, running to Detroit.
The Chairman: You have several lines, but operated by other companies?
Mr. Henry: Yes, but not in this account. There is also the Montreal tun­

nel as well.
Mr. Stewart : Would the current consumed by an electric line come under 

the heading of “ fuel ”?
Mr. Brown : No, it would come under Items 395 and 396. “ Train Power 

Produced ” is electric power produced and “ Train Power Purchased ” is elec­
trical power purchased.

The Chairman: Is the railway making an investigation as to the possibility 
of operating some of the branch lines by other than steam power?

Mr. Henry: Yes.
The Chairman: I am referring to gas propelled cars, as well as electric 

lines.
Mr. Henry; Yes; gas propelled and unit cars. We have been investigating 

that for some time.
The Chairman : What is the result?

■ Mr. Henry: We have not reached any definite conclusion yet as to what is 
the best type.

The Chairman: Have you anything to give as to the relative merits of the 
electric storage battery car and the gasoline propelled car?

Mr. Henry: I would not like to answer that offhand, no. Our experience 
has varied.

The Chairman: You have experimented?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I have now to go to Council so perhaps you can 

decide as to whether it would be wise to bring in a motion in the House asking 
for leave to sit while the House is in session. Then, if that were done, we 
could probably finish up this afternoon. I also thought it might be interesting 
to the committee to have Mr. Henry give us a statement concerning the electric 
lines we own, because we have inherited some electric lines, too.

Mr. Harris: Yes, that was what I had in mind.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I do not mean to interfere with this present discussion, 

but when we get through w-e can have that statement.
Mr. Stork : I think, Mr. Chairman, we should ask for permission to sit 

while the House is in session. We might sit this afternoon or tomorrow.
The Chairman: It is moved by Mr. Stork and seconded by Mr. Stewart 

that the Committee request the permission of the Huose to sit during sessions 
of the House. What is your pleasure, gentlemen?

Motion agreed to.
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Mr. Milne: Just while we are on this transportation, that is gasoline and 
electrification, I think it would be very interesting if we had a report as to the 
progress of these gas cars, because there is a strong feeling in the West where 
there are branch lines that there is really poor service given. When a farmeb 
ships out cream in hot weather,, it is essential that a good service should be 
given, and yet the traffic is not sufficient to warrant a fully equipped train. 
There is a big feeling among the people of the prairies that gasoline cars, or 
even these hand cars with the motor and trailer, could be used.

Mr. Henry: It would not carry very much. 'We are really investigating 
every branch line upon which we think unit cars of that type could possibly 
be used to advantage.

Mr. Milne : You have no conclusions as yet, no report of progress?
Mr. Henry : The results have fluctuated so much that it is pretty difficult 

to draw a conclusion, a definite conclusion. In other words, our experience 
has not been over a sufficiently extended period to enable us to form any defi­
nite conclusion.

The Chairman : Have you investigated that situation in the United States, 
where, I understand, these cars are being used?

Mr. Henry : Their experience there has not been, on the whole, entirely 
satisfactory. We have looked into it.

The Chairman : For what reason?
Mr. Henry : Largely because the right type of equipment has not been 

developed yet.
The Chairman : Are there many gasoline propelled cars in operation in 

the United States? Can you say as to that?
Mr. Henry: There have been a number.
The Chairman: Successfully?
Mr. Henry : Not very successfully.
The Chairman: Is there more success with the storage battery car?
Mr. Henry: Our experience has been more satisfactory with the storage 

battery car than the gasoline car.
Mr. Milne: Are you trying any in the western prairie provinces?
Mr. Henry: I think we have one there.
Mr. BrowiU Yes, we have one running in Winnipeg, on a short run.
Mr. Stewart: A gasoline car or a storage battery car?
Mr. Brown : A storage battery car.
The Chairman: That is a great deal more expensive than the gasoline

car?
Mr. Brown : Yes.
Mr. Harris: I understand there is going to be a general statement made 

about this, so I will not take up any more time.
The Chairman : Do you wish to discuss anything further on page 21?
Mr. Harris: I would like to ask Mr. Henry to cover this statement about 

insurance, as briefly as possible.
Mr. Henry: That is due to the same cause as the other, including insur­

ance on the property of the old government railways.
Major Bell: Do you want a general statement as1 to our insurance?
Mr. Harris: Yes.
Major Bell: Before the amalgamation, we have the government-owned 

railways, upon which there was no insurance. It had always been the govern­
ment policy in the past to cover their own insurance, but they never set up any



NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING 207

reserve accounts. That obtained on the government roads as well &s upon the 
government business. When the Canadian Northern came over, we found they 
were insuring the greater portion of their property, especially rolling stock. As 
it was mortgaged, they were compelled to carry insurance. Then they started 
an insurance of their own; they set up a reserve account, but it was only book­
keeping. Then the Grand Trunk started, and they set up a reserve which was 
cash, and which was invested. It ran up to something over $1,000,000. When 
the present management came in, last January, we went into the whole question 
of insurance, marine and fire, and it was decided to carry all our own insurance, 
setting up cash reserves and charging to that all losses. That conclusion was 
arrived at after carefully analyzing our experience over the last ten years, and 
the conclusion arrived at was that we could make an enormous saving. Some 
years, of course, the insurance companies have to pay out more than they receive 
in premiums, but taking the-average over the last ten years I found that the 
insurance companies, if they had carried the insurance for the whole of the 
National Railways, at the rates they were charging us, would have had profits 
of approximately $1,000,000 a year, and I saw no reason why the Canadian 
National should not have the benefit of that. That was placed before Sir Henry 
Thornton and he went very carefully into it and had an insurance expert go over 
it, and they both agreed to the system. Then it was brought before the Board, 
and the Board agreed to it. To-day we have a few risks out, I do not think 
they amount to 5 per cent of our total, and they will lapse in the course of a few 
months, and we will carry it entirely. This year, as a result, we estimate that we 
have saved about $1,250,000, I think it is. We have not reduced our rates, but 
we probably will later on. At the present time we want to accumulate a fund in 
case of a catastrophe at any point, such as our elevators and so on. We have in 
the neighbourhood" of $3,000,000 or $4,000,000 in that reserve, invested in gov­
ernment bonds.

The Chairman: This item represents the actual amount of cash in the 
reserve?

Major Bell: Yes, and against that reserve is charged our losses. Of 
course, you do not see the Marine Insurance there, which is also a large item. 
One reason why we decided we should carry our own insurance, and why it was 
good business, was this: I think the insurance for the Canadian National fines 
would probably run about nearly $300,000,000 or $4OO,OOCj,O0O. That is probably 
the amount that, if you were putting out all your insurance, you would carry. 
There is no such company in existence in the world, having respect to a fire 
risk, as the Canadian National Railway System. The risks are very wide-flung, 
from Halifax to Vancouver, and we have boats on practically every ocean in 
the world. If an insurance company wanted to build up a business representing 
insurance of $300,000,000, they would probably take original risks of about 
$1,000,000,000; then they would reinsure so as to divide up their risks, and they 
would finally bring that down to $300,000,000. I do not know any insurance 
company—and I say this after talking to experts—having a business of $300,- 
000,000 which they are carrying themselves, that has a better risk than the 
$300,000,000 that is involved in the far-flung risks of the Canadian National 
Railways. Therefore, to all intents and purposes, we are an insurance company 
of our own with a first class lot of risks.

The Chairman : What do you insure against?
Major Bell: Fire and marine losses.
The Chairman: Any damage or collision insurance, or anything like that?
Major Bell: No, we have not taken that up yet.
Mr. Gauvreau : You have covered that ground already.
Major Bell: Yes, but Mr. Harris wanted an explanation of that.
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Mr. Stewart : The reserve you are building up is built up by deductions 
made on standard rates?

Major Bell: On standard rates, if anything slightly below. They are 
approximately the same rates we were paying the insurance companies.

Mr. Stewart : Have you been operating on that system long enough to be 
sure that it is going to carry you through all right?

Major Bell: We have based our experience on what we paid out to insur­
ance companies and what we would have paid if the government railways had 
been insured for the last ten years. That is why I make the statement that if 
we had had all this property insured during the last ten years and we had been 
paying the same rates to insurance companies, the insurance companies would 
have benefited to the extent of $1,000,000 a year. You see, it is a huge risk.

Mr. Stewart: If we had been under the system we are now under, of 
building up a reserve, we would by now have had a reserve of approximately 
$10,000,000?

Major Bell: Yes. I do not mean to say that the insurance companies have 
had that $1,000,000 yearly, because there has not been that insurance out, but 
they have made good profits, almost huge profits, for the last ten years.

The Chairman: Does it require much of an establishment to carry that 
work on?

Major Bell: No.
The Chairman: You would not have the overhead an insurance company 

would have?
Major Bell: No. I may say in connection with the insurance that we are 

running a protection bureau, going through the shops and taking care of fire 
risks and training men, and so on, so we hope to cut our losses a good deal.

Mr. Harris : Could you make a statement as to whose jurisdiction this pro­
tection association or organization is under?

Major Bell: Mr. Keystone is the insurance expert.
Mr. Harris: You do not know who has the supervision of the accident 

prevention bureau?
Major Bell: No, offhand I do not.
Mr. Harris : These two are very closely associated, one with the other.
Major Bell: Of course, all that comes under one head, under Mr. Robb, 

Vice-President, but whether Mr. Keystone has that under his jurisdiction, I 
could not say. He has the insurance and the prevention of fire.

Mr. Henry : The whole thing is under Mr. Robb, the Safety First campaign, 
and the Prevention of Accidents.

Mr. Harris: Did I understand that you are going to bring to the committee 
tomorrow a statement as to the exact cost of your accidents at the present time, 
that is the cost per $1,000 of your payroll, and the cost last year?

Mr. Henry: We can do that, yes.
Mr. Harris: And at the same time you might tell us under whose supervision 

this comes, if there is any effort being made by the railway management to co­
ordinate the accident prevention and the fire prevention associations within 
your organization.

Mr. Henry: We have a .well organised system of fire prevention.
Mr. Harris: You do not know about the accident prevention?
Mr. Henry : No, I do not know how closely they work together.
Major Bell: 1 hat is under Mr. Keystone. Who is the head of the Safety 

First campaign?
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Mr. Henry: Mr. Booth.
Mr. Harris : You could give us to-morrow an analysis of item 420, to 

what provinces these monies were paid?
Mr. Henry : Yes.
Major Bell: I presume this $770,000 was practically all compensation?
Mr. Henry: We might not be able to get the details of that for to-morrow, 

because we might have to go to the different regions for it.
Mr. Harris : Perhaps you could get the rates, could you?
Mr. Henry: I think so.
Mr. Stewart : Is there any insurance reserve that will correspond to 

employers’ insurance?
Major Bell: Not on the railway ; we have no reserve for that. We have 

only fire and marine reserves.
Mr. Henry: Yes, that is all.
Mr. Harris: Do you know if the transportation companies or carriers have 

a merit-rating system which is similar to that in vogue in industrial companies? 
Do you receive that consideration under the Workmen’s Compensation Act of 
the Province of Ontario?

Mr. Henry: I could not answer that offhand.
Mr. Harris : You might bear that in mind and see what is the case.
Mr. Henry: We have a system of our own.
Mr. Harris : Do you receive any refunds, for instance, from the Province 

of Ontario, for your merit-rate?
Mr. Henry : That I could not answer.
Mr. Harris: Do you care to make a statement with regard to the increased 

cost this year over last year?
Mr. Henry: I can give you the exact details of that.
Mr. Harris: Perhaps you will tell us.
Mr. Henry: That increase is $193,000. That included in 1923 $40,000 

paid to J. Cosgrave for injuries received at Big Valley, Alberta ; $24,000 admin­
istration expenses, Manitoba and British Columbia Workmen's Compensation 
Boards for years 1921 and 1922; $15,000 claim paid estate William C. Evert, 
locomotive engineer, killed February 10, 1923; $12,200 on account of wreck, 
Knights Templar special of Grand Trunk Western on June 5, 1923; $15,000 on 
account Firemen W. H. Johnston, injured March 19, 1923, at Island Pond. 
Those are the principal large items entering into that.

The Chairman : We are still on page 21, gentlemen.
Mr. Henry : I can make a short statement now in regard to motor coaches, 

if the committee desires.
The Chairman : I suppose we may as well have that now.
Mr. Henry: The result of our experience during the last three or four 

years leads us to the conclusion that for cars required to carry over 40 passen­
gers, the electric storage battery car is the most suitable and reliable of any 
of those used to date, but we are now investigating the possibilities of the so- 
called Diesel electric car, which may prove to be even better and which will, of 
course, be adopted for future use if this conclusion is reached. Where smaller 
units are required, cars driven by a gasoline engine are fairly satisfactory, and 
are easily the cheapest to operate, but the field for this particular class of equip­
ment appears to be more or less limited on account of its light weight. We have 
effected some very substantial economies through the use of motor coaches in 
place of steam trains on branch lines and on light main lines, but there would

81695—14



210 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

be a small proportion of the units that could be used to economic advantage. 
We have now on order for spring delivery—some of these have already been 
received—six battery cars with a carrying capacity of about 50 people, costing 
slightly over $40,000 apiece. We think we ought to increase the number of these 
cars.

The Chairman: Do you buy these only as you know whether you are 
going to need them?

Mr. Henry: As funds can be provided. We have to distribute our estimate 
over as large a time as possible. That is really the governing factor. That is, 
generally speaking, what our experience has been.

Mr. Gauvreau: Mr. Chairman, I have not been here for the last meetings. 
May I put a question before I leave?

The Chairman: Certainly.
Mr. Gauvreau : It is about the pension fund for the employees. I see here 

on page 11 “A pension scheme for the whole system is under consideration.” 
I would like to know if there is any prospect of this scheme being put into effect 
soon.

Mr. Henry: There was a committee of officers appointed a year ago to 
investigate the various possible pension schemes.

Mr. Gauvreau : For the whole system?
Mr. Henry: For the whole system. That committee has put in a report, 

upon it, and the management now has it under consideration. The amount of 
money involved in it is quite large, as you can appreciate.

Mr. Gauvreau : If the Board arrives at any conclusion, will this be sub­
mitted to the employees and also to Parliament?

Mr. Henry: As a matter of fact the employees themselves have already 
been consulted.

Mr. Gauvreau : I know where I come from we are anxious to know when 
that is going to come into effect.

Major Bell: I can probably explain that. There was a committee 
appointed which went into the whole matter, and they were in consultation 
with the employees almost continuously. A Bill was drafted to submit to the 
government and regulations were drawn up, and it came up before the sub­
committee of the Board of Directors. After we had gone into it we fourid that 
the information obtained was not sufficient to inform Parliament as to what 
the cost would be. Going roughly into the scheme it looked as if the cost were 
going to be enormous, and that the scheme would have to be modified. It was 
referred back to the committee and an actuary has been engaged who is going 
into the matter very thoroughly,- and then they will consult with the employees 
again, and when the scheme is in shape it will be submitted to the Board, and 
we hope to have the pensiop scheme ready for submission to Parliament next 
session. It cannot possibly be done this year.

Mr. Macikinnon: Item 401. There is an increase pn that of $100,000. 
What is the explanation of that? •

Mr. Henry : That is due entirely to increased business. Last year we 
handled 8,000,000 more tons than in the previous year. That required more 
trainmen, and generally more employees of that character.

The Chairman : I suppose that would be the reason for the increases that 
you see, pretty generally all along the line.

Mr. Henry : You could say that pretty well with regard to the whole 
transportation group. Transportation varies fairly well with traffic.

Mr. Stewart: Changes in wages do not materially enter into this?
Mr. Henry: I do not think there were any changes last year.
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The Chairman : No increases?
Mr. Henry: I do not think there were any changes at all. There were 

some changes in July, 1923, affecting the shop crafts.
The Chairman: Item 418, Mr. Henry, “ Lost and Damaged Freight.” 1 

note there is a reduction, a very considerable reduction there.
Mr. Henry: Yes, our percentage there was—
The Chairman : Is it the result of greater care, or were you just fortunate?
Mr. Henry: The result of greater care, I should think. We specialize in 

that. I think we had the lowest record in 1923 of any railroad, or at least as 
low as any other.

The Chairman:" “ Injuries to persons ” was greater?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Stork : Were you going too fast, or what?
Mr. Stewart : You say you specialize in the matter of damage to stock and 

so on?
Mr. Henry: We are following it up very closely to see that it is kept down.
Mr. Harris: You follow it both ways ; you see that you do not overpay 

the man who runs the train, and you see you do not have too much damage?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Harris : In which direction is your effort most successful?
Mr. Henry: We have meetings from time to time with the various men 

connected with the handling of freight indicating to them just what precau­
tions ought to be taken, and what the failure to follow these precautions results
in.

Mr. Harris: These meetings are purely to avoid damage to goods, rather 
than to avoid payment for that damage?

Mr. Henry: Absolutely, on the theory that it is far better to prevent it.
The Chairman: Your efforts at prevention are apparently, so far as 

crossings are concerned, not in the direction of greater cost in maintaining pro­
tection. That is item 405, which shows a reduction in the cost of crossing 
protection as compared with the year before.

Mr. Henry: I think perhaps that was due to the elimination of some 
crossings.

Mr. Brown : I think in some cases we have reduced expenses in that regard 
by the introduction of wigwag signals, by order of the Board of Railway 
Commissioners, and the replacement of watchmen by gates.

The Chairman: If we have finished with page 21, we will go on with 
page 22.

Mr. Harris : Take item 441. Does this include the salaries and wages 
paid to porters? •

Mr. Cooper : Yes, salaries for porters and dining-car attendants.
Mr. .Harris: What is the policy of the Canadian National Railway lines 

with regard to having coloured help in the dining service and in the porter and 
parlour car service?

Mr. Henry : I am afraid I cannot answer that, Mr. Harris.
Major Bell: Practically all the coloured help on our own cars are citizens 

of the country. On the Grand Trunk we run Pullman service, and that is 
entirely mpnned by coloured help, except for some of the conductors.

Mr. Harris: Have you any particular policy with regard to the parlour 
car service? Does the same answer apply?
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Major Bell: In the parlour car service in our own railway, I think you 
will find white men, generally speaking.

Mr. Harris: I appreciate that it is rather a ticklish question, but will 
you express an opinion as to what your policy is going to be with regard to 
keeping on coloured help in your dining car service throughout the whole 
system?

Major Bell: We have very few in the dining car service ; I think they are 
practically all white men. It is only the porters who are coloured, and as a 
rule it is very hard to get any one but coloured help for that.

The Chairman : With regard to hotels and restaurants, have these been 
profitable during the last year?

Mr. Henry: There was a statement brought down in the House about 
that, I think. -

The Chairman : Has the Chateau Laurier been profitable?
Major Bell: It had a profit over operating expenses, but it did not meet 

its fixed charges. The biggest loss was in connection with the Fort Garry at 
Winnipeg.

Mr. Henry: The Chateau Laurier had a surplus of $3,137 over operating 
expenses.

The Chairman : What were the fixed charges?
Mr. Henry : About $2,500,000, I think.
The Chairman : The fixed charges?
Mr. Henry: No, that is the capital cost. 4^ per cent On that would be 

the fixed charge, about $100,000.
The Chairman: What is the policy of these hotels? What is the system, 

high prices with the expectation of making expenses, or low prices with the 
expectation of doing more business and making a profit that way?

Mr. Henry : You cannot charge any more than the traffic will bear, you 
know.

Major Bell: Generally speaking, take the Chateau, if you could add 100 
or 150 rooms to the Chateau, the overhead and management would be practically 
nothing extra, and the Chateau would be put on a paying basis, if you had 
the traffic. It is all a question of traffic. For a place the size of Ottawa, a 
building like the Chateau is a pretty expensive proposition. You have not the 
traffic for it.

The Chairman : Might I ask this. Is it true that so far as lodgings are 
concerned, the rental of rooms, the Chateau does a successful business?

Major Bell: I think so.
The Chairman: Is it relatively true of the dining-room service?
Major Bell: I think so.
The Chairman: There is a big expense in keeping up that service?
Major Bell: Yes.
The Chairman : And have they a commensurate service—.
Major Bell: They must lose money on it when they do not meet the 

fixed charges.
The Chairman : I am trying to get at whether we are losing it by lack of 

patronage of the rooms or of the dining service.
Major Bell: They both work together. If you had the booms in the 

Chateau filled every day and every night, in addition to the extra people who 
came in for their meals, I think the Chateau would pay the fixed charges, but 
you have your ups and downs. Then there are a great many who take rooms
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there, and probably also have a very light breakfast, but go out to meals either 
to friends, or for the purpose of saving expenses.

Mr. Stewart: The Chateau could not pay on the room accommodation 
alone?

Major Bell: No.
Mr. Milne: I do not know anything about the hotels in the city, but on 

one occasion a few years ago I was with a large delegation of probably 60 or 75 
men. They went to the Fort Garry and took rooms. The first morning they 
nearly all went down for breakfast, and after they had their breakfast just out 
in the corridor I heard them saying, “ No more breakfasts for me at the Fort 
Garry After that, immediately the meeting was Concluded, they would stream 
out and get their meals elsewhere. The question that came to my mind was 
whether it would not be possible to make a rate—I do not mean an excep­
tionally low rate—but strike a kind of happy medium. If a man goes in for 
breakfast and has to pay $1.50 or $2 he cannot keep it up, unless he is wealthy. 
The average man would not mind paying a fair price, but the prices seem 
unfair.

Major Bell : They tried to meet that at the Chateau by a business man’s 
lunch at $1 I think ; they gave a very fair lunch for $1, and it is not patronized.

The Chairman: You think people like to pay more?
Major Bell: I think some people when travelling do not object to it.
Mr. Stork : Take it right in the House of Commons, you cannot get a 

better meal anywhere in Canada than we get in the Parliamentary dining­
room. The"service is excellent, and yet the committee in charge of the dining­
room was compelled to send out a letter urging members to patronize the 
dining-room and discontinue the use of the cafeteria.

Major Bell: You pay no rent, no light, no heat, and just the bare cost 
of your food there. In connection with the dining-car service and1 buffet 
service. I think it is a mistake all over the country, and it is something that 
cannot be remedied by any one railway. I do not think we have any business 
to have a dining-car service on any dining-car in the country. You cannot 
carry it and make money, because the expense is so enormous. I know some­
thing about that, because years ago when we changed over on the Intercolonial, 
we had to change over to the a la carte on account of the criticism of the 
public. That was put in. and I went out in connection with the installing of 
the accounting system. The natural waste that you cannot get away from, 
and the expense of a dining-car is enormous. That was met in the United 
States during the war by an order of the United States administration ; they 
put on a regular meal on the cars, and no railway was allowed to serve an 
a la carte meal. Of course it was all under one administration, and it cut 
down the expenses enormously. Some of these things will have to be regulated, 
not by the railway itself, but by law. Personally, I think it would be a good 
tiling if, on the railways, the a la carte service was cut out entirely, and the 
railways were forced to go back to the old system of giving a set dinner; if 
that were done, they could give a very much better meal for about half the 
money. The same thing obtains in connection with competition of trains. One 
railway puts on a train, and the other railway is bound to put on one to meet 
that competition. The result is that sendee is given which is not required, and 
naturally you have to pay for it in the price of your tickets.

The Chairman : Gentlemen, it is now one o’clock so perhaps we had 
better adjourn until to-morrow morning.

The committee adjourned.
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The following statement was handed in by Sir Henry Drayton in accord­
ance with his agreement so to do and as referred to at page 375 of these 
proceedings:—

Expenses General Detail
Items 201-279.

— 1923 1922
No

Reserves 1923 1922

May....................................................................... 3,813,679 3,732,001 15,934,454 14.621,566
June......................................................................... 4,543,099 4,699,995 20,477,553 19,322,562
July......................................................................... 4,892,177 4,688,295 25,369,731 24.009,857
Aug.......................................................................... 4,973,255 5.094,843 30,342,986 29,104,701
Sept......................................................................... 4,492,530 4,743,569 34,835,516 33,848,271
Oct........................................................................... 4,616,260 4,649,330 39,451,777 38,497,601
Nov......................................................................... 2,853,806 3,881,926 42,*310,583 42,379,257
Dec.......................................................................

Items 301-337 (Reserve 801,000 
altogether).

2,471,192 3,244,008 44,781,775 45,623,536

May......................................................................... 4,196,837
4,455,063
4,032,661
4,054,988

4,087,769 
4,082,246 
4.145,840 
4,105,590

21,876,094 21,197,976
25,280,223
29,426,064
33,531,655

26,331,158
30,363,820
34,418,808

July.........................................................................
Aug.......................................................................... Reserve
Sept......................................................................... 4,585,873 4,666,352 250,000 39,004,682 38»198,007
Oct........................................................................... 4,388.417 5,028,346 490,605 43,393,100 43,226,354
Nov......................................................................... 4,570,413 5,563,976 1,364,394 47,963.514 48,790,330
Dec......................................................................... 4,212,806 7.370,369 2,385,000

' $4,490

52,17#,320 56,160,700

Committee Room 231,
House of Commons,

Friday, June 27, 1924.
The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping met at 

10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. W. D. Euler, M.P., Chairman, presiding.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. Yesterday there were 

some notes left over, and I think some statements were to be filed today. Have 
you those, Mr. Henry?

Mr. Henry: Not the statement regarding the amount paid in on account 
of injuries. We had to send to the different regions to get that.

The Chairman: When will you have that?
Mr. Henry: I won’t have them before Monday. Mr. Harris was asking 

about that.
Mr. Harris: Which statement was that.
Mr. Henry: The statement of the amount paid to the various Compensa­

tion Boards on account of injuries.
Mr. Harris: You propose to have it?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
The Chairman: Mr. Harris, I think you wanted some sort of a statement 

with regard to the immigration activities of the railway. Mr. Robb is here to 
give that.

W. D. Robb called and examined.
By the Chairman:

Q. What is your title?—A. Vice President the Canadian National Railways'-
[Mr. W. D. Robb,]
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The Chairman: Mr. Harris, do you wish to ask Mr. Robb some questions?
Mr. Harris: I believe the question was raised by Mr. Humphries or Mr. 

Stewart-----
Mr. Bell: The question of immigration came up, and also the question of 

the radio service. They are both in Mr. Robb’s department.
Mr. Kyte: What does that come under—a special charge?
Mr. Harris: Item 329.
The Chairman: On page 20.
Mr. Kyte: “Miscellaneous Equipment”.

By the Chairman:
Q. Mr. Robb, are you prepared to make any statement with regard to that?

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Will you make â general statement, Mr. Robb, with regard to the policy 

of the Canadian National Railways as to the equipment of trains and different 
stations with radio equipment, giving an idea of what general system is going to 
be incorporated in the books of the company, as it were in order that we may 
identify the expenditures from time to time—that is, capital expenditures—and 
repairs and maintenance expenditures on that particular equipment? At the 
same time if you could cover a general idea upon the installation of these ser­
vices, as briefly as possible, that will be all I will ask you.—A. We have estab­
lished broadcasting stations in Montreal, Ottawa, Toronto, Winnipeg, Regina, 
Calgary and Edmonton. The broadcasting equipments are rented with the 
exception of that at Ottawa, where we established our own station, and at each 
concert a talk, limited to about ten minutes duration, is given on some topic 
generally by an officer of the Company and addressed to employees and the 
public. These short speeches are so worded as to bring the Canadian National 
Railways into prominence and keep them in the public mind; in cases where 
executive officers speak, the remarks are, as a rule, addressed principally to 
employees. Radio receiving sets have been installed on 13 of our observation 
cars in transcontinental service, each being in charge of an operator or attendant: 
who takes care of the receiving apparatus and operates it to suit the wishes of 
the passengers. We have put receiving sets in hotels, the Chateau Laurier, 
Fort Garry, Algonquin Park, Jasper Park, and will probably put it in others.

Of course, we receive letters from the public and I have a file of them here, 
but I do not suppose you want to be bothered with them. They show the 
benefits which they are receiving from the broadcasting concerts. We also 
receive these from the public throughout the United States. For instance, I will 
read one letter from R. 0. Kenney, as follows:

“We had a very pleasant experience last evening. Mr. Stanley
Carkner, of Kenmore, Ontario, owner of a small mill at Latch ford, and
an ardent radio fan, called down here to purchase three tickets to Latch- 
ford. He stated that up to the present he had always favoured our 
opposition when shipping men. Now however, he was so impressed 
with the initiative of the National lines and the excellence of the
programme of CKCH, he had decided to give our road a trial. This
means 15 tickets, Ottawa to Latchford, this week, and no doubt other 
business will follow.

“ Mr. Carkner was very enthusiastic. He states the people in 
Northern Ontario are all tickled with the Canadian National broad­
casting station, and wish to congratulate the artists.

[Mr. W. U. Robb.I
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“ This is the first instance brought to our attention of the effective­
ness of your station as an advertising medium, and you are no doubt 
pleased to know of the excellent reception of your programmes in the 
north. Might I suggest you drop this gentleman a few lines or mention 
his name during your next broadcast?”

This is one of the thousands of letters. Take one concert, for instance; 
we received nineteen replies from Ontario, one from Nova Scotia, two from New 
Brunswick—this was a concert given at Ottawa. From the United States we 
received five replies from North Carolina, two from Maryland, four from 
Arkansas, four from Delaware, ten from Wisconsin, six from Connecticut, forty- 
eight from Pennsylvania, thirty-six from New Jersey, fifty-six from Massa­
chusetts, seventy-three from New York, four from Michigan, two from Indiana, 
eight from Maine, twenty-one from Rhode Island, one from Minnesota, one 
from West Virginia, twenty-two from Ohio, seven from New Hampshire, four 
from Vermont, three from Kentucky, three from Illinois, one from the District 
of Columbia, one from Iowa, and one from Virginia. That is only a sample of 
what we are getting from all over the United States with respect to our broad­
casting.

Now, up to the present time the cost of our broadcasting-—-
By the Chairman:

Q. You are not broadcasting?—A. Yes.
Q. Not from the trains?—A. No. We are receiving on the trains. As Mr. 

Graham has given in the House the cost of broadcasting, I suppose what I can 
do is to give you the expenditures up to the present.

By Mr. Jelliff: .
Q. Will you give us the cost of installation?
The Chairman : Will the total be sufficient?
Mr. Jelliff: Yes.
The Chairman : Just the total, Mr. Robb.
Thé Witness: “ The estimated cost of operation of the Radio Depart­

ment for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1925, including salaries, travelling 
expenses, equipment, and so forth, is approximately $90,000.” That is roughly 
about what it will be.

Mr. Harris : In making up your statement, Mr. Robb, how will you identify 
these different items? For instance, under the heading “ Maintenance of 
Equipment ” we will find a portion of this, and under. “ Other Supplies and 
Expenses ” there will be a portion. Is it possible to earmark these so we can 
tell?

Mr. Cooper: We intend to do that; we said yesterday that would be done.
By Mr. Harris:

Q. Is it the policy of the Railway Company to expand this to each 
station agent along the line?—A. Yes and no. Yes, we have made arrange­
ments with the dealers to get a reduction from the regular price. We have 
taken that up with our employees and they are placing orders with these people. 
Of course, we do not put the radio into our employees’ homes, or pay for it. 
Each employee pays for his own.

Q. Does he pay for it or do you guarantee the account and collect it after­
wards?—A. No, he pays for it. (To Mr. Swift) How is that, Mr. Swift?

Mr. Swift: Yes, sir; we are not involved in it at all, but we go to a dealer 
and say “ You will have so many of these, and you want to give us a reduc­
tion,” which they are doing. We have put this equipment in the Y.M.C.A.’s.

[Mr. w. D. Robb.]
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The Witness: We pay half the cost and assist the Y.M.C.A.’s in put­
ting these in, because in places like Capreol and Mimico, where there are a 
great many enginemen and trainmen lying overnight-----

By Major Bell:
Q. The railway Y.M.C.A.’s?—A. Yes, we feel it is useful to get the radios 

in there, so as to keep in touch with the men.
Mr. Kyte: What equipment is used?
Mr. Swift: It varies. We are not using anything especially. We are try­

ing out new things all the time.
By Mr. Harris: v

Q. No equipment, then, is being put in the stations, for instance, where a 
station agent finds himself living in the station itself?—A. No, not unless he 
purchases it himself, and a large number of employees have purchased these 
radios, because we have letters from them commenting on the concerts and so on.

Q. I understand that is the extent of the expansion in this direction, and 
you are not expanding it any further?—A. No.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. Are the trains of any other company, outside of the Canadian National 

Railway, so equipped?—A. I think the Pennsylvania is fitting up now, and 
perhaps some other railways, but I do not know what others.

Q. But the Canadian National was the first?—A. Yes, we were the first 
to fit up our trains for the public, and when the Pennsylvania heard of what 
we were doing they sent their representative over, and we gave them all our 
data, and they are fitting up their trains and also broadcasting to their 
employees the same as we are doing. Some of the other roads are doing the 
same thing, I think.

By the Chairman:
Q. From where do you broadcast?—A. Montreal, Ottawa, Toronto, Win­

nipeg, Calgary, Regina, and Edmonton.
Q. That covers the whole system?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Jelliff:
Q. You are going to put one in on the west coast?—A. Yes, one at Van­

couver, and also one at Moncton.
The Chairman : Any further questions on the radio?
Mr. Jelliff: I would like to say that on my humble farm I have a 

Swedish boy who has installed a receiving set, and on a number of occasions 
I have been able to hear addresses by Sir Henry Thornton and other officers 
of the company.

The Chairman : Mr. Stewart, I think you wanted certain information 
with regard to the immigration activities of the railway, and I think Mr. Robb 
can give you that.

Mr. Stewart : The question I asked yesterday was with regard to the 
co-operation that existed, or was to exist, between the Immigration Department, 
and the Department of Immigration of the Canadian National. Perhaps a 
general statement along that line will cover it more quickly.

The Witness: The Colonization Department of the Canadian National 
Railways last year was practically a year of organization. I did not take hold 
of this Department until about the month of March, and then we organized the 
Department out here, and I placed Mr. Price-Green at the head of this work 
in Canada, in about August. It took some time for me to familiarize myself with
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the situation, and then in October I appointed the Deputy Minister of Immigra­
tion, Mr.—

Major Bell: Egan?
The Witness: No, Mr. Black, or rather Dr. W. J. Black -as our European 

representative.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Headquarters where?—A. In London. You see, previous to that we had 

no colonization organization in Europe at all. excepting, I think, the Traffic 
people under Mr. Phillips had one or two men, but it was in a very small way, 
so we found it was necessary, if we were going to make progress, to establish our 
agency in Europe, similar to what our competitors had. That is under organiz­
ation now at the present time, with Dr. Black as European Manager for 
Colonization. •

By the Chairman:
Q. Mr. Robb, are your efforts directed toward getting people to emigrate to 

Canada, or are your activities directed more toward getting business, by way of 
transportation from those who arc coming to Canada—trying to locate these 
and get their business?—A. Both. The Colonization Department is working 
with the Traffic people there. They are practically in the same building, and we 
are endeavouring to get the settlers, and the Traffic people look after the revenue 
end of it from a passenger standpoint.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. Mr. Robb, will you enlarge* a little on your colonization scheme? Is it 

particularly on colonization, and not in the sense of trying to get transportation—
The Witness: 1 found shortly after I took charge that there were three 

things we required to do, first to get the immigrants; next to get the right kind of 
immigrant, and thirdly, to get him onto the land and have him satisfied and 
contented, because we found a contented settler does more towards bringing out 
others than thousands of dollars spent on propaganda, and a discontented 
settler will do more harm than all the propaganda you can put out. Those were 
the three things, and we had formed our organization out here by agricultural 
agents in the west, and by the people, that when the settlers came out, whom 
we induced to come out, they could advise with them and help them. The 
Soldiers’ Land Settlement Board does the same, and advises them in the buying 
of their horses, cattle and implements, and so on. That is one thing. We found 
there was a very strong feeling in England that they required group settlement. 
A great many complaints had gone back from this side that men were coming out 
by themselves, and were isolated, and were becoming discouraged and abandon­
ing the farms. Dr. Black established with the Empire Settlement Board in 
England a group settlement, and that is what we are working on now, so that 
groups will come out consisting of about 20 families, and we will settle them all 
in one district—

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. That is purely British stock?—A. Yes.
Q. Have you any thought of carrying that further?—A. Not at the present 

time.
Q. I hope you will not in the future?—A. We have not much encouragement 

from the Scandinavian countries as yet, but we are working on that now ; we are 
working slowly with respect to our agencies outside of the British Isles.
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By Mr. JelliJJ:
Q. Théy will not allow you to work in Sweden?—A. They will not allow us 

to work in Sweden, Norway, Denmark and Holland. They do not want their 
people to emigrate; they want them to stay there ; and they will not allow any 
propaganda, or any solicitation. You can establish an office if you want to 
so that people who are determined to leave the country can come to you for 
information and you will give them the information that they require.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. In that respect, Mr. Robb, have you any information yourself as to the 

attractions you can hold out to these people in other countries, outside of 
British stock? We all know that outside of the British stock, the best settlers 
we can get are the Northern Europeans. What attractions can you hold out to 
them as compared with the inducements "held out to get them to remain in their 
own country ?—A. Mr. Price-Green, perhaps you had better answer that ques­
tion.

Mr. Price-Green : As a matter of fact we have a great deal of cheap land 
along our lines in Northern Ontario and Northern Quebec, particularly suitable 
for Scandinavians. The land can be acquired for 60 cents an acre in Quebec and 
50 cents in Ontario. That is one of the inducements. Farther in the west, at 
the present time, we have got excellent land which we are selling at a very low 
price which is particularly suitable for mixed farming, and that inducement is 
being offered.

Mr. Stewart : I was thinking of something a little broader than just simply 
the inducement of cheap land. I was thinking of what actual economic conditions 
there were in their own country, or their own particular, conditions in that 
country, which would bring them to this country. I take it for granted you have 
organized propaganda to put before them. What inducements are you holding 
out? Are you giving them the actual truth?

The Witness: Yes, we are giving them the actual truth.
Mr. Prici^-Green : Perhaps I might read this for the benefit of the Com­

mittee:—
“ The principles of policy governing immigration which have been 

adopted by the Colonization and Development Department of the Cana-x 
dian National Railways have been elaborated expressly to influence the 
settlement of_the largest possible number of people of productive capacity 
capable of being absorbed and assimilated by, the country, to attract 
foreign capital to the Dominion for the exploitation of its vast natural 
resources and to foster settlement and agriculture in the vicinity of 
industrial activity ; to promote the land settlement of new Canadian 
under conditions offering the maximum possibilities for- success with full 
and unrestricted enjoyment of such social and religious institutions as 
will assure individual happiness and contentment; to encourage improved 
and diversified farming for the increase of crop, livestock and dairy pro­
duction in accordance with varying demands and fluctuating prospects, 
thus widening the field to bring satisfactory financial returns to the 
farmer; to encourage the settlement from Great Britain of young people 
of suitable type and character, and by distributing them among congenial 
Canadian homes, provide them with facilities to acquire such practical 
instruction as will enable them to embark subsequently upon individual 
farming under the most favourable auspices and also to enable them to 
acquire such knowledge of the country, its laws, institutions and traditions 
as shall ensure their development into first-class constructive citizens 
with full understanding of their national responsibilities, to assist in the
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discovery of suitable sources of remunerative employment for those
physically fit and anxious to work, more especially upon the land.”

The Chairman: Any further questions, Mr. Stewart?
By Mr. Kyte:

Q. What has been the result of these activities during the last year, Mr. 
Robb?—A. Of course we do not get results until some time after, and, as I said, 
we were a new organization, and while we have had some results we have not 
had those which we feel we will get next year. Of course, you have the result 
of increased immigration which we have had this year, and we have put more 
people on the land. For instance, last year we sold 61,000 acres of our own 
land to settlers.

Q. Your organization works independently of the established organizations 
that have been put forward by the Immigration Department?—A. Yes, but we 
work very closely with the Immigration Department.

Q. As regards the number of immigrants coming into Canada last year; 
You have not “ ear-marked ” them, so to speak, those who have been brought 
in as a result of your activities, and those as a result of the activities of others? 
—A. That is a pretty difficult thing to do. We know the number we bring in 
on account of their travelling over our railroad, and coming on the steamships 
with which we are allied.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. You do not claim that you transport all the immigrants which have 

been coming in owing to your policy of expansion in the Old Country?—A. No. 
That all who travel on our railway are due to our activities? No, we cannot 
say that.

By Mr. Kyte:
Q. In how many countries of Europe have you established agencies of the 

Canadian National Railways?—A. We have not established any in London 
yet. We have an agent in Copenhagen. Our European Manager was over 
looking over the situation in May, seeing what could be done with respect to 
obtaining immigrants from these countries.

By the Chairman :
Q. Will your central agency remain in London?—A. Yes.
Q. Have you any sub agencies in the British Isles?—A. Yes, we have one 

in Glasgow, and will establish one, I think, in Dublin, and will establish them in 
several other places; I do not know them all.

By Mr. Stewart:
Q. It has been suggested in past conferences that the agency in Paris would 

probably be opened, and that it would be a very central point, and a very 
effective point from which to reach the best immigrants from Europe—A. 
There is no question about that—

Q. Just a minute. We were speaking a moment ago with regard to the 
immigrants, and I think your report of the policy as stated here agreed with 
my own opinion in that regard, that the Central European is the preferable 
immigrant at the present time, outside of British stock. In your opinion, would 
an office in Paris be effective in reaching the Scandinavians, or any inhabitants 
of Northern Europe?—A. I would not say so much about the Scandinavians 
or any particular country, but I will say this; that Paris is really the hub of 
Europe, and the whole world, practically, goes to Paris, and I believe it is 
necessary we should have an agent1 both for traffic and colonization in Paris. 
It is a well known fact that the French themselves are not an emigrating class
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of people, and the French Government wants to keep them in France, but the 
whole world goes to Paris, and if we want the Canadian National Railways 
known in Europe, I think Paris is one of the places where we can put it per­
manently before the public.

Q. That would be more in a general advertising way, than to reach any 
specific country?—A. Probably so, yes.

Q. I think, if I understand you correctly, you stated there was some 
difficulty in carrying on the immigration policy you would like, in some of these 
countries?—A. Yes. It is a well known fact that the Scandinavian immigrants 
make very fine settlers, and so do those from Norway, Sweden, Denmark and 
Holland. A great many emigrants are coming from there, and will continue to 
come from these countries, but their governments discourage emigration and 
do not want their people to leave the country, and they will not give you any 
encouragement to get immigrants, notwithstanding the fact that they are over- 
populated. You can put an office there—an agency—and they will not inter­
fere. You can use that office for the purpose of giving the people who want 
to come to this country information, but they will not let you put on any 
propaganda, or anything in the way of inducing these people to leave the 
country, like you can do in Great Britain.

Q. What would your opinion be of the class of people you would likely 
get from these countries?—A. A splendid class of people.

Q. People who are dissatisfied with the possibilities there and are looking 
for broader fields?—A. Yes. Dr. Black has said that “ Notwithstanding these 
conditions, I have found there is a large number of people wanting to come to 
Canada from these countries.”

Sir Henry Thornton: One of the factors, Mr. Stewart, that causes some 
of these governments, particularly those newly created like Czecho-Slovakia, 
the immigrants from which are able-bodied men, are still under the shadow 
of war and the military requirements still more or less hang over them. As a 
matter of national protection they do not want to see their young men, say, men 
up to the age of 45 or so, leave the country, lest subsequently something 
develops which would necessitate their service in the Army. I think that while 
that is not the entire factor, it plays an important part. Don’t you, Mr. 
Robb?

The Witness: Yes.
Sir Henry Thornton: Their reluctance to see the young men who might 

be available for military service go out of the country is evident, and perhaps 
natural. I think that is a thing which in time will be more settled, and tran­
quility become more assured.

Mr. Harris: I intimated I would like to have a skeleton made of this 
policy, and the possibilities of an industrial and immigration bureau. Could 
Mr. Robb give us the portion which belongs to the industrial and which to 
immigration? At the same time I gather that Dr. Black was perhaps more in 
charge of the ovérseas work, and Mr. Price-Green of the work on this side. 
Further, is all the staff of Mr. Price-Green included in this item; what is the 
staff? Is all the staff of Dr. Black included in this item? What is his staff? 
And what is the policy of the Canadian National Railways with regard to the 
increasing of these staffs—

The Chairman : You had better ask one question at a time.
The Witness: What is the question—the first question?

By Mr. Harris:
Q. The first question is what portion is industrial and what portion immi­

gration?
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Mr. Kyte: What item is that?
Mr. Harris: 356, the one under discussion.
The Witness: There is $160,000 for immigration and $145.000 for industrial.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Give me an outline of the industrial organization you have worked up— 

A. That is under the Traffic Department.
Mr. Price-Green : It has since been split. (To Mr. Robb) When your 

organization was formed you took over what existed formerly as “Industrial and 
Immigration,” but a certain portion of that work has been taken over by the 
“ Traffic,” everything dealing with sidings and the working up of industries 
along the line, leaving our department, which was then called the “Colonization 
and Development Department” to deal more particularly with natural resources 
and the giving out of information to induce development of natural resources.

The Chairman: Any further questions, Mr. Harris?
Mr. Harris: I do not get this very clearly. What portion of this is indus­

trial? I understand now from Mr. Price-Green that considerable of the indus­
trial work is being done by some other department.

The Witness: Of course, there is the industrial development of which Mr. 
Fitzsimons is the head, in connection with industry throughout the whole system. 
There is no connection with the Colonization Department. For instance, a mill 
wants a siding put in, or there is a new industry to be established—that would 
all come under Mr. Fitzsimons.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Then the policy is to take separately these particular features, and put 

them into different units. Mr. Price-Green’s activities are more particularly with 
respect to the development of natural resources on property owned or contiguous 
to your railway lines and immigration. Is that right?—A. Yes.

Q. What staff has Mr. Price-Green?
Mr. Price-Green : At the end of 1923, including the offices in the United 

States which come under the same category, there were 41 men.
By Mr. Harris:

Q. What portion of that staff are looking after the development of the 
natural resources, and what portion of the staff are looking after immigration 
entirely? Roughly?—A. Mr. Price-Green, can you answer that?

Mr. Price-Green: The resources work is mainly conducted by an officer in 
Canada. At Montreal we carry on an information bureau. At Winnipeg it is 
more a matter of giving out information on land, and the man at Edmonton 
gives out information and follows up the inquiries on development, as well as 
colonization.

The Chairman : How many men are employed in that way ?
Mr. Price-Green : In a dual capacity, there are 22 men, including officers, 

clerks, stenographers and so on.
Mr. Harris: Just before I forget it, where has this staff gone to now? Under 

what department in this staff that looks after the establishing of industries-----
Mr. Price-Green: That is in the Traffic Department in Montreal.
Mr. Henry: The Commissioner of Industries.
Mr. Harris: What is the item number?
Mr. Henry : That is in the same item.
Mr. Harris: I understood from Mr. Price-Green that was changed.
Mr. Henry: A portion of it.
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Mr. Harris : Where would it be now?
Mr. Henry: Under the same item of account.
Mr. Harris : It would be for this year, but for next year?
Mr. Cooper: There will be-a separation made between industrial and immi­

gration.
Mr. Harris: Item 356 will be divided?
Mr. Cooper : Yes.

By Mr. Harris:
Q. Mr. Robb, there is a considerable increase in the cost of this service. 

Would the present policy you have in mind lead you to say that you will experi­
ence another increase next year?—A. There will be an increase this year. Last 
year we had not got fairly started.

Q. Would you give us an outline of what portion of Dr. Black’s time, staff, 
and expenses are devoted to immigration work?—A. Dr. Black’s time and staff 
is not being devoted to industrial to any large extent ; it is practically all immi­
gration.

Q. I gathered from you just now that the central agency over which Dr. 
Black will preside will remain in London?—A. That is right.

Q. How much of a staff has Dr. Black?—A. Dr. Black at the present time 
has seven of a staff.

Q. That is, of an office staff?—A. Of an office staff. He has a colonization 
agent, and lecturers and stenographers and clerks, and so on. As that develops, 
there will be some increases..

Q. Can you tell this morning what portion of this expense would be charge­
able to Dr. Black?—A. Well, it practically all comes—you mean that expense 
you gave?

Q. Yes. You gave us $160,000, or was it $145,000?
Mr. Henry: $160,000.
The Witness: I cannot give you that offhand. It was $160,000 for coloni­

zation, but that takes in all colonization.
By Mr. Harris :

Q. Over and above the seven which Dr. Black has in his office in London, 
or wherever it is going to be, what other expense has he? Has he anybody also 
travelling over Northern Europe?—A. No, sir.

Q. Nobody on the road?—A. No, sir, excepting the staff he has there.
Q. What is the policy you have in mind for the extension of this work, 

through London, England—through Dr. Black’s department?—A. The intention 
is to establish an agency wherever we feel we can get a sufficient number of immi­
grants to warrant us in doing that, and that is what Dr. Black is studying at 
the present time, and he will let me know and make a recommendation of what 
he thinks we ought to do.

Q. I suppose if he finds them moving in a certain part of Europe, which 
appears to all intents and purposes to be very satisfactory to you, under your 
policy you will establish an agency there and push the immigration from that 
particular point?—A. That is what will probably be done.

Q. You are quite satisfied, Mr. Robb, that you would like to keep the 
central agency in London?—A. Yes, we would like to keep the central agency 
in London. 1 believe that is the place to keep it.

Q. You believe that is the place to keep it?—A. I believe that is the place 
to keep it.

Q. If Dr. Black is the director, he would probably remain in London to 
direct?—A. Yes.

Q. He would be in London practically all the time?—A. Yes.
1 [Mr. W. D. Robb.]
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Q. About how much do you think this item would increase during the next 
year? Would it jump another 50 per cent like last year? I think last year it 
was 60 per cent or 70 per cent.—A. I cannot say offhand what it would increase ; 
it would increase some, but I do not hink as much as 50 per cent.

Q. You have an idea that Dr. Black’s organization is becoming fairly com­
plete now?—A. Yes; it is fairly complete in the British Isles, but it is not 
complete in Europe.

Q. Do you think it is likely to increase, say, by 100 per cent?—A. No, I 
don’t, think so this year—or anything like that.

Mr. Harris: That is all, Mr. Chairman.
By Mr. Kyte:

Q. Mr. Robb, you spoke about the policy of the company assisting in 
developing natural industries along your line of railways. How do you 
encourage this development? In what way does your company assist?—A. You 
mean our industrial development? Our industrial agent moves throughout the 
country, and is in touch with all these different developments, and he meets the 
people and knows the people who have in mind establishing industries and gets 
in touch with them, and then sets forth the advantages that these industries 
will have, and the advantages the railway will give, the sidings that will be put 
in, and everything done to help these industries to make a success, if they 
establish along our railway.

Q. This assistance does not go so far as to include special, freight rates?—A. 
No, sir, I don’t think so.

Q. Well now, with regard to the tourist business in Eastern Canada. Is 
that receiving the attention of the company—the development of the tourist 
business?—A. Yes, that is receiving attention. The tourist business is receiving 
the full work of the Traffic Department. One of the special features of our 
broadcasting this spring to the whole country was addresses given by officers of 
the Traffic Department at different times on the advantages of travelling 
through Canada on the "Canadian National Railways.

Q. One of the great handicaps to tourist trade in many sections of the 
country is the lack of suitable hotels. I think in the United States the railways 
have been endeavouring to get private houses, and the owners of farm-houses in 
favourable locations to make reasonable accommodations for tourists during 
the season. Has your department done anything in that direction?—A. That, 
of course, does not come under my department, but at same time the Traffic 
Department are doing everything they possibly can in regard to our hotels at 
Jasper Park, Algonquin Park, the Highland Inn, and others, to take care of the 
tourists who are coming there.

Mr. Stewart: Mr. Chairman, I am not sure that this is a proper time to 
introduce the subject I have in mind, but I think possibly it has something to 
do with the work of the Industrial Bureau, or will come under their survey. It 
is a fact that in the central part of the province of Saskatchewan there are 
mine deposits of sodium sulphate, commonly known to the trade as salt, for use 
in our paper mills. It has been tried from time to time to develop this natural 
deposit, but when they get to a certain stage they find they are up against an 
insurmountable obstable. All of this does not come within the purview of the 
Canadian National Railways Board, but perhaps part of it will. The American 
firms will supply all salt-cakes to our Canadian pulp mills, dumping their 
surplus into Canada at a price often below that which they sell to their own 
concerns in the United States, but even if that were removed, there still remains 
the fact that these natural deposits often being a great distance from the centres 
of the pulp industry, the freight rate enters into the matter very largely, in 
competition with the American product. They have the advantage in the way 
of freight. It seems to me this is a bulk commodity which should be carried at
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the lowest possible rate, and could be carried by the railway at a profit at a low 
rate. I wonder if Mr. Robb or Sir Henry Thornton is in a position to state what 
the policy of the railway is at the present time with regard to just such a condi­
tion as I have indicated.

Sir Henry Thornton: That might be explained in this way. There are 
constantly opportunities developing and demands made for-the movement of 
some coyimodity which is essential for the manufacture of some other com­
modity. Now, we have got- to review the position, not only from the rate point 
of view, but also from an economic point of view, and it might be quite profitable 
for the company to handle and transport such material as, say, salt at a very 
low rate, at very little, if any, profit, for the purpose of encouraging some other 
industry from which the profit on the output would more than compensate us 
for any loss we might experience on some raw material like salt. In other words, 
it comes down largely to a question of business judgment and the circumstances 
connected with each individual case. You can only determine this. It is only 
a general formula. But that is what we must do—to try during a period of 
years to create a rate that will give to the company as a whole a maximum of 
gross revenue.

Now, as illustrative of that, and also illustrative of some other things, let 
me touch upon this: You would probably think there was very little connection 
—in fact, there would be no connection between industrial processes in France 
and the western farmer. Obviously, there seems to be a barrier there which 
could never be penetrated. As a matter of fact, there has developed within the 
last eight months a project in France to construct at Winnipeg—and subse­
quently, perhaps, at other points in the west—a factor)7 for the manufacture of 
paper pulp from straw. The process was developed in France. It has been 
known for a good many years, but it was left to a Frenchman to develop it to 
the successful and economical manufacture of paper pulp from straw. It hap­
pened that the man who controls this process, and who is over here developing 
it now, is a Frenchman from Paris, and the whole of the process, patents, and 
everything else, is controlled in France. Now, he has practically completed his 
financial arrangements for the erection of a mill at Winnipeg. That is certainly 
something which wre ought to encourage, because if we can find some way to 
turn to a useful purpose all of this straw on the western farms—or even a per­
centage of all of it—which is now entirely wasted, it would be a very good thing 
for the Dominion of Canada. In the course of his negotiations he naturally 
came to us and said, “What rate are you going to charge us on the straw coming 
into the factory, and particularly what rate are you going to charge us on the 
salt”—because they use a lot of salt for the purpose of generating chlorine gas—

Mr. Stewart : Is that the same salticakes I was speaking of—the sodium 
chlorid?

Sir Henry Thornton : No, it is the salt used for the purpose of generating 
chlorine gas: “NACL” is the chemical formula. We had to establish a new rate 
with respect to his paper pulp because we had no satisfactory rate for pulp from 
Winnipeg; pulp has never been manufactured there, so we had to establish at 
once rates on his raw materials. We .also had to investigate-----

Mr. Stewart: Rates both east and west?
Sir Henry Thornton : Rates both east and west, yes. We had to investi­

gate the rates on his straw and salt, and we are negotiating with him now, and 
I heard the other day from our Traffic Department that they had decided on 
what rate should be charged, and wTerc submitting it to him. There is a case in 
point which you brought out; something entirely new involving new raw material 
for a particular purpose, and new rates on the manufactured products.
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-Mr. Drummond: Would these rates be proportioned to the other parts of 
Canada?

Sir Henry Thornton : Proportionately, yes. I thought we made quite a 
low rate on inbound straw and inbound salt, and we think we were justified in 
doing it, because by developing a new industry, which if developed as it will be, 
will be a magnificent thing for the farmers of the west and the Dominion as a 
whole. i

The Chairman: In fixing that rate you would not consider the only factor 
that should enter into it is the carrying of that raw material at a profit? You 
might carry it at a loss in the expectation and hope that you would make a 
profit out of the finally manufactured commodity. Am I going too far?

Sir Henry Thornton: No, that is precisely right. Of course, we do not 
carry anything at a loss if there is any way to prevent it, but we might very 
well be in a position in respect to one particular commodity, and be in an 
entirely different position with respect to another-----

The' Chairman: For instance, the manufacture of salt-cakes from the 
natural deposits in the province of Saskatchewan might be considered in the 
same category?
• Sir Henry Thornton: Precisely. Perhaps the largest factor in the whole 
thing is a general factor. That is to say, if we can do anything in the west to 
make the straw useful, which is now wasted, it is a source of constant profit to 
the farmers, and that is in itself almost enough to justify almost any action. 
Have I answered that question, Mr. Stewart, to your satisfaction?

Mr. Stewart: What you have said is entirely to my satisfaction. Sir 
Henry (Thornton), because I am keenly interested in seeing the railways do 
something that will make it possible for any industry tempted to develop its 
natural growth. These natural deposits may be force*} to overcome the geo­
graphical difficulties which they find themselves up against, so far as distance 
is concerned. I think your reply may be construed as a satisfactory reply to 
my question. I think the transport of straw to Winnipeg affects a larger 
number of people than the development of the natural deposits of sodium 
sulphate. Several companies, to my knowledge, have attempted to develop 
that, but it would not affect the whole population in a given section such as the 
carrying of straw would.

Sir Henry Thornton : Of course, all these problems vary in magnitude, 
and vary in the number of people they affect. We might have one problem which 
will affect only perhaps a small number of people, or we might have another 
problem, like the straw problem, which will, directly or indirectly, affect practic­
ally every farmer in the west, and we have to take up each case on its merits.

Mr. Steavart: The policy of the railroad is to give a sympathetic considera­
tion to every industry, which may be considered an infant industry having 
possibilities for development.

Sir Henry Thornton : Precisely. But we must always remember that our 
railway, in the last analysis, has only one problem. In fact, Canada only has 
one problem, and that is the problem of development. If we had twice as 
many people in Canada as we have, I do not think we would have anything like 
the problems that confront us; they would Automatically solve themselves. So, 
we feel we are justified in straining every nerve and muscle, and making every 
reasonable sacrifice, to assist in the development of the Canadian industries.

Mr. Stewart: There are some problems which increased immigration will 
.not overcome. The fact that we have a natural deposit of sodium sulphate in 
Saskatchewan, will not bring that product into closer touch with the pulp mills 
of Ontario and Quebec by increased immigration.
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Sir Henry Thornton: That is true.
Sir Henry Drayton : There is another concrete illustration of the necessity 

of the commodity rate which was proposed by Saskatchewan people some three 
years ago in reference to the development of coal deposits.

The Witness: How about that, Mr. Price-Green?
Mr. Price-Green : I cannot speak of this rate, because that would be handled 

by the Traffic Department.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is a matter that might get some consideration.
The Chairman: Before we leave the matter of your immigration service and 

transportation, Mr. Robb, I want to ask this: You have, in connection with 
your business in Europe, I suppose, certain steamship lines-—the White Star and 
the Cunard?

The Witness: Well—
The Chairman : I would like to ask whather you are placed at a dis­

advantage with regard to the securing of passenger traffic by reason of the fact 
that you have not a passenger line of your own, as compared with your compe­
titors, we will say.

Mr. Robb : The C.P.R. do have some advantage of us in some of the 
European countries, because they have steamships of their own, but on the 
whole we have received very satisfactory results ; we are getting satisfactory 
results with the White Star and Cunard lines.

The Chairman: Would you think that advantage would be lessened by 
reason of the fact that you have established an office in Paris?

The Witness: I did not quite get that question.
The Chairman: Would that disadvantage be lessened, would the fact of 

your having an office in Paris influence passenger traffic, make it more easy to 
secure?

The Witness: Yes, we would be able to do that if we had an office in Paris. 
Certainly, as the head of the Colonization Branch I feel that we ought to have 
an office in Paris.

Mr. Jelliff: You say the department spent $160,000 on this immigration 
work last year. Have you any record which would give the approximate number 
of immigrants you brought in?

The Witness: That we brought in ourselves? That is a difficult matter 
to do. We know how many were brought in altogether, but as to how many we
brought in—

Mr. Price-Green : We were not organized sufficiently early in the year 
to give any reliable figures.

Mr. Jelliff: Then you cannot give u« an approximation of the nationali­
ties either?

The Witness: Yes, we have that ; we could get the nationalities.
Mr. Price-Green : The record of the nationalities is only kept as a whole 

by the Dominion authorities ; it is not segregated so far as the different railroads 
are concerned. Moreover, on account of the peculiar classification of the 
nationals now, it is more difficult than ever, because there are a great many 
people who practically have no country. They may have been at one time 
Austrians, and now they are Czecho-Slovakians or Jugo-Slovaks.

Mr. Jelliff: Should it not be kept in that way, so that we can tell whether 
the expenses being paid are giving returns or not?

The Witness: We will know that as soon as we are established.
81695—151
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Sir Henry Thornton: There is this point to be considered, too. One of 
the things we are all trying to do, the Canadian Pacific Railway, the Dominion 
Government, the Canadian National Railway, and other institutions or organi­
zations which are interested in immigration, is to create an atmosphere in 
Europe with respect to this whole immigration problem. We do a little some­
thing, the C.P.R. does something, the Government does something, various 
other organizations do something, and the whole thing is a general propaganda 
movement, so it is a little difficult to segregate it and say precisely how much 
we are contributing, how much the C.P.R. is contributing, and how much some 
one else is contributing. The co-operative effort of all these organizations 
in the one direction creates a general atmosphere- of immigration throughout 
Europe; the possibilities of Canada as a home for immigrants becomes known 
in different countries; the peasants and others begin thinking and talking about 
it, and you create what I can only describe as an atmosphere.

Mr. Jelliff: Supposing you get an immigrant to come over as the result 
of your agencies, say to- settle on a farm. You bring him as far as this country, 
then how do you follow7 that man up? That is, in placing him, for instance, 
on a piece of your own land, in getting him started out?

The Witness: A man comes out and our people meet him in Winnipeg— 
in fact, wre meet him at the steamship first of all, in Montreal, and then we 
send him to Winnipeg. I cannot do better than describe the experience of a 
man named Foster who came out. He had about $2,500, and as soon as he 
arrived our people met him there; our agricultural man met him and wre took 
him to our land office and pointed out where the land wras, what kind of land it 
was, and he went out and looked it over, and finally, with the advice of our 
people, made his selection. I got a letter from him only the other day, wrhich 
I have forwarded to Dr. Black, in which Foster said he was so grateful to 
the Canadian National Railways for what they had done for him. He said, “ I 
do not know what I would have done if it had not been for the assistance I 
received fropi the agricultural man and the other man who helped me buy 
my stock and ^he implements ”, and he said, I am established and have so 
many acres in seed ”, and he said, “ I am waiting home to my people there to 
tell them to come out and get in touch with the Canadian National Railways 
and if they do the same for them as they have done for me, they will make 
a success ”.

Mr. Jelliff: Did you place him on land?
The Witness: Yes, he had his choice. There are privately owned lands, 

lands of the Canadian National, C.P.R. lands, and so on. Ye take a man to 
the district and say, “ Here is a district; if you want to go in, all right ”, He 
will say, I want to go here ”, and that is the way we do it now.

Mr. Jelliff: Do you require an initial payment on the land?
The Witness: They pay $50 and then they pay half the interest the first 

year.
Mr. Jelliff: What is the length of the term?
The Witness: It runs up to 15 years. They are very, very easy terms; 

he practically gets the land for nothing to start on.
The Chairman : That is Canadian National land?
The Witness: Canadian National land.
The Chairman : Have they the choice of any land available?
The Witness : Yes.
Sir Henry Thornton: We act as guide, philosopher, and friend; tell him 

to take what he wants and how he c(an go about buying his agricultural impie-
[Mr. W. D. Robb.]



NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING 229

raents, and generally give the advice which is necessary for an entire stranger 
coming into the country.

The Witness: And after that our man goes and sees him and finds out 
how he is getting on. That has been one of the great difficulties in the past; 
the men were put on the land and left to paddle their own canoes. That is why 
we feel this community settlement will solve these questions.

Mr. Jelliff: I asked these questions because I was a little fearful that 
perhaps the railway companies would get men here, drop them off, and bother 
no more with them.

Sir Henry Thornton : It is particularly necessary to follow up the non- 
English speaking immigrant. They have a fairly difficult time. Let us say 
a man coming from Czecho-Slovakia; he is put down on a farm here with his 
wife and a child or two. They know no one and cannot speak the language 
and as you know, sometimes they are looked down upon as foreigners; they 
may be called Dutch, or Polacks, or Dagoes, or something like that. We have 
to follow these people up to see that they know where the doctor is and so on, 
and if anything occurs somebody has to advise them. You really have to sort 
of act as nurse for people of that sort until their feet are really planted in the 
soil, until they have established themselves. Not only with respect to their 
actual work does this apply, but also to their social affairs and their social 
amusements. I can only describe it as saying you have to more or less nurse 
them until they are firmly implanted in the soil.

Mr. Jelliff: There is another question which is really an important one. 
A short time ago I was in Montreal and had a conference with the Swedish 
consul, and he said one batch of Swedish people brought over were dropped in 
Montreal and they could not get them out of there ; they lodged them in the 
city and got in touch with the department at Ottawa, and they could not get the 
money to put up to scatter them over different parts of the country, and he said 
he had to find positions for them.

Sir Henry Thornton: How long ago was that?
Mr. Jelliff: That was a couple of months ago. Since then he wired me 

that there were 3 Swedish farm labourers in Montreal, stranded, and asked me 
if I could do anything for them. I took it up with the Immigration Department 
here, and they said they were willing to advance the money to take these three 
settlers to Alberta, if the Consul General would personally guarantee that the 
money would be paid back out of their wages. We did not get the matter 
arranged, and I do not know what became of it. There is a case in point.

The Witness: Let me say something to you. I do not believe we could 
have known about that, because we have not been able to fill the applications 
which we have received. Let me give you a little data. The applications up to 
April 30th for eastern Canada numbered 2,207, that was for help ; western Canada 
3,350, making a total of 5,577. All we were able to find to fill these applications 
was 2,156, and we could certainly have placed more if we could have got them. 
We have never been able to fill 10 per cent of the applications of the Scandin­
avians for farm help in the east, and 50 per cent in Canada, where we could have 
supplied 100 per cent. Also about 25 per cent British farm' help in the east, 
and only 15 per cent in the west. We only supplied 15 per cent of what we were 
asked for.

Sir Henry Thornton: I understand when they get cases of that sort they 
report them to your department?

The Witness Yes; we could have placed them easily.
Sir Henry Drayton : There are now about 150 foreigners in northern 

Ontario who have no work and are being supported by local people ; they 
practically speak no English and there are no jobs for them. I do not say that
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is the fault of the railway ; I do not know whose fault it is, but that is the case. 
If you want particulars, you could get the particulars of these 150 men.

The Witness: We will take care of them.
Mr. Jelliff: I have a telegram in reference to this matter as well.
Mr. Jones: I might say that a little over a year ago the Maritime members 

had several meetings—the last meeting, I believe, was in the office of the present 
Minister ot National Defence, Mr. Macdonald. The meetings were attended by 
all the political parties in the House, I guess there are only three as yet, and 
it was decided there that the Minister was to visit the Maritime Provinces, and 
make a trip down there to go down the St. John river district. I was to pick him 
up at the city of St. John and take him out to Kings and Queens ; the arrangement 
was made for that trip about the first or second week of August, and since then 
1 have heard nothing more about it, I was wondering if that would come in 
here.

Mr. Price-Green : We did not hear anything about that,
Mr. Jones: Mr. Stewart was tire Minister at that time, and I know there 

was a change in the Cabinet shortly after that.
The AVitness: That is the case I was speaking about, group settlement.
Mr. Price-Green : The lion, member might be glad to know that we had a 

man down in Newy Denmark recently looking over the situation there. We 
placed a number of Danes there and next week we shall be sending 25 more to 
that community.

Mr. Jones: When will you be able to take up the matter of the section out 
of St, John? The member for St. John city had arranged to take a trip dovyn 
through Lorneville, which is a very good farming district and also fishing, which 
would suit immigrants from the north of Ireland very well. It really does not 
make any difference to us whether they come from the north of Ireland or the 
south of Ireland, but of course they would have to be in different districts. I 
have arranged for about 20 ready-made farms, there, ready to be occupied, which 
arc vacant on account of deaths, and also because returned soldiers who had 
these farms before going overseas, when they came back .suffered from shell shock 
or something else and were not able to carry on, and have gone into other 
businesses. I would be very glad to meet anyone that the Government or the 
Canadian National would send, meet him at St, John—and by the way I was to 
take Mr. Stewart and his deputy down to Petticodiac and the city of Moncton. 
Were you at those meetings, Mr. Kyte?

Mr. Kyte: No, but I remember the meetings were held.
Mr. Jones: Three quarters of the representatives of the Maritime Provinces 

were there.
Sir Henry' Thornton: If you would simply communicate with Mr. -Robb 

or myself, we would be glad to take up anything of that kind.
Mr. Jones: I will give you the information any time today, or any other 

time you want it,
Sir Henry Thornton: If you will give it to Mr. Robb we will follow it

up.
Mr. Stewart : Mr. Chairman, I do not think I can let this matter of group 

settlement, which has been raised, pass without offering a suggestion. This may 
not be the proper place, but I think that is one of tfie problems that arises out of 
our immigration. In the course of my observation of immigrants in the west,
I think a good part of the difficulties that have arisen in Canadianizing our new 
settlers has been due to group settlement, to which Mr. Robb has referred. I 
know he stated it was not the policy at the present time to carry that into effect
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any further than those of British stock were concerned, but I am not so sure it 
is even a good policy to have with regard to those of British origin, in the newer 
districts. I would have no objection to it in the eastern provinces, where the 
settlement is practically complete, but in the newer districts I have seen, those 
in the west, these settlers have come in and settled in a group, made up of a 
community of their own. These communities have not been successful, and have 
not made as much of a success, I am satisfied, as would have been made if these 
men had been scattered among the residents who had gone through the pioneer­
ing experiences, and who had adopted the methods necessary for a new country. 
These immigrants were British in spirit, but they carried their old-country 
methods and customs with them, and because they were in a group of their 
own they chid not come in contact with others. For that reason, it was very 
much more difficult for them to make a success of it. When it comes to these 
others, other than British stock, there are a great many problems which enter 
in, and I would offer a protest against the Canadian National adding to our 
western problems, by way of adopting the group settlement of immigrants.

Sir Henry Thornton: There is a certain amount of difference of opinion 
about that, Of course, as far as the railway is doncerned, we do not care a rap 
whether it is group settlement or individual settlement, or any other kind, so 
long as that is the most satisfactory to the Dominion and the people of the 
Dominion a^ a whole. Whether you are speaking in favour of group settlement 
or individual settlement, the objective is that thing which is best for the 
Dominion and which promotes contentment among the immigrants. We are not 
going to get that, I am glad you mentioned this, because I would very much 
like to have the views of yourself and others, perhaps, from the west.

Mr. Harris : Might it simplify it a little if I ask this question? Is it hot 
a fact that you will trim your sails according to the government policy?

Sir Henry Thornton: No.
Mr. Harris: I understood that was your European policy, and it may be 

the same here.
Sir Henry Thornton : Possibly I answered your question hastily, and 

did not quite catch your meaning.
Mr. Harris: If it is the government policy in the discussion of immigra­

tion not to increase the group settlement, you would trim your sails accordingly?
The Chairman : Perhaps that is an unfortunate way of putting it, “trim 

your sails”.
Mr. Harris: I thought it was very good.
Sir Henry Thornton : I suppose Mr. Harris is speaking of the govern­

ment, irrespective of what party might be in power. That is, you are simply 
speaking of the government as the government of the country, I take it?

Mr. Harris: I will put it this way. If you felt that public opinion was 
that you should not settle these people in groups, you would lay out your organi­
zation accordingly ; you would not go contrary to public opinion?

Sir Henry Thornton : I think if there were a pronounced opposition on 
the part of the people of Canada to group settlement, we of course could not 
proceed along the lines of group settlement. It would be ridiculous to do so, 
because adder all the people of Canada, through their representatives in 
Parliament, and the government, are the shareholders of the railroad and if on 
any question of policy such as that there was a decided feeling that there should 
be no group settlement, I think we would do ourselves and the country more 
harm than good by trying to enforce it. We must certainly be guided by public 
opinion in a great many things. Have I answered your question?
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Mr. Harris: Yes. I was just thinking about this particular statement 
that you made on page 217.

“If such a situation would come about, if a tariff would be put up 
which would practically prohibit the movement of freight from Europe to 
Canada, we would, of course, have to trim our sails to meet the wind, 
and have to adjust our forces accordingly.”

The same answer would apply?
Sir Henry Thornton : If you are sailing a boat, you have to depend upon 

what kind of wind blows. I am not sure, though, that I have really given you 
the right impression.

Mr. Harris: I think so> I did not mean to interrupt the questioning; I 
am sorry.

Mr. Milne: I should like to back the stand taken by Mr. Stewart. So far 
as the group settlement is concerned, the only argument I have ever heard 
appealing for the group settlement idea was the social side of it. The social 
life is of very great importance, but still you have to have the wherewithal to 
live as .well as to have a social life. It looks to me, in the observations I have 
been able to make, that the social end is stressed with the view of making it 
look more pleasant and more rosy to prospects coming here, and 4 am firmly 
of the opinion that the wdiole immigration work is not so much to induce the 
people to come in, but to look after them when they get here.

Sir Henry Thornton: Make them all contented, so that they will become 
propagandists in their old homes.

Mr. Milne: Yes. Mention was made of education along social lines. We 
had a statement a short time ago to the effect that we had 41 employees in this 
department. I cannot <ee how this number of men could possibly follow up 
the people coming in.

Sir Henry Thornton: I do not suppose they could. Of course, it takes 
more effort to follow up a foreigner, or a non-English speaking immigrant than 
one who speaks English.

The Witness: We have the assistance of the Government Land Settle­
ment Board in our follow-up of the settlers, as well as our own department.

Mr. Milne: How is the work divided up? Does the Soldier Settlement 
Board look after the financing of it?

The Witness: No, the man comes and the Land Settlement Board takes 
it up, and what they do is this. When a settler comes they have all the land 
listed; they have C.P.R. land and Colonization Association land, and H.udson 
Bay land, and individual land, and Canadian National land, and they tell this 
man where the land is. They ask him where he wants to go, and he may say 
he wants to go to a certain place which is owned by the Canadian National 
Railway, or say an outside individual. They will see what they can get it for 
him at; the price will be so and so, and if the price is too high, the Settlement 
people will tell the man the price is too high, and will adyise him not to purchase 
it. However, supposing the price is satisfactory, they assist the man just as we 
were saying. They assist the man to get his horses and his stock and all the 
rest of it, and follow it up and have people visit him from time to time.

Mr. Milne: That is an official of the Land Settlement Boprd?
The Witness: Yes.
Mr. Milne: With regard to the group settlement, perhaps I might just 

make myself clear on the matter. It is simply this. Take an individual, dropped 
into a community which has already been established, and if the people are 
human—and my experience is that they are very sympathetic when a new settler
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comes in—they immediately become acquainted with him and learn his needs, 
and there are often certain things around an established farm that can be 
given bo this new settler which will be of great value to him, but perhaps not 
of very much importance to the established person. For instance, he might give 
him a bag or two of potatoes, which he would never miss out of his bin. That is 
only one illustration. If you take a group settling there, they form a community 
by themselves and they do not get in touch with the people who have had the 
experience, but live off by themselves.» You have to butt in, as it were, if you 
are going to help them and find out what they are doing and what their needs 
are. They live entirely within themselves ; there is perhaps enough of them to 
form a social ring, and it is going to be hard for outsiders to get in, that is, the 
established farmers living in the neighbourhood. That is my main objection to 
group settlement, and while I might enlarge on it further I do not want to take 
up any more time. There is another thing, regarding land. I think the state­
ment was made that there was about 61,000 acres of land sold at 50 cents and 
60 cents an acre.

Mr. Price-Green : That is land in Ontario and Quebec, sold by the gov­
ernment at 50 cents and 60 cents an acre. It is provincial government land, 
and not land in western Canada.

Mr. Milne: Sold to the settlers, the immigrants?
Mr. Price-Green : That is vested in the provinces of Quebec and Ontario. 

They have their own resources and they sell the land on time at 60 cents in 
Quebec, and 50 cents in Ontario.

Mr. Milne: That is not C.N.R. land?
The Witness: No. The average price of C.N.R. land would run between 

$15 and $16 an acre.
Mr. Price-Green : Our announcement says $20, but the average last year 

was $15 and $16.
The Witness: The average price was $15.66. They pay $50 down, and 

after that in the first year I think they pay half the interest, and the second 
year they pay half the taxes and the.interest—

Mr. Price-Green : Taxes the first year, taxes and half the interest the 
second year, taxes and all the interest the third year, and then they pay up in 
ten annual payments.

The Witness: Over the 15 years?
Mr. Price-Green : Yes. The period was put at 15 years, because it is 

better for a man to pay it in that time; it costs him very much less than if it 
were extended over a period of say 35 years.

Mr. Jones: What interest do you charge?
Mr. Price-Green : Six per cent. %
Mr. Jones: From the beginning?
Mr. Price-Green : Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : Mr. Chairman, the thought has occurred to me that 

for the amount of time-at our disposal it is impossible for us to go through these 
accounts.

The Chairman : We made very good progress yesterday.
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, but if we are going to take them up in detail, 

we will never finish. My view is that we have not time this year to do very much 
more than take up a few general points. If we are to just indicate certain items 
upon which we want information and ask the management to bring it down, 
I think perhaps we would be able to make more progress ; we cannot do very 
much this year. By the method I suggest we might make considerable progress,
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but otherwise we would never be able to get through this at all. I would suggest 
definitely that instead of going through all these accounts, item by item, we 
should indicate the accounts we really want looked into, and ask the manage­
ment to bring down appropriate statement; then when that is done, it is done, 
and we will save a lot of time. We got rid of a lot of these accounts the other 
day by my taking them up with the management in the afternoon, and practi­
cally agreeing upon the results, and I think perhaps we could do that with 
others and limit it as much as we can. Then there is one other thing we should 
do. The real function of this committee ought to be more consultive and 
advisory than anything else, and I think we should give some indication during 
our sittings as to what*our views are as to general policies to be followed.

The Chairman: And embody that in our report to Parliament?
Sir Henry Drayton : We might do that here, and I doubt if we could 

ervstallize it into a report. Take for example this question we are on, this 
immigration question, we could discuss this for weeks. This one point of group 
settlement could be discussed for a week, and even then the subject would not 
be exhausted.

Sir Henry Thornton: May I say that would be, to us, a very valuable 
thing, because here is a question : shall we pursue group settlement or individual 
settlement, or shall we throw out group settlement altogether? If the adminis­
tration could sit down with such a committee as this and discuss the question 
and determine upon a policy, we could proceed with some degree of certainty.

Sir Henry Drayton : I was just going to indicate generally what seems to 
be one or two of the underlying difficulties.

Mr. Harris : Is it not the fact that you gathered a good deal of that from 
the discussions in the House?

Sir Henry Thornton : Yes, but I think such a committee as this gives an 
opportunity for fuller and more advantageous discussion.

The Chairman : I am not sure that this committee has any authority to 
deal with policies.

Mr. Kyte: We can suggest anything.
Sir Henry Drayton: I think we are supposed to be here in an advisory 

capacity.
Mr. Stewart : Is it not always the fact that we have the privilege of dis­

cussing the policy when the estimates are up?
Sir Henry Drayton : In this connection, what we are now talking about, it 

does seem to me that we are doing very very little in immigration. In the first 
instance, I should think what the management would be chiefly concerned in, 
would be getting the proper co-ordination between the different activities in 
connection with this matter. We have not it to-dày. We have the C.P.R. with 
agents at one place; the National Railways with agents at the same place, and 
in some instances the government with agents also there. We should not have 
that overlapping, not only in connection with expenses, but what is far more 
important, in connection with the useful results obtained. Here, for example, we 
have those men in northern Ontario that I mentioned. You could find a lot of 
cases like that throughout the country. I think Mr.. Robb will agree with me 
that the very first thing to be done is to get unification in connection with this.

The Witness :Yes, that is r^ght.
Sir Henry Drayton : And the next thing to do is to know what we are 

going to do. We do not today.
The Witness: We know what we are going to do.
Sir Henry Drayton : I do not think any of us know. Here you have people 

coming over here ; they are taken hold of when they get here; there is an argu-
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ment as to where they should go when they are here. They are subjected to all 
kinds of representations made in a general way over there. My view is that our 
activities insofar as placing these men goes, are absolutely in the wrong place. 
Your policy there is absolutely wrong.. Before a man is taken away, as far as 
agricultural men are concerned, and the man who wants to go and live on a farm, 
we should know, you should know, he should know exactly where he is going 
before he leaves the other side.

The Witness: You cannot always do that.
Sir Henry Drayton : But you ran do that in a great many cases.
The Witness : Some men know where they want to go, and others absolutely 

do not know where they want to go. With all the propaganda and everything 
you can give them, these men will not decide where they want to go.

Sir Henry Drayton : Have you, by any chance, read the paper prepared 
by Mr. McGrath?

The Witness: Yes, I have.
Sir Henry Drayton : Is that not a very good basis?
The Witness : Yes, but there is nothing new in that scheme at all.
Sir Henry Drayton : But it gives a concrete plan for doing something 

which is not now being done at all. Under Mr. McGrath’s scheme you would 
have the co-operation of the Dominion, of the railways, o| the provinces and of 
the municipalities, which you are not getting to-day.

The Witness: Yes, we have. We are getting the co-operation of the 
Dominion and the municipalities and all the provinces.

Sir Henry Drayton : We will see how far we have gone now. Under the 
legislation of Alberta, according to the figures given by financial papers in the 
west, this year there will fall into the hands of the authorities, either provincial 
or municipal, $75,000,000 worth of lands, which will 'be held by the public. 
Now, they are interested in getting these lands worked again. In many instances 
I should think they would be very very glad to go into such a scheme as is 
proposed by Mr. McGrath, under which these lands—the full particulars of them 
would" be known all over and would be submitted to the prospective immigrant 
and groups of prospective immigrants. Is that being done? Have you any 
offers of farms at the present time from municipalities in Alberta ?

The Witness: No, 1 cannot say that we have, but I will say this. We are 
putting all this land before the people, before the prospective settlers on the 
other side,, and they will not sav where they are going to settle. You will not 
get that, or at least we have not been able to get it.

Sir Henry Drayton: Perhaps if you were all to get together it might be 
done. What is your view in connection with assistance? Do you think you can 
get a proper body of immigrants without assistance in this country?

The Witness: Assistance from where?
Sir Henry Drayton : I am not asking from where, but just the bald ques­

tion, can you get a proper body of immigrants in this country without assist­
ance?

The Witness: No, we all have to assist.
Sir Henry Drayton: Do you not think we should have some worked out 

plan by which that assistance could be given?
The Witness: That would assist, undoubtedly.
Sir Henry Drayton: Then, do you not think that McGrath plan should 

be adopted?
The Witness: Certainly.

[Mr. W. D. Robli.l
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Sir Henry Drayton : Can you suggest any better method of assistance 
than that put forward in the McGrath plan.

The Witness : No, I do not know of any. I do not know of any better 
method than the one. we are pursuing at the present time, notwithstanding the 
McGrath plan.

Sir Henry Drayton : What are you doing now?
The Witness : At the present time we have an organization on the other 

side to get these immigrants, to bring them here, and it is not so much a question 
of getting the immigrants at all, the question arises after you get the immigrants, 
placing him on the land and taking care of him and making him contented. 
That,has been the whole trouble in this country, with the settler in the Dominion 
of Canada.

Sir Henry Drayton : You are stating a general result desired, but not the 
business you are doing.

The Witness: Of course, you must bear in mind, you must remember that 
we have only got started. You take our competitor, for instance; they have 
been at this thing for from 25 to 30 years, and we only started last year, so 
you have to give us time to grow.

Sir Henry Drayton : What are you doing in the way of assistance? You 
agree that assistance is necessary, what assistance are you giving?

The Witness: We are getting assistance------
Sir Henry Drayton : What assistance are you giving the immigrant?
The Witness: We are giving the immigrant assistance ; we are bringing 

him out here and we are taking care of him. I quoted you the case of this man 
Foster; what more do you want?

Sir Henry Drayton : I want your general policy. There is a man in Eng­
land ; what are you going to do for him?

The Witness: I have already outlined the general policy.
Sir Henry Drayton: What do you give him?
The Witness: We give him help, assistance, and advice.
Sir Henry Drayton : Do you give him any money?
The Witness: Not at the present time, wg do not. In the group system we 

will help these men.
• Sir Henry Drayton : Under the group system, how much money would you 

give?
The Witness: Under the group system we will give this man about $2,500.
Sir Henry Drayton : How? Under what terms?
The Witness: The terms will be spread over a period of years.
Mr. Stewart: I take it that you have some definite policy of scheme worked

out?
The Witness: Yes, we have. I cannot remember all the details of it, but 

Mr. Price-Green read it a while ago. I will send you that if you want it; I 
cannot remember it all.

Sir Henry Drayton : Under the group system you would give $2,5001
Mr. Price-Green : That is the advance for the Overseas Settlement C om­

mittee.
Sir Henry Drayton : Where does that money come from?
The Witness: That money will come—we would arrange a company to 

advance this money, and it is guaranteed. The man would pay it all back and 
half of any loss is guaranteed by the British Government.

(Mr. AV. D. Robb.]
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Sir Henry Drayton : Has the company been formed yet?
The Witness: No, not yet.
Sir Henry Drayton : It has not been formed yet?
The Witness: No. We would have to get the money from a Trust Com­

pany or from a bank. ,
Sir Henry Drayton : Who would get the money?
The Witness: We would get it.
Sir Henry Drayton : And have you done that at all yet?
The Witness: No, not yet. You must bear this in mind, that we are 

gradually working up to this. We have not got everything in shape yet.
Sir Henry Drayton : Is that $2,500 per head or per group?
The Witness: No, that is per head, or per family.
Sir Henry Drayton : How would you secure that? That is secured by 

mortgage on the property?
The Witness: On his farm, on his land.
Sir Henry Drayton: Have you any contract with the British government?
The Witness: Yes, we have an agreement with the British government, with 

the Empire Settlement Board.
Sir Henry Drayton : Is that with a company or with the government?
The Witness: With the government, the Empire Settlement Board.
Mr. Stewart: The security part of your scheme, does it follow in general 

the plan adopted by the Soldier Settlement Board with regard to returned men 
going on the land?

Mr. Price-Green : It is somewhat along similar lines. The Overseas Settle­
ment Committee practically guarantees this amount. On account of the differ­
ence in exchange they do not feel perhaps that it is very advantageous to put it 
up at the present time, although they may reconsider that. That advance will 
be made to the man to enable him to buy stock and equipment. He must him­
self have £200 in order to qualilfy for this scheme, and then an agreement is 
being worked out by which he will give the necessary security. The details of 
that, the legal end, has not been worked out yet.

Sir Henry Thornton : Is it your idea that some machinery should be made 
effective under some form of central control which would co-ordinate our entire 
immigration efforts?

Sir Henry Drayton : Of the whole country.
Sir Henry Thornton : Of the whole country, C. P. R., Canadian National, 

Soldier Settlement, various private institutions, everything, that that should be 
steered by some central body, that we should not be working at cross purposes, 
and that every ounce of effort put forth should bring a maximum of results?

Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, that is my idea, and I think you will agree 
with me.

Sir Henry Thornton: I do.
Sir Henry Drayton : Have you had a chance of going over the McGrath

plan?
Sir Henry Thornton : Yes. Of course, when you get discussing the ques­

tion of immigration, it has so many side lines to it, and it is not an easy thing 
to determine a policy upon. I do not know that there has ever been any effort 
to approach the problem with a view to fully organizing^the whole thing. We 
have done the best we could under the circumstances, and others have done the 
same thing, but I think it might be profitable if we could really determine pre­
cisely what we are going to do, and then go and do it.

[Mr. W. D. RobbJ
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Sir Henry Drayton : I would suggest that if you were to appoint a man 
—preferably do it yourself—to represent your system ; the C.P.R. to do the 
same thing; the government to do the same thing; the British government to 
do the same; and the Bankers’ Association to do the same thing, to sit down 
and see if we cannot put the whole of this thing upon a real business basis, 
cutting out overlapping and hitting upon some definite plan, so that the 
reproach can no longer exist fairly that we bring people over here not knowing 
what we are going to do with them, that we waste money sending them back, 
or that they become charges upon municipalities. In other words, know what 
we are going to do. We should treat the immigrant as a matter of business, 
practically ticket him from the time he leaves one place until he gets to his 
destination.

Sir Henry Thornton: The thing that has always impressed me in con­
nection with our immigration problem, as compared with that of the United 
States, is that, so far as I know, the United States government and the United 
States railroads, none of them have ever put up one penny or done anything 
to induce immigrants to come to the United States, yet every day they are 
fighting them off to keep them out of the country. We have done quite differ­
ently. We have put forth every effort, we are spending money to induce immi­
grants to come here, and yet we are not getting them as they are in the United 
States to-day. The United States government and the people of the United 
States have not done one thing, yet somehow they are getting the people.

Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, and way we are doing to-day, we are bringing 
these people over here, having a great deal of trouble in getting them, and they 
stay until they fill their pockets and then move on. Of course, we have not 
any expansion going on; we have not any ready work. During the time of 
railway construction, every man could get a job; he could always be sure of 
getting a job on the railway and he always got it, but now all railway construc­
tion is over and we have not any active development going on, and there are 
no jobs for these people.

Sir Henry Thornton : This question of immigration is one with many 
sides to it.

Sir Henry Drayton : I think if you could only get the different interests 
of this country together, the government would set to work, and after all this 
is public business that affects everybody. It should not be looked upon as 
government business alone, because it is not. There is no one more interested 
in it, after all, than the railways and the banks, and yet no attempt has been 
made to have them ' co-ordinated. The banks should be able to get a lot of 
information through all their offices spread over the country, where men could 
be placed.

The Chairman : Will you require to ask any more questions of Mr. Robb? 
He is'the witness on this immigration idea.

Sir Henry Drayton:- No, not as far as I am concerned. Sir Henry Thorn­
ton has the idea. What did we spend on immigration last year?

The Witness: $160,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : What will we spend this year?
The Witness: Probably a little more than that.
Sir Henry Drayton : What do your estimates call for?
The Witness: We have not any on that at all.
Sir Henry Drayton : Oh, yes, you have.
The Witness: It is included in ordinary operating expenses. We have 

not anything in the estimates for that. It will be somewhat increased, although 
not very much. 1

r.Wr. W. D. Robb.]
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The Chairman : The total would be perhaps $200,000?
The Witness: It might be $25,000 or $30,000 more.
Sir Henry Drayton : I should think that the officer in charge of the ser­

vice would know what the estimate is for this year.
The Witness: You must remember this, that we are gradually growing 

with this, and to sit down and say just how much I am going to spend on it 
I do not know, and no other man knows, and I could hardly be expçcted to 
know.

Sir Henry Drayton : That is why we call them estimates. I do not 
think you have had much to do with estimates, or you would not say that.

The Witness: I have had everything to do with them.
Sir Henry Drayton : Have you made no request for funds yet?
The Witness: No, not yet. We are just gradually increasing, the same 

way you would increase your staff on the railroad. The operating department 
or the traffic department, if they are going to put on an extra man or two, 
do not say, “ We are going to ask for additional capital to pay that man.” 
We do not know any more than they do.

Sir Henry Drayton : I fancy they know something of what their business 
is going to be.

The Chairman: I might say to the Committee they spent $160,000 last 
year, and Mr. Robb has said they will spend possibly another $25,000 this 
year.

Sir Henry Thornton: We will probably spend about $200,000 on this. 
Of course, if something, develops, we will not hesitate to increase that.

Sir Henry Drayton : So long as you have enough in your general fund to 
cover it.

Mr. Jelliff: Mr. Robb stated a while ago that the Imperial government 
gave assistance, to a certain extent. Does the Dominion government give any, 
or does it plan to give any financial assistance to these settlers?

The Witness: No.
The Chairman : The suggestion was made by Sir Henry Drayton that we 

should not go into these accounts in detail, as we have been doing.
Mr. Harris: May I ask one question? With regard to the industrial bureaus, 

how many have you in Canada?
The Witness: I cannot answer that question. That comes under the traffic 

department.
Mr. Henry: That is operated from Montreal, with a sub-office.
Mr. Harris: My own impression is that they are doing very good work on 

behalf of the Canadian National Railways.
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Harris: 1 have had occasion to know that they are doing good work, 

and I just want to have that on record.
The Chairman: Does the Committee want to follow the suggestion of Sir 

Henry Drayton?
Sir Henry Drayton : I conceive that it is perfectly impossible to go through 

all these accounts, item by item, with any useful results.
1 he Chairman: You mean in greater detail than is given in this report?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes. There are certain items which I have no doubt 

members are interested in. For example, I was interested the other day in 
items of construction and capital charges. Instead of taking up time with that, 
the officials were going to make up a statement, and I suppose that will be made

[Mr. W. D. Robb.]
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up; perhaps it is finished already. We will gét rid of all that in a few minutes. 
I am not going to ask anything else, except perhaps I note a question on the 
order paper as to expenses of advertisement and publicity. Perhaps we could 
get a statement there, which would show if they are spending too much money 
on this line. Those are the only two items I am interested in.

The Chairman : What is the wish of the Committee in regard to that? 
I might say that we have made pretty good progress with the exception of that 
part of the report which is mainly statistical.

Sir Henry Drayton : These particular statistics could be taken without 
question.

The Chairman : Of the actual report, we have covered that pretty well; 
the only thing left is the capital expenditures.

Mr. Harris : There are two or three main questions with regard to which 
we have not had a chance to review at all.

The Chairman : Something left over from previous sittings?
Mr. Harris : Yes. At the last sitting a -very pertinent question was asked 

regarding the coal consumed, and if the railway could file a statement covering 
all that, of course it might condense the discussion very considerably, but not 
having that statement and with the sparse information we have, it is difficult 
to cover the ground.

The Chairman : Did we ask them to file that statement?
Mr. Henry : Yes, I can file that right now.
Mr. Harris: I wanted to get another statement covering item 451, “Salaries 

and expenses of general offices”. I do not want the salary of any individual 
officer to embarrass the management of t*he railroad, but I would like some sort 
of general statement. I do not want any names or any particular office, but 
I would like as full a statement as the company feels disposed to give, without 
in any way embarrassing their position with regard to any competing lines.

The Chairman : There would be no objection to that?
" Sir Henry Thornton : None whatever. Just precisely what does Mr. 

Harris want?
Mr. Harris: It is all on record.
Sir Henry Thornton : I have no doubt we can furnish you with what you 

want.
Mr. Harris: There is one other point. I would like an approximate of the 

capital cost per mile of the railways owned at the present time, exclusive of 
other services such as steamship services, exclusive of other assets such as 
acreage of land and all other buildings that do not have to do with the running 
of the railroad itself. If possible, I would like a comparison of that with the 
C.P.R., so that I could crystallize in my own mind as to how much the 
capital of the Canadian National Railways will have to be reduced in order 
that it will be put on a basis at the earliest possible moment which will permit 
the citizens to compare its operations with the operations of other railroads in 
the country.

The Chairman: Are you asking for the cost or the value?
Mr. Harris :. The capital per mile, what the capital cost per mile should 

be, how if, should show in the assets.
Sir Henry Thornton : What you would like to know is the cost per mile 

of the system?
Mr. Harris: I want to know how much the capital should be reduced. 

That is the point I am getting at; what should be the capital cost per mile. We 
know it is away in excess of what it should be.

[Mr. W. D. Robb.]
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The Chairman: You mean the obligations upon which the government or 
the railway are now paying charges are greater than the actual value of the 
assets, and perhaps should be written down?

Mr. Harris: I should say it is the capital value per mile that I want.
Sir Henry Thornton: Was not that information given in the House the 

other day?
Sir Henry Drayton: I suppose what is really wanted is the actual cost, 

and then the replacement value.
Mr. Harris : Could we get the value per mile?
The Chairman: In the balance sheet at the foot of page 7 it says-----
Sir Henry Thornton: No, that is not it.
The Chairman: I fancy it is. “Consideration is being given to the policy 

to be followed with respect to the capitalization of the system, and the extent 
to which, if at all, the advances made and capital held by the Government 
should be written down to a figure which may be regarded as consistent with 
the earning prospects of the railway.” Is that along the line you want?

Mr. Harris: I want it, so that we can give consideration to it as well.
The Chairman: You want the capital cost or the value?
Mr. Harris : I do not want the cost; I want its value.
Sir Henry Thornton : We can give you the capital cost per mile; that is 

comparatively simple, but if you should ask me today what is the value of this 
railway per mile-----

Sir Henry Drayton : You could estimate the replacement value.
Mr. Harris: I will be satisfied with the cost, and I will take the cost of 

some competitive road and crystallize my ideas on that.
The Chairman : It is a big job.
Mr. Harris: Yes, but something has to be done. This snowball is growing 

at an enormous rate.
The Chairman : Can you do it in time for this committee.
Sir Henry Thornton: I doubt it. We might make a sort of stab at the 

replacement value.
Mr. Harris: I understood there was some considerable work being done 

in this connection also, inasmuch as there is consideration being given to the 
policy now'.

Sir Henry Thornton : Yes, but we have not gotten very far with it. I 
wrould like to furnish the information, but my difficulty is in getting at what 
you want. •

Sir Henry Drayton : If you take the Swayne report that will give you a 
fair yardstick. If you take that report of 1916, which Mr. Henry knows all 
about, that will cover the value ; not the cost, but the value of the Grand 
Trunk Pacific lines, and also the Canadian Northern lines. Then if you take 
the basis of the Grand Trunk award—not the claim, but the amount actually 
awarded—you will get a pretty fair idea as to the value.

Sir Henry Thornton : I think I know what Mr. Harris wants, and I 
think we can satisfy him.

Mr. Harris : There is a sentence in this “Balance Sheet ” at the foot of 
page 7 which says, “ On the other hand it would seem unreasonable to burden 
the Canadian National Railways with a load which is beyond its conceivable 
earning capacity.” Let us have that load, and what the earning capacity is.

The Chairman: I think that can be done all right.
[Mr. W, D. Robb.]
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Sir Henry Drayton : I wonder if Mr. Henry has been able to get the 
details of the capital charges?

Mr. Henry: Yes, I have, and I will file it now.

Long Lac Cut Off 
Expenditures Year 1923

Account. Amount.
1. Engineering................................................... $ 61,172 03
2. Land for transportation.............................. 2,689 80
3. Grading.......................................................... 740,623 24
6. Bridges, trestles and culverts....................... 182,284 63
8. Ties............................................................... 97,128 09
9. Rails............................................................... 260,726 13

10. Other tratk material................................... 48,187 92
11. Ballast..............................  42,985 22
12. Track laying and surfacing........................ 97,947 48
15. Crossing and signs...................................... 133 36
16. Station and Office Buildings.. .. ... . . 37,900 92
17. Roadway Buildings...................................... 63,039 67
18. Water Stations.............................................. 55,508 77
19. Fuel Stations................................................ 20,618 81
20. Shops and Enginehouses............................. 250,541 48
26. Telegraph and Telephone Lines.................. 17,160 88
47. Unapplied Construction.............................. 80,507 03
77. Other Expenditures—General..................... 101,086 21

Total..................... ............................................. $2,160,241 67

Expenditures prior to 1923.................................. 16.866 65
Expenditures year 1923......................................... 2,160,241 67
Expenditures Jan. 1, 1924, to May 31, 1924.. 194,925 39

Total expenditure.................................. • $2,372,033 71

Hardwood Ridge to Minto Mines 
Expenditures Year 1923

Account. Amount.
1. Engineering........................................................ "$ 7,628 22
2. Land.......................................... .......................... 1,828 92
3. Grading..................................................................... 35,333 83
6. Bridges, Trestles and Culverts.......................... 18,089 63
8. Ties.............................................................................. 7,737 28
9. Rails............................................................................ 8,898 73

10. Other Track Material............................................ 8,886 48
11. Ballast......................................................................... 5,425 03
12. Track Laying.......................................................... 14,030 01
13. Fences......................................................................... 3,771 20

Expended 1924
$ 111,629 33 

49,886 68

$ 161,516 01
[Mr. W. D. Robb.]
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The Chairman : That was gotten up from the items?
Mr. Henry : Yes. With respect to the coal consumption, I can also give

that.
Mr. Harris: Mr. Chairman, I think we would save a'lot of time if we had 

a chance to review that statement between now and the next meeting.
The Chairman: Shall we take that up at the next meeting? In the mean­

time, the statements will be filed.
Mr. Henry: I will just read it. Your question was the number of pounds 

of fuel per thousand gross ton miles. In 1923 on class one railroads in the 
United States it was 188 pounds ; on the Canadian National system it was 142. 
In 1922 on class one railroads it was 186 in the United States. The corre­
sponding figure on the Canadian National cannot be given, for the reason that 
it was not a system then. For the month of May, 1923, compared with the 
month of May, 1924, in the various regions, the consumption is as follows:—

Lbs. coal per 1000 G.T.M. 1924 1923
Atlantic Region.. ..................................................... 192 213
Central Region........................................................... 142 146
Grand Trunk Western Region................................. 131 146
Western Region.......................................................... 101 110

System...................................................................... 127 140
There is a reduction in each region.
Mr. Harris : Have you any general statement with regard to this?
Mr. Henry : No, except that it indicates the result of a greater effort being 

made to effect fuel economy.
Mr. Harris : Any general statement with regard to the different regions? 

You spoke about some 40 divisions.
Mr. Henry: The consumption, of course, depends a great deal upon many 

different factors. It depends upon empty car movement, for instance, upon 
grades and loading and all that kind of thing.

Mr. Harris : Have you any statement as to where these supplies were
bought?

Mr. Henry: Generally speaking, the supplies of coal utilized on the 
western region are obtained there.

Mr. Harris: You recollect I asked very distinctly about the increased cost, 
and you were going to bring in a statement with regard to the reason for the 
increased cost, in view of the fact that there has been a considerable reduction 
in the amount consumed, that is, the amount per gross ton mile.

Mr. Henry: There was a slight decrease in the average price per ton.
Mr. Harris: A decrease in the price per ton?
Mr. Henry: Yes, but there was also a substantial increase in the volume

of business done.
Mr. Harris : What price was paid per ton, in any region you wish to 

give, preferably the Atlantic region? What was the average price per ton ÿ 
1923? I

Mr. Henry: The average price per ton on the whole system in 1922 was 
$5.82 and in 1923, $5.64. There was more coal, of course, consumed in 1923 than 
in 1922, because of the increased business.

Mr. Harris : So the price of coal decreased and the poundage per gross 
ton also decreased.

*1695—161
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Mr. Henry: That was due to economies.
Mr. Harris : How many channels are you getting this coal from in the 

Atlantic region at the present time?
Mr. Henry: I coùld not give you that offhand; a dozen or more.
Mr. Harris : Does your own purchasing agent do all the buying?
Mr. Henry : We have the Vice-president in charge of purchases and stores. 

He does that. That is all done directly from the head office in Montreal.
Sir Henry Drayton : I suppose Mr. Vaughan is in charge of that?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Thornton: And he has a general fuel agent whose particular 

function is to look after fuel purchases, and he in turn has regional purchasing 
agents who report to him in respect of prices and all that sort of thing, and 
follow his directions in regard to the purchase of coal. It is all under the 
direction of the Vice-president in charge of purchasing, who is aided by a fuel 
purchasing agent.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, it is nearly one o’clock. Shall we decide when 
to meet again, and what we shall consider? We can meet this afternoon if we so 
desire. We have the permission of the House. If we do, what shall we take up, 
in view of the suggestion made by Sir Henry Drayton? What is the wish of the 
committee?

Mr. Stewart : I am hardly in agreement with the suggestion of Sir Henry 
Drayton, in the circumstances. I think perhaps it would not be quite as satis­
factory a method as following the lines we are proceeding on now. However, 
seeing that wé are coming to a place where we will have to stop soon, I think the 
best thing we can do is to curtail the discussion wherever we reasonably can.

Sir Henry Drayton: I would suggest that at the next meeting we could 
almost finish what we want to say. There are two things I have asked for, and 
that is all I will want.

Major Bell: There has been a request made that we explain the electric 
railway situation, and if it is satisfactory to the committee and yourself we 
would like to bring that on this afternoon.

Mr. Stewart: Mr. Chairman, there was a Statement yesterday promised 
about the superintendence at Saskatoon. Is that available?

Mr. Henry: That will be available this afternoon.
Sir Henry Drayton : In the meantime we will just think things over and 

confine ourselves to particular items into which we want to inquire.
The witness retired.
The committee adjourned.

Committee Room 231,
House of Commons,

Friday, June 27, 1924.
The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping 

resumed at 3.30 p.m., Mr. W. D. Euler, M.P., Chairman, presiding.
The Chairman: We will proceed.
Mr. Stewart (Humboldt) : We were to have a statement on the electrified 

lines.
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Henry.
Mr. Henry: There are three electric lines involved, Mr. Chairman; the 

Niagara-St. Catherines and Toronto, extending generally from Port Dalhousie,
[Mr. Henry.]
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St. Catherines, Thorold to Port Colbourne with an extension to Niagara-on-the- 
Lake and Niagara Falls. There are sixty-two miles in that railway. The 
second one is known as the Toronto-Suburban Railway, which extends from 
Guelph to Toronto. The third is the Toronto Eastern extending, the con­
structive portion of it—

Mr. Kyte: Are these tram lines or electric?
Mr. Henry: Electric. The Toronto Niagara and St. Catherines, and the 

Toronto Suburban are being operated, but the Toronto Eastern is only partly 
constructed.

Mr. Milne: How long is the Toronto-Guelph line?
Mr. Henry : The Toronto-Guelph is fifty-eight miles.
Hon. Mr. Graham : You will find the Canadian Northern Electric lines 

on page 51.
Mr. Henry: Yes, with the exception of the Toronto-Eastern. There is 

included in this year’s programme, an amount of $1,500,000 intended to be 
expended upon these three lines. The Niagara-St. Catherines and Toronto 
Railway is partly a street railway and partly an inter-urban railway. The street 
railway end of it, or what you might call the urban end of it was operated 
under a number of franchises. I think there were ten or fifteen in the city of 
St. Catherines, seven or eight in Niagara-Falls, and one or two in Merriton. 
Some of these had expired, and the proposal now is to make arrangements with 
the various municipalities whereby the urban service will be rehabilitated where 
necessary, and extended where necessary, and new franchises entered into with 
the municipalities on the basis of service at cost.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Did you get rid of the old franchises?
Mr. Henry: In some cases. To date an arrangement has been effected on 

that basis with the city of Niagara Falls. That has been approved, has gone 
through the Council and we are now negotiating with the city of St. Catherines 
along the same lines. But these negotiations are still in progress. That will 
mean for a period of three years an expenditure of perhaps $2,500,000, fifty per 
cent of which will expended on the urban and fifty per cent on the inter-urban. 
The inter-urban development will .give an electric service running from Port 
Dalhousie to Niagara Falls and to Port Colborne.

Sir Henry Drayton : This $2,500,000, is all on the Niagara line?
Mr. Henry : That is the estimated expenditure to rehabilitate the urban 

and inter-urban lines.
Sir Henry Drayton : Line or lines?
Mr. Henry: Both.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is all the Niagara and St. Catherine lines?
Mr. Henry : All the Niagara and St. Catherine lines. Fifty per cent is 

for the city service and fifty per cent for the other, the inter-urban. An arrange­
ment has already been effected with the city of Niagara Falls on the basis 
of service at cost.

Sir Henry Drayton : When1 you say “ service at cost,” do you mean ser­
vice at cost plus?

Mr. Henry: Plus six per cent, and that cost would include a certain 
amount to amortize the principal in two or three years.

Sir Henry Drayton : What are the prospects of getting an arrangement 
with St. Catherines?

Mr. Henry: They seem to be progressing.
Sir Henry Drayton : There was some delay?
Mr. Henry: There has been some difficulty.

[Mr. Henry.]
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Sir Henry Drayton : But that is being smoothed away?
Mr. Henry: It is being smoothed away.
Sir Henry Drayton : It'was on a five-cent basis.
Mr. Henry: That has been. With the exception of the city service, they 

were all on a basis of a five-cent fare. The inter-urban services have paid.
Sir Henry Drayton : I think they got eight per cent on the inter-urban 

service.
Mr. Henry: We lost money on the urban service but the inter-urban more 

than made up that and gave us operating expenses and interest on the invest­
ment and advances.

Sir Henry Drayton: For years it was carrying itself?
Mr. Henry: Oh yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : The inter-urban service?
Mr. Henry-: Yes.
Mr. Milne: 
Mr. Henry : 
Mr. Milne:

That is not purely a passenger service.
No, passenger service and freight service.

How did the freight haul compare with the steam haul?
Mr. Henry: It has to have the same rates. It is under the same scale 

of rates as the steam rate exactly but it has the advantage of getting closer to 
the industries in that district.

Sir Henry Drayton : It is a very good feeder?
Mr. Henry: Very good indeed.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is one that is very good.
Mr. Milne: Is it cheaper to operate with steam?
Mr. Henry: It is. Your traffic is heavier, and it is heavier in that district.
Mr. Milne: The power is purchased?
Mrv Henry: The power is purchased on a contract from the Hydro 

Commission. The second line, the Toronto-Suburban, was also part of the 
Canadian Northern. By the way, these lines were a part of the Canadian 
Northern System. The Toronto-Suburban extending from Guelph to Toronto had 
about seven miles of line in what is known as ward seven in the city of Toronto. 
The franchise with respect to one part of that expired I think in 1921. The 
franchise with respect to another part expires in 1928. Under an arrangement 
with the city of Toronto that was taken over. The agreement was effective 
during the past summer. That left us with this Toronto-Suburban line starting 
at Guelph and terminating at Lambton.

Sir Henry Drayton : Are you still running to Keele Street?
Mr. Henry: No, we terminate with the city limits.
Sir Henry Drayton: That is under the recent arrangement?
Mr. Henry: We did run to Keele Street, along the Dundas and Devenport 

Road, but the city has now taken over this line, and they have changed or are 
changing the gauge. We also have a street-car service running up through the 
municipalities of «Mount Forest and Weston on these streets, and then an eight- 
miles branch from the Northern end of Weston to Woodbridge. We are 
negotiating with these municipalities now with a view to having them take 
over these lines as the franchise will expire in about four years. They have the 
right to acquire them at a valuation.

Sir Henry Drayton : Taking the Lambton and Woodbridge line for example, 
under the old system a man would take his car to Woodbridge and get off at 
Keele St.?

[Mr. Henry.]
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Mr. Henry: Exactly.
Sir Henry Drayton : Where does he connect now?
Mr. Henry: He connects with the Toronto Transportation Commission 

cars up at the city limits.
Sir Henry Drayton: On what street, the Weston Road?
Mr. Henry: It is on the Weston Road.
Sir Henry Drayton : You do not transfer him across to Lambton?
Mr. Henry: No, we have not yet any connection between the two.
Sir Henry Drayton : There is no connection between them?
Mr. Henry: There is none.
Sir Henry Drayton: In the meantime, what is happening to the traffic? 
Mr. Henry: In the meantime the traffic is interchanged with the Toronto 

Transportation Commission at Lambton in the West and at the city limits in 
the North.

Mr. Stewart : How are they transferred?
Mr. Henry: Our passengers get off our cars and get on theirs.
Mr. Stewart: They have to pay their fare?
Mr. Henry: Oh yes, there is not any arrangement with the city in that 

regard.
Sir Henry Drayton : The old Woodbridge fare w;as twenty-five cents I 

think.
Mr. Henry: Thirty-five, I think, from memory.
Sir Henry Drayton : What is the fare now?
Mr. Henry: I think it is the same rate.
Sir Henry Drayton : That does not seem right.
Mr. Henry: The city limits are what you would call Northland Avenue.
Sir Henry Drayton : There is no street car out there?
Mr. Henry: Here is our line (indicating).
Sir Henry Drayton : On the West side of the street car.
Mr. Henry: The city has taken this and widened the gauge.
Sir Henry Drayton : The city are now operating your old route?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : There was a proposition that you would swing this 

over to your railway right-of-way and give Woodbridge on the North quick access 
to the city. What has become of that idea?

Mr. Henry: Well, the trouble with that is that this franchise expires in
1928.

Sir Henry Drayton : That would make it all the easier to deflect to your 
right-of-way and have a quick suburban service.

Mr. Henry : You mean from the Woodbridge end of it?
Sir Henry Drayton : From Weston north.
Mr. Henry: We are running a gas car, a storage battery car there now. 

We will have to operate this line along the streets.
Sir Henry Drayton : I do not know that any change will be an advantage. 

It is an awful system as it now stands. Will there be any new rolling stock? 
Mr. Henry : There is provision for some new rolling stock.
Sir Henry Drayton : You will agree that there is urgent need of it?
Mr. Henry: It is not in very good shape, Sir Henry.

[Mr. Henry.]
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Sir Henry Drayton : I should think not.
Mr. Henry: The proposition there is and it is now in course of construction 

to connect the Guelph end of that line by running over the old belt line right-of- 
way and connecting with the old Grand Trunk, what is now the Brampton 
sub-division, which is above St. Clair Avenue.

Sir Henry Drayton : That would delay getting into the city. That would 
be a further handicap?

Mr. Henry: No.
Sir Henry Drayton: You would have to run a line through the congested 

area?
Mr. Henry: This was the Guelph end of it.
Sir Henry Drayton: Does not the Guelph end work out the same way?
Mr. Henry: No, the old belt line that I am speaking about is that portion 

of it west of the present Grand Trunk, the Brampton sub-division.
Sir Henry Drayton: Which end do you say, the westerly extension or the 

easterly extension?
Mr. Henry: We use the westerly going into the Brampton sub-division 

whitih is above St. Clair avenue. That is now under way.
Sir Henry Drayton: How much is intended to be spent on that line?
Mr. Henry: About $200,000.
Sir Henry Drayton: How much of that for rolling stock?
Mr. Henry: Probably $50.000.
Sir Henry Drayton: You will not get very far with that.
Mr. Stewart: Compared with the St. Catherines line, was this as profit­

able?
Mr. Henry: No, this line has not succeeded in paying anything more than 

its operating expenses. I do not believe that in the last year it did that.
Sir Henry Drayton: I do not think you are paying operating expenses

now.
Mr. Henry: It paid its operating expenses in ever)* year but 1923. when it 

had an operating deficit of $38,000.
Sir Henry Drayton: It is getting worse all the time. It is fair to say 

that this is one of the lines that Sir Adam Beck wanted to take over, and it was 
.hung up, and it has got worse and worse.

Mr. Henry: The third line is the Toronto Eastern.
Sir Henry Drayton: This is more a liability than an asset.
Hon. Mr. Graham: What about the Toronto Eastern? Do you approach 

it with fear or what?
Mr. Henry: Somewhat. I might perhaps review the history of that for the 

information of the Committee, if you think it desirable.
The Chairman: Would the Committee care to have that?
Some Hon. Members: Yes.
Mr. Henry: During the years 1905-06 when the Canadian Northern Rail­

way located its Oshawa and Toronto line, between Oshawa and Port Hope it was 
found necessary to keep the line back on the shore of Lake Iroquois in order to 
maintain the maximum five-tenth grades at reasonable costs. This location ran 
north of the towns of Whitby, Oshawa and Bowmanville, a distance of about 
two miles. Considerable opposition of this location arose from these munici­
palities who wanted it to pass through their towns in order that they might 
benefit thereby. This opposition was carried before the Minister of Railways.

[Mr. Henry.]
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When the route map came before him for his approval, in order to maintain the 
standard—

Hon. Mr. Graham : That would be the Canadian Northern?
Mr. Henry: The Canadian Northern. In order to maintain the standard 

set for the main line ears over the Canadian Northern, the municipalities were 
told then that if they withdrew their opposition to the approval of the route map 
the company would construct an electric Railway from Toronto easterly which 
would give them a much more frequent service than could be obtained on the 
steam line. On this understanding, the route map of the Canadian Northern 
Railway was approved.

Sir Henry Drayton : What year was that?
Mr. Henry: 1907. In order to carry out the undertaking above referred 

to, the Toronto Eastern Railway was incorporated in 1910. Its incorporation 
provided for the construction of an electric railway from a point in the city of 
Toronto running easterly through the towns of Whitby, Oshawa and Bowman- 
ville to Cobourg.

Mr. Harris: In what way? Could you enlarge on that?
Mr. Henry: It was supposed to run through the streets of Pickering, 

Whitby, Oshawa and Bowmanville. .
Mr. Harris: You appreciate that it is twenty-five miles from Oshawa 

to Pickering?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Harris : How were you going to get out of the city?
Mr. Henry: They had in mind at thaï; time two routes, one running over 

to the present location of the Canadian Northern; that is the Canadian Northern 
now known as the subdivision joining it at Cherrywood and running through 
that point along the line of the Canadian Northern through the down-town to 
the station.

Mr. Harris : How are you getting out of Toronto?
Mr. Henry: The intention, as I was explaining at that time was to run 

over the Canadian Northern.
Mr. Harris: To Cherrywood?
Mr. Henry: From Pickering to connect over about three miles to Cherry- 

wood, running over the old Canadian Northern down to the Don.
The Chairman : Mr. Henry, I think most of the members have been 

receiving marked copies of papers published at Oshawa protesting at some sort 
of railway enterprise which has gone on there. Is this the same one?

Mr. Henry: I presume it is the same.
The Chairman : Can you give an explanation of that at the proper time?
Mr. Henry: It is the railway to which they refer. That was the original 

intention. It developed subsequently there was some objection taken to that 
route by the operating officers of the steam railway. They did not want an 
electric railway to run alongside a steam railway, so a new route was chosen, 
running down between the then Grand Trunk and the Canadian Northern, just 
about one-half mile north, also running down to the Don.

Mr. Harris: North all the way through?
Mr. Henry: North of the Grand Trunk all the way through, and the right 

of way wras ipurchased for that purpose.
Mr. Harris: And south of the Canadian Northern?
Mr. Henry: South of the Canadian Northern. The line was constructed 

from the eastern limits of Wellington street, Bowmanville, to the western limits 
of the town of Whitby, a distance of 14.6 miles.

[Mr. Henry.]
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Mr. Harris: That construction would apply for the other idea vou had in 
mind?

Mr. Henry: Oh yes. This construction consisted of standard grading, 
structures, etc. 80-pound rails, but no overhead and no electrical work. From 
the western limits of Whitby to Pickering, a distance of five miles, the grading 
and structures were constructed, but no track laid. From Pickering to Kingston 
Road—that is from Cherrywood to the old Grand Trunk—to the Kingston Road 
crossing, at the Scarboro Golf Club, a distance of 10.7 miles, between 40 per cent 
and 45 per cent of the right of rvay has been purchased, but no construction work 
done. Now, the question which faced the present management upon the acqui­
sition of the Grand Trunk Railway System was that the Government found 
itself in control of three lines of railway in this district, namely the double-track 
line of the old Grand Trunk, the partly constructed line of, the Toronto Eastern, 
and the line of the Canadian Northern running4 roughly parallel to the shore of 
Lake Ontario, and about six miles from it.' It is proposed now that the portion 
of the old Canadian Northern from Cherrywood to Orono be abandoned, and 
a connection be made. There are two alternatives there under consideration, 
one is a connection between Cherrywood and Pickering-----

Hon. Mr. Graham : How far is that?
Mr. Henry : It is approximately four miles—no, miles. Then the elec­

trification of the old Canadian Northern Railway between Cherrywood and the 
Don. That is one.

Mr. Harris : When you say the Don, you meant the Don Station?
Mr. Henry: Yes. (To Mr. Brown). What is the name of that station 

there?
Mr. BflowN : Queen Street.
Mr. Harris : Riverdale.
Mr. Brown : Riverdale.
Mr. Harris: I am sorry, Mr. Henry, I am not clear on that. You say “River­

dale”? How will you get to Riverdale?
Mr. Henry: By following the line of the old—no, it is not Riverdale. That 

is on the other line. (To Mr. Brown). What is the other Canadian Northern 
Station there—it is really Queen Street-----

Mr. Harris: The Don Station at Queen Street.
Mr. Henry: It was contemplated making a stop at Bloor Street and at 

Queen.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Did this Toronto Eastern come over to the Canadian 

Government with the Canadian Northern System?
Mr. Henry: No, it did not.
Hon. Mr. Graham : How did you get it then?
Mr. Henry: This company did not form one of the constituent companies 

of the Canadian Northern System when it was taken over by the Government, 
but was acquired by the Canadian Northern under authority of Order-in- 
Council 2331, on September 23rd, 1918. The stock of the Toronto Eastern was 
transferred to the Canadian Northern Railway on September 27th, 1918. By 
this means the control passed to the Canadian Northern'and the Dominion Gov­
ernment.

Mr. Jelliff: How many railway lines have you there?
Mr. Henry: There are at present three.
Mr. Jelliff: You have the Grank Trunk, with two tracks—
Mr. Henry: The Toronto Eastern and the old Canadian Northern.

[Mr. Henry.]
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Mr. Jelliff: Is the Canadian Pacific there?
Mr. Henry: The Canadian Pacific has two; it has two lines. Those I 

mentioned are the three of our own lines.
Mr. Jelliff: What is the width of that district they traverse there?
Mr. Henry: The Canadian Northern line is about six miles from the Lake 

Shore. 1 suppose the C. P. R. line is another five or six miles—that is. the 
northerly line—that would be about 12 miles, I will say.

The Chairman : Mr. Henry, do you still operate the Canadian Northern 
line from Toronto east and also the old Grand Trunk and if sp, why? Do they 
not duplicate each other.

Mr. Henry: We operate a daily passenger service in the summer time, and 
in the winter time a tri-weekly mixed service.

Hon. Mr. Graham: On the Canadian Northern.
Mr. Henry: On the Canadian Northern.
The Chairman: How about the Grand Trunk?
Mr. Henry : That is the through main line and all our freight and passenger 

traffic goes that way.
The Chairman : You really do not need both of them.
Mr. Henry: We do not need to operate on the Canadian Northern—a por­

tion of it.
Hon. Mr. Graham : There is a difference of opinion there. The railway 

says they do not need it. And the people say they do. There is a difference of 
opinion. One of the difficulties is that in the construction of a line, as soon âs it 
is constructed, a lot of new villages spring up, and stations are constructed. 
The people get accustomed to having a station at their doors. Now, it is not an 
easy matter to take that service away from them, even if it does not pay. That 
is where the difficulty comes in. I suppose' it is conceded you cannot abandon 
one of these lines, or take up the tracks, without the consent of the Board of 
Railway Commissioners?

Sir Henry Drayton : I don’t think that is conceded at all. I know under 
the American authorities the Boards cannot make them run, and I do not know 
how any Board can prevent a company going out of business if it wants to. 
That question wras up in the House in connection with the abandonment by the 
Hill System of their line in British Columbia, which they had operated for 
years.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Is that included in the Canadian National Act?
Sir Henry Drayton : Not that I know of.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I was told it was. I think you will find it in the 

Canadian National Act. I was so informed.
Sir Henry Drayton : It may be. I would not contradict you, but I think 

it is a change from the general practice.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Maybe it is, but I think it is in the Canadian National 

Act. I will look it up. Now, technically, the Canadian Northern is not in the 
Canadian National System owing to some difficulty about securities and so on, 
but I have suggested to the Canadian National Board, and they have agreed, 
that whatever the law is, the Canadian Northern will come under its provisions 
just the same as if it were in the Canadian National System technically. If 
we obey the law, you cannot take that line up without the consent of the Board 
of Railway Commissioners.

The Chairman: Are all the National Railway lines under the control of 
the Railway Commission, the same as privately owned lines?

[Mr. Henry.]
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Hon Mr. Graham : May I not—
Sir Henry Drayton: There were exceptions made, and I think we had 

better have the same rules all around.
Hon. Mr. Graham: Major Bell tells me the point I referred to is in the 

Canadian National Act.
Sir Henry Drayton : I don’t know why that should be put on the Canadian 

National if not on the private lines. The Government ought to have as much 
business control as a private line.

* The Chairman: Have you finished yet, Mr. Henry?
Mr. Henry: I was going to explain that there were two alternatives being 

considered.
The Chairman: All right; go ahead.
Major Bell: In connection with that point brought up about both lines. 

There are a number of things to be discussed this year. One thing is taxes. I 
think that was explained, that taxes in the different provinces vary, as to the 
methods of arriving at the amounts. We are going to try to have a meeting 
of all the provincial treasurers to get some form of taxation that will be fair to 
the provinces and fair to ourselves, and we will probably, in discussing that, 
find a possible way of the Government lines paying certain taxes, but there 
would probably have to be some change to bring the Government lines under 
the Board of Railway Commissioners, because they are exempt in regard to 
the orders for subways, etc.

Sir Henry Drayton : I do not think the lines in eastern Canada should be 
any different to those in the west. It is most unfair for the provinces of Nova 
Scotia and New Brunswick if they cannot collect their taxes, while the other 
provinces can.

The Chairman : Now, let Mr. Henry complete his statement.
Mr. Henry: The other alternative contemplated is running from the end of 

the present constructed line at- Pickering over to the old Grand Trunk, and con­
struct along the .same right- of way a third track up as far as Kennedy Road, 
and then make a junction with the Canadian Northern at that point, running 
down to Queen Street and Bloor. The idea there was to have the use of the 
third track up that hill, so that we could utilize ff for both purposes, both steam 
and electric.

The Chairman : Are you through with that?
Mr. Harris : We have not anything there excepting the idea that there 

were two or three things' under consideration, Mr. Chairman. What is the 
policy of the Canadian National Railways with regard to that?

Mr. Henry: The policy with regard to that is to make the electric connec­
tion right through to Whitby, Oshawa and Bowmanville, connect it with the old 
Canadian Northern Railway at Orono, and continue on to Port Hope.

Mr. Harris: Which one of the alternatives do you propose to use?
Mr. Henry: We have not quite decided about that.
Mr. Harris: When do you expect to come to a conclusion?
Mr. Henry: Very shortly.
Mr. Harris : And when you come to that conclusion do you propose to ask 

permission to go ahead with that work?
Mr. Henry : Yes, but there would not be much done this year.
Mr. Harris : Will there be anything done on it before you come to Parlia­

ment?
Mr. Henry: No.

[Mr. Henry.]
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Mr. Harris: You will come to Parliament before you make a move?
Mr. Henry: Surely.
The Chairman: Does that in some respects parallel the steam line?
Mr. Henry: It does, and we propose to abandon 28 miles of the Canadian 

Northern, eliminating service on that entirely, and thereby saving an operating 
deficit of $100,000 a year.

The Chairman: For that particular stretch will there be only the one line?
Mr. Henry: No. There will be two lines. The present Grand Trunk, the 

main line, a double tracked main line for freight purposes—then there will be 
an electric line for passenger purposes.

The Chairman: You would apply that same idea to the Toronto Suburban 
that goes to Guelph? If it is a good idea east of Toronto, why is it not a good 
idea through the thickly populated portion of southwestern Ontario, west of 
Toronto ; would it be extended through to Kitchener and Stratford?

Mr. Henry : In time it might be done; we have not that under investigation.
The Chairman : There is not much being done on the Toronto Suburban 

from Toronto to Guelph.
Mr. Henry: If we landed any place it would be all right.
Mr. Harris: In regard to that landing some plape: I would like to say that 

that district in the last 20 years has multiplied, I would say, at least 700 per 
cent; it is growing very fast.

The Chairman : In population?
Mr. Harris: Yes, taking the old city limits pf 20 years ago and that area 

east. The riding which I represent 20 years ago had 10,000 people ; to-day it has 
110,000; and the same applies more or less right out through that district.

The Chairman: You would not say that the country around Port Hope 
and Oshawa has increased by 700 per cent?

Mr. Harris : No, but where the big expenditure will be made, within a radius 
of 20 miles. The portion of the line from Pickering is constructed?

Mr. Henry : Yes. This will take care of the suburban service between the 
district Pickering to Toronto on the east, and from there on the line is already 
constructed to Bowmanville; it goes right through the hearts of Pickering, 
Whitby and Oshawa, as well as Bowmanville ; whereas the Grand Trunk to the 
south does not hit the town at all, really.

Sir Henry Drayton : Mr. Henry, you are familiar, of course, with this 
famous telegram of the management to Toronto at the time they were having 
their radial election, as to the electrification of radiais in the district, and what 
was said as to the electrification from Toronto east?

Mr. Henry: From Toronto east?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, you remember that, do you not?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : It was said by many people that the election turned 

on that telegram. Do you remember, from that telegram, how far the manage­
ment undertook to electrify to the east?

Mr. Henry: I don’t think there was anything said, excepting this, Sir 
Henry (Drayton), that the electrification of those lines between Cobourg and 
Toronto, I think, would be given consideration.

Sir Henry Drayton : I thought it was more definite than that.
Mr. Henry: I don’t think so.

[Mr. Henry.]
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Sir Henry Drayton : However, Cobourg is the point mentioned. You are 
right in that. How far have you got in considering the question of the electri­
fication of the lines from Toronto to Cobourg?

Mr. Henry: It is contemplated the electrification or equivalent—and 
when I Say “ equivalent ” I mean the unit car—between Port Hope and 
Toronto—

Sir Henry Drayton : That was as far as you understood the matter. This 
would be in discharge of the executive obligations under that historic docu­
ment?

Mr. Hjenry: I don’t know as there was any obligation, Sir Henry (Dray­
ton), but this represents the view of the—

Sir Henry Drayton: At any rate, whatever the document may be, all you 
intend to do is to have an electric line in the manner you have indicated to 
Bowmanville? You were not thinking of any electrification of the Grand Trunk?

Mr. Henry: No, it would not be economical, Sir Henry (Drayton) ; not 
at the moment.

Sir Henry Drayton : While we are on the question of the electrification: 
what about the electrification of the terminals at Toronto? I think that is the 
most economical thing you could do.

Mr. Henry: The electrification of the terminals could not possibly be 
proceeded with until the final terminal scheme is developed.

Sir Henry Drayton : You would have to know whether you are going to 
' have to elevate or not?

Mr. Henry: Absolutely. We are also considering the electrification 
between there and Niagara Falls. If there is any place where electrification 
would be justified, it would be in that district.

Sir Henry Drayton : That is the view I had in 1916.
Major Bell: The terminals would have to be by the"Terminal Company, 

Sir Henry (Drayton).
Sir Henry Drayton : It would.
Mr. Harris : Mr. Henry, are you working in conjunction with the Hydro- 

Electric? You are aware the Hydro-Electric have done a great deal of engi­
neering work—

Mr. Henry: Have done a great deal of engineering work?
Mr. Harris: Not actual work, but investigation with regard to the surveys. 
Mr. Henry: I had the advantage of the information which they have 

gathered.
Mr. Harris : Are you working in conjunction with them?
Mr. Henry: I cannot say we are working in conjunction with them.
Mr. Harris: Are you any closer together than you were a few years since?
Mr. Henry: It depends on what you call “ close.”
Mr. Harris: With regard to working together. Their view is that they 

should come in by way of the Toronto Harbour Development. In fact, they 
have set aside a right of way from the centre of the city right out, and I wanted 
to know if you were any closer together as regards which way you would 
come in.

Mr. Henry: That is all tied up in the general terminal scheme. We have 
not considered that from the point of view of electrification—

Mr. Harris : I would not say “ all ” in view of the fact that the right of way 
has been reserved from the Toronto Harbour Commissioners by the Hydro. 

Mr. Henry : Part of it out toward Oakville?
[Mr. Henry.]
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Mr. Harris : No, sir, to the east. I am speaking of the east.
Mr. Henry: Our -view would be that we come in over our own tracks 

unquestionably.
Mr. Harris : There is no question about that?
Mr. Henry: No, there is no question about that.
Mr. Harris: Have you had any representation from the Hydro people at 

all, or has the point been raised?
Mr. Henry: No.
Mr. Harris: These points have not been discussed?
Mr. Henry: No.
Mr. Harris : You are not on common ground with regard to this radial 

question?
Mr. Henry: No. I think I would say right off the bat they ought to come 

into the Union Station.
Mr. Harris: The old Toronto and York Radial line is serving a part of the 

populace.
Mr. Henry: Yes, the Toronto and York is really a street line; it is not a 

radial at all. It takes them too long to get in ; they stop at every corner.
Mr. Harris: Is it the policy of the Canadian National directorate to 

approach the Hydro people with a view of the two of you working hand ill hand 
to bring this to a conclusion?

Mr. Henry : Well, the way we feel about that is that with facilities which 
we are offering, or intend to offer on the lines we already have, there would not 
be any good object----- -

Mr, Harris: You must recognize they have the power, have they not?
Mr. Henry: They have the power.
Mr. Harris: And you propose to have the handling of the raijway?
Mr. Henry: They have the power, and we will have to buy the power

from them.
Mr. Harris : You are a public ownership enterprise, and so are they.
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Harris: Are you both standing aloof on this?
Mr. Henry : So far as that is concerned we have not got together; if that

is what you mean.
Mr. Harris: Is it your purpose to get together before you go too far?
Mr. Henry : Well, that is a pretty hard question to answer. You would 

assume we were considerably apart on it; you would consider we were a long 
way apart on the proposition. What we are really trying to do is to co-ordinate 
and utilize the facilities that we already have, and we think that, having done 
that-----

Mr. Harris : The point I want to make is this: You propose to bring this 
radial to a conclusion; you propose to give that district a radial service.

Mr. Henry: We propose putting in a radial service there by co-ordinating 
the existing facilities and thereby eliminating the necessity of doing anything 
else.

Mr. Harris : And you propose doing that as rapidly as possible.
Mr. Henry: As rapidly as possible.
Mr. Harris: But as far as you know you do not propose to approach the 

Hydro Commission or System immediately before you go farther with your
i work.

[Mr. Henry.]
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Mr. Henry: No, for the reason we are utilizing all our own facilities.
Mr. Harris: The question of your power to run your radial eventually has 

not received consideration as yet.
Mr. Henry: I don’t understand your question.
Mr. Harris: The question of power : you have in your facts and figures 

a record of what this power will cost—or have you?
Mr. Henry: No, we will have to pay the current rates for power, of 

course; there is no getting around that.
Mr. Harris: In view of the fact that the Hydro have done so much engin­

eering investigation on this, in your judgment do* you .not think it would be good 
business to confer with them, and the twro of you wmrk as a unit, if possible?

Mr. Henry: In what respect? From the standpoint of comparing notes 
and things of that character, or from the standpoint of developing a radial 
scheme-----

Mr. Harris : From the standpoint of arriving at a policy which wmuld be 
satisfactory to the province of Ontario as well as to the Canadian National 
Railways.

Mr. Henry: It depends on what you mean by that.
Mr. Harris: When I refer to the province of Ontario, I refer to the Hydro 

Commission.
Mr. Henry: It would depend on what you consider that to involve; I 

think that wmuld be a question perhaps, which the President wrould have to 
answer.

The Chairman: Mr. Henry, you have to use Hydro power?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
The Chairman: Would you have to use the Ontario Hydro power?
Mr. Henry: To a certain extent.
The Chairman: Oh have you the alternative of developing your own?
Mr. Henry: We have not, no—not in that district.
The Chairman: You would have to use theirs?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Mr. Harris: Mr. Chairman, I think Mr. Henry appreciates this point. 

You have the Hydro Commission through the province of Ontario, a public 
ownership proposition ; we have the Canadian Natidfial Railways, and I must 
submit from the evidence I received that the two of them are not as close 
together as they might be, and I consider that the first fundamental is that 
they should both have a policy to wdiich they could subscribe, and if it is 
brought to an issue, wmuld be successful.

Mr. Henrÿ : From the standpoint of the Canadian National Railways, the 
view We take is this; that we are on the ground. We have to a large extent 
all the facilities that are necessary, and it is just a question of a little extension 
here, or a little extension there, or a little electrification here, or a little electrifi­
cation there, to fully meet the demands.

Mr. Harris: Who are the owners of the Toronto and York Radial?
Mr. Henry: The Toronto and York Radial is, I think, owned by the city

of Toronto, and operated by the Hydro Commission.
Mr. Harris : Inasmuch as it goes out igi this territory for some 20 odd

miles, and you are going over the same territory, or practically the same—a
little to the north—I maintain that you ought to be on common ground, 
because we all know that when the press gets hold of the Hydro Commission 
on the one hand demanding that the radial should be here, and the Canadian

[Mr. Henry.]
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National Railways on the other hand advocating their proposition, you have 
a line .of cleavage right away.

The Chairman : For the purpose of information, I would like to ask you 
is there any objection to the National Railways constructing a duplicate line 
to one now operated by the city of Toronto or the Hydro Commission?

Mr. Harris : I would not say that: If you used the words “ proposed dupli­
cate line ” and the “proposed line to be operated by the Hydro Commission.” I 
would say yes.

The Chairman : Are you afraid that if it continues as it is now, we may 
have—

Mr. Harris: Cleavage, unless these gentlemen get together.
The Chairman: Two competing, public-owned lines.
Mr. Harris: I don’t think we will stand for that. I want to get them 

together, before they get too far apart.
Mr. Henry: There is no conflict there at all. As far as the line to West 

Hill is concerned, it is simply a street railway, Mr. Harris.
Mr. Harris: How much money has been spent !by the Hydro Commission 

in the development of the radial line starting somewhere in the heart of the city 
of Toronto, running through the Toronto Harbour Development, up through 
Erie Terrace, and north from 2^ to 3 miles, and then projected out into the 
country from there?

Mr. Henry: I forget how much.
Mr. Harris: They have spent quite a considerable amount?
Mr. Henry: Not so much on that end, as they have on the other. I do 

not thjnk there was much money spent on that end.
Mr. Harris : There is a definite policy behind that expenditure?
Mr. Henry: There was.
Mr. Harris : Is that policy being co-ordinated with yours? You had no 

conference with the Hydro Commission.
Mr. Henry: No, we have had no conference with them.
Mr. Harris : Do you propose to have one? Do you think it would be 

advisable to have one?
Mr. Henry': I don’t see that any good purpose would be served by having 

one. It is a question of our co-ordinating our facilities there and providing the 
service which that territory demands.

Mr. Harris: You feel it would be the policy of the Canadian National line 
then to go ahead the way you are going, and not pay any special attention 
to the effort that has already been put forth by the Hydro Commission?

Mr. Henry: Excepting to benefit by the information that has been 
obtained.

Mr. Harris: Perhaps Sir Henry Thornton could give us his idea as to 
the policy you propose to pursue with regard to getting an entrance into the 
city of Toronto for the Toronto eastern lines?

Sir Henry Thornton: (To Mr. Henry). You stated what?
Mr. Henry: I explained to Mr. Harris what we proposed to do, and Mr. 

Harris referred to the proposal put forward by the Hydro Electric Power Com­
mission in connection with their radial line, and he asked me the question 
whether it was the policy of the Canadian National Railways to sit down with 
them and work out a scheme which would be satisfactory to them and to the 
people of Ontario. My answer to that was that as far as the Toronto eastern 
was concerned we were endeavouring to co-ordinate the facilities which we had

[Mr. Henry.]
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there and which we considered were ample to meet the transportation require­
ments of that section; it had not been necessary to consider the subject from 
the point of view of information—what the proposal of the Hydro had been.

Sir Henry Thornton : (To Mr. Henry). That was in respect to the 
Toronto eastern?

Mr. Henry : Yes.
Sir Henry Thornton : We already have our entrance arrangements made 

with the city of Toronto for the Toronto eastern.
Mr. Harris : You already have your arrangements?
Sir Henry Thornton : We know what we want to do, and it has been con­

summated.
Mr. Harris: The same applies to the Hydro. They have an idea of what 

they would like to do.
Sir Henry Thornton : I would be quite willing to sit down with the Hydro 

or with anyone else and discuss any question which will save them money or 
save us money, or enable us jointly to provide any community with better ser­
vice. All we want is simply to protect our business to our interests if there is 
any way we can do it, but if there is any way we could co-operate with any one 
to do a little better job, then we want to do it, and we are willing to do it.

Mr. Harris: That is what I wanted.
The Chairman: Is that satisfactory?
Sir Henry Drayton: I think you would go a little farther than that, and 

say you could not want a duplication of public-owned utilities."
Sir Henry Thornton : That is what I did mean to say, substantially. We 

must protect the future business of the Canadian National Railway* system in 
every reasonable way in looking at anything of that sort.

Sir Henry Drayton: You have to look after the traffic, and you are object­
ing to any other public system robbing your line of traffic?

Sir Henry Thornton : That is it.
Sir Henry Drayton : On the converse side; as a matter of fairness, I think 

you would take the stand that if the Hydro got definitely advancing in any 
direction you would not go in and rob them of their traffic?

Sir Henry Thornton : Precisely.
The Chairman : This might not be the time for me to intervene, but I 

would like to ask if you have made a real survey of the possibilities of gasolene- 
operated cars, and what the result of that is?

Mr. Henry: They are not conclusive.
The Chairman: Is that about as far as you can go?
Mr. Henry: That is about as far as I can go.
The Chairman : You have made some investigation?
Mr. Henry: Oh yes. We are investigating these right now.
Mr. Milne: Are you operating any?
Mr. Henry: Yes, we are.
Mr. Brown : We have 14 services in operation now.
Major Bell: We are operating one from Ottawa here up toward Pembroke.
Mr. Henry: We are operating a gasolene car between V ancouver and 

mileage 69; a storage battery car from Winnipeg to Transcona, a storage battery 
car from Toronto to Oakville, a steam motor car between Bridgeburg and Black 
Rock. A storage battery car between Toronto and Weston Park and between 
Toronto and Beaverton, a gasolene car between Picton, Trenton and Xapanee, a
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storage battery car between Ottawa and Pembroke, Brockville and Westport; 
Montreal and St. Eustache, Montreal and Rawdon, Montreal and Waterloo, 
Campbellton and Bathurst, and a gasolene car between Summerside and Tig- 
nish.

Sir Henry Thornton: Most of them are storage battery cars.
Mr. Harris : Can you operate trailers with these?
Mr. Henry: It depends upon the grade.
Mr. Stewart: To what extent does the location of the line affect the use of 

the storage battery?
Mr. Henry: You would have to have a place to charge it. It would run 

about 100 miles between charges.
Mr. Stewart: Then it takes a long time to charge it?
Mr. Henry: About ten hours.
Sir Henry Thornton : The trouble with the storage battery was that it did 

take so long but Edison Company developed some years ago a new storage 
battery which is not only fool-proof but which can be charged in about half the 
time the other battery could.

Mr. Milne: It is a pretty expensive equipment?
Sir Henry Thornton : It is pretty expensive but this far it is the most 

satisfactory type of car that we have been able to get hold of. The automobile 
does not seem to be adapted to satisfactory service on steam railway lines. 
I cannot see why that should be. Within the last year or so the problem seems 
to have been gone into rather more intelligently by the manufacturers of gasoline 
engines and it is not unlikely that something fully as satisfactory as the storage 
battery would emerge but we have been more successful with storage battery 
cars than any other kind of propelled vehicle.

Mr. Milne : I do not think the line running from Winnipeg to Transcona 
would be a fair test, as to the possibilities of some of these branch lines, but 
where there is light traffic you would be able to have some kind of service in. 
I have in mind a line that runs up the west side of Manitoba.

Sir Henry Drayton : We have over 100 of these routes under investigation 
now. For small units the gasoline is much cheaper.

Mr. Milne: That would be the ratio?
Sir Henry Drayton: One is twice as expensive. An electric car is twice 

as expensive as a gasoline car. As a matter of fact if we could find some cheaper 
form of construction and some cheaper character of propellant for unremunera- 
tive branch lines, it would be what we want. It does seem ridiculous to build 
branch lines, standard bridges, build them as you would build a standard Trans­
continental railway, if the branch cannot be developed. For instance, those of 
you who have been in France will remember the little narrow gauge lines that 
prevail along the side of the highway and run into the outlying villages, carrying 
passengers, vegetables and milk and all that sort of thing to some line and 
from there it is carried to Paris and other large cities. Now it does seem to 
me we are going on the wrong principle. We ought to find some way to extend 
our rural population transportation facilities at less expense than we do to-day. 
Agriculture is being moved in carload lots and we do not want to add to that 
expense, but if we could only get a small propelling unit, a gas engine, that could 
cut the cost off. There is no doubt we are spending too much money on that 
sort of thing. v

The Chairman : It would probably be the most promising in the gasoline
field.

81695—17 J
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Sir Henry Drayton : Yes.
Mr. Stewart : In that connection, the other day I was reading a report by 

an engineer of high repute, in which he made a criticism of the Canadian 
National, right along that line. He said it was too highly organized and that 
the handling of these smaller branch lines in the traffic did not justify the full 
complement of train crew and so on. What have you to say to that?

Sir Henry Thornton: It depends what he means by organization. If he 
means the organization of the train or of the train crew, undoubtedly he is right. 
If we run a passenger train over an unproductive branch, with a combination car 
a day coach or something like that, under the working arrangement we have 
with the labour organization, we have to have a driver, a fireman, a conductor 
and a couple of brakemen, and it is not justified, but wre have not succeeded, and 
that applies to every railway on the North American Continent. Nobody has 
found any way to get around it. When we put on a gasoline car, that is not 
within the scope of the trades union or the organization. You might equip it 
with perhaps a driver, a conductor or you might have just a driver alone. He is 
quite correct. If that was the character of the criticism I think he is right.

Mr. Stewart: I think the text of the criticism also led me to believe that 
his criticism was that the organization had too much on its hands, in a big way, 
to pay the necessary attention to details, to handle the smaller proposition.

Sir Henry Thornton: I might say his criticism was incorrect in that 
respect. In fact, if there was any criticism, it has been that we had too many 
officers rather than too few but our answer to that would be that the general 
superintendents and superintendents have quite enough time to give any aspect 
of the company’s business that attention that it deserves, and we are leaving 
nothing undone to develop business on the branch lines, because obviously the 
more business we can get the more money we can make. If wë can build up our 
gross earnings, take for instance one of the months last autumn our gross earnings 
were $25,000,000 and we earned $5,000,000 net. Now, any month that we can 
get $25,000,000 gross we can earn $5,000,000 net. That is all there is to it. It 
is simple; so that our problem is building up our business on our bigger lines to 
support the large mileage which we have got, and the moment that our gross 
reaches a certain point wre can make money.

The Chairman : If you cut down expenses that would have the same net 
result?

Sir Henry Thornton: You cannot cut down expenses beyond a certain 
point. Of course, expenses do fluctuate more or less with the bulk of business 
but there eventually comes a point below which you cannot go. For instance 
you have to have a section foreman and one man along the track. You cannot * 
take all of your men off. If you have a station you have to have a station agent 
there or a clerk to look after the company’s business, whether you do $100 worth 
of business or $5,000 worth, but there comes a point below which you cannot 
get rid of expenses. Our chief and only problem is the business of gross earn­
ings. That is practically all there is to it.

Mr. Milne: In the development of the gasoline ear I am somewhat 
interested. As I understand it you have an engineering and research department.

Sir Henry Thornton : Yes.
Mr. Milne: Do you attempt to design cars in those departments?
Sir Henry Thornton: No.
Mr. Milne: It seems to me in an organization like this you must have a 

bunch of engineers and very many of them would be capable of designing some­
thing like that. A practical man would have a better opportunity of working 
something out rather than waiting for the engine company to develop something.
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Sir Henry Thornton : We thought it would be better to work in collabor­
ation with engine manufacturers who have highly trained experts in that 
particular line and who are trying themselves to develop a car that would be 
satisfactory. We thought it would be more advantageous to work with them 
rather than to attempt to design anything ourselves because it is a very 
technical business.

The Chairman: And sometimes building locomotives, the same way.
Sir Henry Thornton: When it comes to building locomotives we are at 

home. We have been familiar with the steam locomotives for many decades. 
Jlut when you come to design a gasoline car that is another story. We could 
of course hire experts and go ahead experimenting, but I think it better to work 
in collaboration with the manufacturers, and they are assisting us.

Mr. Milne: You must have fertile brains in some of your shops.
Sir Henry Thornton : I do not think we have a man in our shops that 

would be competent to design a combustible gasoline engine.
Mr. Milne: The engine is developed. Now, it is simply a matter of 

applying that engine to a vehicle that would be suitable for running on rails.
Sir Henry Thornton: Our efforts thus far have been in working in 

collaboration with the manufacturers and advising them to see whether jointly we 
cannot develop something that is'satisfactory.

Mr. Milne : The reason I make this suggestion is that very often we find a 
very fertile brain working on a very particular invention, but the man is not 
practical, that is, he is an inventive genius but he does not know the practical 
end of it, and I thought that by having a bunch of engineers, who knew railroad 
wyork from one end to the other, these would be the fellows to make the investi­
gation.

Sir Henry Thornton: We are 'applying it as far as we can to the manu­
facturers and we are watching the development of different sorts of engines all 
over the world. There have been two developments in Europe lately, the Turbine 
and a form of Diesel engine. The lattr offers a great deal of promise and I am 
not so sure but what we might build one ourselves, to see-how it works. I am 
merely mentioning that to say that we are watching the mechanical develop­
ments all over the world.

The Chairman: Specializing on these cars has been carried further in these 
private manufacturing enterprises than you can hope to do in a reasonable time.

Sir Henry Thornton: Yes, because that is their business. They specialize 
and they can afford to spend more money on it than we can.

Sir Henry Drayton: They have elaborate testing machinery and they are 
certainty keen to get the business if they can.

Sir Henry Thornton: They are only too anxious to develop something.
Sir Henry Drayton : There is another thing I want to bring up, and that 

is in connection with the question in the order paper, advertising and publicity.
The Chairman : Are we through with that other phase, the organization 

and engines? Are there any other questions?
Sir Henry Drayton : Items No. 276; 358; 410; 458; 74. The total cost 

of stationery and printing is $1,630,069. Then there is an item for advertising, 
Item 353, $1,063,784. Total for advertising, printing and stationery, $2,693,863. 
I wanted to get a statement just showing what you paid for printing, advertising 
and publicity and to whom.

Sir Henry,Thornton: That would be Item 276, stationery and printing.
Sir Henry Drayton : 276; 358; 410; 458; 74; 353. That does not include 

other charges for publicity. They would appear under that head. They would 
appear under general expenses, so that that list is incomplete.
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Sir Henry Thornton : Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : Then it is a fairly serious clause.
Sir Henry Thornton : Maybe I can explain this now.
Sir Henry DraytOjN: I would think that statement would be filed.
Sir Henry Thornton : You would like a detailed statement of how that 

money was spent?
Sir Henry Drayton : A detailed statement, showing everything spent for 

advertising, publicity and stationery.
Sir Henry Thornton : In sufficient detail to explain it. Do you mean to 

say a matter of $300 or $400?
Sir Henry Drayton : You need not bother about that.
Sir Henry Thornton : Can we get that? What Sir Henry (Drayton) 

wants, I think is, not in too much detail but to give him and the Committee 
an idea, an accurate idea of just where the money was spent and the purpose 
for which it was spent.

Sir Henry Drayton: Under that heading, yes. Under these three head­
ings, advertising, printing and publicity. I do not know what “ publicity ” 

comes under. It is a general item, included in general expenses.
Sir Henry Thornton : We will have to see what we can do with it.
Mr. Stewart : There are two more items I would like explanation on, 451 

and 452. Perhaps “ explanation ” is not the word to use, but a general statement 
that would meet a certain amount of criticism that has been levelled at the com­
pany.

The Chairman : Which item is that?
Mr. Stewart: 451-452. This criticism has come from those who are not 

favourable to our Government owned roads, it is true, but criticism is along 
this line, that the policy has been to build a lot of fat jobs, to use a very com­
monplace term, or to get a lot of people into good salaries. These items would 
seem to limit themselves to such a criticism in view of the fact that salaries have 
increased 36 per cent plus, and those in the lowered salaried positions have 
increased only 4 per cent and I think Sir Henry (Thornton) could probably 
make a statement to clear up that situation.

Sir Henry Thornton: In the first place if you will take the bulk of our 
employees, engineers, firemen, conductors, brakemen, machinists, machinist 
foremen, telegraphers, two,foremen, two men, men engaged in the maintenance 
of way and structures department, I should say that those were all members of 
various trade unions. They belong to railway trade organizations and the rates 
of pay and the working conditions are determined by negotiation with the heads 
of their particular organization.

Mr. Stewart: Might I just ask you here now, how broad is the application 
of that item 452, that is, does that include all of those you have mentioned?

Sir Henry Thornton : No, you will see when I have finished my statement, 
those whose rates of pay are determined by negotiation with the trade unions 
represent by far the largest proportion of our total staff, and therefor if there 
is any criticism that there has been no increase, proportionate increase in rate 
of pay, to those in relatively humble positions, the answer to that is that all of 
that is a matter of negotiation with the trade unions and we do not deal with the 
individual except in rare cases, and the trade unions look after the interests, the 
special interests of those whom they represent, and their interest can be, I safely 
say, left. Now, when you came to—

Mr. Stewart : Just before you go on from there I want to make it plain 
that I do not state I heard any criticism that those lower salaries had not been
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increased sufficiently. It was that the others had been increased out of propor­
tion.

Sir Henry Thornton: That is what I want to explain. That is something 
which we deal with collectively. It is collective bargaining with respect to, I 
suppose, at least 90 per cent of our men.

The Chairman : Even the higher paid ones. That is what you are referring 
to?

Mr. Stewart: Perhaps Sir Henry sees through it.
Sir Henry Thornton : That represents the way in which the wages are 

determined for what might be called the rank and file, and I do not think there 
can be any criticism that they have not been properly looked after, because if 
there is any criticism it is not against the company. It is against the trade 
union organizations that represent them.

Mr. Stewart: I was not suggesting any criticism there.
Sir He^-ry Thornton : When you come to the higher paid officers in the 

organization, I am safe in saying we have no more general officers and they 
arc no more highly paid than on the average, and the generally accepted practice 
in every railway like the Canadian National Railway System—if you take our 
higher officers you will find that they generally receive not so much money as the 
corresponding officers on a first class American railway. I do not know exactly, 
of course, what the salaries are that are paid to the higher officers of the 
Canadian Pacific Ry., but so far as I have been able to find out we are certainly 
no higher and in many cases I know that we are paying less, so that the criticism 
that we are paying our officers a higher salary than a corresponding officer in a 
similar company is not an accurate criticism. We pay our vice-presidents a sum 
per annum, wdiich I know from my own knowledge, is less, correspondingly 
with officers who do not do as much wrork, on either the New York Central or the 
Pennsylvania Railway. Our general expenses increased last year $254,000.. 
Practically all—in fact I feel safe in saying, that all of that increase was due to 
expenses incurred through the situation of the officers and the staff moving from 
one place to another and in getting them settled down into the new organization. 
For instance, we established our own regional headquarters at Winnipeg and 
Toronto and Moncton. We collected all our general headquarters staff at 
Montreal. Men had to be sent from Toronto and other places. Those clerks 
and officers, more particularly clerks, in many cases owned their own homes or 
partially owned their own homes in the place where they lived. It was not fair 
to ask them to sacrifice their homes in order to move to the new headquarters 
which the company determined upon, and we had to assist them for the time 
being, in getting rid of their property; and also we had to help them in their 
expenses and their rentals for a period in the place- to which the company had 
moved them. Furthermore there had to be reconstruction of offices, interior 
arrangement of the offices, to meet the new organization. Now, all of that 
represented expense which came into last year and which will not be recurrent 
in subsequent years. That is the explanation of the increase of the $254,000. 
You, of course, will understand that we had to consolidate the headquarters 
staff and to some extent the regional staff of the old Grand Trunk system, of 
the old Government railway and several hundred, in fact perhaps, some thousands 
of clerks had to be moved to be put in the new quarters and in new habita. All 
of that meant a good deaj of initial expense which will not come about in sub­
sequent years. Really, it is an expense that will not absorb gnoss earnings, and 
even with these expenses added last year, which as I said, would not be recur­
rent in subsequent years, our percentage of expense to gross revenue is substan­
tially that of other large railway properties.

Mr. Harris: What railway would you say?
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Sir Henry Thornton: I would include any of the standard railways on 
the North American Continent. The salaries of general officers, who do not 
work, eight hours a day, but if necessary, work twenty-four hours a day, whose 
first and only allegiance is to the company, have not been increased anything 
like in proportion to the increases which have been enjoyed by engineers, 
firemen, telegraphers, brakemen and men of that sort.

Mr. Stewart : That is the very point I was going to ask you about.
Sir Henry Thornton : The railway companies of the North American 

Continent have been much more liberal in the increases which they have given 
to wage earners than they have been in salaries which have been given to 
officers, and that is true of every railway on the North American Continent. 
It is likewise true of every railway in Canada. In England, just by way oî 
example, wages were increased from 120 per cent to 150 per cent since the 
commencement of the war. The salaries of the general officers have been 
increased about 25 per cent.

Mr. Stewart : You say that the increases in higher salaries is not an impor­
tant factor in the $254,000 increase.

Sir Henry Thornton: No.
Mr. Stewart : That is the gist of the whole thing.
Sir Henry Thornton: I will add to that that rank for rank, man for 

man they are being paid no more on the Canadian National Railway System 
than is the case of any first class railway on the North American Continent. 
I know of a good many instances where our officers, vice-presidents are getting 
less. I know of an officer who is in charge—and this I know of my own 
knowledge to be a fact: there is an officer who is in charge of maintenance and 
operation in a comparatively small railway in United States, and when I say 
a small railway, it is not as large as the Baltimore and Ohio or the Pennsyl­
vania. It would correspond to something like the Delaware, Lackawana and 
Western or the Delevrare and Hudson. That officer has a pretty easy time of 
it. He does not have to worry about expense because the road is making 
money, or he does not have to put in the hours our men are putting in. He is 
getting $10,000 a year more than any officer of the Canadian National System. 
I have not had one request for increases in salaries from an officer of the 
company.

Mr. Harris: Have there been many additions to those senior officers?
Sir Henry Thornton : We have consolidated and re-arranged but we have 

not made any additions. Of course we have to take this into consideration, 
that when you consolidate over a large railroad system such as the Canadian 
National and the Grand Trunk, you have a certain redundancy of officers. You 
have two vice-presidents, doing the same thing and two general managers, 
experienced in motive power or something of that kind, and you have only a 
place for one and you have men who have given 25 and 30 years of their life 
to the service of the company they are working for. You cannot throw them 
out; you have to provide for them. It will mean a little more money but it is 
good business to do so. In time that straightens itself out. For example, just 
by way of illustration, we had a manager of hotels, who had been with us for 
some years. He was made manager of hotels under the new organization. We 
likewise had another manager of hotels, who also looked after the sleeping .cars 
on the Canadian Northern and we had to take care of him, and we put one in 
charge of the sleeping and dining cars and the other in charge of hotels. Not 
so long ago the man in charge of the hotels resigned and this man had to take 
care of two positions.

The Chairman: That will all correct itself.
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.Sir Henry Thornton : That will correct itself in the process of attrition.
Mr. Stewart : What I meant was the amount of new blood brought into 

the organization of that class.
Sir Henry Thornton: Offhand I do not know of anyone. I think all 

our important posts have been filled by officers that we found on one or the 
other of the two properties.

Mr. Stewart: Are there one or two very highly paid officers who have 
been brought in in the last twelve months? I mean over $20,000 a year?

Sir Henry Thornton : We employ a radio engineer to take charge of our 
radio work. We employ a superintendent of insurance, and then, of course, 
there was the immigration and colonization department. We had nothing of 
that sort before and that is entirely new. But if you consider the size of our 
organization I think there have been surprisingly few officers imported from the 
outside. I think offhand only two. Dr. Black would perhaps be the one, a« 
Mr. Bell reminds me, who would approach the case you have in mind

Mr. Harris : I had an idea there was new blood brought in as an assistant 
to you.

Mr. Bell: Assistant to the General Manager?
Mr. Harris: To Sir Henry.
Mr. Bell: The gentleman you refer to has been there I suppose for two 

years.
Sir Henry Thornton: Probably you mean the man who is now the assist­

ant chief of transportation. I brought him here myself. We have a superin­
tendent of elevators. He has been here for years and years, I suppose. I do 
not know how long he has been here.

Mr. Bell: He was first with the Canada Atlantic ; then he went with the 
Navigation Company, outside the company. He came back into the organization 
again.

Mr. Stewart : I would suggest it might not be well to pry too much into 
these things if it is going to cause any embarrassment.

Sir Henry Thornton : Go ahead.
Mr. Stewart: In the line of competition with the Canadian Pacific only.
The Chairman : Would it not be well to leave these personal matters out 

of the record ?
Sir Henry Thornton: I would be glad to tell Mr. Harris anything he wants 

to know about that aspect of it.
Major Bell: I might clear up a matter that came up yesterday. I think 

Mr. Stewart brought it up. Mr. Sewart brought up the question, he said he did 
not have the information himself. It was rumored that at Saskatoon we had 
four or five superintendents and the C.P.R. had one. I knew there had been 
something wrong. We have four divisional superintendents, one at Saskatoon, 
one at Port Arthur, one at Regina and one at Melbourne, with a mileage of 
3,086. The C.P.R. have three divisional superintendents in the Saskatoon 
district, Regina, Moose Jaw and Saskatoon, but they have only a mileage of 
2,453, so it is just about right, but where t}ie mix-up comes is, our general 
superintendent’s office is situated at Saskatoon, while the C.P.R. general super­
intendent’s office is at Moose Jaw, and there is exactly the same organization. 
There is the general superintendent, the district engineer, master mechanic and 
superintendent of transportation and transportation assistant and the divisional 
superintendents. It happens that our general superintendent is at Saskatoon, 
looking after the whole of the Saskatchewan district.



266 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. Stewart : You can readily see how the criticism would arise in that 
locality, because these men in this office are known as superintendents, and 
the C.P.R. has only one man who is known as a superintendent here.

The Chairman: If you had the two offices together, the staff is exactly 
the same.

Mr. Stewart: I-think the statement Sir Henry made with regard to the 
larger salaries would clear up a feeling in the minds of some people that should 
not exist there.

Sir Henry Thornton: I think those who are called officers do not work 
eight hours a day. They work, if necessary, twenty-four hours a day. They 
are governed by no working condition^ at all. They have no rights other than 
the right to serve the company, and they give a lifetime of service to the com­
pany, working long hours loyally and efficiently, as compared with the ordinary 
conductor or driver who, when he has finished his day’s work, is through. He 
puts his engine away and goes home, and has nothing else to do until he comes 
on for his run the next day. The officer is constantly at the disposal of the 
company.

Major Bell: You find that in the breaking down of the general officers; 
you will not find that they stand the pace.

Mr. Stewart : I introduced this as a matter of criticism which I had heard, 
but I must say that the criticism that one hears, or the comment one hears, is 
very largely in compliment to the men who show this loyalty and enthusiasm 
for the road, to which Sir Henry has referred. One hears comment along that 
line ten times, I am bound to say, to one criticism of the other kind. However, 
I simply introduced this question to clear up the matter.

Sir Henry Thornton: It is one of the functions of the committee to try 
and clear up anything of that character.

Major Bell: You will find in a comparison of salaries paid the higher 
officers of the railways, as compared with industrial concerns, that the railway 
men are lower paid.

Sir Henry Thornton : I might, with pardonable pride, say that the 
president of this railway whose vice-president I mentioned not so long ago, gets 
$75,000 a year.

The Chairman : Now, gentlemen, we have had a pretty good discussion 
on that; is there anything further?

Mr. .Tones: I notice under “ General Expenses,” item 154, “ Law expenses ” 
increased about $200,00 over last year.

Sir Henry Thornton : Mr. Henry will tell you about that.
Mr. Henry: There is $100,000 in that account which represents the legal 

expenses involved in connection With our Washington agents in the adjustment 
between ourselves and the United States Railroad Administration, which 
extends over quite a considerable period, about five years.

Mr. Stewart: How much did you say was involved?
Mr. Henry: $100,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : Does that include the law costs of the Scribe Hotel?
Sir Henry Thornton : There is no answer to that—that is a joke. That 

includes the expenses which were incurred in handling our cases before the 
Interstate Commerce Commission and various other legislative bodies in Wash­
ington, with respect to adjustment which we finally made with the United 
States government, and which incidentally were highly satisfactory to us. We 
got out of it very, very satisfactorily.

The Chairman: Do you employ outside counsel in these cases?
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Sir Henry Drayton : I think the Grand Trunk claimed they had $7,000,000 
coming to them. How much came?

Major Bell: $5,000,000, I think.
Sir Henry Thornton : We got off extremely well; we made a very satis­

factory settlement.
Mr. Cooper: We got all we claimed with the exception of $250,000.
Sir Henry Thornton : And I think we were one of the very few railways 

operating in the United States which got off as easily as that.
Mr. Jones: Where does the other $100,000 come in?
Sir Henry Thornton : $100,000 was due to the increase, which Mr. Henry 

has just explained. $5,000 for services in connection. with the D. W. & P. ; 
$8,200 .was credited in 1922, covering a claim against the United States Rail­
road Administration for work done during the Federal control ; there was a bill 
of $12,000 with a firm of lawyers in Buffalo in connection with the case of the 
Niagara Arch Bridge Company, and I suppose the balance must have been a 
general increase in legal expenses, due to more active litigation. The largest 
lump sum that was paid out, though, was the $100,000 to which I have just 
referred.

Major Bell: Probably there are more legal expenses this year, on account 
of the amalgamation. There were a great many extra things that had to be 
straightened out with respect to the subsidiary companies, and the relation to 
the parent company, which will disappear now.

The Chairman : Gentlemen, that brings us pretty well to the end of the 
railway operating expenses.

Mr. Jelliff: I notice quite an increase in the Pension item, too.
Sir Henry Thornton : There was an increase of $183,500. $54,000 of this 

increase represents accrued pensions paid to ex-employees who had previously 
been denied pension on account of implication in the trainmen’s strike in 1910, 
and who were restored to pension privileges in 1923. The other increase is due 
to the increased number of pensions and also to the fact that the rate of wages 
for the ten years used in computing was higher than the ten-year scale of 
wages paid in 1922.

Mr. Stewart: In item 455; there is a small item of insurance. What 
insurance ife that? *

Sir Henry Thornton: There was an increase of $3,118.
Major Bell: That represents—we took over the insurance business our­

selves and do all the insurance, where a good deal of that work was done by 
outside companies. There would be a little extra, cost of handling that to the 
railway company, that is direct charges, as compared with what it was before. 
It would be hidden in the premiums before.

Sir Henry Drayton : That is hardly right; your situation is this: Your 
accounts look as though your own insurance is costing more than it did before, 
but it is not. The real situation is that before, you had no insurance on the 
government lines at all. Now you are providing an insurance fund for every­
thing, so that while the account looks bigger there, you are saving money on 
the insurance.

Major Bell : Yes. The insurance that was out, we would have less cost 
per thousand appearing in this item.

Sir Henry Drayton : Although the aggregate is bigger, the cost per thou­
sand is less?

Major Bell: Yes. The net saving on the whole thing is about $1,250,000.
The Chairman: What shall we proceed with on Monday? What more do 

you wish to take up except the estimates?
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Sir Henry Drayton : I have been given the information regarding the two 
•items I was speaking about, so I have nothing more.

The Chairman : Does any member wish to take up anything else besides 
the estimates?

Mr. Stewart: That is satisfactory to me. I think I have asked all the 
questions I wish to ask regarding the report.

The Chairman: Shall wre consider the examination of the report tentatively 
completed?

Mr. Stewart: With the exception of some items which are still in the hands 
of the officials.

The Committee adjourned.

Committee Room 231,
House of Commons,

Monday, June 30, 1924.

■ The Select Standing Committee on National Railways and Shipping met 
at 11:00 o’clock a.m., Mr. W. D. Euler, M.P., Chairman, presiding.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. Before going on with 
the estimates I think we have a few reports which were to be brought in. What 
were those? .

Sir Henry Drayton : Advertising and Capital Account. I might say that 
the capital account I have already done and I can save time there.

The Chairman: You have that?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes. I asked for information as to new construc­

tion.
The Chairman : You have been supplied with that?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, and I will give it to the Committee. Just follow 

these figures, Mr. Henry, and see if they are correct. The first is the Long lac 
cut off. The mileage there is 30; the expenditures during the year 1923 were 
$2,160,241.67. There had been spent on that work prior to the year 1923 
$16,866.65, and since then, in the year 1924, the expenditures have amounted 
to $194,925.39, making a total expenditure on the Long lac cut-off of $2,372,- 
033.71. That is the total cost. Of course, what we are really interested in are 
the expenditures for the year 1923, but I think it is useful to know the total 
cost which was, as I have already stated, for the year 1923, $2,160,241.67. 
Have you followed those figures, Mr. Henry?

Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : Are they right?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : I might point out that gives us some idea of the cost 

of railroading, Mr. Chairman. We spent that amount through territory where 
right of way is not very expensive. The only charge for land for transportation 
being $2,689.80. The cost of bridges, trestles and culverts not being very heavy, 
amounting to $182,284.63, and it works out to a cost of about $79,000 per mile, 
including, of course, the necessary yardage.

The Chairman: How much a mile?
Sir Henry Drayton : $79,000 per mile. We have included the yards at 

either end, so that the cut-off could be used.
Sir Henry Thornton: Still that would not distort the general figure, 

because in the general railroad construction work you have to include some­
thing for yards, so that might be regarded as a fair idea of mileage costs.

[Mr. Henry.]
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Sir Henry Drayton : That is what I thought. I pointed to that because 
there is a yard at both ends, but, as you say, that is something which would 
have to be built anyway.

Sir Henry Thornton : Yes. Another thing; I think that was very favour­
able ground for railroad construction.. (To Mr. Brown) Yould that not be.

Mr. Brown : Yes, Sir Henry (Thornton).
Sir Henry Drayton : That is what I thought. It is fairly favourable. Of 

course, that also includes the shops in the yards.
Sir Henry Thornton: There again you would have to have something for

that.
Sir Henry Drayton : Sure; it is a quarter of a million dollars for shops and 

engine houses. Perhaps it would be interesting to have the whole statement on 
the notes.

The Chairman : That may be done.
I Whereupon the following statement was offered and admitted and ordered 

to be made a part of this record, being in words and figures as follows, to wit:)

Longlac Cut-off 
Expenditures, Year 1923

Account Amount
1. Engineering...........................................,.......................................  $ 61,172 03
2. Land for transportation.......... ..................................................... 2,689 80
3. Grading........................................................................................... 740,623 24
6. Bridges, Trestles and Culverts.................................................... 182,284 63
8. Ties................................................................................................. 97,128 09
9. Rails....................  260,726 13

10. Other Track [Material.................................................................... 48,187 92
11. Ballast...............................  42,985 22
12. Track-laying and Surfacing.......................................................... 97,947 48
15. Crossings and Signs.................................................  133 36
16. Station and Office Buildings.......................................................... 37,900 92
17. Roadway Buildings........................................................................ 63,039 67
18. Water Stations............................................................................... 55,508 77
19. Fuel Stations.................................  20,618 81
20. Shops and Engine Houses.............................................................. 250,541 48
26. Telegraph and Telephone Lines.................................................... 17,160 88
47. Unapplied construction.................................................................. 80,507 03
77. Other Expenditures—general........................................................ 101,086 21

Total.......................................................... $2,160,241 67

Expenditures prior to 1923...........................................................$ 16,866 65
“ year 1923............................................................... 2,160,241 67
“ January 1, 1924, to May 31, 1924 ................... 194,925 39

Total Expenditure..........................................$2,372,033 71

Sir Henry Thornton: As a further indication, we do not think that the 
contractor made any money ; in fact we feel confident that the contractor lost 
money on this.

Sir Henry Drayton: There was some constructing done, I think, by the 
System ? I think you laid your own rails, and the grading work was done by 
the contractor?
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Sir Henry Thornton: I just wanted to assure you that those figures do 
not include any excessive profit for the contractor, because it is doubtful if he 
did very well with it.

Sir Henry Drayton : There is another matter of new construction about 
which I confess I do not know. There is a line being built from Hardwood 
Ridge to Minto Mines. The construction there is 4.9 miles. The amount 
expended in the year 1923 was $111,629.33; in the year 1924 the work was finished 
at a cost of $49,886.68, or a total cost of $161,516.01. That works out on a much 
lower basis, but there was nothing to be done at either end. I will also file this 
statement.

(Whereupon the said statement was offered and admitted, ordered made a 
part of this record, and is in words and figures as follows, to wit:)

Hardwood Ridge to Minto Mines 
Expenditures, Year 1923

Account Amount
1. Engineering.......................................................................................... $ 7,628 72
2. Land..................................................................................................... 1,828 92
3. Grading................................................................................................ 35,333 83
6. Bridges, Trestles and Culverts........................................................ 18,089 63
8. Ties....................................................................................................... 7,737 28
9. Rails...................................................................................................... 8,898 73

10. Other Track Material........................................................................ 8,886 48
11. Ballast.................................................................................................. 5,425 03
12. Track Laying...................................................................................... 14,030 01
13. Fences................................................................................................... 3,771 20

$111,629 33
Expended 1924................................................... 49,886 68

$161,516 01
Sir Henry Thornton: There is another obvious reason there, too; that is 

merely a siding to reach certain coal mines, and was, therefore, constructed in 
a much cheaper fashion and on a much lower standard than would be possible 
for main-line construction.

Sir Henry Drayton : Yes, and there is only $1,800 for right of way. The 
land was very cheap. The bridges and trestles were also very low, some $18,000. 
That works out at $32,942 per mile. I do not think, however, that could be 
looked upon as fair cost of construction.

Mr. Stewart: Where is that?
Sir Henry Drayton : The Minto Mines in Nova Scotia------
Mr. Kyte: No, New Brunswick.
Sir Henry Thornton: You can see that the cost of railway construction 

is trebling; you, at one time, could build pretty well for $25,000 a mile, whereas 
now it costs about $75,000 a mile, and in some cases you are lucky to get off 
with that.

Mr. Milne: Would this be a fair basis for prairie construction?
Sir Henry Thornton: This last one?
The Chairman: The $75,000.
Mr. Milne: -The $75,000.
Sir Henry Thornton : I think that should be about right.
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Sir Henry Drayton : You have practically no bridge work there. I should 
think about $60,000.

Sir Henry Thornton : You would probably have less grading to do, and 
a better foundation. I should think $75,000 would be excessive.

Mr. Brown : And the construction of structures and yard branches is less 
in the West; we use lighter rails.

Sir Henry Thornton (to Mr. Brown) : Perhaps you can answer this in 
a general way. What do you think prairie construction would average?

Mr. Brown: Probably $40,000 to $50,000 per mile.
Sir Henry Drayton : We had it as cheap as $15,000 in the old days. I 

think a fair indication of that would be the Grand Trunk Pacific. My recol­
lection is that was $60,000 per mile. (To Major Bell) Is that right, Major Bell?

Major Bell: It will go over that with interest.
Sir Henry Drayton : That I think is a good example of what an expen­

sive line used to be in the olden days. Just tracing money into it, I think it 
was $60,000 per mile; without the interest; with interest it would run up a 
great deal more.

Mr. Brown: That was low-grade main-line construction.
Sir Henry Drayton : If you take that as a basis it would be very heavy 

for all work, but at that time their branches, I think, Major, were $28,000.
Major Bell: $28,000, yes.
Sir Henry Drayton: For the Grand Trunk Pacific branch lines?
Major Bell: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the only construction through that line.
Mr. Henry: Yes.
The Chairman : Is that all on that line? What was the other? Adver­

tising?
Sir Henry Ti-iornton: In advertising last year—or I will put it this way: 

the advertising account for last year represents the sum of $1,063,784.75. Of 
that amount, however, $275,122.94 was paid for in transportation, so that the 
actual cash outlay for advertising last year was represented by $789,000. With 
respect to the item of $275,000 which was payment in transportation for adver­
tising: That ought not to be regarded as costing the company actually any­
thing, or substantially anything. For this reason. We are almost certain that 
a newspaper man or proprietor who travelled on that transportation did not 
add anything to the cost of the company. That is to say, we did not have to 
put on any extra cars, or did not have to run an extra train, or anything of that 
sort. When a passenger train is running it makes no difference in the cost to 
the company whether there are ten people or two hundred in it; it only begins 
to cost the company more money when the train becomes so crowded that you 
have to turn away business, or run a second section-----

Sir Henry Drayton: Or put on an extra car? I think there is a differ­
ence between ten people and two hundred people, Sir Henry (Thornton). I 
don’t think you want to leave it there.

Sir Henry Thornton : If we had to put on an extra car there would be 
some additional cost, but anyway, in so far as that particular item is concerned, 
I do not believe it added very appreciably—perhaps, to some extent, but cer­
tainly not appreciably—to the- expenses of the company. It is probably fair to 
say that individuals who travelled on that character of transportation would 
not have travelled had they not been travelling free. In some cases they might 
have, but probably seventy-five per cent represents travel which would not 
have occurred unless the individual was in a position to travel free, so it must
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not be taken, and should not be taken, that this item of $275,000 actually- 
involved anything like that expense to the company.

Hon. Mr. Graham : Is that advertising divided between newspaper adver­
tising and poster advertising?

Sir Henry Thornton : I will give you the details of that. I was merely 
making that general statement showing that of the total amount named of 
$1.003,781.75, or practically $1,100,000, $790,000 was actually cash paid out, 
and the balance represented in transportation. Now, of the actual amount paid 
out in cash, $84,556 represented newspaper advertising in Canada. I will only 
give you the round figures. One hundred and one thousand dollars represented 
newspaper advertising in the United States. You may quite properly say there, 
“ Why do you spend more money in the United States than in Canada for 
newspaper advertising?” Simply because there are more people in the United 
States. We draw a very large percentage of our tourist traffic from the United 
States, the country is bigger and you have more cities to reach, and it involves 
a larger expense by some $17,000, than it does in Canada; you are dealing 
with a population of over 100,000,000 on the one hand, and about 9,000.000 
on the other.

There was $10,190 magazine advertising in Canada; $30,000 magazine 
advertising in the United States ; $19,000 wall maps. Those are the maps of 
the Canadian National Railway System which are about three feet long and 
maybe two feet wide, which represents a map of Canada with the Canadian 
National Railways System. These are sent out to different offices, manufac­
turing concerns, and so on, to hang on their walls. It is a form of advertising.

Mr. Stewart : They would be usually distributed in Canada?
Sir Henry Thornton : No, a great many of them have gone to the United 

States. I do not know what the proportion would be, but if y oil go into many 
hotels or offices in the United States you will find one of our maps. I person­
ally took about fifty down to Pittsburgh and distributed them in. certain offices, 
to see they were suitably displayed. Four thousand five hundred dollars for 
tourist posters : miscellaneous printing, $27,000, special publications, $95,000. I 
will put it this way. Pictures for gratuitous distribution, $1,803. Those are 
pictures of Jasper Park and places of that sort hung in hotels and offices. 
Miscellaneous printing, $27,000; special publications, $95,000. (To Mr. Thomp­
son). What would that mean?

Mr. Thompson: Tourist posters.
Sir Henry Thornton : Photographic Department, $15,000. (To Mr. 

Thompson). Will you explain that?
Mr. Thompson: We have our own photographic department, and that is 

the net cost to the company after collecting such charges as we may for work 
of the photographic department. It works for all of the department of the 
railways, and makes the bromides and other things you see on the walls; it is 
our general photographic work.

The Chairman : Would salaries be included in that?
Mr. Thompson: We can give you the details of that. That is the total 

cost, including salaries.
Sir Henry Thornton: Frames for pictures for gratuitous distribution, 

$7,900; frames for special tourist posters, $1,200; exhibitions in Canada, $21,000. 
That includes what we would spend on the Toronto Exhibition and various 
exhibitions where we may be represented in Canada.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, do you think it wise or desirable to put this 
all in the record?— I have no objection to it, but it appears to be somewhat 
unnecessary. However, if the Committee is satisfied, go ahead.
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Sir Henry Thornton: I do not think there is any objection to these 
particular things. There are some of the details which one might ask a certain 
reservation about.

Express, 11.486.
Mr. Thompson: That was express charges on pictures sent out, folders, etc.
Sir Henry Thornton: Duty, $2.330. That would be duty on various 

things sent to the United States.
Mr. Thompson: Folders and timetables.
Sir Henry Thornton : Engraving and art, $11,000.
Mr. Thompson : That is in connection with preparations for our special 

publications.
Sir Henry Thornton : Mat stories—(To Mr. Thompson). What is that?
Mr. Thompson: The correct word is “Matrix”. It is in sheet form for 

' distributing illustrations or typed matter—
Major Bell : For the stereotypers.
Mr. Thompson: For people who do their own casting.
Sir Henry Thornton : Mat stories, $1,655. Salaries, $52,000; travelling 

expenses, $5,786.94: lectures, $8.557.54; motion picture films, $2,924; equip­
ment train, London-Toronto, $1,649. (To Mr. Thompson). What was that?

Mr. Thompson: That was a special train run to show the character of our 
new equipment. We took it from the Toronto Exhibition to London and some 
other points.

Sir Henry Drayton: What was the amount for that train—how much?
Sir Henry Thornton : $1,650.
Mr. Thompson : That was taken from the Toronto Exhibition to London 

and some other points.
Sir Henry Thornton : This represents the amount of money spent on 

overseas advertising, Australian advertising, $2,522 ; Oriental advertising, $1,764; 
Canadian exhibition train in France and l’Orangerie, $35,000; British Empire 
Exhibition, $5,800—

Mr. Thompson: That was 1923.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Yes, that would be just the preparatory work.
Sir Henry Thornton : European traffic organization advertising, $79,000; 

reorganization—before we take that up, I will say that that $79,000 represents 
practically entirely advertising in the United Kingdom—reorganization expense, 
$800; (To Mr. Thompson). What is this “ Chinese-Montreal ”?

Mr. Thompson: That is Chinese advertising in Montreal. We advertised 
in the Chinese papers.

Sir Henry Thornton : $1,500. Then there was the item which I referred 
to a moment ago of $275,000 for transportation ; costs of folders, timecards, 
etc., $107,486.04. Then there is an item of $36,300 which represents a balance, 
including cost of representation in other official guides and differences between 
transportation issued as shown on statement, and actual tickets honoured as 
audited.

Sir Henry Drayton : What was that amount?
Sir Henry Thornton : $36,300. That représents the combination in the 

total sum I gave you of $1,064,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : You gave that in round figures?
Sir Henry Thornton : Yes. I can file this giving the actual figures in 

cents.
The Chairman : That may be done.

81695—18
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(Whereupon the said statement was offered and admitted, ordered made a 
part of this record, and is in words and figures as follows, to wit:)

Advertising Accounts 
1923

Expenditure
1923

Newspaper Advertising—Canada—See Statement “A”............... $ 84,456 37
Newspaper Advertising—U.S........................................................... 101,025 12
Magazine Advertising—Canada...................................................... lo!l89 11
Magazine Advertising—U.S.............................................................. 29,996 19
Printing Wall Maps.......................................................................... 19.126 86
Printing Special Tourist Posters..................................................... 4,484 51
Pictures for Gra. Distribution........................................................ 1,803 43
Miscellaneous Printing..................................................................... 27,099 27
Special Publications.......................................................................... 95,086 31
Photographic Department................................................................ 15,173 66
Frames for Piet, for Gra. Distribution......................................... 7,882 68
Frames for Special Tourist Posters................................................. 1,244 45
Exhibitions—Canada......................................................................... 21,091 77
Miscellaneous Expenses.. ............................................................... 12,261 35
Express............................................................................................... 1,486 03
Duty................................................................................................... 2,330 88
Engraving and Art............................................................................ 10,904 74
Mat Stories..................................... .................................................. 1,655 68
Salaries............................................................................... '............. 52,395 16
Travelling Expenses.......................................................................... 5,786 94
Lectures.............................................................................................. 8,557 54
Motion Picture Films....................................................................... 2,924 70
Equipment Train—London-Toronto................................................ 1,649 97

Overseas
Australian Advertising...................................................................... 2,522 10
Oriental Advertising......................................................................... 1,764 11
Canadian Exhibition Train in France and l’Orangerie................. 34,939 08
British Empire Exhibition............................................................... 5,894 94
European Traffic Organisation........................................................ 78,815 26
Reorganization Expense................................................................... 839 63
Chinese—Montreal............................................................................ 1,508 00
Transportation—See Statements “B” and “C”............................. 275,122 94
Cost of Folders, time cards, etc.—See Statement ,‘‘D". . . . ,. . . . 107,486 04
Balance, including cost of representation in other Official Guides 

and differences between transportation issued as shown on 
statement, and actual tickets honoured as audited............. 36,279 93

$1,063,784 75

Sir Henry Drayton : Then with these other items, this makes a sum total, 
for stationery, printing and advertising, of two million six hundred odd thousand 
dollars.

Sir Henry Thornton: There is another item of stationery and printing 
amounting to $1,723,300. That, however, represents work which was practically 
all let on tender. Well, an item like “$47” which I see to the Cambridge Press 
would not be on tender, but the great bulk of the stationery and printing is let 
by the Purchasing Agent on tender.
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Sir Henry Drayton : How much of that is stationery, and how much 
printing?

Sir Henry Thornton: I do not know whether I can tell ethat. Yes, I can 
too. “Printing in Canada, $975,423 ; stationery in Canada, Wages of Stationery 
Department and office expenses, $486,596. Stationery and printing in the United 
States, $261,281. Substantially all of that is let on tender, and the great bulk 
of it has gone to job printers as distinguished between newspapers. The other 
item to which I referred, newspaper advertising, of course, is straight payments 
to newspapers. This sum, however, represents money paid to, I believe what are 
called in the profession, “Job printers”, and. it includes envelopes, stationery, the 
various forms; in fact, all of the paper work which is used in the company and 
its business.

Sir Henry Drayton : Envelopes, I think, would be under that item of 
$486,000—not under the item of “Printing.”

Sir Henry Thornton: Yes, of course it would. That is what I meant to
say.

Sir Henry Drayton : You were speaking of printing------ -
Sir Henry Thornton : I said printing and stationery-----
Sir Henry Drayton : Take “Printing”. Of what does that consist—that 

$975,000?
Sir Henry Thornton: That would consist of forms, printing on envelopes, 

general printing work. (To Mr. Thompson). Can you describe it more in 
detail?

Mr. Thompson : It includes printing of all kinds for the Transportation 
Department. That is, all bills, notices of every character; the same for the 
Maintenance of Way Department ; all character of printing for the Traffic 
Department, including a great amount of tariff work ; a large amount of printing 
for the Transportation Department, and a very large amount of general printing 
covering all departments. It is the whole field of printing.

Sir Henry Thornton : It represents $72,000 less than for 1922.
Mr. Thompson : And includes, of course, all characters of tickets.
Sir Henry Drayton : Have you any objection to letting us know who does 

that printing?
Sir Henry Thornton : That is covered by a long list, Sir Henry (Dray­

ton). I have no objection to any member of the Committee taking this list and 
examining it and asking any questions he likes, but I would rather not put it on 
the record. I have not the slightest objection to furnishing this to the Com­
mittee to examine in any way they please, but it is work that was let on tender—

Sir Henry Drayton: The tender figures would not be essential. The bulk 
amount would do no harm. What about the total of the advertising item ol 
$1,063,000? Have you a similar list here?

Sir Henry Thornton: Yes, I have a similar list here. I have the amount 
paid each newspaper, and I have no objection to its being treated in the same 
way.

The Chairman: Does that complete the subject?'
Sir Henry Drayton: We might have some questions arising out it after­

wards.
The Chairman: Is the Committee satisfied?
Sir Henry Drayton : As to the passenger business, Sir Henry (Thorn­

ton) : What is the passenger ratio?
Sir Henry Thornton: How much of this is spent on passengers—

81695—181
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Sir Henry Drayton : No. Take the passenger business: What is the 
earnings of the rate in connection with passenger cost against receipts?

Sir Henry Thornton: What is that?
The Chairman : Are you quite through with advertising?
Sir Henry Drayton : No; it has to do with these free passes.
Sir Henry Thornton: Our passenger receipts in 1923 were $39,285,382.
Sir Henry Drayton : I want to get at what your pro rata passenger train 

expenses are with a view of seeing what your operating ratio is in the passenger 
business.

Sir Henry Thornton : I don’t quite get that. Your question really is 
designed to answer this question : Does or does not the passenger business pay.

Sir Henry Drayton: And to what extent.
Sir Henry Thornton: I cannot give you those figures offhand. I would 

have to go into that, but I can say to you generally that I do not think we make 
any money on the passenger business as it stands to-day.

Sir Henry Drayton : I don’t think you do.
Sir Henry Thornton : And to a large extent that is due to certain un re­

munerative services, which necessarily must be maintained, and you cannot get 
away from that. I think if you asked any railroad man on the North American 
continent, he would either say the passenger business did not pay, or if it did 
pay, it certainly did not anything like the percentage which his freight business 
pays. In other words, the passenger business—excepting when you are dealing 
,with large concentrations of people, such as suburban business at Chicago or 
New York—does not pay; the general feeling of the railway industry is that 
the passenger business is not a source of profit.

Sir Henry Drayton : Excepting where you have the long haul.
Sir Henry Thornton: The passenger business which does pay, and it is 

the only business which is profitable, is the suburban business in such cities as 
,Chicago, New York, and London. There it becomes quite profitable for the 
,very simple reason that you are always able to load your train.

Sir Henry Drayton : What do you say about Montreal?
Sir Henry Thornton: We may make something out of it.
Sir Henry Drayton : And what about Toronto?
Sir Henry Thornton: Yes, but nothing like the same proportion that we 

would around New York or London.
Sir Henry Drayton: The only reason I asked that is because in the 

Commuters’ Rate Case, which we had before the Board, the attitude of the 
railways was somewhat different; they said they lost money.

The Chairman: We can segregate that, and Lshould say that the suburban 
passenger business in Montreal and Toronto is a field which ought not to be 
neglected, and I believe some day will be profitable, depending on how rapidly 
the cities grow.

Sir Henry Drayton : You have some figures which give information, in 
connection with the railway-passenger-train-mile-cost, car cost, and the operating 
ratio.

Sir Henry Thornton: Is that something you want us to get?
Sir Henry Drayton : Mr. Henry can get that very readily. I may say 

that down on the Intercolonial, when Mr. Gutelius was there, we had some pretty 
good cost sheets gotten out; I do not know whether they were really accurate, but 
they went a long way in describing conditions, and they gave a full picture of all 
these passenger conditions.
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Sir Henry Thornton: It is extraordinary how cheaply you can haul 
passengers and make money if yon are sure you can load your trains. 1 he 
Great Eastern Railway in England, which perhaps did the largest suburban 
business of any railway in the world, made money on the suburban business at 
a very low passenger-mile-rate because the trains were not only filled, but 
packed to the roof.

Sir Henry Drayton : I have been on them. You travel with a minimum 
of comfort and a maximum of profit to the line.

The Chairman : Are you ready to proceed with the estimates?
Sir Henry Thornton: Mr. Harris asked some questions about compensa­

tion. Shall I just file this statement?
Sir Henry Drayton: Yes, put it in with the record.
The Chairman : Yes, it may be filed.
(Whereupon the said statement was offered and admitted; ordered made a 

part of this record, and is in word and figures as follows, to wit:)

Comparison of Scales of Compensation under the Workmen’s Compensation 
Acts, etc., of the different Provinces of Canada 

In case of Disability—Compensations (plus cost of medical aid) allowed

Percentage of average earnings on which compensation is based.

British Columbia, 62j per cent medical aid.
Alberta (Accident Fund), 55 per cent medical aid.
Manitoba, 66| per cent medical aid.
Ontario, 66§ per cent medical aid.
Quebec, 50 per cent (25 per cent of 50 per cent over $1,000 up to $1,500).
New Brunswick, 55 per cent medical aid.
Nova Scotia, 55 per cent medical aid.
Saskatchewan, lump sum not exceeding three years earnings or $2,000 which­

ever is the larger, limited to $2,500 (no medical aid).
Prince Edward Island, no Workmen’s Compensation Act.

»

Maximum average earnings considered
British Columbia, $2,000 per annum, medical aid.
Alberta (Accident Fund), $2,000 per annum, medical aid.
Manitoba, $2,000 per annum, medical aid.
Ontario, $2,000 per annum, medical aid.
New Brunswick, $1,500 per annum, medical aid.
Nova Scotia, $1,200 per annum, medical aid.
Saskatchewan, lump sum, not exceeding three years earnings of $2,000 which­

ever is the larger, limited to $2,500—maximum $2,500—Maximum $2,500 (no 
medical aid).

Quebec, $1,000, 50 per cent. Surplus to $1,500—25 per cent (no medical aid).
Prince Edward Island, no Workmen’s Compensation Act.

Minimum Compensation allowed—unless earnings are less then the arhount of
earnings.

British Columbia, $5.00 per week.
Alberta (Accident Fund), $10.00 per week.
Manitoba, $15.00 per week.
Ontario, $12.50 per week.
New Brunswick, $6.00 per week.
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Nova Scotia, $5.00 per week.
Saskatchewan, nil (no medical aid).
Quebec, $4.00 per week (for partial) no medical aid.
Prince Edward Island, no Workmen’s Compensation Act.
Note: Right of action under Common Law (certain common law defences 

abrogated) still prevails in Saskatchewan and Prince Edward Island, and also 
Alberta in connection with most of the operating employees of the railway who 
are specified as excepted from the Accident Fund Act of Alberta.

In Cases of Death 
Burial Expenses and Medical <Aid

British Columbia, $100 and cost of medical aid.
Alberta (Accident Fund), $100 and cost of medical aid.
Manitoba, $150 and cost of medical aid.
Ontario, $125 and cost of medical aid.
Nova Scotia, $75 and cost of medical aid.
New Brunswick, $100 and cost of medical aid.
Saskatchewan, nil (no medical aid).
Quebec, $50 (covers also medical aid).
Prince Edward Island, nothing.

Compensation to Widow or Invalid Widower, When Lone Dependent.

Monthly Allowance
British Columbia, $35 per month.
Alberta (Accident Fund), $35 per month.
Manitoba, $30 per month.
Ontario, $40 per month.
Nova Scotia, $30 per month.
New Brunswick, $30 per month.
Saskatchewan, lump sum not exceeding three years earnings or $2,000, 

whichever is larger, not exceeding $2,500.
Prince Edward Island, Common Law.
Quebec, see below special clauses.

Compensation to Lone Widow or Invalid Widower and Children.

Monthly Allowance
British Columbia, $35 to widow and $7.50 to each child—total allowed 

$65 per month.
Alberta (Accident Fund), $35 to widow and $7.50 to each child—tot§d 

allowed $65 per month.
Manitoba, $30 to widow and $7.50 to each child, no limit as to number of 

children, but total limited to 66f average earnings.
Ontario, $40 to widow and $10 to each child, no limit as to number of 

children—limit 66§ per cent average earnings.
Nova Scotia, $30 to widow and $7.50 to each child—total allowed $60 

per month.
New Brunswick, $30 to widow and $7.50 to each child—no limit to number 

of children—limit 55 per cent of average earnings.
Saskatchewan, lump sum not exceeding three years earnings or $2.000 

whichever is larger not exceeding $2,500.
Prince Edward Island, Common Law.
Quebec, special clauses, see below.
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Where Children Only Dependents 

Monthly Allowances
British Columbia, $12.50 to each child, limited to $50 per month.
Alberta (Accident Fund), $12.50 to each child, limited to $50 per month.
Manitoba, $15 to each child, no limit to number of children but to be 

limited to 66§ per cent of average earnings.
Ontario, $15 to each child—no limit to number of children but total 

limited to 66f per cent of average earnings.
Nova Scotia, $15 to each child—limited to $60 in all.
New Brunswick, $7.50 to each child—no limit to children, but limited to 

55 per' cent of average earnings.
Saskatchewan, lump sum not exceeding three years earnings or $2,000, 

whichever is larger not exceeding $2,500.
Prince Edward Island, Common Law.
Quebec, special clauses, see below.

Where Dependents are Other Than Widow, Widower or Child.

British Columbia, reasonable expectation of length of dependency limited 
to $45 in all.

Manitoba, reasonable expectation of length of dependency limited to $40
in all.

Alberta (Accident Fund), reasonable expectation of length of dependency 
limited to $65 in all.

Ontario, reasonable expectation of length of dependency limited to 66§ per 
cent of average earnings.

Nova Scotia, reasonable expectation of length of dependency limited to 
$45 in all.

New Brunswick, reasonable expectation, limited to 55 per cent of average 
earnings.

Saskatchewan, lump sum not exceeding three years earnings or $2,000 
whichever is larger, not exceeding $2,500.

Prince Edward Island, Common Law.
Quebec, see below, special clauses.

where widow marries again

British Columbia, two years compensation not exceeding $480.
Alberta (Accident Fund), two years compensation not exceeding,$480.
Manitoba, two years compensation.
Ontario, two years compensation. •
Nova Scotia, $20 per month for 25 months.
New Brunswick, two years compensation.
Saskatchewan, nil. .
Prince Edward Island, nil.
Quebec, nil.

special clauses

In Ontario.—The dependent widow (or foster-mother) is allowed a lump 
sum in addition to all other compensation of $100.

In Saskatchewan.—The Act provides for a lump sum not exceeding three 
years earnings, minimum $2,000, maximum $2,500, also right of action inde­
pendent of Act in cases of negligence of employer.

In Quebec.—Compensation in case of death is four times the average 
yearly wages, minimum $1,500—maximum $3,000 apportioned between
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(1) Surviving consort
(2) Children
(3) Dependent ascèndants
But Court may increase or decrease the compensation prescribed in 

accordance to whether accident was the result of “inexcusable 
fault ” of employer or employee.

In Prince Edward Island.—No Workmen’s Compensation—Common Law 
prevails.

In Alberta.—There are two Workmen’s Compensation Acts—Workmen’s 
Compensation Act Accident Fund—Workmen's Compensation Act 1908.

Under the Alberta Workmen’s Compensation Act 1908, of workman killed 
leaving dependents wholly dependent on his earnings, compensation is a sum 
equal to three years earnings or $1,000 whichever is larger, but not exceeding 
$1,800.

If partial dependents only, such sum not exceeding above as may be 
agreed on or determined by arbitration, to be reasonable and proportionate to 
injury.

If no dependents, reasonable expenses of medical attendance and burial not 
exceeding $200.

In total and partial incapacity cases, the compensation is during incapacity 
not exceeding 50 per cent of average earnings—weekly payment not to exceed 
$10 per week.

This Alberta Workmen’s Compensation Act 1908 applies to the majority 
of the railways operating employees who are specifically excepted out of the 
Accident Fund Act, which employees can only be brought in under the Acci­
dent Fund Act, if they, themselves see fit.

Sir Henry Thornton: Here is another statement of information asked 
for by Mr. Harris in regard to balances on hand with Workmen’s Compensa­
tion organizations. I will file that too.

(Whereupon the said statement was offered and admitted, ordered to be 
made a part of this record and is in words and figures as follows, to wit:)

Balances on hand with Workmen’s Compensation Organizations, at
December 31, 1923

Ontario Workmen’s Compensation Board.. .. $1,176,187 41
Manitoba Workmen’s Compensation Board. . . 49,055 96
Alberta Workmen’s Compensation Board.. .. 8,631 01
Br. Columbia Workmen’s Compensation Board 31,262 04

$1,265,138 04

Sir Henry Thornton: Mr. Stewart asked some questions about the grain 
charters on the Great Lakes. We have that statement here. Shall I file it? 

The Chairman: Yes.
(Whereupon the said statement was offered and admitted, ordered to be 

made a part of this record, and is in words and figures as follows to wit:)
Canadian Government Merchant Marine, Limited 

Grain Charters on Great Lakes, 1923
S.S. “Canadian Adventurerv

Chartered from May 7th to November 30th.
Trips 20. Bushels carried 2,119,527.

Earnings.......................................................... $91,371 82
Disbursements................................................ 78,809 40

Surplus $12,562 42
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S.S. “Canadian Sower’
Chartered from May 13th to December 4th.

Trips 19. Bushels carried 1,939,071
Earnings............................................................ 79,676 91
Disbursements................................................ 74,988 21

Surplus..................................................... $ 4,688 70
The difference between the S.S. “Canadian Adventurer” and S.S. “Canadian 

Sower” is due to the former vessel making one trip more, getting better cargoes 
and also to the S.S. “Canadian Sower” having been chartered at a lower rate on 
the last twro trips of the Season.

Sir Henry Thornton: Before I leave this subject, may I say a word about 
advertising? When you are exploiting a railroad in a new country you naturally 
have to spend more money in advertising in the initial years, than you may have 
to 25 years after that.

The Chairman : The first item in the estimates is on page 29, number 110, 
“To provide for the Purchase of Branch Lines; Moncton and Buctouche Rail­
way—$70,000; interest estimated from date of taking possession to March 31, 
1925, not exceeding (including revote $23,625) $27,125.”

Major Bell : That is a departmental vote carried from year to year. In 
explanation of that, the railroad was taken over some years ago, and as they got 
their bonds in we paid them a certain amount on account. There was a certain 
amount of bonds remaining unpaid, and we are holding that.

Several Hon. Members: Carried.
The Chairman: There is another at the bottom of page 29, “Port Nelson 

Terminals, Hudson Bay Railway, revote $10,000, $35,000.”
Major Bell: That is a departmental vote also. We had between $1,000,000 

and $2.000,000 worth of equipment at Port Nelson. We keep six men there who 
will make repairs if any are necessary, after storms, etc.

The Chairman : No real capital expenditure?
Major Bell: No.
Sir Henry Drayton : In regard to the Hudson Bay, there is a tremendous 

difference of opinion. I think we had better pass all Hudson Bay matters with 
a query.

Major Bell: This is not the Hudson Bay Railway; it is simply the terminal 
at Port Nelson.

The Chairman : Then on page 31, a large item ; No. 137, “Amount not 
exceeding 856,000,000 to meet expenditures made or indebtedness incurred”. The 
details are all given here. I do not suppose it is necessary to'read these. Perhaps 
you may want to ask some questions as to how the money will be expended.

Sir Henry Drayton : Take the first one. How much is to be expended on 
interest on securities, and so forth.

The Chairman : “Interest on securities, notes and other obligations ; also 
rentals for lease of lines” Have you the total of that, under “A”, Mr. Henry?

Mr. Henry: Under “A”, $18,745,639.
Sir Henry Drayton : And for the year before?
Mr. Henry: The year before was $22,609,260.
Sir Henry Drayton : How was the decrease brought about?
Mr. Henry: Greater resources.
Sir Henry Drayton : Those are interest on securities, notes and other obli­

gations, also rentals for lease of lines?
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Mr. Henry: It means a greater revenue anticipated out of it—to meet a 
greater proportion—

Sir Henry Drayton : In other words, you expect to be able to pay more on 
that account than you have before?

Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : What are the gross figures in each case?
Mr. Henry: The gross from the resources this year is expected to bo 

$28,174,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : You are speaking there of your resources?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : What are the gross items?
Major Bell : Will you read that summary of financial requirements and 

resources, together with the summary of proportionate capital expenditure 
requirements for the year ending March 31, 1925?

Mr. Henry: In 1923 the total financial requirements was $47,628,670.
Sir Henry Drayton: That is 1923-1924?
Mr. Henry: No, 1924-1925.
Sir Henry Drayton: Then, for 1923-1924, what is the first item?
Mr. Henry : I will have to look that up.
The Chairman: You mean, Mr. Henry, the amount you are asking for this 

year, $18,000,000, is the difference between a total amount required and what 
you can supply out of revenue of the road?

Mr. Henry: That is right.
The Chairman : (To Sir Henry Drayton) Dou you want to wait for these 

figures now?
Sir Henry Drayton : He will have them in a minute. It is all in the 

papers.
Mr. Henry: I guess I will have to get that for you.
The Chairman: All right. Under “ B ”: “ Equipment Principal Payments, 

Sinking Fund, Miscellaneous Maturing or Matured Notes and Other Obligations 
Secured or Unsecured ” have you the amount for that?

Mr. Henry: The amount this year is $5,867,633 as against $8,507,699 last 
year.

Sir'HENRY Drayton : Can you tell me the gross there too?
Mr. Henry : I think that is the gross amount in both years.
Sir Henry Drayton : Do you think that is right, because we have more 

equipment than we had?
Mr. Henry: I beg your pardon.
Sir Henry Drayton: It would not look right on its face.
Mr. Henry : That represents the amount "taken care of out of the Budget.
Sir Henry Drayton: But I am asking you as to the total obligation under 

that heading, before we deduct the earnings.
Mr. Henry: There is no deduction in this, because this represents the 

amount taken care of other than through equipment trust.
Sir Henry Drayton : The amount taken care of—
Ml Henry: Other than through Equipment Trust.
Sir Henry Drayton : And of course you use up all Equipment Trust now ?
Mr. Henry: Yes. This really represents the 25 per cent in both cases.
Sir Henry DraytonN This is 25 per cent, as against the old practice of 100 

per cent; is that correct?
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Mr. Henry: That is correct.
The Chairman: Operating income deficit wherever incurred or—.
Mr. Henry: Last year it was $10,400,000; this year it is $1,467,138.
The Chairman: Any question on that? That is a very handsonme reduc­

tion.
Sir Henry Drayton : How much again?
Mr. Henry : Last year it was $10,400,000; this year it is $1,467,138. This 

year “Construction Betterments” including co-ordination, acquisition of pro­
perty. and so on, is $29,119,588, as against $33,033,040.

Sir Henry Drayton : What is going to be done with that this year? I 
should have thought we would have been pretty well finished with that. What 
have you under that head?

Mr. Henry: That includes all the miscellaneous items, building of trestles 
and new rails and so on.

Sir Henry Drayton: Is that in these notes that you supplied me with the 
supporting statements?

Mr. Henry: That is the corresponding figure for this year.
Sir Henry Drayton : In the statements supporting the statements made 

by the Minister and laid on the table?
Mr. Henry: Yes. That is only last year.
Sir Henry Drayton : Do you remember what page that is on?
Mr. Henry: It is on page 16, away along towards the end.
The Chairman : That is a total of $56,000,000?
Mr. Henry: Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : We have a long list there. Have you a similar list 

for this year?
Mr. Henry : We have the details, yes. They are included in this volume 

here. The miscellaneous item includes a hundred and one things that have to 
be done.

Sir Henry Drayton : Does that include, for example, the cost of work in 
the western region?

Mr. Henry: Everything.
Sir Henry Drayton : And the eastern region, and all the regions? Does 

that include work on the Grand Trunk western ?
Mr. Henry : It includes every charge to capital for betterments.
Sir Henry Drayton : What were our betterments for the Grand Trunk 

Western this year?
Mr. Brown : $2,952,481 for 1924. That is what we propose to spend.
Sir Henry Drayton : How much did you spend last year?
Mr. Brown: What we proposed to spend last year was $2,631,465.
Sir Henry Drayton : Was that spent last year?
Mr. Brown: Practically all of that.
Sir Henry Drayton : What were the figures for this year?
Mr. Brown: $2,952,481. Those are the lines west of Detroit, between 

Detroit and Chicago.
Sir Henry Drayton : How is the work on the grade separation at Detroit 

coming on? We are going to do it this year.
Mr. Brown: We are going to expend a certain amount on that. It is over 

a five or six year period.
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Sir Henry Drayton : How much will we have to spend this year?
Mr. Brown : I think it is around $500,000.
Sir Henry Thornton: That is mostly for property purchase.
Sir Henry Drayton : There was a scheme at one time in connection with 

that involving an expenditure of $9,000,000. Has that been reduced?
Mr. Brown : The total cost is less than that.
Sir Henry Drayton : How much? Have you the total cost down to now?
Mr. Brown : My remembrance it that it is about $5,000,000.
Sir Henry Thornton: That is right.
Major Bell: And that is divided up; that is not the cost to the railway.
Sir Henry Drayton: How much is the cost to the railway?
Major Bell: About $2,500,000, I think, to the railway, spread over six 

years.
Mr. Brown : $3,000,000 is my remembrance.
Sir Henry Drayton : What about the new bridge? Is that a big bridge you 

are building at the Fenton Road, Flint?
Mr. Brown: No, that is a subway ; only about a $40,000 proposition.
Sir Henry Drayton : There is another grade separation at South Bend?
Mr. Brown : Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : How much is that one?
Mr. Brown : All it is involving just now is the purchase of some property. 

The total cost of that grade separation is also line revision through the city of 
South Bend; it is about $5,000,000.

Sir Henry Thornton: When will that have to be done?
Mr. Brown : It is to be undertaken starting this year, in the acquisition of 

property.
Sir Henry Thornton: It is to be commenced within three years, I think, 

and finished within five years.
Sir Henry Drayton : Is that an order of the Commission?
Sir Henry Thornton: No, that was an arrangement made with the city of 

South Bend. Are you familiar with the position there?
Sir Henry Drayton: Not as familiar as I am .with Detent.
Sir Henry Thornton: Do you remember the situation of the New York 

Central at Syracuse?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes.
Sir Henry Thornton: It is very much like that, only South Bend is a 

smaller city. We run straight down the middle of one of the principal streets 
of South Bend, and the position has become almost intolerable. South Bend is 
a very large manufacturing city; the Studebaker automobile works, the Oliver 
Chilled Plow people and other agricultural implement manufacturers are there, 
as well as several other large manufacturing concerns. It originates a very large 
and lucrative character of traffic, and we have been suffering considerably in 
South Bend through our inability to secure what we feel to be our fair pro­
portion of that business. In fact, due to our failure to take active steps to 
remedy the position, we were labouring under a great disability and had a very 
unfortunate reputation in the city. So there were two reasons for taking our 
tracks off the streets. First, because it was throttling the growth of the city 
and creating conditions of great danger, and operating difficulties, so from purely 
a railway point of view we had to get off.



NATIONAL RAILWAYS AND SHIPPING 285

Mr. Stewart: How did that condition originate?
Sir Henry Thornton : In the same way most of them originated. When 

the railways were first btnlt in the United States and Canada, the United States 
in particular, the towns as they were then which did not have railway facilities 
were extremely anxious for the railway to come to that particular town, and 
very often the railways were invited to run their trains and their tracks down 
the main street of the city. Whenever a train came through, the entire popula­
tion went out to enjoy the spectacle. In other words, the railway was a welcome 
visitor. In time these cities increased in population and in manufacturing 
importance, and what 40 or 50 years ago was something which the towns 
delighted in eventually became a nuisance, and then came demands for grade 
separations and new stations and all that sort of thing, and that is more or less 
the typical situation in most large American cities.

Sir Henry Drayton : How much of that $5,000,000 is the city to pay?
Mr. Brown : About $1,000,000. The proportion is between $750,000 and 

$1,000,000, and the railway pays the balance.
Sir Henry Drayton : How much do we pay, in concrete figures, out of the 

estimated $5,000,000?
Mr. Brown : My remembrance is about $4,200,000, and the city pays the 

balance.
Sir Henry Drayton : We have not any cost as yet in connection with the 

Scarboro situation?
Sir Henry Thornton : No. The situation there is under the examination 

of a committee, and that is a colossal undertaking.
Hon. Mr. Graham : You might add an item here which I am going to ask 

the Government for; I am going to put it in the supplémentais, but I will sub-' 
mit it here. The Board of Railway Commissioners has ordered the railway 
companies to separate some grade crossings at North Toronto, and has ordered 
it to be done this year. The Canadian National Railways’ share of it will be 
about $400,000, and I am going to put that in the estimates.

Sir Henry Drayton : I have been examining these estimates, but I have 
been unable to find the proper appropriation for the Toronto viaduct.

Hon. Mr. Graham : I am waiting a report on that.
Sir Henry Drayton : You are holding your supplémentais to cover that 

question, I trust?
Hon. Mr. Graham : If we can get an acceptance of some proposition, I 

hope to see some daylight in the matter. There is also an amount of $100,000, 
I think, for the continuation of the standardization of Prince Edward Island.

Sir Henry Drayton : I do not want to delay the committee, but I would 
like to go through that list that you have in the book, and see what that work 
would be.

Mr. Henry: That would be the classified items?
Sir Henry’ Drayton : Yes, but not here. I will not delay the committee.
The Chairman : Sir Henry (Thornton), I would like to ask a question 

which is more or less of a general character. We have the two great railway 
systems in Canada, the Canadian National and the C.P.R., both giving a com­
plete service and I dare say, in some instances, duplicating services. For 
example, I think you have in transcontinental trains, between the two systems, 
a service consisting of about nine trains a day; you have between Ottawa and 
Montreal, I think, about twenty-four trains a day between the two systems. I 
would like to ask whether you would consider it worth while or feasible for the 
executive of the two systems to get together and see whether you cannot, say,
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divide up the business and cut out a great deal of unnecessary waste, and 
whether you could not save a great deal of money to the shareholders of the 
C.P.R. on the one hand, and to the people of Canada on the other, through 
avoidance of waste. That is, without interfering with the efficiency, of course.

Sir Henry Thornton : That is both worth while and feasible, but whether 
any tangible results would emerge remains to be seen. Unquestionably, taking 
the Dominion of Canada as a whole, we are not sufficiently opulent to indulge 
in unnecessary competition, not only in the railway business but in all other 
businesses. We ought to try and make every dollar carry with it a maximum 
return, and if we could get to some understanding with our principal com­
petitor which would result in the elimination of competition, and by competi­
tion I mean that form of competition which, if eliminated, would not affect the 
convenience to the public—certainly we would have gone a long way towards 
conserving the revenues and the resources of both companies.

Sir Henry Drayton : Mr. Chairman, I am very familiar with this ques­
tion. In 1916, although as Chairman of the Railway Board I had not any 
direct control over the railways in cutting off services—although we had juris­
diction to order services—I told them if they did not come under, something 
might happen. So I was allowed—at the time of the coal shortage—I was 
given the right to go in. I forget how many trains I cut off, but it ran into large 
numbers, and saved a good deal of coal and a good deal of money. There was 
a good deal of objection, because every train that is run is used by some people, 
and those few people can make a lot of noise, as well as perhaps one or two 
municipalities, but in about six months’ time, after the protests ceased, all 
troubles stopped, and both systems were saved a lot of money. I had an 
avalanche of protests, and all that sort of thing, and we had hearings regarding 
the trains cut off, but a lot of money was saved. The sequel is amusing. Just so 
soon as the period was over, when I had any right to control the railways and 
so save money for the country, just so soon were the trains put back on again, 
and I believe there are more now than there were at that time.

Hon. Mr. Graham : During the war, did your Board not have authority to 
short-route traffic in many instances? v

Sir Henry Drayton : That was brought about in this way. At the time the 
submarine menace was abroad, a large deputation of railroaders and others came 
into my office one day and told me the war would be over in ten days. I told 
them that was interesting if true, and they said “ We do not know that it is 
anything you can have anything to do with, but there is just ten days food 
supply in England for the army on the continent, and next week all the American 
North Atlantic ports are going to be closed, and our Canadian railways have 
already contracted for every single ton of stuff they can handle. They say they 
cannot take on anything more, and we thought perhaps you could do something 
with it.” Well, we had some cross-firing back and forth, and I said, “ I will 
tell you what I will do. If the railways will put themselves absolutely in my 
hands so far as jurisdiction is concerned, and if you people in the supply busi­
ness will appoint one person to look after your interests, with whom I can deal, 
I will undertake it.” The offer was refused, but the next day they came back 
and accepted it. What that involved was this: it involved the right of using all 
rolling stock in any way I thought was the most economical, irrespective of 
ownership. It involved the right to short-route traffic wherever I wanted to 
short-route it. It involved the right to take business from one line and give 
it to the other, when the other could make better despatch with it. It involved 
the right to put in sidings if necessary, for the transfer of traffic, and all those 
things. In that way we were able to increase, as I recollect the figures, the 
movement out of St. John in particular as well as out of Portland—there were 
very gratifying increases in Portland, but out of St. John we increased that
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winter—and it was a very bad winter—we increased it 60 per cent, and the 
thing Was done. Of course, that is a condition which you cannot have in 
ordinary times. 1 was treading on everybody’s corns everywhere ; there are 
a whole lot of corns I have never been forgiven for treading on, even to the 
present day.

Hon. Mr. Graham: We had a shortage of coal in Brockville. I got some 
coal, by certain methods, to Prescott via C.P.R., a distance of about 12 miles. 
Ordinarily that would go from Prescott back to Kempton, out to Smiths Falls, 
and so out to Brockville. That would ordinarily take about 10 days, and I 
know somebody gave them the order to haul it the 12 miles by Grand Trunk, 
and so save that much time.

Sir Henry Drayton : I remember in 1916 the Ottawa coal dealers came in 
and said that we had a three days’ supply of coal in Ottawa, right in the middle 
of winter. I bought three trainloads of coal that afternoon—at least I arranged 
for them, and we arranged for the whole movement and we actually managed 
to get this coal through. I remember getting through 500 cars of coal for Ontario 
points at Black Rock on the day the hospital in Buffalo closed because it had no 
coal, and the whole reason was very, very simple. We had an arrangement under 
which the railways here were compelled to treat coal as coal, no matter whose 
it was. A great deal of the congestion in the United States arose from the 
practice of yarding it at different points. Canadian coal was handled by solid 
trains. As soon as an order was received for Canadian coal, a solid train 
would be made up and it was run as a solid train without yarding or anything, 
straight through to the Canadian points, and then the Canadian railroads were 
under the obligation of immediately discharging it. I put a demurrage of $10 
a day per car, and they were under the obligation of discharging that coal and 
sending that empty train right back to the American line. That meant they 
were in a position to do business in Canada when, by reason of the railway con­
gestion, they could not do business with their own people. If you get co-ordina- 

• tion, a lot of these things could be done.
Sir Henry Thornton: It is very difficult to prevent contestants from con­

testing, and it may be expressed this way. It is no good for the sheep, in con­
vention assembled, to pass resolutions in favour of a vegetable diet, so long as 
the wolves retain their carnivorous habits.

The Chairman : Shall we approve of the item?
Mr. Stewart : In item B, what construction is involved there?
Mr. Henry: That is betterment, really.
Mr. Brown : There is no branch line work.
Sir Henry Thornton : “ Construction and Betterments” is a general term 

which is used to describe that particular branch of railway operation. In this 
case it is mostly betterments.

Mr. Stewart: That amount of last year would include the money used to 
build the Long Lac cut-off?

Sir Henry Drayton : Yes. There was that new work last year, and also 
that Minto branch?

Mr. Stewart : There is one other thing I would like to ask. Is any money 
involved in this expenditure in connection with the Hudson Bay railway?

Mr. Brown: Yes, $300,000.
The Chairman: For what purpose?
Mr. Brown : It is a revote of last year.
Sir Henry Thornton: That is protection in this way; there is a considerable 

portion of the line that is sinking; there are still some ties and rails and material 
lying up there which has to be salvaged, to prevent it from sinking into the
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muskeg. There are some bridges which require repairs, and in other words the 
vote of $350,000 is merely for the purpose of preventing further deterioration 
to the line. With that, it may not involve so much more expense later on. In 
fact, as I remember that vote last year, we estimated that unless that money 
was spent we would lose about $1,000,000.

The Chairman : Did you spend it?
Sir Henry Thornton : Part of it, not all.
Hon. Mr. Graham : I will tell you what the situation is. There is an item 

here for keeping Port Nelson open and so on, but last year we probably did not 
feel that we were at liberty to go on until we got the money. It was not voted 
in the name of the company last year, it was a separate vote. We only spent 
$60,000 or $70,000. This year, having started these repairs, I told Mr. Warren I 
thought he would be safe in starting with the work earlier, and I think he has 
been on the work already.

The Chairman: But it is only repairs?
Hon. Mr. Graham : Yes.
Mr. Stewart: I wanted to get it clear on the point as to just how the 

expenditures on that stand between the government and the Canadian National. 
That is a government railway, is it not?

Hon. Mr. Graham : The government railways were all taken over by the 
National, and that was included, and unless it was taken outside the sphere 
of the Canadian National, it would have to be charged to the C.N.R.

Mr. Stewart : And the completion will have to be done by the Canadian 
National?

Hon. Mr. Graham : Yes, unless we were to remove it from the C.N.R. by 
order in council. Any money expended on that had to be charged up as a loan 
to the Canadian National.

Mr. Steiwart: -Just whose is the responsibility for the completion? Is it a 
matter of the government, or the Canadian National Railway Board?

Hon. Mr. Graham : Both.
Sir Henry Thornton': I would say the responsibility of the government 

is to provide the money, and after the money is provided it is the responsibility 
of the Canadian National Railways to see that it is wisely and economically 
spent for the purpose for which it was voted.

Sir Henry Drayton : It is also then responsibility of the government to 
determine the policy to be followed.

Hon. Mr. Graham : But first the Canadian National Railway must recom­
mend whether this line ought to be constructed or not.

Mr. Stewart: Use the word “completed”, not the word “constructed”.
Hon. Mr. Graham : Then Parliament will have to say whether they will 

give them the money or not.
Mr. Stewart: Let us go back a little further. We had, a short time ago, a 

number of branch lines throughout the prairies before Parliament, and it seemed 
to be the general understanding that the advice had originated with the Canadian 
National Railway Board that these lines were needed and advisable; the govern­
ment was simply passing upon them and granting the money with which to 
build them. I want to find out about the Hudson Bay railway, as to whether 
that is the position it is in. Are we to wait until the Canadian National Rail­
way Board advises that the money be paid to complete that railway, or has the 
government the right to take the initiative and say, “Here is the money ; go to 
work and complete that road.”
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Hon. Mr. Graham : Supposing the government did that, and the railway 
said, “That is all very well, but we will give you a report now to show that you 
will lose so many millions of dollars there.” Whose advice should we ask? I 
admit that this road has been started, and I am not discussing it very much. 
The completion of the Hudson Bay railway would have to be a policy of the 
government, approved by Parliament, but the government ought first to get 
advice from somebody outside of the government, as to what to do in all these 
things.

Sir Henry Thornton: Might I just answer that in this way. In connection 
with the Branch Lines Bill last year, the Canadian National Railway adminis­
tration was asked by the government to present a branch line program. We 
examined the position and made recommendations with respect to which branch 
lines the administration thought should be built. We have had no such request 
from the government in respect to the Hudson Bay railway. The administration 
is prepared to carry out any request the government may make upon us in 
regard to recommendations.

The Chairman : May I ask what is, perhaps, an embarrassing question? 
Have you ever investigated yourself the possibilities of the Hudson Bay as a 
railway proposition—not as a colonizing scheme, but as a proposition with 
regard to whether it will pay, or whether it will be a source of loss to the 
country?

Sir Henry Thornton: No, I have not. I know in a general way, of 
course, the discussion that has gone on in connection with the Canadian National 
Railway system, but I have refrained from expressing any opinion on the subject 
.whatever, nor do I intend to express any opinion until I am given a mandate 
to that effect, and then it will be only after a searching examination.

Sir Henry Drayton : I think at»one time your Board recommended the 
lifting of the rails.

Mr. Stewart : Let us fix the responsibility for that.
Major Bell: Sir Henry Thornton was away at the time, and I was in the 

Chair. We had about one hundred miles of rail going to pieces; the ties were 
rotting, the rails were twisting, and it did not look as though we were going to 
be able to do anything for a year or so. Rail was urgently needed in the west, 
and the Board at that time, without either approving or disapproving of that 
policy of the Hudson Bay railway, recommended that that rail be lifted in order 
to save it and use it in the west, and it could easily be replaced later. It was not 
used for operating purposes; we were only running to Mile 214, and it was to save 
that rail that the order was issued. I think it would have been good business 
jf we had done it at the time, because some of that has never been reclaimed.

The Chairman : You have no opinion to offer as to the propriety of build­
ing the Hudson Bay railway, and you would not do so without making a further 
examination?

Sir Henry Thornton : It is too large and too important a subject to 
express an opinion on without very careful examination. We all have certain 
Suspicions and certain views, but there is a great difference between suspicion 
and conviction.

Mr. Stewart: I was not trying to obtain either an expression of a suspicion 
or a conviction or an opinion as to t’he merits of the road, but I was trying to 
find out just where the responsibility lies as to the originating of any action 
that may be taken in the near future.

Sir Henry Thornton: I think the Minister will bear me out when I say 
that insofar as the administration of the Canadian National Railway System is 
concerned to-day, we have no responsibility other than we are the trustees of the 
property as it now stands, and it is our business to protect it as much as we can.

81695—19
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Mr. Stewart: With regard to the branch lines, the Canadian National 
Railway Board will make a recommendation to the government when they 
think a project is feasible or necessary. The same thing will apply to the Hud­
son Bay railway, that is, that no recommendation would come to the govern­
ment from the Canadian National Railway Board until they thought that was 
,a necessary project to go on with?

Sir Henry Thornton : Unless the government ask us to take that ques­
tion up and give them a report on it.

Mr. Stewart: May I ask this. Would you think, as head of the Cana­
dian National Board, that it was of sufficient importance to make inquiry or 
investigation into, unless the government gave you certain instructions along 
that line?

Sir Henry Thornton: That is a pretty difficult question to answer. You 
see, in discussing this whole Hudson Bay railway proposition, it has become so 
Jiighly contentious and there are so many differences of opinion that one wants 
vto be very careful what one says about it. We all know perfectly well that, 
broadly speaking, the west is convinced that the Hudson Bay railway should be 
,built. There is a contrary opinion elsewhere, and the curious thing about it is 
that those who either favour or disfavour the proposition are very violent in 
their opinions. It seems to be either a feast or a famine, either way, and I do not 
think I would want to say anything about the Hudson Bay railway at all until 
I am put in the position and armed with the necessary authority, if such should 
,come about, to make a report or give some form of statement.

Mr. Stewart: That is very well, but you have very carefully avoided the 
direct question.

Sir Henry Thornton: I have. This thing is loaded.
Sir Henry Drayton : I am not going to evade it, and I do not care whether 

it is loaded or not. I know what the real convictions of the Board are, and we 
had a similar instance in Ontario.

Sir Henry Thornton : You mean the Railway Board?
Sir Henry Drayton : Yes.
Sir Henry Thornton: I do not think our Board has expressed any opinion.
Sir Henry Drayton : I think I know pretty well the opinion of your Board; 

one can see through a glass window. We had in Ontario a similar situation ; 
that is, the building of the James Bay railway. Ontario thought that line 
should be built for years, and the Dominion was not going to do anything with 
it. Finally Ontario took it up and built it. The western provinces are a unit 
that this line should be built, just like Ontario was a unit that the James Bay 
line ought to be built. What I would favour doing is giving the whole of this 
investment of $25,000,000 to the prairie provinces.

The Chairman : They will not take it.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is one test of sincerity, but I would do more.
Mr. Stewart : I would not be too sure about that, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: I have had that reply from men to whom that suggestion 

has been made.
Sir Henry Drayton : I think they are quite sincere enough to take it, but 

I would do more than that. I would arrange with them so that they would 
have the use of the Winnipeg terminals for the purposes of their business, and 
not be put to the expense of spending a lot of money for that, and I would do 
even more than that. I would give them, in addition, a couple of million 
dollars to go ahead with, so long as it was quite clear that the responsibility 
for that line and its resulting deficits would not be the business of the Dominion 
but would be the business of those who believed in it, and that would be making 
a pretty fair offer.
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Mr. Stewart : And I suppose, when they demonstrated the feasibility of 
the route, then you would incorporate it in the National Railways?

Sir Henry Drayton : If it were a good thing I would let them have all the 
profits out of it.

The Chairman : You are quite safe in that offer, I think.
Sir Henry Drayton : If they can make money out of the Hudson Bay 

road, the money would be all theirs.
Mr. Kyte : A large delegation from the west came here some time ago, 

and the business men in the west asked the government to build the railway 
and they would furnish the money to build the terminals, shipping piers and 
elevators and would look after the shipment of grain themselves.

Hon. Mr. Graham: I think they only said they would build the elevators.
The Chairman: Would they operate the road and finance the deficits that 

would result?
Hon. Mr. Graham : A gentleman from Manitoba has written me once or 

twice about it, and I suggested that if he had a concrete proposition to make, it 
would be considered.

Sir Henry Drayton : I would not try to sell it; I would give it away. I 
do not like the idea of taking on any more obligations, the end of which we do
not know.

Mr. Stewart: There, is a very important point upon which I think I 
should get some information; it was that point upon which I asked Sir Henry 
Thornton a question.

Sir Henry Thornton: Try again, and we will see what we can do.
Mr. Stewart: There is an opinion very frequently expressed in eastern 

Canada that further investigation is necessary. Sir Henry Drayton has said 
that western Canada is convinced in this matter, and I do not think investiga­
tion would convince them more thoroughly, unless it brought out prominent 
facts, and a good many of those. But I say I have heard that opinion expressed 
very frequently, that further investigation is necessary. That is, eastern Can­
ada seems to have that in mind and bases its arguments upon the fact that the 
feasibility of the line has not been proven. Now, whose is the responsibility to 
carry on these investigations? There would be no opposition on the part of 
western Canada, so long as they were convinced that such an investigation was 
not for the purpose of holding up the road. Do you expect the provinces which 
are thoroughly convinced about it to undertake a thorough investigation to con­
vince the rest of Canada, or has this Federal government sufficient respon­
sibility and interest in it to do that, or has the Canadian National Railway 
Board the responsibility in that respect?

The Chairman: Sir Henry Thornton has said he thinks they have no
responsibility.

Hon. Mr. Graham : I would say if there is an investigation to be made, 
it is the business of the Dominion Government to do it, on the authority of
Parliament.

Hon. Mr. Stewart : Would you make that investigation before you gave 
instructions to the Canadian National Railways with regard to it?

Sir Henry Drayton : You might do it through the Canadian National 
Railways; they would be the appropriate agents.

The Chairman: I think it is understood they would not make such an' 
investigation unless they were asked to do so.

Sir Henry Thornton : With such an important question of policy involved, 
affecting the people of Canada as a whole, I do not think it is within the 
province of the Canadian National Railways to instigate a proposition of that
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kind, unless the Government has some serious intentions in connection with it. 
But I am perfectly willing to assume any responsibility in connection with this 
property which the Government may decide to turn over to us. I do not want 
to dodge or evade anything.

Hon. Mr. Graham : And you do not want to assume anything.
Sir Henry Thornton : And I certainly will not assume anything.
Mr. Stewart: Your statement includes investigations made by the Rail­

way Commission?
Sir Henry Thornton: You must examine the thing from every angle; it 

is not merely a railway proposition.
Hon. Mr. Graham : One question would be the possibilities of the line in 

connection with colonization, and another would be in connection with the 
transportation of traffic to and from Western Canada.

The Chairman: Do you think the western men who are so much in favour 
of the construction of this road would be satisfied if the Government made an 
investigation ?

Mr. Stewart: As I said a moment ago, there would be no opposition from 
Western Canada to any investigation, providing that they could be satisfied 
that such an investigation was not simply a means of holding up or delaying 
completion of the road. There has been a suspicion in the minds of many 
westerners that further investigation would be only an excuse to delay it. I 
have an idea thgt if a person in whom they had confidence—and I would say 
the head of the Canadian National Railway Board is such a man—that his 
opinion would carry great weight, and they would have sufficient confidence 
that he would not use his office to delay it in any way, whether he gave an 
opinion which was favourable or otherwise.

Sir Henry Drayton : Is there anything in the estimates for equipment this 
year?

Mr. Henry: There is an amount in that. That item of $4,000,000 odd 
which I read there is for new equipment.

Sir Henry Drayton: That is in connection with construction betterments 
and so on?

Mr. Henry : No, that is Section B.
Sir Henry Drayton: What is that $4,000,000 to be for?
Mr. Henry : That is 25 per cent on certain passenger equipment, to the 

extent of $2,125.000; freight cars to the value of $5,500,000; locomotives to the 
value of $4,665,000.

Sir Henry Drayton : What additional passenger equipment are you acquir­
ing?

Mr. Henry: Twenty steel first-class cars; twenty steel baggage cars; 15 
steel baggage and mail cars; 10 steel parlour cars.

Sir Henry Drvyton: Where are you going to put those parlour cars, on?
Mr. Henry: I think that is just a general strengthening of our service 

in that regard.
Sir Henry Drayton : What is the estimated cost of the steel parlour cars?
Mr. Henry: $39,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is $39,000 a car?
Mr> Henry: That is right.
Sir Henry Drayton : And what is the price of the other cars?
Mr. Henry: First class, $38,750.
Sir Henry Drayton : And the steel baggage cars, what are they now?
Mr. Brown: $25,500. The baggage and mail cars are $30,000.
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Sir Henry Drayton : That is for each unit ?
Mr. Brown : Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : What are our locomotives costing us now?
Mr. Henry: It depends upon the type, somewhere from $40,000 up to 

$100,000. $40,000 would be switchers, and $100,000 would be Santa Fe.
Sir Henry Drayton : How do the costs there compare with previous years; 

are they going down at all?
Mr. Brown: About the same as last year.
Sir Henry Drayton : Take three years ago.
Mr. Brown : I think they are a little lower.
Sir Henry Drayton : What drawbars are you getting on these locomotives 

now?
Mr. Brown: The Sante Fe will be about 95,000 pounds. They are the 

biggest engines we have.
Sir HSenry Drayton : Bigger than the last new ones you got?
Mr. Brown : Yes. The Mikados are 53,000 pounds.
Sir Henry Drayton : What was the cost of the old 53,000?
Mr. Brown: We have 30,000 here, with the booster about 55,000. They 

are $78,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the type used on the New York Central?
Mr. Brown : Yes.
Sir Henry Drayton : What does the booster cost now?
Mr. Brown: I think it is about $5,000; I am not just positive.
Sir Henry Drayton : How much of that goes for material, and how much 

for patent rights?
Mr. Brown: I could not tell you that offhand; I could get the figures.
Sir Henry Drayton : This is just 25 per cent of the cost; it is really 

$16,000,000?
Major Bell: It is about $17,000,000.
Sir Henry Drayton : That would be under the Act .this year. I think 

insofar as any other bonds are concerned, the right to issue these bonds and 
guarantee them would be taken under this vote.

Major Bell: The Minister of Finance can advance the cash or issue Cana­
dian National bonds guaranteed by the government.

Sir Henry Drayton : Reverting to the old principle?
Major Bell: Just the same.
Sir Henry Thornton: I hope that will be done soon, because we are in 

danger of losing money every day on this equipment. Just now the market is 
particularly favourable.

The Chairman: Will some one move that this item be approved of?
Sir Henry Drayton : What about this next item, “ Expenses made by, or 

indebtedness incurred by—”
Mr. Henry: That is just a description.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the deficit?
Mr. Henry: That item is merely explanatory.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is the old form, as I read it.
Major Bell: Exactly the same form as before.
Sir Henry Drayton : Under that item last year, what was the figure? 

There was a vote of $74,000,000, was there not?
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Mr. Henry: $73,500,000, I think.
Sir Henry Drayton : How much of that was spent under Item B, page 32 

of the estimates?
Mr. Henry: To which do you refer, cash or loans?
Sir Henry Drayton : By way of cash or guarantee?
Mr. Henry: The whole thing .was $73,000,000, plus a supplemental of 

$1,000,000 odd. It is in the opposite column on the same page there. That 
was the amount voted, and $67,181,514 was the amount actually spent.

Sir Henry Drayton : There would be an actual reduction under that head 
of about $11,000,000?

Mr. Henry: In addition to that there was a discount on the bonds of 
$1,093,500.

Sir Henry Drayton : That does not make any difference; that is the cost. 
Unfortunately we cannot get that back. You mean it was spent in addition to 
that? That should include the discount.

Mr. Henry: No, that $67,000,00 is less the discount.
Sir Henry Drayton : How much was the discount?
Mr. Henry : $1,093,500.
Sir Henry Drayton : That is cost, just as much as the other. However, 

I do not know that we need delay much longer; I want to go through this state­
ment afterwards.

Mr. Kyte: I move that this item be approved.
Sir Henry Drayton : I do not object to that, subject to this information 

I have spoken about.
The Chairman : Moved by Mr. Kyte, seconded by Sir Henry Drayton, 

that item 137 be carried.
Motion agreed to.
The Chairman: That practically completes our work with the exception 

of drawing up the report.
Discussion followed on the question of the printing of the report.
Moved by Mr. Kyte that that portion of the evidence relating to the Hotel 

Scribe be printed.
Moved by Mr. Stork that the discussion relating to the Hudson Bay railway 

be also printed.
Moved by Sir Henry Drayton that the entire report be printed.
(Motions of Mr. Kyte and Mr. Stork withdrawn, and motion of Sir Henry 

Drayton agreed to.)
Moved by Hon. Mr. Graham that the Chariman appoint a sub-committee to 

prepare a report to be presented for the consideration of the Committee.
Motion agreed to, committee to be announced later.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, before w'e conclude, Sir Henry Thornton would 

like to say a few words.
Sir Henry Thornton: Might I just briefly say this. This is the first 

opportunity which the officers and myself have had of meeting a committee of 
the House of Commons and discussing various matters which relate to the 
Canadian National Railway System. I would like to say quite sincerely that I 
regard these deliberations as most helpful to the administration. There have, of 
course, naturally been certain points of contention, but I should regard those 
points of contention as merely the seasoning which has made the food all the 
more palatable. It is, in my judgment, quite essential that there should be some 
vehicle of discussion and communication between the administration of the 
Railway System and the representatives of the Shareholders, who are the people
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,'{ Canada, and those representatives are, of coi 
Parliament. Now, all of the discussion we have had, from my point of view, has 
been extremely illuminating, has been of great assistance, and I only hope that 
some method will be provided of enabling the administration to discuss with some 
suitable body of the House the various questions with respect to which there may 
be misunderstandings. I hope that something will be done to provide a vehicle 
of that sort. As far as the members of this committee are concerned, although 
presumably their duties and responsabilities will end with the report, and the 
adjournment of the House, still I should like very much to be in a position to 
discuss from time to time, not only this year, but in subsequent years if I am 
here, matters which affect the people of Canada, and their railway system, and 
discuss these matters with the accredited representatives of the people, who are 
necessarily members of the House of Commons.

So I am therefore thankful to you for all the discussions which we have had 
and the very helpful way in which that discussion has been carried on, and I 
think it points to the fact that we have broken ground with respect to certain 
procedures which I feel ought to be very useful to the administration in years to 
come.

The Chairman : Sir Henry, may I say to you, perhaps on behalf of the 
committee, that I think all of us will reciprocate what you have said. I said on 
the first day that this committee was not intended to be inquisitorial in its nature, 
nor harmful in its effects, but that it might be a connecting link between the 
management of the railway and the Parliament of Canada. I feel that a great 
deal of that has been accomplished, and speaking for myself and perhaps for a 
majority of the members of the committee at least, I may say that I appreciate 
very much your frankness in connection with the questions that have been asked, 
and I desire to thank you and those officials of the company whom you brought 
here for the frankness and efficiency with which they have given the information 
desired.

The Committee adjourned.
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